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The Directors present the Annual Report for the year ended
31December 2022, which includes the Strategic Report,
Governance Report and audited Financial Statements for the
year. References to 'SEGRO’, the ‘Group’, the ‘Company’, ‘we’ or
‘our’ are to SEGRO plc and/or its subsidiaries, or any of them as
the context may require. Pages 09 to 86 inclusive comprise
the Strategic Report; pages 123 to 142 inclusive comprise the
Directors’ Remuneration Report; and pages 148 to 149 inclusive
comprise the Directors’ Report. These have been drawn up and
presented in accordance with English company law and the
liabilities of the Directors, in connection with these sections,
and shall be subject to the limitations and restrictions provided
by such law.

The Annual Report contains forward-looking statements.
For further information see inside back cover.
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2022 in numbers

Rent contracted New pre-lets signed
£ 98 AN
2021: £91m 2021: £49m

Development completions

039 200 sqm

2021: 839,200sgm

Development completions rated BREEAM
‘Very Good'’ or better (68% rated ‘Excellent’)

1009

2021:98%

Net Investment

EW.Sbm

2021:£1.5bn

New financing

Egﬂbm

2021:£1.3bn

Reduced average embodied carbon intensity of
development pipeline

10

2021: 2%

Increase in solar capacity

A

2021: 45%

Number of Community Investment Plans
launched

10

2021: N/A

Employee engagement

S

2020:94%
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Our Purpose
We create the space that enables
extraordinary things to happen.

Our passions include:

1. Creating exceptional buildings
and spaces:....

2. Enabling our customerstodo
extraordinary things:...

3. Nurturing talent......

4. Investing in our communities
and local environments....

5. Championing low-carbon
growth ...

How our governance activities enable extraordinary things

How the Board lives our Purpose and Values 95

How the Board manages and monitors our culture 96

Afocused and active Board - key milestones during 2022 106
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What we do
We own, manage and develop
modern and sustainable
warehouses across Europe.
Our portfolio includes both big
box and urban warehouses
and is unique in that two-thirds
of itis focused on the most
supply-constrained urban
markets. We aim to be the best
property company, and the
partner of choice for our
customers and other
stakeholders.

P\

Big box warehouses

Users of our big box spaces:

- Retailers (online and traditional)

- Third-party logistics and transportation
companies

- Manufacturers

- Distributors and wholesalers

67%
31%
2%

Asset type by value (SEGRO share) 1. Urbanwarehousing
2. Bigboxwarehousing
3. Otheruses

Total AuM

9 Y9msgm

Total floor space’

1 includes offices and retail uses such as trade counters,
car showrooms and self storage facilities

elss

Headline rent (SEGRO share)

Geographical split of big box warehouses by value
(SEGRO share)

1. UK 27%
2. Continental
Europe 73%

L L TLET I

Rl spem
e

Big box warehouses are typically used for
storage and processing goods for regional,
national and international distribution and are
much larger, both in terms of footprint and
often also height, than urban warehouses.
They are often located far from the end
customer but are situated on major transport
routes (mainly motorways, ports, rail freight
terminals and airports) to allow rapid transit.

Big box warehouses account for 31 per cent of
our portfolio value. They are located in major
logistics hubs and corridors in the UK (South-
East and Midlands); France (the logistics ‘spine’
linking Lille, Paris, Lyon and Marseille); Germany
(Dusseldorf, Berlin, Frankfurt and Hamburg),
[taly (Milan, Bologna and Rome) and Poland
(Warsaw, £todz, Poznan, and the industrial
region of Silesia). 27 per cent of our big box
warehouses are in the UK and the remaining

73 per cent are in Continental Europe.

Occupier demand for big box warehouses
has remained strong across the UK and
Continental Europe during 2022. Typically it is
easier for supply to catch up with demand in
big box locations due to higher availability of
land, however supply has remained low during
2022, leading to above-average rental growth
in most of our markets. On a medium to
long-term basis we expect market rental
growth for our big box warehouses to be two
to three per cent per annum.
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From transport hubs to major cities

warehouses

I
Overview Strategic Report

Governance
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Urban warehouses

Users of our urban spaces:

- Retailers and supermarkets (online and
traditional)

- Parcel delivery companies

- Food preparation companies

- Data centre operators

- Air cargo handling companies

- Wholesalers

- Film, TV and digital content producers

- Supportservices

- Pharmaceuticals and life science companies

£380m

Headline rent (SEGRO share)

Geographical split of urban warehouses by value
(SEGRO share)

1. UK 79%
2. Continental
Europe 21%

el J—
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Urban warehouses are located in, or close to,
population centres and business districts. They
are used by a variety of customers who need
rapid access to end consumers, as well as
labour. Modern urban warehouses have high
eaves and plenty of yard space to allow easy
and safe vehicle circulation. They are generally
situated close to main roads and public
transport. Urban warehouses tend to be smaller
than big box warehouses and are often clustered
in estates, which can comprise terraces of
smaller units (typically less than 3,500 sgq m),
larger detached single-let warehouses (typically
larger than 3,500 sq m), or a mixture of both.

Urban warehouses account for 67 per cent of
our portfolio value and are located mainly in
and on the edges of major cities where land
supply is restricted and there is strong demand
for warehouse space and from data centre
users. Our urban portfolio is concentrated in
London and South-East England (79 per cent)
and major cities in Continental Europe (21 per
cent), including Paris, DUsseldorf, Frankfurt,
Berlin and Warsaw.

Land supply inthese cities is limited (and
shrinking) and due to growing populations there
are competing pressures from other uses, for
example residential development. We believe
that the dynamics of this enduring occupier
demand and structurally limited supply bodes
well for continued strong rental growth in our
urban portfolio. We expect market rental
growth to be three to six per cent per annum
on a medium-term basis.
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Where we do it In the right markets

Our portfoliois located in
densely populated and
supply-constrained cities,

as well as key transportation
corridors and logistics hubs
across eight European
countries. Our market-leading
operating platform has people
onthe groundin every country,
providing excellent customer
service, as well as local insights
and helping us to develop
close relationships with
our local stakeholders.

475

people

2

offices

1.GreaterLondon 36%

4. Southern Europe 20%

Park Royal 15% France 12%
London Airports 12%  ltaly 6%
Rest of London 9% Spain 2%
2.Thames Valley 17% 5.NorthernEurope 12%
Slough Trading Estate 16%  Germany 1%
Restof ThamesValley 1% Netherlands 1%

3. National Logistics 10%

6. Central Europe 5%

Midlands 9%

Poland 4%

South East 1%

Czech Republic 1%

Why we are in these markets

The shape of our portfolio has been driven

by a deep understanding of our customers’
needs, as well as our in-depth analysis of key
regional characteristics, such as population
density and infrastructure networks. Our teams
on the ground supplement their knowledge
with our real-time location scoring data tool,
which scores millions of locations across an
ever-evolving European market, helping us to

identify new opportunities.

Key marketindicators:

-Good transportation links

-Proximity to end consumers
-Availability of labour

-Sufficient power and digital connectivity

S0%

of our portfoliois located in UK and Northern
European logistics hotspots (including the two
largest cities in Europe)

(@] Hamburg
. O Amsterdam Berlin O Poznan O O warsaw
TiburgO' O pisseldorf Oodz
o o o Wroclaw O
Lille Cologne Frankfurt i
fo) Prague O Katowice
O Paris
Munich O
Lyon (@)
O Milan
Bologna (@)
Marseille O
O Rome

Barcelona O

O Madrid
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Who we do it for

Modern cities need a huge
array of goods and services to
function. Our warehouses are
used by a diverse customer
base, spanning a wide range of
industries. The spaces that we
create are flexible and can be
adapted for different uses. Our
ability to offer big box and urban
warehouses means that we are
able to provide space for
customers throughout their
distribution networks, andin
many cases across borders.

Lo

of rent with customers who use both
our urban and big box space

/%

of rent with customers who we work
with across more than one country

Customer type by headline rent (%)
SEGRO share

1. Transport and logistics

. Retail (physical, online and hybrid)

. Food and general manufacturing

. Technology, media and telecoms

. Wholesale retail and distribution

7. Services and utilities 7
8. Other 7

/o

of headline rent from our largest customer

3% E203m)

of headline rent from our top 20 customers

Top 20 customers

c

rban

Amazon

Deutsche Post DHL
Royal Mail

Fedex

Virtus

Worldwide Flight Services
GXO

Geodis

La Poste (DPD)

10. Equinix

11. British Airways

12. CEVA

13. Iron Mountain

14. Netflix

15. CyrusOne

16. Ocado

17. Leroy Merlin

18. Evri

19. Tesco Group
20.Menzies

©| 00| N[ @[ 0 &[N =
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What drives performance
Our purpose-led,
responsible approach to
doing business helps to
drive our performance.

We have a strong company
culture and values, which
influence our day-to-day
decision making and
behaviour.

Our Purpose
We create the space that enables
extraordinary things to happen.

We are both a creator of exceptional
buildings and an enabler for our
stakeholders; particularly our customers,
employees and local communities, to
achieve extraordinary things.

Our culture and values
We have a special company culture that
permeates through the whole business.

Our culture is underpinned by our Values:
these are our core beliefs about how we do
business, which guide our decision making,
large and small. They are the ways in which
we work together to make things happen.

Our Values:

- Sayitlikeitis

- Stand side by side

- Ifthedooris closed...

- Keep one eye on the horizon

- Does it make the boat go faster?

Overview

Sayitlikeitis

Stand side by side
We work together
and put the interests
of our business ahead
of our own. We go out
of our way to support
each other and share
knowledge across
the business.

We always give
honest feedback,
keep our promises,
and keep messaging
clearand simple.

Strategic Report

If the door is closed...

If one route is closed
to us, we always find
another way. We
challenge ourselves
to think differently and
search for new ways
to succeed.

Governance

Keep one eye on

the horizon

We constantly look
ahead to ensure we are

successful in the future.

We do thisin part by
taking an active interest
in our customers and
their customers.

Financial Statements

Further Information

Does it make the boat
go faster?

We keep things simple
and continue to look for
improvements to how
we work.
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Our investment
proposition

Focused on the industrial and logistics sector

where there are long-term structural trends
driving occupier demand from a diverse
range of sectors

Biased towards urban warehousing where

there are significant barriers to entry due to
land supply and increasingly challenging
planning regimes

One of the most modern and sustainable

pan-European portfolios focused on the most
attractive European markets, supported by a
market-leading operating platform that drives
rental growth and unlocks value

Significant levers for growth with a rare

land bank and balance sheet with plenty

of firepower - development programme has
doubled the rentroll over the past five years
and has the potential to do the same again

Experienced management team, following

aclear strategy and with an excellent track
record of delivering growth in earnings
and dividends

I
Overview Strategic Report

Supportive
structural trends

%

For more information see
Our Market Overview
Page 14

Strong
balance sheet

%

For more information see
Financial Review
Page 57

RESPONSIBLE

SEGRO

Market-leading
pan-European
operating
platform

%

For more information see

et Exceptional land
Page26 bank for
redevelopment

%

For more information see
Business Model

Governance Financial Statements Further Information
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For more information see
Business Model
Page 27

Prime portfolio
of existing assets

%

For more information see
Business Model
Page 27




Creating exceptional buildings and spaces

The greenest urban industrial park in London.

When we bought the site that is now SEGRO
Park Tottenham, we made it a priority to
address the concerns that the nearby residents
had before we built anything.

The eight-acre site had previously been home
to avariety of industrial uses that had caused
upset to residents over several years, including:
noise pollution, vehicle parking and out-of-
hours usage. This culminated in a major fire
that destroyed almost all the buildings and
caused further concern to the residents.

Through talking with our neighbours, we set
out to build the greenest urban industrial parkin
London. One that ensured no noise or light-glare
reached the residents; that ensured that the new
buildings and landscaping did not overshadow
the adjoining residential premises; and one
that provided a 10m landscaped corridor with
semi-mature trees and a grassed area with
meadow flowers that would also benefit the
wellness of our customers’ employees.

In doing so, we have achieved some
outstanding environmental credentials -
BREEAM “Outstanding” and EPC “A+" - as well
as achieving a carbon negative rating for our
buildings in operation.

For further information
pleasesee
Page 8
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Strategic report

In this section:

We describe how our market
has been influenced by macro
issues such as inflation, and the

structural drivers that continue to
drive demand for warehouse space.

We also show how our business

model creates value for all of our

stakeholders, how our strategy

drives our performance and how

our belief that our responsibility
goes beyond the space we own
continues to differentiate us.

Quick links

Market overview 14
Our strategy 18
KPls 24
Responsible SEGRO 38

Performance review 48

Overview Strategic Report

Governance

Financial Statements Further Information

Market overview

Our business performance is driven by both cyclical
and structural factors. The investment market
remains cyclical but the occupier market is being
driven mostly by long-term structural trends, which
areresulting in high levels of occupier demand.

Page14

Did you know:
Slough Trading Estate has the second-largest hub of
data centresin the world

Our strategy

Our clear strategy has helped us reshape our
business andis central to our goal of being the best
property company, and the partner of choice for all
our stakeholders.

Page18

RESPONSIBLE

Our strategy has Responsible
SEGRO atits heartensuring
we remain a business fit for

the future, generating
attractive and sustainable
returns.

Our business model

At the heart of how we do business lies a deep
understanding of our customers’ needs. We rely
on different inputs, which combine to give us our
competitive advantage and our ability to create
superior value for all of our stakeholders.

QQ

Our prime portfolio and
market-leading operating e
platform combine to create o
astrong competitive
advantage, and position
us to create value through
the cycleforall our
stakeholders.
David Sleath

CEO

Page 24

Responsible SEGRO

Responsible SEGRO is a key part of our strategy.

It focuses on three strategic priorities which we have
identified as enabling us to make the greatest
business, environmental and social contribution:
Championing low-carbon growth; Investing in
ourlocal communities and environments; and
Nurturing talent. i

Page 33
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Scan here
toseevideo.

David Sleath covers the following topics:

- SEGRO's performance in 2022

- Meaningful progress made with Responsible
SEGRO during the year

- The strength of the business and how it is
positioned to perform through the cycle

— Priorities for 2023

-
To find out more
about SEGRO visit
WWW.Segro.com

Strategic Report

Governance

Financial Statements

Further Information
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Chief Executive’s statement

David Sleath reports on SEGRO'’s
performance over the past year and looks

- progress towards reducing our portfolio’s

e ) A : Financial Highlights
carbon emissions with the introduction

Delivering increased dividends

Adjusted profit' before tax

£ 330m+84%

2021: £356m

to the future. of greenlease clauses, and a significant
increase in our solar capacity;

- the launch of Community Investment
Plansin ten key markets, providing tangible
economic and social benefits for thousands

of people in the communities closest to

Our business delivered strong operational results
during 2022, a year where we saw significant
geopolitical uncertainty and changes to the
macroeconomic environment. Thisled toan

/036

unprecedented disconnect between the
occupier and investment markets emerging

our assets;

1
- meaningful changes to promote diversity Il s i

- _ o

2001 245 over the summer months. and inclusion within our workforce and
: the wider property sector, including, for E
Actions taken by central banks to address high example, changes to our recruitment o m
2000 21 levels of inflation by sharply raising interest process which resulted ina more diverse 2021: £4,355m profit before tax

rates led to significantly reduced liquidity in the 2022 graduate intake.

property investment markets in the second
half of the year, as both buyers and sellers
reacted to the increased volatility in capital
markets and the higher cost of capital. Valuers
increased yields to reflect this higher interest
rate environment, leading to falls in property
valuations across all markets. In contrast to

Adjusted' earnings per share

31 Opre5%

2021:29.1p

This activity helped us to deliver a 6.5 per cent
increase in Adjusted earnings per share (10.7
per cent excluding the SELP performance fee)
and we are therefore recommending a 7.7 per
centincreasein our final dividend to 18.2
pence per share, resulting in a total distribution

Our strong earnings growth

during 2022 and confident
outlook for 2023 means
that we are recommending
a7.7 per centincreasein
final dividend to 18.2 pence
per share, resulting in a
total distribution of 26.3
pence for 2022 as a whole.

David Sleath,
Chief Executive

former property cycles however, occupational
demand and rental performanceinthe
industrial and logistics sector has remained
strong, supported by long-term structural
tailwinds and tight supply.

The expertise and knowledge of our local
teams on the ground across Europe meant we
could respond quickly to the changing market
environment and deliver progress in all our
operating metrics throughout the year as well
as continued growth in both earnings and
dividends.

Looking back on 2022, our main highlights

include:

- arecord £98 million of new rent contracted,
arising from a combination of active asset
management of our existing portfolio, our
expanded development programme, market
rental growth and the benefits of indexation;

- 639,200 sg m of development completions,
and areduction of ten per centin the average
embodied carbonintensity of our
development programme;

- the acquisition of key strategic land plots
in some of Europe’s most supply constrained
urban markets such as London, Paris
and Berlin;

of 26.3 pence for 2022 (2021: 24.3 pence).

Reflecting on 2022, three things stand out for me:

the performance of our high-quality
portfolio, and the benefits of the decade-
long reshaping of both that and our balance
sheet, particularly in the current market
environment;

the continued strength and diversity of
occupier demand;

the tangible progress that we have made
with our Responsible SEGRO strategic
priorities, and the long-term value that we
are creating through our activities.

EPRA and Adjusted metrics: The Financial Statements are
prepared under IFRS. SEGRO management monitors a
number of adjusted performance indicators in assessing and
managing the performance of the business which they believe
reflect the underlying recurring performance of the property
rental business which is the Group’s core operating activity.
These include those defined by EPRA as part of their mission
to establish consistency of calculation across the European
listed real estate sector. Page 171 contains more information
about the adjustments and the reconciliation of these to

IFRS equivalents. SEGRO discloses EPRA alternative metrics
on pages 203-208. Adjusted NAV per shareisin line with
EPRANTA.

IFRS earnings per share

0109 /o

2021:339.0p

Adjusted NAV' per share

O00p50%

2021:1137p

IFRS NAV' per share

J33p

2021:1115p

Portfolio value?

| /Genox

2021:£18.4bn
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Chief Executive’s statement
continued

Our spaces can be adapted
to a variety of different
uses, which means we are
not overly exposedtoa
particular sector and also
that we can capitalise on
growth opportunitiesin
non-traditional industrial
and logistics occupiers,
such as data centres and
life sciences.

David Sleath
Chief Executive

Over a decade ago, we launched a strategy
centred around an ambition to create a
portfolio focused on the most attractive
industrial and logistics markets across the UK
and Continental Europe, one that would deliver
attractive total returns throughout the cycle.
Animportant element of this strategy was the
strengthening of our balance sheet to provide
resilience, and to ensure we could take
advantage of opportunities for further growth
evenin more challenging market environments.

Since launching that strategy, the industrial
and logistics sector has transformed. Long-
term structural trends of digitalisation and
urbanisation have led to increased occupier
demand, driving down vacancy rates to record
lows. This shortage of supply led to exceptional
levels of rental growth, attracting huge
amounts of investment into our sector and
increased competition.

We adapted our strategy accordingly, selling
non-core assets in secondary locations and
buying new assets in our preferred locations.
As competition for standing assets increased
we moved away from acquiring them on-
market, instead investing capital into
development, where we believed we could
produce better risk-adjusted returns. We also
reduced leverage and worked hard to create
adiverse, long-duration debt profile.

During 2022, our portfolio was notimmune

to the sharprisesininterest rates, which
increased the cost of capital and consequently,
yields on commercial properties. Thisled to a
fallin valuation of 11.0 per cent during the year.
At this time, benchmark information is not
available for the Continent but in the UK our
portfolio has outperformed the MSCI Quarterly
All Industrial index which showed a declinein
capital values of -17.4 per cent during 2022,
versus SEGRO's UK portfolio which decreased
by 15.5 per cent. This reflects the positive
benefit of the changes made to our portfolio
over the past ten years and our continued
focus on Disciplined capital allocation.

Overview Strategic Report

Importantly, the strength of our balance sheet,
has meant that, as long-term investors, we
have been able to look through the current
volatility, and focus on the areas that we can
control: capitalising on the continued strength
of occupier demand to drive rental growth;
capturing a significant amount of the
reversionary potential in our portfolio (which
has grown once again due to further market
rental growth in both the UK and Continental
Europe); and signing pre-lets to build out our
well-located land bank.

Consistent throughout 2022 was the strength
of the occupier market. Demand from our
customers has been, and continues to be, very
resilient. Take-up remained very high and well
above historical averages. Most notably, we
saw increased demand from businesses which
are attempting to make their supply-chains
more resilient during 2022: holding more
inventory locally and therefore requiring more
space; moving parts of their operations back
to Europe and the impacts of businesses
choosing to source materials closer to their
end destination.

We have also seen customers placing greater
importance on the sustainability of the
buildings they occupy. Many of our larger
customers have their own net-zero targets and
want the space that they occupy to contribute
to this. Smaller businesses have been
impacted by recent increases in energy prices
and are recognising the benefits of choosing
more energy efficient buildings and working
with alandlord who will help them to
understand their energy consumption and
can provide solutions to help reduceit.

These structural drivers are resulting in
demand from a diverse range of businesses
and our teams have been working hard to
capitalise onit. In 2022 we leased space to
existing customers who value the excellent
customer service that they receive from
SEGRO, and to new customers who bring
even greater diversity into our rent roll.

Governance

Financial Statements Further Information

As part of the day-to-day management of
our portfolio, our teams prioritise our three
Responsible SEGRO strategic priorities
andin 2022 we saw tangible benefits from
these initiatives.

There were a number of innovations within

our development programme that helped

us to reduce our average embodied carbon
intensity, such as using recycled roof materials
to create asphalt for road surfaces. We have
also significantly increased the number of solar
panelsinstalled on our warehouses, with one
project in the Netherlands adding almost 20
per cent to our total Group capacity, which
makes us excited about further similar
opportunities across the portfolio.

We have launched ten Community Investment
Plans (CIPs) in key markets, and projects are
underway across the UK and Continental
Europe that focus on employability, supporting
local economies and improving local
environments, making meaningful changes
to the day-to-day lives of people in our local
communities. Thousands of people have
already benefited from projects linked to these
andthisis only the beginning.

We have also made great progress with our
Nurturing talent ambitions, focusing on the
wellbeing of our people (including providing
extra support for those most impacted by
the cost of living crisis) and actioning
recommendations from the National Equality
Standards audit to promote diversity and
inclusion within our workplace and the wider
property sector.

Not only are these initiatives creating additional
value for our stakeholders, they are ensuring
that our businessiis fit for the future and that
itis truly delivering on its Purpose of creating
the space that enables extraordinary things
to happen.

2022 might not have been the year that we
allexpected, but our business has shown its
quality and resilience and has continued to
deliver value. | am proud of how everyone at
SEGRO has come together and worked hard
to make this happen.
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Outlook

Our long-standing disciplined approach to
portfolio management means that SEGRO
has one of the best and most modern pan-
European industrial warehouse portfolios,
through which we can serve our customers’
entire regional and local distribution needs.
Two-thirds of this portfoliois located in
Europe’s most attractive urban markets, often
in substantial clusters in key sub-markets,
where the lack of available land means that
supply-demand dynamics are tightest and
where long-term growth and returns are
therefore likely to be the highest. Thisis
complemented by the remaining one-third
of our portfolio, comprising clusters of
high-quality logistics warehouses situated at
key hubs along major transportation corridors.

Occupier demand for warehouse space
across Europe continues to be positive and is

derived from a wide variety of customer types.

Our spaceis flexible and can be adapted to
suit businesses from many different industries
which, when coupled with our relentless focus
on customer service through our market-
leading operating platform, is reflected in high
customer satisfaction and retention rates,

as well as our asset management and leasing
performance. Our business is therefore both
resilient and positioned to support growth
sectors and adapt to trends, including
e-commerce, the digital sector (data centres),
urbanisation and the consequential need
forindustrial and distribution space close to
the end customer from a very broad range

of businesses.

Our strategy
Page18

Risk management
Page 64

Responsible SEGRO
Page 33
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Supply and availability of modern, sustainable
warehouse space in the locations most desired
by occupiers remains extremely limited across
Europe. Vacancy levels are at historical lows
and supply is likely to remain constrained given
recentincreases in financing and construction
costs. We expect this contrast between positive
demand and limited supply to drive further
growthinrental levels. We already have £130
million of reversionary potential embedded in
the portfolio (most of which will be captured
through the five-yearly rent review process),

as well asindexation provisions in almost half
of our leases, both of which underpin future
like-for-like rental income growth even before
any further growth in market rental levels.

QOur sizeable, mostly pre-let current
development programme and well-located
land bank, provide us with further potential

to grow our rent roll profitably and allows us
significant optionality due to the short
construction periods of our assets. We will
continue to be led by customer demand and
our Disciplined approach to capital allocation
as we make decisions regarding the execution
of future projects.

With modest leverage, a long-average debt
maturity of 8.6 years, no near-term refinancing
requirements and virtually all of our debt at
fixed or capped rates, we have significant
financial flexibility to continue to invest capital
in the development and acquisition
opportunities that offer the most attractive
risk-adjusted returns.

Financial Statements Further Information

As we enter 2023, there are early signs of
liquidity returning to the investment markets,
asinvestors see value at current levels of
pricing. As the path of future interest rates
becomes more evident, we believe there is

a significant volume of capital ready to be
deployed into the industrial and logistics sector
duetoits attractive fundamentals. We will
continue to respond tactically to changesin
market conditions, but our long-term strategic
focusis to ensure that our properties are of the
highest quality and the most sought after, able
to generate superior long-term growth, and
therefore command a valuation premium.

We will also continue to invest in and de-risk
the future of our business via the significant
progress we have made with our Responsible
SEGRO strategic priorities.

Our prime portfolio and market-leading
operating platform combine to create a strong
competitive advantage, and position us to
create value through the cycle for all of our
stakeholders. We therefore remain confident
in our ability to deliver attractive returns and
continued growth in earnings and dividends
into the future.

David Sleath
Chief Executive
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Market overview

The performance of real estate businesses

are driven bytwo different markets: the
occupier market and the.investmentmarket
-these markets are inteérconnected but not
alwaysaligned.

The occupier market is driven by simple
supply’and demand dynamics for our
warehouses. If there is high demand but
limitedsupply vacancy rates will be low and
the'shortage of supply will drive rents higher.
Supply and demand can be driven by cyclical
factors such as the'macroeconomic
environment, for example global growth and
therefore whether businesses are growing,
butalso struetural factors which candrive
continued demand.even in a weaker
macroeconomic environment. The occupier
market drives our operational metrics and
also ourability to grow rents and therefore
deliver growth in earnings and dividends.

The investment market on the other hand

is driven by the attractiveness of real estate
as an asset class versus other potential
investments for institutional investors, for
example cash, corporate and government
bonds and equities. Real estate is typically
seen as having a bond-type profile, long-term
and relatively low-risk income streams (as
leases on commercial property are signed for
multiple years)sIfinterest rates increase and

%

Performance Review
Page 48

—

Our strategy
Page 18

%

Our business model
Page 24

government bond yields (the ‘risk-free rate”)
are higher this can lead to investers wanting
ahigher return from their real estate
investments (the yield). If yields increase:
asset values typically fall (absent any other
changes). The investment market therefore
has an impact on the value of our assets and
the totalvaluation of our portfolio.

Where these two interconnectis ultimately
down tothe importance of cashflows in the
real estate sector, i.e. the rentalincomeyou
expect to receive from the buildings:If
occupier marketsarestrong and rental
incomeis growing investors might be
prepared to accept alowerreturn (yield) than
they wouldiinan environment where the
occupier market is poor and the rental income
is potentially riskier. Theé occupier market
therefore generally impacts the investment
market but the sameis not truein reverse,

as shown during 2022 where we have seen
continued strength in our occupier markets,
driven by structural drivers, but investment
markets have been weaker driven by
macroeconomic uncertainty and higher
interest rates.

The factors that impact our occupier and
investment markets are explained further
inthefollowing pages.

Overview Strategic Report Governance

Cyclical drivers
Factors often linked to
the economic cycle that
influence supply and
demand, and therefore
impact asset values and
rental levels.

Financial Statements

Further Information
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Economic outlook Interest rate environment Geopolitical situation Competitive supply

Description Description Description Description

Economic outlook is animportant driver of
occupier demand for space. A supportive
economic outlook encourages businesses
to grow and therefore to secure extra space.
In arecession, customer insolvencies and
commercial property vacancy rates have
historically increased.

Global economic growth slowed in 2022 as
countries grappled with economic shocks,
including the geopolitical situation and
continued Covid restrictions in China and other
parts of the world. This sent inflation soaring and
weakened economic activity. The IMF expects
global GDP growth of 2.9 per cent in 2023.

What it means for SEGRO

SEGRO has a diverse customer base covering
many different sectors, which means we are
not overly exposed to challenges in particular
industries. Occupier demand for warehousing
is supported by long-term structural trends,
resulting in continued elevated levels of
take-upin 2022. In the event of a wider-
recession, demand for space might soften.
However, vacancy rates across our key markets
are also at historic lows, so we expect supply-
demand dynamics to remain favourable.

Inflation has resulted in higher construction
costs across Europe but we have been able to
offset these with higher rents to help protect
development margins. Going into 2023 this
inflation appears to be moderating and
contractors have availability which often
indicates costs will fall. In terms of our rent roll,
inflation has a positive impact as almost half of
our rents are index-linked (with most linked to
consumer price indices).

Monetary policy across Europe - and globally
-has changed significantly during 2022 as
central banks increased interest rates in
response to high levels of inflation.

The margin between government bond yields
(the 'risk free benchmark’) and property yields
helps to determine the attractiveness of
property assets to investors. The speed of the
interest rate changes during the second half
of 2022 has caused uncertainty in property
investment markets, with neither buyers nor
sellers wanting to transact until there is more
visibility on where interest rates will settle
longer-term.

This has had animpact on prime industrial real
estate yields, which were between 4.3and 5.5
per cent at the end of 2022.

What it means for SEGRO
The yield on our portfolio increased during the
second half of 2022 and is currently 4.8 per cent.

This yield expansion was partly offset by high
levels of rental growth, due to the continued
strength of occupier markets. Overall this
resulted in a decrease in our portfolio value
of 11.0 per cent.

There are encouraging early signs of
transactional activity in investment markets as
investors see good value at the current level of
pricing. As the path of future interest rates
becomes clearer, we believe there is significant
capital ready to be deployed into the industrial
and logistics sector due to its attractive
fundamentals.

A stable geopolitical situation isimportant
for businesses as it provides certainty and
confidence when planning for the future.
Today's international business environment
is less predictable, more volatile.

During 2022 the Russian invasion of Ukraine
created significant uncertainty, impacting
supply chains across Europe and causing fear
of energy shortages which resulted in soaring
inflation. There are a number of other
geopolitical situations across the globe that
have the potential to cause further disruption.

What it means for SEGRO

The most immediate impact of the Russian
invasion of Ukraine was on supply chains.
Some materials used in our development
programme were sourced from the Ukraine (for
example steel) so we had to work closely with
our construction partners to find alternatives.
These supply chain issues contributed to
continued construction cost inflation
throughout 2022.

Energy price rises have put additional pressure
on some of our customers who have seen their
cost bases increase significantly. However,
according to research by Savills, rents are
small as a proportion of total costs for most
occupiers and they are able to save on other
costs by leasing energy efficient warehouse
space in highly accessible locations. It has also
increased interest in renewable energy
generated on-site amongst our customer base.

Geopolitical uncertainty is likely to increase
the focus of our customers on supply chain
resilience (see structural drivers on page 17).

The relatively short construction time for
warehousing means that the availability of
new, speculatively developed buildings can
sometimes create excess supply, leading to
increased vacancy and weaker rents.

Occupier demand moderated during 2022
but remains significantly above long-term
average levels.

Supply increased in response to high levels
of take-up, but mainly for pre-let buildings
and the response has been limited by tight
planning laws and low availability of land.
Vacancy rates across Europe therefore remain
at historic low levels.

Increased build and finance costs as well as
economic uncertainty mean that we expect
there to be fewer construction starts in 2023
and that supply should therefore remainin
check.

What it means for SEGRO

Rental growth hasincreased across our
portfolio during 2022, particularly in Central
Europe where supply has reduced significantly.

We continue to take a cautious approach to
speculative development, preferring most of
our developments to be derisked through
pre-letting.

LINK TO STRATEGY:
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

LINK TO RISK:
MACROECONOMIC (1) AND MAJOR EVENT (3)

LINK TO STRATEGY:

EFFICIENT CAPITAL AND CORPORATE STRUCTURE,
DISCIPLINED CAPITAL ALLOCATION,

LINK TO RISK:

FINANCING (7), PORTFOLIO STRATEGY (2)

LINK TO STRATEGY:
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

LINK TO RISK:
MAJOR EVENT (3) AND DEVELOPMENT (6)

LINKTO STRATEGY:

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE, DISCIPLINED CAPITAL
ALLOCATION

LINK TO RISK:

OPERATIONAL DELIVERY (10)
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Market overview
continued

T

Structural drivers
Changes in the way that
an industry or market
functions can result in
longer-term or even
permanent change.

L

Overview

Strategic Report

Governance
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Digitalisation of society

Description

Digital technologies are changing the way
that we live, work and think. Entire industries
are adapting and new ones are emerging as
aresult of this.

One of the most significant impacts of
digitalisation on industrial assets is the rise
in e-commerce, with consumers wanting to
receive anincreasing array of goods and
services more flexibly. The pandemic
accelerated this need, and although
e-commerce penetration rates have stabilised,
they are significantly above pre-pandemic
trend levels. Most European markets are
forecast to reach online sales penetration
levels of more than 20 per cent by 2026.
Distribution networks will need to be
reconfigured to facilitate this growthin

a cost effective and sustainable manner

Increased demand for data centres to store
and process the huge amounts of data
generated by both individuals and businesses
is another aspect of digitalisation.

What it means for SEGRO

We are seeing strong occupier demand for

our urban warehouses located on the edge of
cities catering for ‘last-mile’ delivery, and also
for our big boxes, which are used as centralised
fulfilment centres.

We are also experiencing strong demand
for data centre space in London and Slough,
and have identified new sites across our
Continental European portfolio suitable for
this use.

LINKTO STRATEGY:

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE, DISCIPLINED CAPITAL
ALLOCATION

LINK TO RISK:

PORTFOLIO STRATEGY (2)
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Supply chain efficiency
and resilience

Urbanisation

Climate change and the need for efficient,

sustainable buildings

Description

Manufacturers, retailers (both traditional and
online) and distributors require efficient, reliable
distribution networks and supply chains to
compete effectively in meeting customer
demands and reducing costs. By investing in
modern, well-located warehouse facilities they
can better serve their customers and gain
access to labour pools to staff their facilities.
These businesses frequently need larger
buildings in central locations with space and
power to support automation, as well as smaller
buildings close to the consumer to support
the ‘last-mile’ of the distribution journey.

The disruption to supply chains caused by the
pandemic and the Russian invasion of Ukraine
has highlighted the importance of supply chain
resilience, leading businesses to hold more
inventory, source more locally and have
multiple suppliers.

Trade routes into Europe are changing with
fewer imports from Asia via Eastern Europe and
the increased importance of European portsin
northern Germany, southern France and ltaly.

What it means for SEGRO
Thereisincreased demand for modern,
well-located warehousing for supply chain
efficiency and future resilience.

Our pan-European portfolio has assets on key
transportation routes and in major logistics
hubs and is well-placed to benefit from
additional demand generated by the
transformation of trade routes.

Description

The populations of most major European cities
continue to grow, leading to increased housing
requirements as well as increased demand for
goods and services, and for warehouse space
from which to supply them, particularly for
‘last-mile’ deliveries.

Land previously used for industrial purposes

in and around major towns and cities can

also be used to construct new residential and
other types of properties required to meet

the demand of the larger urban population.

As aresult, land available to meet the need for
increased warehouse demand is being eroded,
leading to higher land prices andincreased rents
for well-located urban industrial properties.

What it means for SEGRO
Two-thirds of our portfolioisin urban locations so
we are well-positioned to benefit from this trend.

In London, market rental values for our urban
warehouses increased by ten per centin 2022,
reflecting the supply-demand imbalance.

The shortage of land in urban areas is also
leading us to look at ways to intensify land use,
for example by constructing multi-level
buildings.

Planning can be more challenging in urban areas,
particularly in our Inner City portfolios in London
and Paris, due to concerns of local residents.

Description

The world is facing a climate crisis and
governments, business and consumers across
the world are making commitments and
changing their behaviour to help tackle this
massive challenge and limit global temperature
rise tolessthan 1.5 degrees.

As aresult of this there is increasing focus on
the impact of buildings on the environment.
Our customers also want to minimise their
carbon footprint and reduce overall occupancy
costs. Itis therefore important that landlords
and developers own and create buildings that
are sustainable and use natural resources
efficiently.

Major European conurbations are also looking
to reduce traffic emissions which means it will
be even more important for businesses to be
located in the properties that help them reach
their customers by low-carbon means.

What it means for SEGRO

We have ambitious targets for reducing our
carbon emissions and aim to be net-zero
carbon (including the emissions of our
customers) by 2030.

We factor a building’s sustainability into our
investment decisions, not only for potential
acquisitions and developments but also for
deciding whether to dispose of or refurbish
assets. We have also assessed our portfolio
under different climate scenarios.

Our urban portfoliois located on the edge of
major European cities which makes reaching
the city centre possible via electric vehicles
and our newer inner city assets also facilitate
delivery by means such as cargo bicycles.

A number of our urban estates are also located
close to canals and waterways which
customers are starting to use in innovative
ways as part of their distribution networks.

Two of the UK big box parks that we have
developed in the Midlands have strategic rail
freight interchange terminals which allow our
customers to transport goods by rail rather
than more carbon-intensive trucks.

Responsible SEGRO
Page 33

LINK TO STRATEGY:

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE, DISCIPLINED CAPITAL
ALLOCATION

LINK TO RISK:

PORTFOLIO STRATEGY (2)

LINK TO STRATEGY:

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE, DISCIPLINED CAPITAL
ALLOCATION

LINK TO RISK:

PORTFOLIO STRATEGY (2), DEVELOPMENT (6)

LINK TO STRATEGY:
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

LINK TO RISK:
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE
CHANGE (5)
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Our strategy

Our goal is to bethe best property company
and the partner of choice for our customers and
other stakeholders.

i

AR

i

M RESPONSIBLE =

SEGRO

Driven by Our strategy has Responsible Measured by
market , SEGRO at its heart ensuring KPIs and linked to

trends remuneration

we remain a business fit for
Market overview the fl:lturel genera.tlng Key performance indicators
Page 14 attractive and sustainable Page 20
: returns

Responsible SEGRO
Page 33
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Maximising the returns from
our business

A clear strategy that creates shared value for all our stakeholders

Disciplined capital allocation ~ | Wehave been following a clear and consistent
Using our in-depth knowledge of our (_ |strategy for the past decade. Itis key to our
customers and the trends impacting their success in delivering our Purpose of creating
businesses, to pick markets and assets the space that enables extraordinary things to
that create the right portfolio shape happen’, which enables us to create significant
actively manage its composition and financial and non-financial value for all our
adapt our capital deployment according stakeholders.

to our assessment of the property cycle.

Operational excellence (\ Financial

Leveraging our operating platform to o - -

optimise performance through dedicated Adjusted earnings per share

customer service, expert asset

management, development and O

operational efficiency. . p +635/0

Efficient capital and corporate structure ( ~ | 2021:291p

Underpin the property level returns from < _

our portfolio with a lean overhead Dividend per share

structure, the best technology-enabled

processes, an efficient capital structure 0

and appropriate financial leverage. ) p +82 fe)

Responsible SEGRO (\ 2021:24.3p

Embedded in the way that we manage our %«

business day-to-day are our Responsible
SEGRO strategic priorities. They influence
the way we manage our portfolio, how we
create new space, and the investments
that we make into our business to make
sure that it is fit for the future.

Non-financial KPls
Page 22

Financial KPIs
Page 20

Non-financial

Customer satisfaction

3%

2021:90%

Employee engagement

T

2020:94%

Portfolio carbon intensity

220

2021:29.7kgCO,e

Our goalisto be the best property company
and the partner of choice for our customers
and other stakeholders. Best can mean many
things and it reflects that our stakeholders
have different priorities. We need to take their
differing, and sometimes conflicting, interests
into consideration when making decisions
about how we run our business, balancing
both short-term and long-term interests. The
use of the words of choice reflects that we
recognise that our customers, employees
and other partners have the option to choose
who they work with. By taking both of these
things into account, and by striving to
continuously improve and adapt to stay ahead
of emerging trends, we believe that we will
ensure the long-term success of SEGRO.

Our goal reflects our ambition to create a
portfolio of high-quality industrial properties
in the strongest markets: a portfolio that
generates attractive, low risk, income-led
returns; provides above-average growth
(both in terms of rent and capital values) when
market conditions are positive and proves to
be resilientin a downturn. We seek to enhance
returns through development, while ensuring
that the short-term income ‘drag’ associated
with holding land does not outweigh the
long-term potential benefits.

Fundamental to our strategy are four key pillars
of activity, which combine to deliver the value
we seek to create:

- Disciplined capital allocation

- Operational excellence

- Efficient capital and corporate structure
- Responsible SEGRO

These key pillars drive both our day-to-day
decision making as well as our long-term
strategic thinking, and are supported by our
strong company culture and Values. They
provide clear guidance and help to align
priorities. The actions taken under each pillar
also need to be flexed depending on the wider
environment and circumstances we are
operating in ata given time.

The close relationships we build with our
customers help us understand our key markets
andinfluence our daily decisions (for example,
how we design our warehouses and how much
of our land bank to bring forward at a given
time). They also help us anticipate long-term
trends so we can make the right strategic
decisions to shape our portfolio and ensure the
continued success of our business. Relationships
with other key stakeholders are also animportant
source of information.

We take a proactive approach to risk
management (for more information on how we
manage risk see pages 64 to 74) to ensure that
we are positioning our business to respond to
potential threats. We also regularly carry out
ESG materiality assessments (see page 34) to
ensure we understand the wider priorities of
our stakeholders, as well as to highlight
potential opportunities.

The insights we gain from our day-to-day
interactions, combined with our regular risk
and ESG materiality assessments, help us to
adapt to suit changing market conditions
(allowing us to respond quickly if needed) and
also to ensure that we are positioning the
business for long-term success. This should
translate into not only sustainable, attractive
returns for all our shareholders, but also
significant value for all other stakeholders.
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Key performance indicators

We measure our success by tracking Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs) that reflect our
strategic, operational and financial progress
and performance. They drive the internal
management of the business, and some are
used to determine how management and
employees are remunerated.

Financial

All our financial KPIs are based on proportionally
consolidated metrics incorporating our share
of joint ventures and associates.

1. TheTPRhas been calculated independently by MSCI Real
Estate in order to provide a consistent comparison with an
appropriate MSCl benchmark. Itis calculated as the change
in capital value, less any capital expenditure incurred, plus net
income, expressed as a percentage of capital employed over
the period concerned for standing investments held
throughout the year, excluding land.

Qverview Strategic Report Governance Financial Statements Further Information
Total Total /‘ Q Total /‘ 8
O O : O
shareholder 4( ) /Q property /O accounting /O

return (TSR)

(%)

return (TPR)

(%)

return (TAR)

(%)

LINKED TO REMUNERATION
LINKTO STRATEGY:
ALL STRATEGIC PILLARS

O]

LINKED TO REMUNERATION

LINKTO STRATEGY:
DISCIPLINED CAPITAL ALLOCATION

O]

LINKED TO REMUNERATION

LINK TO STRATEGY:
ALL STRATEGIC PILLARS

®

Description: TSR measures the change in

our share price over the year, assuming that
dividends paid are reinvested. This reflects our
commitment to delivering enhanced returns
for our shareholders through executing our
strategy over the medium term. TSR is a key
metric used in setting the long-term incentive
plan remuneration for both the Executive
Directors and senior managers.

Our performance: TSR was -45.8 per cent,
compared with -33.3 per cent for the FTSE 350
Real Estate index. This reflects a combination
of the 25.0 pence dividend (16.9 pence 2021
final dividend and 8.1 pence 2022 interim
dividend) paid during the year, and a reduction
inthe share price from1,436.5 pence at
31December 2021to 763.6 pence at

31 December 2022.

Description: TPRis the ungeared combined
income and capital return from our portfolio
of standing investments held throughout the
year. Itis an important measure of the success
of our strategy in terms of asset selection and
management. MSCI Real Estate prepares the
calculation, as well as providing benchmark
TPR data for similar properties in their wider
universe. We aim to outperform the benchmark
over the long term. Details on how TPR impacts
short- and long-term incentives are provided
on pages 126 to 127.

Our performance: The TPR of the Group’s
standing assets held throughout 2022 was
-10.3 per cent (2021: +33.7 per cent). The UK
portfolio generated a TPR of -13.0 per cent,
performing ahead of the benchmark
calculated by MSCI Real Estate UK All
Industrial Quarterly of -14.6 per cent. The TPR
of our Continental Europe portfolio was -5.4
per cent. Benchmark data for Continental
Europe will be received later in the year.

Description: TAR is the growth in Adjusted
NAV per share plus dividends paid, expressed
as a percentage of Adjusted NAV per share at
31December 2021. It measures the return on
capital and is a key metric used in setting the
long-termincentive plan remuneration for
both the Executive Directors and senior
managers.

Our performance: The TAR for the Group
was -12.8 per cent (2021: +42.5 per cent). This
performance reflects a combination of the
171 pence decrease in Adjusted NAV from
1,137 pence at December 2021to 966 pence
at 31 December 2022 and the 25.0 pence
dividend (16.9 pence 2021 final dividend and
8.1 pence 2022 interim dividend) paid during
the year.

- - -

- - ”

- - w

2021 55%

2021 33%

2021 43%

2020 9%

2020 14%

2020 19%
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Adjusted Rent roll Loan .

earnings per p growth E ) |to value /O

share (EPS)

(PENCE)

(%)

(LTV)

(%)

LINKED TO REMUNERATION

LINKTO STRATEGY:
ALL STRATEGIC PILLARS

O]

LINKED TO REMUNERATION

LINKTO STRATEGY:
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

O]

LINKTO STRATEGY:
DISCIPLINED CAPITAL ALLOCATION
EFFICIENT CAPITAL AND CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Description: Our Adjusted EPS reflects
earnings from our operating business: rental
income less operating, administrative and
financing costs and tax. Itis the primary
determinant of the level of the annual dividend.
IFRS EPS includes the impact of realised and
unrealised changes in the valuation of our
assets, which can often mask the underlying
operating performance. The reconciliation
between Basic EPS and Adjusted EPS can be
found in Note 12(i) on page 178.

Our performance: Adjusted EPS increased
by 6.5 per cent to 31.0 pence during the year
(10.7 per cent excluding the 1.1 pence SELP
performance fee reflected in the 2021
comparator), reflecting higher rentalincome
from our standing assets and new income
from acquisitions and developments, partially
offset by higher financing costs.

Description: The headline annualised rent
contracted during the year lessincome lost
from takebacks. There are two elements: to
grow income from our standing assets by
reducing vacancy and increasing rents from
lease renewals and rent reviews; and to
generate new rent by developing buildings,
either on a pre-let or speculative basis. Rent
from acquisitions is not included.

Description: The proportion of our property
assets funded by borrowings, including joint
ventures and associates at share. The timing
of investment decisions and disposals, as well
as movement in the value of our assets, may
cause the LTV to fluctuate. We believe that
REITs with lower through-cycle leverage offer
alower risk and less volatile investment
proposition for shareholders.

Our performance: In total, we generated a
record £77 million of net new annualised rent
during the year (2021: £72 million). The increase
was driven by higher rents on review and
renewal in the UK, indexation provisions mainly
in Continental European leases, and by the
increased volume of rent from development
completions and pre-let agreements secured
during the year.

Our performance: Our LTV ratio increased
to 32 per cent during 2022. Thiswas dueto a
combination of the £2.2 billion unrealised fall
in the value of our portfolio and £1.3 billion of
netinvestmentin our business. We recognise
that thisis above recent levels, but given
where we are in the cycle we are comfortable
with this level. We retain significant headroom
to covenants as well as liquidity to fund both
visible investment and potential opportunities
that may arise.

For further information see the Financial
Review (page 58).

- _ ”

- _ o

- _ -

2021 291p

2021 72.0m

2021 23%

2020 254p

2020 601m

2020 24%
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Our strategy
Page18

Risk management

Page 64

We recognise that the management of risk has a role to play
inthe achievement of our strategy and KPlIs. Risks can hinder
or help us meet our desired level of performance.

Remuneration

Page 126

Where relevant we have linked our KPIs directly to SEGRO's
incentive schemes.
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Key performance indicators
continued

Non-financial

Our non-financial KPIs help to measure the
shared value our business creates to ensure
that our business is positioned for long-term
success.

Our non-financial KPIs link to our Responsible
SEGRO strategic priorities.

Given where we are in our journey towards
these goals we anticipate that our non-financial
KPIs will evolve as we progress towards our
stated ambitions.

Our strategy
Page18

Risk management

Page 66

We recognise that the management of risk has a role to play
inthe achievement of our strategy and KPIs. Risks can hinder
or help us meet our desired level of performance.

Remuneration

Page134

Where relevant we have linked our KPIs directly to SEGRO'’s
incentive schemes.
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Customer Employee Embodied
satisfaction 85% engagement 9W% carbon
intensity
(%) (%) (KGCO,E/M?)
LINKED TO REMUNERATION @® | LINKED TO REMUNERATION @® | LINKED TO REMUNERATION ®

LINK TO STRATEGY:
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

LINKTO STRATEGY:
RESPONSIBLE SEGRO

LINK TO STRATEGY:
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
RESPONSIBLE SEGRO

Whatitis: The percentage of our customers
who rate their experience as occupiers of our
buildings as ‘good’ or ‘excellent” as opposed to
‘ooor’ or ‘average’. Our customers are at the
heart of our business and we strive to ensure
that we are providing the best level of service
possible to maximise customer retention.

Our performance: Satisfaction as an occupier
of our buildings was rated as ‘good’ or
‘excellent” by 85 per cent of the 286 customers
who participated in the 2022 survey (2021: 90
per cent). The continued high satisfaction rate
reflects our focus on communication, being
responsive and understanding the needs of
our customers and is particularly pleasing
given the cost pressures that some of them
are under (including recent increases in rents).
We intend to target similarly high levels in the
future. 98 per cent of our customers said that
they would recommend SEGRO to others.

Whatitis: We carry out an employee survey
(annually from this year) asking all our people
to comment on various aspects of their work
at SEGRO. We share the results of this with the
Board, Leadership team and all our people.

Our performance: Our 2022 employee
engagement score was 91 per cent and 94 per
cent of employees said that they are proud to
work at SEGRO and care about its future. 94
per cent of employees felt that SEGRO
respects individual differences.

Whatitis: The largest source of carbon
emissions within our control is the embodied
carbonin our newly developed buildings.
Within our science-based targets, we are
committed to reducing the average carbon
intensity of all new developments by 20 per
cent by 2030 (compared to a 2020 baseline
of 400 kgCO,e/m?). We calculate this metric
based on completed developments over
the past two years for which a life cycle
assessment has been completed.

Our performance: The average embodied
carbonintensity in our development
programme was 353 kgCO,e/m (2021: 391
kgCO,e/m) reflecting a12 per cent
improvement from the 2020 baseline. We
reduced this by trialling low carbon or recycled
materials, including concrete, steel and timber
across multiple projects.

For more information see page 36.

- _ -

- _ "
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2021 90%

2020 94%

2021 391

2020 87%

2018 92%

2020 400
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Whatitis: Our corporate and customer
carbon emissions cover our own operations
under Scope 1and 2 and our customer
emissions under Scope 3. We have visibility of
two-thirds of the energy use from our buildings
by floorspace. For buildings where we do not
receive data we have estimated energy use.
Within our science-based targets, we are
committed to reducing the absolute corporate
and customer carbon emissions of our
portfolio by 42 per cent by 2030 (compared
toa 2020 baseline of 312,115tCO,e), in line
with a1.5 degree scenario.

Our performance: During 2022, we reduced
the corporate and customer emissions of our
portfolio to 272,218 tCO,e (2021: 280,575
tCQO,e), reflecting a 13 per cent improvement
from the baseline. This reduction was largely
due to greater visibility of energy use and
also the type of energy (renewable) sourced
by our customers.

For more information see page 37.

Whatitis: Under the terms of most of our
leases we do not have automatic visibility of
customer energy usage data. We recognise
theimportance of having good visibility of this
data so we can accurately assess our Scope 3
emissions and help our customers to reduce
their own carbon footprint as well as improving
their energy efficiency. We are therefore
proactively engaging with our customers,
requesting access to this data and have
introduced green clauses requiring energy
use visibility to all new leases.

Our performance: The visibility of our
customers’ energy use improved to 68 per
cent (2021: 54 per cent) of our total property
footprint by area.

For more information see page 37.

Whatitis: The target for the Investing in our
local commmunities and environments pillar of
our Responsible SEGRO framework is to create
and implement Community Investment Plans
(CIPs) for every key market in our portfolio by
2025. As we are at an early stage of this
programme the KPI involves the number of
plans created. Once the plans arein placein
most markets, this KPI will evolve towards
measuring theirimpact.

Our performance: During 2022, we launched
our first ten CIPs, including one in every
Business Unit: Heathrow, Park Royal, East
London, Slough, East Midlands, Coventry,
Northampton, Paris, t6dz, and DUsseldorf.

For more information on the projects within
these plans see page 44.

- _ o

- _ -

- _ )

2021 280,575

2021 54%

2021

2020 31215

2020 4%

2020

Financial Statements

Responsible SEGRO commitments
Page 33
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Our business model

A deep understanding of our customers’
needs and the markets in which we operate
lies at the heart of how we do business. This
allows us to create the space that enables
extraordinary things to happen.

We create finaneialand non-financial valug, ' - = |
which is either distributedto our key. ~rr=tevig

stakeholders orre-invested in ourbusiness. 5
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What we need to enable extraordinary things

A deep understanding of our customer
needs

We pride ourselves on the strength of our
customer relationships and use insights that
we gain from them to make better, mutually
beneficial business decisions.

Diverse, motivated, talented and engaged
people

We employ 425 people with expert skills
across all aspects of real estate, corporate
functions and newer areas, such as data
analytics.

A portfolio of prime sustainable assets

We buy and build warehouse properties located

inside or on the edge of major cities, key
transportation corridors and logistics hubs.

Land to fuel our development pipeline
Our extensive land bank is a significant
competitive advantage and an important
source of growth.

Collaborative partnerships with suppliers
We work with suppliers whose aims
complement our own.

Future-proofing through innovation

We embrace technology and use it to ensure
our business s fit for the future, including
ensuring we have efficient, technology-
enabled processes and systems.

An efficient capital structure

We forge strong relationships with our
shareholders as well as our banks and
bondholders who provide equity and

debt funding.

%@
Strong community relationships
As a long-term investor, we are committed
to contributing to the long-term vitality of the
areas in which we operate.

A zero-tolerance approach to poor

health and safety is central to all our business
activities, and we are committed to the
prevention of harm to our people and
throughout our supply chain.

Disciplined capital allocation

Market analysis

We take into account long-term trends and
our customers’ needs when deciding where
and what to investin.

Acquisitions

We buy assets and land in key strategic
markets and source opportunities off-market
where possible.

Qe
Portfolio review

We undertake a detailed analysis of our
portfolio every year to ensure we understand
the risk-return profile of every asset.

Asset recycling
We dispose of assets where we believe we
have optimised returns.

Operational excellence

Development
We build prime, sustainable warehouses
in key locations.

Customer relationships

We manage our portfolio internally which
helps us to provide an excellent service and
develop partnerships with our customers.

Qo
Focusing on sustainability

Through the day-to-day management of our
portfolio and our development programme,
we actively look for ways to reduce carbon
emissions and improve biodiversity around
our estates.

Active asset management

We actively manage our assets to strike
abalance between occupancy and rental
growth.

Long-term value creation for all stakeholders

oJ°

Employees

Customers

Suppliers

Communities

Investors

Employee engagement

S

2020:94%

Recommendation to others

98%

Spend

2021:97% EQZJ’/‘ m 2021:£962m

Contributions to charity

£20m

2021:£1.3m

Full-year dividend

20 .3p

2021:24.3p

Training hours

0,299

2021:4,656

Retention rate

/0%

2021:77% W 5days

Average UK payment time

38/

2021:16 days

Employee volunteering days

2021:234

Total shareholder return

(A0)%

2021:55%
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Our business model
continued

What we need to enable extraordinary things:

A deep understanding of our customers’ needs

Customers who would recommend SEGRO to others

O3%

2021:97%

Understanding our customers and their
evolving needs is crucial to SEGRO’s success.
Our knowledge of their businesses helps to
shape our decisions on where and what to
investin, soitis at the heart of how we actively
manage our portfolio.

We look to build and maintain strong and
meaningful customer relationships, allowing
us to work in partnership - whether that be
with small, owner-managed start-ups or global
businesses. These close relationships are
facilitated day-to-day by our asset and
property managers as we manage the majority
of our portfolio internally. We supplement the
knowledge gained through these relationships
with our Customer App, which provides
important data and updates. We also organise
regular Customer Futures Forums that bring
together our customers to discuss important
topics and emerging trends, and help us to
keep one eye on the horizon.

By understanding their differing priorities and
challenges, we are able to offer tailored and
creative solutions to each customer’s
individual real estate requirements. From
offering additional, larger or smaller premises
to align with their own growth aspirations, or
helping them to enter a new market, our
service often also involves going beyond
simple real estate transactions. For example,
we may give our customers advice on

Customer retentionrate

/0%

2021:77%

managing their warehouse more efficiently
to reduce their energy consumption. Many
of our customers share an environmental
sustainability strategy as a key focus of their
business. We also partner with customers on
projects that form part of our Community
Investment Plans.

Our close relationships with our existing
customers also help to create new
opportunities. The knowledge and
understanding of various industries that

we gain provides valuable insights into
developing our warehouses so they are
future-fit and suitable for evolving needs. We
sometimes also leverage these relationships
to create opportunities in new geographies,
deepening and strengthening our
connection. 27 per cent of our headline rent
comes from customers with whom we have
leases in more than one country and our
dedicated cross-border customer account
teams help us to ensure that we offer a
streamlined approach to these businesses.

By working closely with our customers to
understand their needs and issues, we aim

to provide a first-class service and real estate
solutions long into the future. We also hope
that this approach will continue to encourage
customer loyalty and help us to generate
new business.

Overview

Strategic Report

Governance

Financial Statements

Further Information
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What we need to enable extraordinary things:

Diverse, talented, motivated and engaged people

What we need to enable extraordinary things:

A portfolio of prime, sustainable assets

Number of employees

475

2021:385

Although real estate is a physical asset class,
the business of acquiring, developing and
managing it requires great people. The
strength of our operating platform is
dependent on the expertise, commitment
and motivation of our workforce and this is
why Nurturing talent is one of our Responsible
SEGRO priorities and is a key element of

our strategy.

We have 425 employees working together
across Europe, with expertise in all aspects

of real estate, and we want to make sure that
every one of those employees is able to fulfil
their potential. Our employees help us to create
aworking environment that encourages
collaboration, open communication,
continuous improvement and innovation.

Our top priority is to make sure that our people
canworkin a healthy, safe and secure

environment, and this extends to their general
wellbeing outside of the workplace. We have a
comprehensive health and safety programme,

and have expanded our wellbeing programme.

We invest significantly in training and
development, and offer secondments as well
as other project-based opportunities to
enhance employees’ wider experience.

Employee engagement

S

2020:94%

We believe that to get the best out of our
people they need to feel comfortable and free
to be themselves, so we work hard to make
sure our working environment is inclusive,
supportive and free from bias with
opportunities for all. The National Equality
Standards (NES) audit that we participated in
during 2021 commended our robust policies
and practices for equal opportunities and
inclusion. We acted on their recommendations
to make furtherimprovements during 2022,
including additional training and improvements
in how we collect diversity data and how

we recruit.

Our workforce is gender diverse but while we
are making progress, we know that there is
more to do to ensure gender diversity in our
senior teams and to encourage broader
diversity. Thisis a sector-wide challenge, but
we hope that through the changes we are
making we will start to encourage people from
different backgrounds to join our industry and
over time this will start to have the impact that
we desire.

We believe that the approach we take to
rewarding, developing and looking after our
peopleisaninvestmentin the longer-term
success of our business as it helps us to ensure
that SEGRO is the employer of choice for a
diverse range of talented, motivated and
engaged people.

Total AUM

220 Yon

2021:£21.3bn

QOur prime, modern portfoliois a result of an
ambitious portfolio reshaping programme and
we now own what we believe to be one of the
highest-quality portfolio of industrial property
in Europe.

We continue to review and refine our portfolio,
carrying out an annual asset review process
looking at the opportunities, risks and potential
returns for every single asset. We identify
assets (and sometimes markets) where we
believe we have maximised the potential or
where we believe the risk of holding an asset
outweighs the potential benefits. This also
forms the basis of our disposal list and ensures
that the portfolio remains focused on prime
assets in the markets with the strongest rental
growth potential.

We also make asset acquisitions when they
offer attractive returns, taking advantage of
our market knowledge and local networks to
source opportunities off-market where
possible and therefore achieve better pricing.

The focus of our investment over recent years
has been on our development programme,
allowing us to add more modern, sustainable
space to the portfolio and expanding our
pipeline of opportunities. This has allowed us
to gain competitive advantage by leveraging
the skills, local knowledge and technical
expertise of our teams across Europe. It has

also helped us to generate superior returns
than from buying dry assets with limited
growth potential and given us access to
opportunities that would not be available
ontheinvestment market.

We refurbish and redevelop existing
warehouses that have a prime location but
need modernising to meet customers’
requirements. Increasingly this involves
retrofitting sustainability features to improve
their energy efficiency.

The constant refinement and modernisation
of our portfolio aims to ensure that our assets
are the warehouses of choice for our
customers, helping us to grow rents and keep
vacancy low. Combined, this should mean
that in the long term our portfolio will
outperform the benchmark and create value.
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What we need to enable extraordinary things:

Land to fuel our development pipeline

What we need to enable extraordinary things:

Collaborative partnerships with our suppliers

Land acquired in 2022

1. _

2.

1. Landacquiredin2022 £712m

2. Landacquiredin 2021 £829m

Our extensive land bank is a significant
competitive advantage and an important
source of growth, both in terms of the physical
assets that it allows us to develop and the rental
income that those buildings generate.

We have been building this land bank for a
number of years and it is now a rare and valuable
asset. At the current rate of development, our
land bank should last us three to five years. It

is therefore important that we replenishiit,

so we can meet anticipated future demand
from customers.

Sourcing industrial land requires both in-
depth knowledge of the markets and good
relationships with local planning authorities
and communities to ensure that our plans
meet their expectations and ambitions for the
area. Our Community Investment Plans (CIPs)
help to enhance these relationships and show
our commitment to the communities around
our estates.

1 2021amount has been restated to reflect £503 million of
covered land that was recategorised from asset acquisitions
toland during 2022.

Potential development from land bank

8.5msqm

2021:31msgm

Our teams on the ground in each region carry
out extensive research, leverage their strong
local relationships and think creatively to
source opportunities, such as acquiring older
warehouses with short-term income and
redevelopment potential (covered land’) or
where we can repurpose assets intended for
alternative uses.

Where possible we acquire land off-market
or under option, until it is zoned for industrial
usage and we can progress with our
development plans. Increasingly, we are
looking at ways to create additional space
from redevelopment opportunities within
our existing portfolio.

Supplier spend

£947Tm

2021: £962m

QOur relationships with our suppliers are key to
helping us create value. We invest in developing
these to ensure that our aims and objectives
are aligned and mutually beneficial.

We work with over 2,800 suppliers across the
Group, ranging from small local businesses

to multinational companies. We want to work
with suppliers who share our Values and our
approach to matters such as health and safety,
compliance, anti-bribery and corruption. Our
Supplier Code of Conduct and Modern
Slavery and Labour Standards Supplier Code
consolidate and set out in full the principles
and standards that we expect and outline how
we can work side by side to create real change.

We are committed to ensuring that our supply
chainis safe, secure and efficient. We follow a
strict supplier assurance process so we can be
confident that our supply chain is maintained
to ahigh standard. This process requires all
suppliers to provide information appropriate to
their service, including health and safety policies
and evidence of insurance. They must explain
how they ensure bribery, corruption and fraud
are not happening in their organisation or
supply chain, and how they safeguard against
modern slavery and human trafficking. This
screening exercise is repeated regularly. In
addition, each year our legal team meets with
anumber of suppliers across the Group. There
were no concerns or issues arising out of the
meetings conducted during 2022.

Number of suppliers

230/

2021:2,286

We have regular service review sessions with
professional services suppliers (for example,
with our lawyers and agents), while those
involved in construction activities have regular
visits from our Health and Safety team.

Our relationships with our suppliers are
important in us achieving our Responsible
SEGRO ambitions. We work closely with our
construction partners to reduce the embodied
carbon intensity of our development
programme. We also expect our suppliers to
work with us to support local businesses and
economies; this includes proactively sourcing
labour, goods and services from the local
community and contributing to our
Community Investment Plans.

In the spirit of partnership, we treat our
suppliers well and ensure that they are paid
ontime. We are a signatory to the UK Prompt
Payment Code (average UK payment time

is 15 days). We are also an accredited Living
Wage employer, and are working with

our suppliers to help ensure everyone
working in our supply chain to support

usis paid areal Living Wage.
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What we need to enable extraordinary things:

Future-proofing through innovation

The world around us is changing at a rapid
pace. We are in continuous dialogue with our
customers, suppliers and other business
partners so that we position ourselves to take
advantage of longer-term trends. Technology
and digitalisation is becoming a crucial part of
how we manage our existing portfolio and how
we design, build and plan our assets.

We see the changes resulting from technology
and digitalisation as not just a challenge but
also an opportunity.

We have long recognised the value of
technology and our investment over a number
of years has created the strong foundations of
our digital strategy. This focuses on: providing
our people with the digital skills, tools and
processes to be effective; using data and
analytics to provide actionable insights and
enable better decisions; digital innovations
which differentiate our assets and services to
customers; and providing secure and scalable
digital infrastructures that enable all of our
digital services.

To ensure that our portfoliois fit for the future
and meets the ever-changing needs of our
customers, we are also continually innovating
within our development programme. This is
also crucial to meeting our net-zero carbon
targets as a significant part of our emissions
result from our development activity.

Finally, with land in short supply in most of our
markets and particularly in urban locations
such as London or Paris, we are increasingly
innovating to maximise the space that we can
create. For example the addition of mezzanine
levels over loading bay areas can create
additional flexible space; going up rather

than out. We are also developing multi-level
warehousing, such as our V-Park development
in West London, and thinking creatively by
re-purposing assets such as underground

rail terminals for inner-city logistics.

To help us remain at the forefront of innovation
inthe real estate sector, we contribute to
industry-wide collaboration initiatives,
including the British Property Federation’s
Technology and Innovation Working Group
and the LandAid Tech Network, and we are
active participantsin and supporters of
open source technology communities.
We also maintain active partnerships
with the ‘PropTech’ firms Fifth Wall and
Concrete Ventures.

Further Information

Financial Statements

Strategic Report
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What we need to enable extraordinary things:

An efficient capital structure

What we need to enable extraordinary things:

Strong community relationships

New financingin 2022

Number of investor meetingsin 2022

T

2.

1. 2022 £3.1bn

2. 2021 £1.3bn

We fund our investment activities through a
combination of equity, debt and the proceeds
of disposals. The relationships with our
shareholders, as well as with our banks and
bond holders who provide our equity and debt
funding, are therefore crucially important.

As a listed company we have a responsibility
to those individuals and institutions who have
invested money in our business to deliver
long-term and sustainable returns on their
investment.

We ensure regular communication with our
investors through an extensive programme,
mainly managed by a dedicated Investor
Relations team. This includes roadshow and
other ad hoc meetings, attendance at investor
conferences, as well an active programme of
asset tours.

The Annual General Meeting also provides us
with an excellent opportunity to meet our retail
shareholders and answer their questions about
the business.

Our website contains comprehensive
information about our strategy and
performance, regulatory news and press
releases, information about our debt and our
approach to Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) issues (including
Responsible SEGRO). The Investors section
of the site also includes investor tour
presentations, analyst financial forecasts
(consensus) and webcasts of the Full-Year
and Half-Year results presentations.

During 2022, the Executive Directors and the
Investor Relations team held meetings with
representatives from over 280 institutions
(including 14 of our top 20 shareholders - the
remaining six are passive institutions) across
over 230 meetings to update them on our
performance and to provide an opportunity
for them to ask questions. We also held a series
of one-on-one and group meetings with our
lending banks and investorsin SEGRO and
SELP’s bonds during the year.

These investor interactions update our
investors on our business and allow us to
understand their priorities and any concerns.
This feedback is vital to help shape our strategy
and our communications and disclosure to
make sure that we are meeting their expectations
of us.

Number of community investment plans
launched during 2022

10

As along-term investor, we are committed to
contributing to the long-term vitality of the
areas in which we operate. One of our three
Responsible SEGRO priorities is to Invest in our
local communities and environments.

To do this effectively, we work with local
stakeholder partners to better understand
the needs of alocal community so we can
contribute positively to its growth and
development. We work closely with local
authorities in our key markets to ensure we
understand their priorities and support these
with our own plans. This is also key to our
understanding of the challenges around
zoning and planning, and forms an important
part of our decision on where to invest.

Much of our urban warehouse development
programme involves regenerating older
industrial sites and brownfield land to attract
new businesses investment into local areas,
creating diverse and high-quality employment
opportunities and driving economic prosperity.
We also try to encourage innovation and the
growth of small local businesses by offering
flexible space with all-inclusive leases in our
Enterprise Quarters and providing additional
support services to help them to develop

their networks, learn from each other and
grow together.

Number of employee volunteering days

1. _

2.

1. 2022
2. 2021

387
238

We seek to go beyond local planning
requirements when designing new
development projects, so that we canimprove
employability opportunities for the local
community, upgrading local road networks
and infrastructure, and contributing to
improvements in local public transport that
benefit everyone in the surrounding area.
Increasingly, we are creating outdoor spaces
close to both our urban and big box parks to
improve biodiversity and benefit the local
environment and to promote health and
wellbeing both for our customers and for
local residents.

The impact of our development programme
is enhanced when we involve our business
partners in this process. We regularly work
with our suppliers to help create opportunities
for local businesses: for example, we
encourage contractors to source services and
materials from local suppliers and to use local
labour during the construction stages of our
projects. Working closely with customers

and local authorities can also help to create
employment opportunities, and we invest in
the provision of training to help local residents
access job vacancies created through our
new developments.
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We continue to support local charities to help
improve the lives of vulnerable members of
the local community and fund a range of
training and education programmes that
help these members of society on the
pathway into employment.

We support causes close to the hearts of our
own people and encourage them to
participate in charitable activities, providing
their time and skills. A record number of our
people took part in our Company-wide ‘Day.
of Giving’ during 2022, which allows our
employees to volunteer to work with one of
the local charities that SEGRO supports
corporately.

QOur people run, cycle, swim, skydive, walk
and ‘sleep out’ overnight to raise money for
arange of great causes, for which SEGRO
will match the funds raised.

Investing in and supporting our local
communities is something that we have
done for over 100 years. The establishment
of the £10 million SEGRO Centenary Fund in
2020 provides the funding for many of these
projects. Our Community Investment Plans
are helping us to think more strategically
about how we allocate our charitable
contributions and other efforts so that we
can maximise the impact of our efforts and
the value created.

I
Overview Strategic Report Governance
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What we need to enable extraordinary things:

A zero-tolerance approach to poor health and safety

Accidentincident rate' 2022

020

2021:0.13

1 Anindustry standard rate calculated by number of employee
incidents, divided by number of hours worked, multiplied
by100,000.

Health and safety is central to all our business
activities. It is our responsibility to ensure that
we provide and promote a healthy, safe and
secure environment in which our people and
customers can work, extending throughout
our supply chain, and in particular on our
development projects.

We aim to achieve our high standards through
acombination of risk mitigation, training and
promoting a widespread awareness and
culture of health and safety. We only want to
work with businesses that share our approach
of zero-tolerance of poor health and safety
practices. We require all our suppliers to
confirm that they meet our Health and Safety
Standards, and we undertake particularly
rigorous assessments of those companies
working on our development sites. We support
our contractors by providing additional
guidance, signage and undertake health and
safety visits of all our development sites
throughout each project.

Our health and safety commitment does not
end when we complete a project, but extends
to the ongoing day-to-day life of our estates.
Many of our estates are accessed by both our
customers and the public, and we assess and
mitigate a variety of risks. By providing training
and raising awareness we ensure our customers
and communities are well informed and able
to make appropriate decisions.

Whenever incidents occur, we fully investigate
to understand the causes, involving external
consultants where appropriate. Findings and
learnings are disseminated across the Group,
including to the Board and Executive
Committee, to ensure that we (and where
appropriate, third-parties) respond and
improve our processes where necessary.

For example, following anincident on an
estate within our Greater London Business
Unit in August 2017 we took steps to improve
the safety at the site concerned. We carried
out an additional risk assessment, making
amendments to procedures where necessary,
at other SEGRO owned sites with similar
characteristics. Following their investigation
the Health & Safety Executive (HSE) brought
a prosecution against SEGRO Administration
Limited as the managing agent for the site at
the time and two occupiers, for health and
safety breachesin connection with this
incident. We consider appropriate actions
were taken to address any deficiencies in the
health and safety regime at the site, but will
continue to share lessons learnt across the
business and wider industry.

We continue to be recognised for our safety
performance through the RoSPA (Royal Society
for the Prevention of Accidents) Awards,
reflecting our Group commitment to, and
practical application of, health and safety
procedures across all our business operations.
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Responsible SEGRO

ESG is taken very seriously at SEGRO.
Responsible SEGRO demonstrates®
how our environmental and social
contributions are embedded within
our business strategy, and are
fundamental to how we enable
extraordinary things to happen -
whether that is the space that

we create for our customers,

or enabling our people and the
communities and environments
close to our warehouses -

to flourish.

RESPONSIBLE

SEGRO e

To find out more
about SEGRO visit
WWW.segro.com

I
Overview Strategic Report Governance

We are committed to being a force for societal
and environmental good and this has been at
the heart of how our business operates since

it was founded. It has been instrumental in

the success of the Company over the past 102
years and will be just as important for the next
100 years. This commitment is led by our Board
but lived by SEGRO colleagues every day. It is
about doing the right thing and making a positive
impact wherever we operate.

We have long-held commitments to leadership
in health and safety, stakeholder engagement,
corporate governance and being a good
corporate citizen.

Our Responsible SEGRO framework helps us to
articulate our sustainability goals and address
our stakeholders’ most material concerns.
Within this we have focused in on three
enduring strategic priorities, which were
determined through engagement with our
stakeholders. These priorities cover the areas
where we believe we can make the greatest
business, environmental and social
contribution. They are:

Championing low-carbon growth

Investing in our local communities and
environments

Nurturing talent

For each of these areas we have established
challenging targets that are linked to six
non-financial KPIs and to the annual bonus
for allemployees.

We report a summary of our progress with these
during 2022 in the following section and discuss
our priorities for 2023 - more detailed information
(along with full datasets) can be foundin our 2022
Responsible SEGRO Report and Data Pack.

We intend to set additional, more specific,
supporting targets as necessary and expect
our actions and approach to evolve over time
to reflect our achievement, technological
change and the priorities of our stakeholders
and wider society.

Financial Statements Further Information

ESG reporting and ratings

We monitor our performance across various
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
indices and review trends to ensure our
approach and the information we disclose
meets the needs of our stakeholders.

There are a number of different frameworks
that we use to report on our wider ESG metrics,
including:

- Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)

- Sustainability Accounting Standards Board
(SASB)

- Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures project (TCFD)

- EPRA sustainable Best Practice Reporting
(EPRA sBPR): Gold

- Better Building Partnership - Climate Change
Commitment

- Workforce Disclosure Initiative: 80%

®wni

There are also various agencies who
review and assess our ESG reporting and
performance, including:

- MSCI: AAA
- Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP): A-
- Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark
(GRESB)
- Standing investments: three-star
- Development: four-star
- Public disclosure: A
- Dow Jones Sustainability Index (DJSI):
6th Percentile
- FTSE4GOOD - 3.2 (sub-sector average 2.4)

MScCI @
E RATIMNGS

TR L T - |
Dnﬁ.}nnes Q
Sustainability Indices

P by o e o D FTSE4Good
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Responsible SEGRO
continued

Materiality

To help us ensure that our strategic priorities
and the targets within them are appropriate
and reflect our stakeholders’ expectations
we believe it is good practice to periodically
assess our assumptions. During 2022 we
undertook a materiality review, following
guidelines by the Global Reporting Initiative
(GRI) and the Sustainability Accounting
Standards Board (SASB).

This review built on a previous materiality
assessment undertaken in 2019, and included
areview of benchmarks and standards, peer
reporting and aligned with internal risk
management processes. The aim was to identify
those issues (both risks and opportunities) that
are most important to the Company and its
primary stakeholders, to ensure that they are
considered within our Responsible SEGRO
strategic priorities, and to inform the structure
of our sustainability reporting. Emerging issues
were also identified and considered.

In total, 18 material issues were identified,
considered through four lenses - environmental,
societal, economic and governance - but

with recognition that the issues may well be
inter-dependent. We then refined these to
eight priority material issues (PMls). We did this
to surface the priority issues which are both
important to our stakeholders and where we
intend to focus ourimmediate efforts. We
recognise, however, that while developing a
ranking isimportant to be able to demonstrate
priority issues for SEGRO and our stakeholders,
this does represent their relative importance
atapointintime and is based on the views of

a small number of informed participants.

Eachissue identified has been allocated to
the relevant team within SEGRO for further
attention and embedding into business
processes. All financially material PMls are
governed by the SEGRO business risk process
(see page 68).

Theseissues are outlined in the table to the
right and remain aligned with our current
Responsible SEGRO priorities. We intend to
conduct materiality reviews annually.

Overview Strategic Report
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@ Priority Material Issues
@ Material Issues

Our material issues

Championing low carbon growth

@ Driving a pathway to net-zero through effective energy management (including embodied
carbon), and by enabling a transition to renewable energy for SEGRO and our customers.

@ Ensuring environmental compliance, today and in anticipation of future regulatory changes,

and ongoing certification against relevant standards.

@ Understanding the need and opportunity for climate adaptation, and building resilience to
climate change, for SEGRO and our customers.

@ Identifying and executing business and diversification strategies in the renewables sector,
that build on our unique positioning and strengths.

@ Understanding our biodiversity impacts and supporting urban greening.
@ Responsible water management.

Nurturing talent

@ Attracting, developing and nurturing talent for rewarding careers.

@ Ensuring the safety and health of our employees, our suppliers and those who use our
facilities.

@ Promoting diversity, equity and inclusion, including and beyond succession planning and
compliance.

Investing in our local communities and environments

@ Implementing smart technology that makes lives better, and protects the environment.
@ Leading inthe development and implementation of ethical building standards.
@ Engaging with and investing in local communities for mutual positive impact.

Operating in the context of sound governance

@ Ensuring sound and ethical business conduct, including through the effective management
of our supply chain, and in our customer base (to the extent that this is possible).

@ Ensuring ongoing and increasing ESG disclosure and transparency.

@ Protecting and upholding human rights (including Modern Slavery) within SEGRO and
amongst customers and suppliers.

@ Protecting and preserving our reputation, by doing the right thing and anticipating
stakeholder concerns.

@ Promoting and preserving a positive and caring culture, which is mindful of economic
equality and hardship.

@ Being mindful of cyber security and the ethical use of information and data.

Financial Statements Further Information

Alignment with the UN SDGs

We have reviewed the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals against our
Responsible SEGRO strategic priorities to
understand which goals are particularly
significant to our business. Elements of our
business are aligned with all of the goals but
we believe we are able to make the greatest
contribution to six of them:

18 i

L

SEGRO is committed to reducing the
embodied carboninits development
programme as well as reducing the carbon-
intensity of our properties. We want to play
our partin tackling climate change and have
atarget to be net-zero carbon by 2030.

= =

(=)

-

SEGRO has a strong track-record of
supporting local communities and
employment (including training) is one of
the areas that our Community Investment
Plans (CIPs) focus on. We want to play our
partin reducing inequalities and ensuring
more people have the right skills to access
meaningful work.

DECIN] Wi AAD

iR (W TH

SEGRO is committed to being a good
neighbour and to enhancing the spaces
beyond our buildings. Our CIPs also include
projects to support the local economy and
enhance the natural environment. We want to
play our part in ensuring that our buildings are
part of thriving, sustainable communities.
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Championing low-carbon growth

Average embodied carbon intensity

3 53 kgCO,esgm

2021:391kgCO,e sgm

Corporate and customer carbon emissions

212 218 s

2021:280,5675tCO,e

Visibility of customer energy data

O3

2021:54%

Key achievements during 2022:

- Launch of our Mandatory
Sustainability Policy

- Significant increase in our solar capacity

- Green leasesintroduced, underpinning the
collaborative approach we take with our
customers on carbon reduction

Priorities for 2023:

- Understanding the impact that our
investment into biodiversity is having on
ourlocal communities

- Increasing the automation of the retrieval
of our customers’ energy data

- Progressing our large scale solar
installation strategy

SEGRO recognises that the world faces a climate
emergency and we are living in a shrinking
window of time when our awareness of climate
change can still be matched by our ability to
act. We therefore need to shape SEGRO to live
up to the challenge of this, whilst still continuing
to grow our business and develop the space
thatis much needed by our customers.

In recognition of this we have joined many
of our sector peersin signing a pledge to

be net-zero carbon by 2050, and have
announced that we will be going further and
faster by reaching that aim by 2030. These
commitments cover SEGRO’s own business
activity (including lettings, refurbishments,
development and acquisitions) as well as the
emissions that our customers make whilst
using our buildings.

The SEGRO Carbon Pathway sets out our
ambition and approach and can be foundin
the Responsible SEGRO Report and Data Pack.

Itis our responsibility, as a long-term investor,
to use the latest technologies and construction
techniques to ensure that our buildings are
efficient to use and stand the test of time. We
want to bring sustainability to the design stage,
and - working with our construction partners

- we are continuously evaluating and adopting
new approaches, technologies and techniques
toreduce the carbon footprint of our existing
properties and our developments. We take a
materiality-based approach to our
environmental strategy, focusing on the areas
where our footprint is greatest.

The Investment Committee considers the
environmental impact of all capital investment
decisions to ensure that they are consistent
with our environmental targets and ambitions.

We continue to see value in developing policies
and reward mechanisms to embed the
behaviours we need to be a sustainable
business. We believe it is important to equip
our business with the best framework to deliver
against our stretching emission targets.

During 2022 we launched our ambitious
Mandatory Sustainability Policy which sets
out six key commitments:

- Embodied carbon: use Building information
Modelling (BiM) and life cycle assessments
(LCAs) on all developments over 5,000 sgm

- Solar: maximise coverage on all our buildings

(subject to planning, power, customer),
ensure all new buildings can take 100 per
cent solar on the roof, and investigate local
grid capacity for solar export

Energy data: identify where gaps in customer
energy data exist and where possible
implement SEGRO’s green lease to mandate
the use of renewable energy and sharing

of data

Building certifications: deliver BREEAM
‘Excellent” or equivalent on all new
developments over 5,000 sgm, implement
refurbishment standards to EPC B or better
(orlocal equivalent)

- Electric vehicle charging: install at least

20 per cent of all parking with electric
charging capability

Biodiversity and wellbeing: at least meet

the Biodiversity Net Gain commitments (UK
only), implement at least five biodiversity or
wellbeing features on all new developments
over 5,000 sg m, and at least one for each
refurbishment.

Scan the QR code to hear our Director of Sustainability talk
about our progress with Championing low-carbon growth.
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Carbonin our developments

Embodied carbon intensity reduction goal

0%

by 2030 from a 2020 baseline

Average embodied carbon intensity
reduction versus 2020 baseline

127

Development completions rated BREEAM
‘Very Good'’ or better (or local equivalent)

1009

Our emissions

1. Corporate
and customer
emissions

41%

2.Embodied
carbon from
developments

41%

3. Otherscope 3

18%

Approximately 40 per cent of our carbon
emissions relate to the embodied carbon from
our development programme. For our existing
buildings, we can work to improve their
efficiency in operational terms, butitis in our
development programme where we can make
the greatestimpact. In many cases, once we
hand a building over to a customer, they
control all operational aspects, so it is our
responsibility to provide them with an efficient
building and the tools to operate it effectively.

Our science-based targets, aligned to the
Science Based Target initiative (SBTi)
framework, include a goal to reduce the
embodied carbon intensity of our
development programme by 20 per cent by
2030, compared to a 2020 baseline of 400 kg
CO,e persgm. We are one of very few property
companies who currently have an embodied
carbontarget.

The average embodied carbon intensity of our
developmentsin 2022 was 353 kg CO,e per
sg m of delivered floor space, representing a
12 per cent reduction from the 2020 baseline.

Our sustainability strategy requires that we
drive down the embodied carbon and transport
emissions of the construction materials of our
capital projects. Thisisin line with the
methodology used by the UK Green Buildings
Council in their Whole Life Carbon roadmap.

We carry out Life Cycle Assessments (LCAs)
onour larger development projects to track
performance against our embodied carbon
KPland to identify opportunities to make
further reductions to our buildings’ carbon
footprint over their full life cycle - from
procuring materials through to deconstruction
atthe end of the building’s useful life. We
believe this holistic approach to embodied
carbonisthe mostimpactful.

However, simply procuring sustainable
materials is not enough, this process is starting
to affect how we think about the shape of our
buildings - considering alternative layouts that
are less carbon and material-intensive.

Overview Strategic Report Governance

Our new Mandatory Sustainability Policy
commits us to carrying out LCAs on all eligible
projects greater than 5,000 sg m (roughly 98
per cent of our current development pipeline)
and apply lessons learned across the wider
development programme as we progress
against our target. During the year we have also
agreed to share the data from our UK LCA's with
the UK Net Zero Carbon Buildings Standard.

We mandate the use of Building information
Monitoring (BiM) in our development projects,
which greatly improves the accuracy of our
embodied carbon data. BiM allows us to assess
more accurately the amount of material
needed for the construction (reducing waste)
and the carbon emissions from the materials.

We will continue to adopt the latest techniques
to reduce embodied carbon within our
developments, including low-carbon concrete
and timber or recycled steel beams which we
are already using in several of our current
developments. The availability of such
materials is not yet consistent across our
markets, and they are not always suited to the
design of our buildings, but we are determined
to work with our partners inidentifying
low-carbon options.

The sustainability credentials of a building are
increasingly important for potential customers
deciding on where to locate their businesses.
Since the start of 2022 we have been targeting
BREEAM ‘Excellent’ certification (or equivalent)
for all our new developments unless local
circumstances (such as supply chains) prevent
it. All of our development completions in 2022
have, or are expected to be, accredited
BREEAM 'Very Good’ (or local equivalent) or
better and 68 per cent were BREEAM
‘Excellent’ or above.

Financial Statements
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Carbonin our standing assets

Aim toreduce absolute corporate and
customer carbon emissions

A7)y

by 2030 from a 2020 baseline

Corporate and customer carbon emissions

reduction versus 2020 baseline

157

Increased visibility of customer energy use

during 2022

2076

Corporate and customer carbon intensity

1976

22.5kgCO,e persgm

Our emissions

1. Corporate
and customer
emissions

1%

2.Embodied
carbon from
developments

41%

3.Otherscope 3

18%

Our corporate emissions are less than one
per cent of our total Scope 1, 2 and 3 carbon
emissions. In contrast, the emissions
generated by the activity of our customers
inside our warehouses amounts to
approximately 40 per cent.

Responsibility for sourcing energy and
monitoring use falls with our customers for
the majority of our portfolio due to the nature
of traditional warehouse lease structures.
However, given the significant contribution of
these customer emissions to our Scope 3 we
have chosen toinclude them in our science-
based targets. We aim to reduce our absolute
corporate and customer emissions by 42 per
cent by 2030 (compared to a 2020 baseline
of 312,115 tonnes CO,e). This also captures the
organic growth of the business and is explained
furtherin the SEGRO Carbon Pathway.

We made good progress during 2022, with
a 3 per cent absolute reduction in corporate
and customer emissions to 272,218 tonnes
C0O,e (2021: 280,575 tonnes CO,e). We have
also reduced our corporate and customer
carbonintensity to 22.5 kg CO,e persgm
(2021:27.9 kg CO,e).

With the inclusion of our customers’ emissions
inour science-based targets, obtaining good
quality energy data and prompting our
customers to source renewable energy is
paramount. During 2022 we have improved
our energy visibility, collecting data on 68 per
cent of our total property floor area (up from
54 per cent during 2020). This helps to
increase the accuracy of our carbon data and
allows us to better identify opportunities to
help our customers operate their buildings
more efficiently. For the remaining part of the
portfolio where we do not yet have the data
we apply estimation methodologies.

All of SEGRO controlled electricity (both for
our own operations and for those markets
where we procure energy on behalf of our
customers) is procured in a way which reduces
emissions (generally via renewable tariffs) and
is zero carbon. This certified renewable energy
helps SEGRO and our customers reduce their
carbon footprint.

Overview Strategic Report Governance
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We have chosen to include
our customer emissions in
our science-based carbon
reduction targets, which
we believe sets us apart
from much of the real
estate sector.

Gabriella Zepf
Director - Sustainability
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Transitioning away from heating our spaces
with fossil fuels to efficient low-carbon
electrical heat sources, such as heat pumps,
will be a key part of our strategy going forward.

During 2022 we introduced a standardised
green lease, asking our customers to share
their energy data with us and commit to
procuring a zero-carbon electricity tariff where
possible. We are moving to automatic meters
to facilitate the data collection process. Over
200 customer meters were upgraded during
the year. We are introducing the contractual
clauses as part of lease negotiations and will
be monitoring their adoption going forward.

Another way to reduce customer carbon
emissions is to make our buildings more
energy efficient. The majority of our portfolioiis
modern and built to the highest sustainability
standards but there are still some older assets
where we can make improvements. We do
this through an ongoing maintenance and
refurbishment programme, normally after
alease expiry .This not only helps with our
progress towards our net-zero carbon targets
but also makes the space more attractive to a
potential customer and we are starting to see
it make a difference to rental levels achieved.

Changes that we make include installing LED
lighting, solar panels, air source heat pumps
and automatic metering. We aim to have our
entire portfolio Energy Performance Certificate
(EPC) rated at least ‘B’ or equivalent. At the end
of 2022, 58 per cent of the portfolio now had
an EPC rating of B or better.

In addition to the installation of solar panels

on new developments and existing buildings
during refurbishment, we also have a project to
retrofit solar onto leased assets. During 2022
we added almost 6 MW of capacity at a single
site in the Netherlands, helping to take our total
capacity to 44 MW (2021: 35 MW). We have
identified a pipeline of other projects, which we
anticipate will deliver a significant increase in
installed capacity over the next two years.
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Climate change adaptation

Acknowledging that our planetis facing a
climate emergency, we must be alert to the fact
that our business too will inevitably be affected
by certain aspects of a changing climate.

Risks posed by climate change and our
governance approach are set out in our
Business Risk section. Our Climate-related
Financial Disclosure provides a full explanation
of our approach and the outcome of our
research and engagement with external
specialists, who guided us through this year’s
assessment.

We are moving from a once-a-year approach
to assessing certain climate hazards to a more
dynamic process which should allow us to
investigate specific locations in more detail,
informing our asset management and
valuation processesin turn.

See our Climate-related Financial Disclosure
Page 79

We believe the triple
bottom line of climate,
community and
biodiversity plays to
SEGRO'’s strengths and
allows us to build on our
existing Responsible
SEGRO framework.

Gabriella Zepf
Director - Sustainability

An ecosystem approach

Biodiversity

We think carefully about the landscape
surrounding our existing and new buildings to
ensure that they are pleasant environments for
people to workin, meet the needs of our local
communities and have a positive impact on
local biodiversity.

During the year, we have created green spaces
within our estates, including woodland areas
with public walking trails around our big box
parks or small ‘pocket parks”and green walls in
our urban estates. We plant indigenous trees
and have even renatured stream beds. On
many of our estates we have introduced
beehives and now have 342 of them across
our portfolio encouraging pollination of local
plants and crops. We have also added bird
boxes, bat boxes and other locally appropriate
biodiversity features that help contribute to
ahealthy ecosystem. On land that is awaiting
development in Italy we pay local farmers to
manage the plots and graze livestock which
have yielded risotto rice, buffalo mozzarella
and wool whilst also keeping the grass

well maintained.

Biodiversity is playing an increasingly broader
role as nature-related and climate-related
topics are understood to be entirely
interrelated. Our reporting will increasingly
recognise nature-related risks and opportunities
and we intend to develop targets and metrics
to ensure we lead on this topic. Our immediate
aimis to ensure we meet or exceed the
Biodiversity Net Gain planning requirements.

Overview
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Water

Our use of water is not material. However,
water as a topic looked at in conjunction with
biodiversity and climate change is clearly
critical to our communities and the
environment we operate in. We therefore
take measures, such as rainwater harvesting,
to ensure this precious resource is used
responsibly. All SEGRO owned properties
are separately metered or sub-metered for
water supplies.

Waste

Most of our waste is created as a result of our
construction and demolition projects. Our
target is to send zero waste to landfill by 2025.

For demolition waste, which makes up the
bulk of our total waste, we reuse as much as
possible on-site to avoid the carbon emissions
related to transportation of waste off-site and
the import of new materials from elsewhere.
We undertake pre-demolition audits to identify
waste materials taking into consideration the
quantity and quality of waste to be re-used on
site as aggregate. Hazardous waste is dealt
with in the appropriate manner, fully in line
with relevant regulation. In 2022, almost all
(99.9 per cent) of construction, demolition
and operational waste controlled by SEGRO
was diverted from landfill.

While we operate mostly out of offices owned
by our landlords, tertiary waste reporting is
undertaken by them.
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Nurturing talent

‘Your Say’ engagement score

S

2020:94%

Key achievements during 2022:

- Top quartile employee engagement

- Increased number of women in senior
positions

- Launch of the Management Academy

- More diverse graduate programme

- Launch of the Wellbeing Fund

Priorities for 2023:

- Build a career development framework
and focus on succession planning

- Refresh our policies that support diversity
andinclusion

- Bring together our people at our first
in-person conference since Covid

- Involve our people to help shape future
ways of working as our business grows

Number of employees

1. Female: 218
2. Female: 192

1. 2022
2. 2021

425
385

Voluntary staff turnover

1. _

1. 2022
2. 2021

8.7%
7.0%

We believe that our long-term success as
abusiness will be achieved through building
adiverse, engaged and high-performing
workforce, ensuring a strong pipeline of future
talent and expertise for the business.

Our goalisto have an inclusive and supportive
culture, with a motivated workforce of talented
people. We aim to create an environment
where everyone can thrive and realise their
full potential.

During 2022 ,our workforce continued to grow
as we added resource and capabilities to
support our customers and growing portfolio.
We welcomed 81 new employees to SEGRO
and, at the end of 2022, had increased our
workforce by 9.4 per cent to 425.

Our culture

Our people tell us that they highly value their
working environment, which encourages
collaboration and care for each other. Our
Purpose and Values, which were co-created
with input from the entire workforce a number
of years ago, have stood the test of time and
underpin everything that we do. While we
continue to grow, our focus is on ensuring that
we retain this unique and positive culture.

During 2022, we have continued to listen to
our people. 95 per cent of them responded to
our employee survey (Your Say), showing their
interest in helping us to shape the Company.
Ourengagement score was 91 per cent, which
istop quartile relative to the benchmark of

our employee research provider. We also
conducted a series of focus groups and a
separate survey to understand how effectively
our communications across the Company are
working. Our Board employee engagement
sessions (see page 99) have also continued
during 2022.

We encourage honest and open feedback
across SEGRO, but inthe event thatan
employee (or third-party supplier) wishes

to raise a concern on a confidential and
anonymous basis, we offer a whistle-blowing

helpline operated by anindependent company.

Enabling extraordinary things:

Our Values

Our Values are our core beliefs about how we do business. They guide our decision making,
large and small. They are the way in which we work together to make things happen.

Say it like it is
We think straight and talk straight.

If the door is closed...
If one route is closed to us we always find
another way.

Stand side by side
We work together as One SEGRO, and we put

the interests of the business ahead of our own.

Does it make the boat go faster?
We challenge the way we work to find
a better way.

Keep one eye on the horizon

We are focused on today but are constantly
looking ahead to ensure we are successful
in the future.

Scan the QR code to hear our Group HR Director talk
about our progress with Nurturing talent.

We are proud of the culture
at SEGRO, which values the
contributions of all our
people.

Margaret Murphy
Group Human Resources Director
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Nurturing talent

FOsterin
maore

culture

2022 was a landmark year for us in terms of
delivering on our promise to foster a more
inclusive culture and build a more diverse
workforce. All of our senior management
completed D&l training; we hosted Ashanti
and Danielle - our first intake from the
#10000BlackInterns programme; Stephen
Frost, former Head of D&l for the 2012 London
Olympics and Paralympics spoke to the business
about the case for Inclusion; and - for the first
time ever - we changed our policy so that 50%
of our graduate recruits are now selected from
anon-property background.

Interview with Harveet Thethy who joined
SEGROin 2022 as a non-cognate graduate:

You studied econo
didyouendupatS
Initially when | was
| was mostly on the
butfinding ajobin
my mind. H
career eventson c
companies that re
whichled meto ap
Economics studen
finance and consul
from Sanctuary Gr.

at university, so how

graduate jobs,
nsulting roles,
lwaysinthe

ga

lusive

recruitment process for SEGRO. | read the job
description and | was instantly fascinated and

wanted to know more about the company and

the industry. After going through all th
and understanding the job role, | felt th
scheme would be a good opportunity
learn more about the industrial logistic
and how SEGRO develop innovative s
their customers. So far, | have been abl
my Economics knowledge by underst
current climate, such as the supply an
imbalance in the sector, and how this
impact on our rental growth.

Why did you choose real estate and,
specifically SEGRO?

| chose to gointo real estate as | thoug
be a great way to kickstart my career a
of my comfort zone by learning about
| had limited knowledge on. When res
SEGRO, I found that it was a company.
always striving to nurture talent and in
young people. Therefore, | knew that
company would provide me with the
learning experience, especially havin
from a property background. The gra
schemeis also very structured, enabli
rotate in asset management and devel
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low me to gain the relevant

cies for my APC (Assessment of

al Competence). Additionally,

a leading company in the industrial
ector soit'sa great way to learn from
sionals and get stuck into different
rom the few months that | have been
| have already been given lots of
ility, such as asset managing my own
is has been a great way for me to

y skillsand understand the leasing
he company culture at SEGRO also
to me, especially the fact that anyone
olved in charity and fundraising
chasthe Day of Giving.

recommend a career inreal

other “non-cogs”?

finitely recommend a career in real
ose that did not study a property
gree, especially at SEGRO. Thisis due
less opportunities and projects that
et stuck into. I have to say it was

at the start but the culture at SEGRO
me feel comfortable enough to ask
ons if lam unsure about anything.
any isaplacetogrowandisa
earning environment, so there will
something to get involved in and gain
xperiencein. lam also studying a
Real Estate alongside my job, which

d me to apply my knowledge to my
tasks. Hence, | don‘t feel thatlamin
bout anything as the Masters goes

| the basics, building the foundations
 property sector works. Furthermore,
estateis a really interesting sector to
pecially with the current issues we
inthe economy. So, itisintriguing to
and, the influx of demand we receive
units, despite the constrain in supply.
| would recommend a career inreal
nyone as you are constantly adapting
ket and learning.
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Business conduct and ethics

In everything we do at SEGRO, we recognise
that we need to behave morally, ethically and
lawfully. Our Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics (www.segro.com/about/policies) sets
out the high ethical standards expected of all
our people in their daily work. It also guides
how to put those standards into practice so we
can act with honesty and integrity. Included
within the Code are policies on bribery and
corruption (including fraud, tax evasion and
money laundering); gifts and hospitality; political
and charitable donations; conflicts of interest;
insider trading and market abuse; confidentiality
and data protection; anti-slavery and human
trafficking; and our whistleblowing procedure.

Compliance with the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics is a condition of each
employee’'s employment, and all employees
are obliged to make a mandatory annual
certification that they continue to understand
and adhere to the principles set out within it.
We are committed to building employee
awareness on ethical business practices, and
provide training on subject matters covered
to raise awareness and to help all employees
understand what behaving ethically means
in practice.

Any breaches of the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics are fully investigated
and managed by the Head of Legal or Group
Human Resources Director as appropriate.
There were no material reported incidents of
breaches during 2022.

Diversity and inclusion

We have set ourselves the goal of increasing
the diversity of our workforce at SEGRO so that
we better reflect the diversity of the populations
where we operate. During 2022, we continued
to put in place measures that will help us
improve our position in the coming years.

Last year, SEGRO was accredited the National
Equality Standard. This confirmed that we have
robust policies and procedures in place with
regards to equal opportunities and inclusion.
This includes appropriate support, retraining
and facilities for employees who are disabled
or who become disabled whilst in our
employment. During 2022 we have made great
progress on the areas that it highlighted where
improvements could be made:

Early careers recruitment

Our goalin 2022 was to improve diversity

in our graduate recruitment intake. We have
expanded our reach to universities via
partnership with external diversity specialists,
improved our use of social media to increase
brand awareness and application numbers,
and modified selection methods to reduce
potential bias. Thanks to this process, a diverse
group of graduates joined in September 2022,
with a good mix of gender, ethnicity, education
and social background. In addition, we
participated in the #10,000Blackinterns
programme. We supported a six-week
placement to help two students, both from
non-property backgrounds, gainan
understanding of our industry.

Diversity data collection and monitoring
During 2022 we sought to better understand
the demographics of our workforce and
conducted a company-wide survey across
the geographies where we are legally
permitted to gather such data. Insights from
the survey will help us build targeted action
plans to improve diversity and inclusion.

Diversity training for all employees

In 2022, we concluded a programme of
inclusivity training for our senior managers
and have mandated diversity and inclusion
training for all our people as part of an ongoing
programme. We also commenced a speaker
series and are establishing an Inclusion
Steering Committee, led by a member of

the Leadership Team.
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Leadership team representation

In addition to these initiatives, we have
continued to focus onimproving gender
and ethnic diversity in our leadership teams.
We have made good progress since 2020
inincreasing the number of women in senior
director and manager level roles.

Across the Group the number of womenin
senior manager/director roles hasincreased
to 27 per cent (2021: 25 per cent, 2020: 18 per
cent) and women in manager roles has
increased to 38 per cent (2021: 34 per cent,
2020: 24 per cent).

UK Gender and Ethnicity Pay Gap

We believe that analysing diversity data and
being transparent is animportant step towards
creating meaningful change. We have
voluntarily published our UK Gender Pay Gap
data since 2017 and our UK Ethnicity Pay Gap
data since 2020.

Our Pay Gap data can be found in the tables to
the right. During 2022 both our mean Gender
Pay and Bonus Gaps improved. Our Ethnicity
Pay Gap has increased slightly by 0.4 per cent
and our Ethnicity Bonus Pay Gap was 22.6 per
centversus -36.0 per centin 2021 (the latter
being due to the result of specific share
schemes vesting).

As part of our salary review process we
undertake checks to ensure employees are
paid equally for doing equivalent jobs across
our business. Our reported Pay Gaps are
therefore a direct result of our employee profile
-we have more men than women and more
white than ethnic minority employees in senior

roles - and do not represent pay discrimination.

A core element of our Responsible SEGRO
framework is to improve diversity at all levels.
Thisis crucial for ensuring the future success
of our business and should also be reflected in
our Gender and Ethnicity Pay Gaps reducing
over time.

Governance
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UK Gender and Ethnicity Pay Gap

progression tables

Gender Pay Gap (mean)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
511% 51.6% 50.9% 462% 43.3%
Gender Bonus Gap (mean)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
66.5% 78.8% 773% 745% 68.9%
Ethnicity Pay Gap (mean)

2020 2021 2022

26.9% 25.3% 25.7%
Ethnicity Bonus Gap (mean)

2020 2021 2022

58.0% -36.0% 22.6%
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Responsible SEGRO
continued

Health, safety and wellbeing

One of our key priorities as a businessis to
ensure that our people can work in a healthy,
safe and secure environment. As we have
adapted to an agile working approach, it has
become even more critical that we support
our people, wherever they are.

We have a comprehensive health and safety
training programme, which starts when an
employee joins SEGRO and is refreshed
regularly depending on the requirements

of their role.

Over the past two years, we have extended
our approach and now incorporate different
aspectsinto our Wellbeing strategy,
supported by our 29 Wellbeing Ambassadors
across the Company.

The launch of our new Wellbeing Fund in
2022 was very well received by colleagues,
particularly as it allows them to invest up to
£500 or equivalentin something wellbeing
related, tailored to their own needs and
interests. 92 per cent of employees took up
the Wellbeing Fund during 2022 and it will
continue in 2023.

We provide, via our intranet, resources with
support and information on wellbeing. Our
enhanced benefits package also includes
access to a 24/7 confidential external helpline
offering counselling support.

Mental health

To facilitate a workplace environment that
promotes and supports the mental wellbeing
of allemployees

Social wellbeing

To support continued connectivity, in an
environment of increased agile and remote
working

Physical wellbeing

To facilitate a workplace environment (in the
office, at home or on site) that promotes the
benefits of physical activities to contribute to
positive wellbeing

Work life balance
To facilitate work life balance, through
promotion of SEGRO policies and practices

Skills and training
To provide continued awareness and
upskilling across a range of wellbeing topics

Overview Strategic Report

Developing our people

We want all our people to have the opportunity
to fulfil their potential and this in turn will ensure
that we have an experienced and talented
workforce.

We have implemented a regular people
planning process that helps us identify
opportunities for career development. Twice
ayear, we run a formal promotions process.
In 2022, we promoted 42 employees.

We have invested in our graduate programme
and offer secondment opportunities across
the business. Towards the end of 2022, we
kicked off an ongoing programme of
secondments to support transformation work
for up to six months at a time, helping us to
innovate and improve the business for the
future whilst developing our people’s
experiences and careers.

All our people have an interim and full-year
performance review, where we discuss training
and development opportunities. We offer
sponsorship for professional qualifications

Governance
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relevant to anindividuals role or ambitions and
support ongoing development to help people
achieve their objectives.

We have a programme of mandatory training
to help our people understand their
responsibilities. These include topics such as
health and safety, anti-bribery and corruption
and cyber security as well as training to
support our Nurturing talent goals around
diversity and inclusion. During 2022,
employees carried out 5,299 hours of training
(2021: 4,656 hours).

In 2022, we invested in the development of our
leaders with the launch of a new Management
Academy, targeted at our middle and junior
managers. This training focused on getting the
best out of people, including recruitment and
performance management. 91 managers
participated in this programme during 2022.

Number of promotions

4/

21Female /21 Male

Training hours

0,/99

2021: 4,656
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Reward

Every permanent employee is entitled to
variable compensation, based on their own
and the business’ performance against targets
and objectives. In 2022, we revised bonus
scheme metrics and aligned everyone across
SEGRO to Group-wide performance,
incorporating metrics linked to our
Responsible SEGRO strategic priorities.

SEGRO operates two types of all-employee
share schemes, to encourage employees to
own shares in the Company. All eligible
employees can receive an award of up to
£3,600 worth of SEGRO shares each year,
depending on the Company achieving certain
performance goals (in 2022 this was Adjusted
profit before tax). We also offer a Sharesave
scheme for all UK employees who can save up
to £500 per month across all open schemes.
82 per cent of SEGRO employees were
participating in one or more all-employee
share schemes at the end of 2022.

Seeremuneration targets
Pages134to0 135

Employees participating in share schemes

S/%

2021:79%

Additional payment to lower paid colleagues

1 250

Financial Statements Further Information

In addition to fixed and variable compensation,
we also provide a generous benefits package,
including health insurance, reflective of market
competitive packages in each of our
geographies.

In 2022 we provided an additional payment of
£1,250 (or equivalentin local currency) to our
lower paid colleagues, to support the current
cost of living challenges.
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Investing in our local communities and environments

Number of Community Investment Plans

10

implemented in 2022

Charitable givingin 2022

EZBm

2021: £1.3m

Key achievements during 2022:

- Launch of our first ten Community
Investment Plans (CIPs)

- Record number of SEGRO employees
volunteering

- Signing of the first Community Charter,
bringing together local authorities,
customers and charities in southern Paris

- First phases of SEGRO mentoring
programme in the UK and France.

Priorities for 2023:

- Expanding and enhancing the outcome
of our current CIPs and launching more
in some of our other markets (including
Southern Europe and the UK Midlands)

- Involving more of our customers and
suppliersin our CIP projects to maximise
theirimpact.

Scan the QR code to hear our Partnership Development
Director talk about our progress with Investing in our local
communities and environments.

oo
O]

Enabling the areas around our warehouses

to thrive is central to our strategic priority of
Investing in our local communities and
environments, and this year we launched our
first ten Community Investment Plans (CIPs) -
seveninthe UK and three in Continental
Europe. The tailored plans are part of a
commitment to create and implement CIPs
in all our key markets by 2025.

Our long-term commitment is to help
communities that live close to our estates that
face health, social, economic and inequality
challenges, and to help improve the lives, and
prospects, for thousands of people. Each plan
will aim to help young and disadvantaged
people into sustainable employment, contribute
to athriving economy and enhance the local
environment by improving biodiversity and the
health and wellbeing of residents.

We are working with a range of charity and
public sector partners who have knowledge
and insight of the most pressing local
challenges our communities face as well as
the expertise to ensure we deliver an impactful
and outcome-driven programme, which will
make a real long-term difference for those
that need our help the most.

To make the greatest impact we have put our
customers and suppliers at the heart of the
CIP programme to enable more members of
the community to benefit. We have had a
fantastic response in the first year with over
50 customers and suppliers participating
inarange of programmes.

Our employees will play a critical role in the
delivery and success of the CIPs. To help
embed the plansinto our business and
broaden engagement with partners,
customers and suppliers, 52 Community
Champions have stepped forward voluntarily
to promote and drive forward the programme.
We have also created three new roles in
Continental Europe, to complement the
existing roles in the UK, to lead the success
and growth of the CIP programme and
maintain high levels of service delivery as
well as positive and measurable outcomes.

To encourage greater employee participation,
there is no limit to the number of days employees
canvolunteer in ayear. 2022 saw more
employees volunteer and commit time than
ever before. 271 employees (68 per cent of the
workforce) dedicated 387 days by participating
in our annual Day of Giving and organised CIP
projects. They were accompanied by a further
95 volunteers from our customers and suppliers.

The CIPs are funded by the £10 million
Centenary Fund that we established on our
100-year anniversary in 2020. This money
will be invested inimpactful projects that
align to the themes of employment, economy,
and environment over a longer period to
maximise outcomes.

/000

young people inspired about the world of work

90

students mentored by SEGRO employees

/30

unemployed individuals supported through
employability training

0/

unemployed people into employment

/0

projects delivered that enhanced the
environment, biodiversity or health and
wellbeing of our local communities

30/

employee volunteering days
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INVESTING IM DUR
COMMUNITIES

SEGRC

Community investment plans (CIPs)

Each CIP sets out how SEGRO will invest inits
local communities and environments through
arange of programmes designed to improve
training and employment opportunities for
young and unemployed people, enable the
economy to thrive and enhance the
environment to support biodiversity as well
as the health and wellbeing of local people.

The CIP programme provides a framework
that enables the teams in our key markets to
respond to the needs of the local community
with a range of highly impactful community
and environmental programmes by:

- creating a strategic coherent and outcome-
driven approach across SEGRO;

- empowering the local teams to respond to
local needs;

- maximising the impact by putting
collaboration with customers and suppliers
atthe heart of the programme;

- working in partnership with local
stakeholders such as charity partners, local
government, business groups and the
community;

- delivering excellence with the support of our
Partnership Development Team.

The first key markets are: Heathrow, Park Royal,
East London, Slough, East Midlands, Coventry,
Northampton, Paris, £t6dz, and DUsseldorf.

Career Ready is delighted
to be working with SEGRO
toinvestin youngtalentin
the East Midland’s Gateway
Region. Our missiontois
provide young peoplein
the area with workplace
opportunities and skills,
helping them successfully
go from education into
rewarding employment.

Tokunbo Ajasa-Oluwa
CEO, Career Ready
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Employment

Helping local people to benefit from skills,
training and job brokerage programmes,
especially those that are unemployed or face a
barrier to employment. Inspiring young people
about the world of work through a range of
career talks, work experience and mentoring
programmes. For example:

Slough

In partnership with Learning to Work, we used
arange of face-to-face and online platforms
from assembilies, site visits and competitions,
to help bring the world of work to life for over
3,500 young people from 16 secondary
schools. Outcomes from the SEGRO Futures
Assembly include: 87 per cent of students are
more aware of job opportunities in their local
area, and 83 per cent of students have a better
understanding of work environments.

Paris

We signed our first Community Charter along
with eight partnersin the territories of Bonneuil-
sur-Marne and Sucy-en-Brie to promote
economic and social development in these
regions to help deliver employability training
opportunities for the local community. To
support the delivery of the programme, 35
customers have signed up to provide mentoring,
training and work experience opportunities.
The project will launchin 2023.

West London (Heathrow and Park Royal)
42 unemployed people found employment
having successfully participated in our skills
and training programme in collaboration with
Action West London (AWL). A dedicated
Personal Advisor was assigned to support
each participant to develop their training plan,
which included mentoring, coaching and
specialist guidance.

We also launched our first mentoring
programme with educational charity, Spark!,
supporting young people in West London. 35
employees participated in the programme,
each dedicating ten hours of their time to work
with a young person to help build confidence.
The programme culminated in a graduation
ceremony at SEGRO’s London headquarters.

Financial Statements Further Information

Diisseldorf

In December we hosted our first schools
programme at SEGRO Park Dusseldorf City,
welcoming 120 students. The students
benefited from visits to our customers,
including DHL, Sonepar, Shop LC GmbH,
World Courier and Wine Affinity. These
customer visits helped to bring to life career
opportunities and showcase a range of
exciting sectors to workin.

Alongside these projects that are unique to
particular CIPs, we are also continuing to work
with our legacy charity partners to deliver vital
community programmes that support
vulnerable people. We expanded our
partnership with LandAid to design and pilot a
new training and employability programme to
help young homeless people around the UK to
move into sustainable employment. The
project has been welcomed by both homeless
charities and beneficiaries resulting in LandAid
announcing it will roll out the programme in
20283. SEGRO will be one of the Founding
Partners of the programme.

4 EXTRAORDINA
4 THINGS TO HAI
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Responsible SEGRO
continued

Economy

Enabling the growth of the local economy to
thrive by helping local businesses to connect
to our customers, suppliers, and partner with
stakeholders to deliver programmes that
help to enhance productivity and innovation.
Forexample:

Slough

We piloted our first construction supply chain
programme with our contractor Wates at the
Slough Trading Estate during the construction
of one of our data centre projects. Designed to
promote ‘work packages’ to local businesses,
over £1.5 million was invested into the local
economy. Due to the success of this pilot we
will be rolling out similar programmes on other
development schemes during 2023.

EastLondon

Launched in December 2021, the Future Cube
Centre located at SEGRO Park Rainham was
created in partnership with the Mayor of
London, London Borough of Havering, and the
Manufacturing Technology Centre (MTC) is
helping small- to medium-sized businesses to
grow through a programme of technology,
innovation, and productivity improvements.

Environment

Delivering environmental projects that improve
the biodiversity of the local area and the health
and wellbeing of the community.

Through a combination of funded projects
and SEGRO employee volunteering activity,
we delivered a total of 26 environmental
community projects across the UK and
Continental Europe. These projectsincluded
arange of activities from planting trees to
cleaning rivers, as well as improving communal
gardens to create safe and essential play space
for young vulnerable children.

Inthe UK, ten community outdoor spaces were
revitalised in partnership with Groundwork, to
enhance biodiversity and improve the health
and wellbeing of local people. The projects
were delivered by unemployed people, helping
them to gain practical skills in horticulture and
landscaping, with many receiving
qualifications such as Horticulture and Land
Management, Health and Safety and Carbon
Literacy. A total of 60 unemployed people
benefited from the programme.

Overview Strategic Report Governance

Wider community support

Our buildings have always enabled
extraordinary things to happen and they play
animportant role in supporting our local
communities by providing critical space for
training vulnerable people, supporting cultural
projects and the distribution of food for those
living in poverty.

The cost-of-living crisis has highlighted the
importance of working with foodbanks and
we continue to support charities such as City
Harvest, through providing space at reduced
rents. Since our partnership beganin 2016,
the charity has delivered over 33 million meals.
Over 24 million of those meals were delivered
since the start of the pandemic.

In response to the humanitarian crisis in
Ukraine and the displacement of millions of
people to neighbouring countries, including
Poland, SEGRO along with our joint venture
SELP donated €150,000 to two organisations
helping to support the refugee effort: The
Ocalenie Foundation in Poland and the UN
Refugee Agency, UNHCR. Our peoplein
Poland also donated their time to help sort
donations and transport them to the border,
and organised an additional Day of Giving,
during which they made 1,000 sandwiches
forrefugees arriving in Warsaw.

Financial Statements
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Performance review

Assets under management

EZQ.@@M

2021:£21.3bn

Portfolio valuation

EW79bm

2021:£18.4bn

Portfolio valuation change

10%

2021:+28.8%

ERV growth

2021: 13.1%

2022 was a year of
contrasts with very
different dynamicsin
the investment and
occupier markets.

Soumen Das
Chief Financial Officer

Portfolio Performance
Summary

Valuation declines from market-drivenyield
expansion were partly offset by gains from
strong rental growth, asset management
and development.

Warehouse property values continued to rise
during the first six months of 2022, but sharp
increases in interest rates resulted in market
uncertainty and volatility. This led to a higher
cost of capital, which was reflected by the
valuers through significant yield expansion
during the second half of the year.

Occupier demand was strong throughout,
and supply remained at historically low levels,
driving further market rental growth. Along
with asset management and development
gains, this helped to offset some of the impact
of yield expansion, but not enough to prevent
property values falling over the year.

The Group's property portfolio was valued at
£17.9 billion at 31 December 2022 (£20.9 billion
of assets under management). The portfolio
valuation, including completed assets, land
and buildings under construction, decreased
by 11.0 per cent (adjusting for capital expenditure
and asset recycling during the year), offsetting
some of the 28.8 per cent growth achievedin
2021. The valuation fell 16.6 per cent inthe
second half of 2022.

Overview Strategic Report

In total, our portfolio generated a total property
return (TPR) of -8.1 per cent (2021: 35.6 per
cent). The UK delivered a TPR of -10.6 per cent
which compared favourably to its MSCI
calculated benchmark of -14.4 per cent. The
Continental European TPR was -3.7 per cent,
however the MSCI calculated benchmark will
not be available until later in the year.

The reduction in valuation of our portfolio
primarily comprises a13.1 per cent decrease
inthe assets held throughout the year (2H22:
-19.6 per cent, 2021: +29.0 per cent), driven by
yield expansionin most markets (100 basis
points across the whole portfolio), but this was
partly offset by a10.9 per centincrease in our
valuer’s estimate of the market rental value of
our portfolio (2021:13.1 per cent).

Assets held throughout the year in the UK
decreased invalue by 15.5 per cent (2H22: -21.4
per cent, 2021: +34.5), outperforming the MSCI
Real Estate UK All Industrial Quarterly index
which decreased by 17.4 per cent over the
same period. The outperformance was due

to the prime quality of our portfolio providing
resilience on capital values along with the
significant embedded reversionary potential.
The true equivalent yield applied to our UK
portfolio was 4.8 per cent, 110 basis points
higher than at 31 December 2021 (3.7 per cent)
Rental values improved by 11.5 per cent (2021:
18.8 per cent).

Assets held throughout the year in Continental
Europe decreased in value by 8.8 per cent
(2H22:-12.4 per cent, 2021: +18.7 per cent)

on aconstant currency basis, reflecting
acombination of yield expansion to 4.8 per
cent (31 December 2021: 4.0 per cent) and
rental value growth of 9.9 per cent (2021:

41 percent).

More details of our property portfolio can be
foundin Note 26 to the Financial Statements
and in the 2022 Property Analysis Report at
www.SEGRO.com/investors.
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Unrealised losses on whole portfolio

-£1,232m-£148m -£296m -£238m -£296m -£2m -£2,212m

Creater ~ Thames  National Northern Southern  Central Total
London Valley Logistics ~ Europe Europe Europe

Valuation: what to expectin 2023
Forecasting yields over any period is
notoriously difficult given the multitude of
economic and financial drivers (particularly
interest rates and credit spreads), most of
which are outside our direct control.

Nevertheless, the operating prospects for our
portfolio are strong, supported by structural
drivers of occupational demand and limited
supply, therefore we are optimistic about the
potential for further rental value growth,
particularly in our urban warehouse portfolio.

These attractive fundamentals mean we
anticipate investors will return to the market to
invest in industrial and logistics assets once
there is more clarity over the interest rate
trajectory. We have seen encouraging early
signs that this activity is increasing.

We believe that our high-quality portfolio and
focus on active asset management will enable
us to outperform the wider industrial and
logistics markets in the countries in which we
operate through the cycle.
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Enabling extraordinary things in 2022
To ensure we are able to consistently
deliver the extraordinary we stay close to
our customers, helping us to understand
their changing requirements.

Andy Gulliford addresses:
- Outlook for rental growth

- Development strategy going forward
- Operational priorities for 2023

%

To find out more
about SEGRO visit
WWW.segro.com
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Performance review
continued

Asset management update

Portfolio passing rent

EB%ZW

2021: £518m

Rent contracted during the year

£98m

2021: £95m

Customer satisfaction

0076

2021:90%

Corporate and customer carbon emissions

272, 2/‘ 8 tonnes CO.e

2021:280,575 tonnes CO,e

Visibility of customer emissions

O3

2021:54%

On-site renewable energy capacity

Ay

2021: 35 MW

Strong occupier demand
and low levels of vacancy
across our markets created
the perfect conditions for
rental growth during 2022.

Andy Gulliford
Chief Operating Officer
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What we said we would do

We expected occupier demand to remain
strong in all of our markets and expected
vacancy rates to remain low. With supply also
limited, we expected customer retention to
remain high and rental growth to continue.

What we achieved in 2022

Our focus on Operational excellence and
commitment to excellent customer service
helped us to contract a record level of rent
during 2022, reflecting a strong performance
in rent reviews and renewals, and continued
momentum in pre-lettings. Occupancy
remained high, aided by rapid letting of
recently completed speculative developed
space. We also made great progress in
improving our visibility of customer
emissions, and significantly increased our
solar capacity, which is key to reducing our
overall Scope 3 emissions (which are included
inour net-zero target).

What to expectin 2023

Occupier demand has moderated from
pandemic highs but remains strong versus
historical levels. There are additional
pressures on customers from the weaker
macro economic environment, energy prices
(and business rate revaluations in our UK
portfolio) but for many of our customers rents
are a small part of the cost base and leasing
modern, sustainable space in the right
locations helps them to reduce other costs.
With market rates at record low levels and new
supply constrained by the availability of land,
particularly in urban markets, we expect rental
growth to continue.
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Growing rental income from letting existing
space and new developments

At 31 December 2022, our portfolio generated
passing rent of £587 million, rising to £634
million once rent free periods expire (‘headline
rent’). During the year, we contracted £98
million of new headline rent. We grew the rent
from our existing space significantly as a result
of the capture of reversionary potential, and
also due to the impact of indexation. Strong
occupier demand for new space also helped
us sign a high number of pre-let agreements
for delivery over the next two years.

Our customer base remains well diversified,
reflecting the multitude of uses of warehouse
space. Our top 20 customers account for 32
per cent of total headline rent. Amazon
remained our largest customer during 2022,
accounting for 7 per cent of our total rent roll.

Customers from the transport and logistics
sector were the largest takers of our space
during 2022, in order to service their
e-commerce and increasingly manufacturing
related contracts as these businesses focus
on building efficiency and resilience into their
supply chains and distribution networks. We
also signed new leases with data centre
operators taking space in response to the
growthin cloud computing.

£31 million of net new rent from existing
assets. We generated £21 million of headline
rent from new leases on existing assets
(2021: £26 million) and £28 million from rent
reviews, lease renewals and indexation (2021:
£9 million). This was offset by rent from space
returned of £18 million (2021: £20 million),
much of it taken back for refurbishment and
including £2 million of rent lost due to
insolvency (2021: £2 million).

Rental growth from lease reviews and
renewals. These generated an uplift of 23.3
per cent (2021:13.0 per cent) for the portfolio,
compared to previous headline rent. During
the year, new rents agreed at review and
renewal were 28.0 per cent higherinthe

UK (2021:18.7 per cent) as reversion
accumulated over the past five years was
reflected in new rents agreed, adding £18
million of headline rent. In Continental
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Europe, rents agreed on renewal were 1.7 per
cent higher (2021: 1.5 per cent higher), as a
result of market rental growth continuing to
outpace the indexation provisions that have
accumulated over recent years.

Continued strong demand from customers
for pre-letagreements. We contracted

£41 million of headline rent from pre-let
agreements and lettings of speculative
developments prior to completion (2021: £49
million). This includes the first pre-let at our
new UK big box parkin Coventry, space for
third-party logistics operators, online retailers
and manufacturers across Continental Europe,
and a multi-storey data centre development
in Slough.

Rentroll growth increased to £77 million.
Animportant contributor to increasesin
earnings and dividends is the growth in our
rent roll, primarily through increasing rent
from our existing assets and generating new
rent through development. Rent roll growth,
which reflects net new headline rent from
existing space (adjusted for takebacks of
space for development), take-up of
developments and pre-lets agreed during
the period, increased to £77 million in 2022,
from £72 million in 2021.

Existing portfolio continues to perform
well and delivered another set of strong
operating metrics

We monitor a number of asset management
indicators to assess the performance of our
existing portfolio:

High levels of customer satisfaction.
Although the quality and location of our
portfolioisimportant to our customers, we
believe the service we provide is crucial to
maintaining high customer retention and low
vacancy. We carry out a rolling survey of our
customers throughout the year to identify
and rectify issues promptly. In 2022, we
spoke to 286 customers, and 98 per cent said
that they would recommend SEGRO to
others (2021: 97 per cent) while 85 per cent
said they rated their experience with SEGRO
as 'Excellent’ or ‘Good’ (2021: 90 per cent).

- Occupancy has remained high. The
occupancy rate at 31 December 2022 was
96.0 per cent (31 December 2021: 96.8 per
cent), with a slight decrease due to taking
some existing space back for our
redevelopment plans and some speculative
completions towards the end of the year. The
occupancy rate excluding recently completed
speculative developments remains high at
97.3 percent (2021: 97.3 per cent). The
average occupancy rate during the period
was 96.4 per cent (2021: 96.2 per cent) which
isabove our target of 94 to 96 per cent.
Customer retention rate of 76 per cent.
Approximately £61 million of headline rent
was at risk from a break or lease expiry during
the period, of which we retained 75 per cent
in existing space, with a further 1 per cent
retained but in new premises. We value the
long-term relationships that we build with our
customers and always try to work with them
to meet their changing requirements.
However, with vacancy at such low levels we
also take the opportunity to create space for
reletting, and to capture market rental
growth. We have actively taken space back
during 2022 to enable redevelopment.
Lease terms continue to offer attractive
income security. The level of incentives
agreed for new leases (excluding those on
developments completed in the period)
represented 6.1 per cent of the headline rent
(2021: 6.3 per cent). We maintained the
portfolio’s weighted average lease length,
with 7.0 years to first break and 8.3 years to
expiry (31 December 2021: 7.2 years to first
break, 8.5 yearsto expiry). Lease terms are
longerin the UK (8.1 years to break) thanin
Continental Europe (5.6 years to break),
reflecting the market convention of shorter
leases in countries such as France and Poland.

Areduction in our corporate and customer
carbon emissions and increased visibility of
the energy usage of our customers
Alongside the day-to-day management of our
portfolio, our teams also worked hard during
2022 on our Responsible SEGRO commitment
to Champion low-carbon growth and be a
net-zero carbon business by 2030.

Overview Strategic Report Governance

We made good progress towards our science-
based target to reduce the absolute corporate
and customer carbon emissions from our
portfolio by 42 per cent by 2030 (compared
toa 2020 baseline), in line with the 1.5 degree
scenario. During 2022, we reduced carbon
emissions by 3 per cent, taking our reduction
from 2020 to 13 per cent.

Allenergy for our own operations, and where
we procure energy on behalf of our customers,
has been on renewable tariffs since 2021.
During 2022, we focused our efforts on the
customer emissions that we do not directly
control. Animportant step in this is gaining
better visibility of this usage, so that we do not
have to rely on estimates. We now have
visibility of 68 per cent of our portfolio (2021:
54 per cent).

This improved visibility allows us to better
identify opportunities to help our customers
operate their buildings more efficiently, saving
them both carbon emissions and money. During
2022, we introduced the inclusion of green
clauses on all new leases across our portfolio.
These clauses require our customers to provide
us with visibility of their energy use and, where
feasible, procure it via a renewable tariff.

We continue to improve the carbon footprint of
our portfolio through the ongoing maintenance
and refurbishment of our warehouses. At the
end of 2022, 58 per cent of the portfolio had an
EPC rating of B or better and we expect that
proportion to increase through refurbishment
and development.

We also made great progress with our ambition
to expand the solar capacity of our portfolio.
During 2022 we increased our total capacity by
9 MW taking it to 44 MW (2021: 35 MW). This
included the retrofitting of solar onto an
existing asset in the Netherlands which added
almost 6 MW of capacity. We continue to add
solar capacity through our development
programme, installing panels on every asset
where feasible.

Financial Statements Further Information

Q)

We made good progress

in reducing our corporate
and customer carbon
emissions during the year
and also with our solar
strategy, which will be a key
to reducing this further
over coming years.

Andy Gulliford
Chief Operating Officer
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Development update

Development completions

039 200sqm

2021: 839,200sgm

Development capex

5%5%

2021: £639'm

Current pipeline potential rent

E@Zﬂ

2021: £62m

Current pipeline yield on cost

0.0%

2021:7.0%

Potential rent from future pipeline

EBQ5m

2021: £169m

Embodied carbon

SBSQQQMﬂm

2021:391kgCO,e/sgm

1 2021development capex has been restated to exclude
capitalised interest.

What we said we would do

We expected to continue developing at an
increased pace during 2022 and anticipated
investing around £700 million in development
capex, including infrastructure.

What we achieved in 2022

2022 has been another strong of year of
development for SEGRO. We completed
639,200 sg m of space, capable of

delivering £46 million of new headline rent.
We spent £787 million on development capex
(including £149 million on infrastructure).

We reduced the embodied carbon in our
development programme by 10 per cent.

What to expectin 2023

We have 749,000 sq m of development
projects under way, capable of generating
£67 million of new headline rent, of which
73 per cent has been secured.

We expect to invest in excess of £600 million in
development capex, including £100 million of
infrastructure expenditure.

Overview Strategic Report

Development activity

During 2022, we invested £1.5 billion in our
development pipeline, which comprised £787
million (2021: £639 million) in development
spend, of which £149 million was for
infrastructure, and a further £712 million to
replenish our land bank to secure future
development-led growth opportunities.

Development projects completed

We completed 639,200 sg m of new space
during the year. These projects were 59 per
cent pre-let prior to the start of construction
and were 80 per cent let as at 31 December
2022, generating £37 million of headline rent,
with a potential further £9 million to come
when the remainder of the space islet. This
translates into a yield on total development
cost (including land, construction and finance
costs) of 7.4 per cent when fully let.

We completed 475,000 sg m of big box
warehouse space, including units at our UK
big box parks in the East Midlands, Derby and
Kettering. Also within this was 381,000 sqg m
of big box warehouses across all of our major
European markets, let to third-party logistics
operators, online retailers, food retailers and
manufacturers.

We completed some great
projects during 2022,
including a London estate
that has been awarded,
what we believe to be, the
highest BREEAM rating for
a property of its kind.

Andy Gulliford
Chief Operating Officer
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We completed 153,400 sg m of urban
warehouses, the majority built on a speculative
basis, of which almost 66 per centis already
let. In the UK, thisincludes our new estates
SEGRO Park Hayes and SEGRO Park Tottenham,
as well as a further data centre in Slough. On
the Continent, we completed further phases of
urban warehouse parks in the key markets of
Frankfurt, Munich and Paris.

The remaining 10,800 sg m of space was for
high value or other uses, for example additional
car parking for customers.

Construction cost inflation, caused mainly by
supply chainissues and labour shortages, was
atits highest during the first half of 2022 but
stabilised in the second half of the year. We are
seeing evidence of increased contractor
availability which may be an early sign of
construction costs softening.

Reducing embodied carbonin our
development programme

This is critical to helping us achieve net-zero
carbon by 2030.1n 2022, we reduced this by
10 per cent to 353kgCQO,e/sgm.

We continued to use best available data,
including the use of Building Information
Modelling (BiM) for our life cycle assessments,
which helps us to assess how best to reduce
the carbon footprint of our development
programme.

As aresult, wherever possible, we use timber
instead of steel on projects across Continental
Europe and low-carbon concrete alternatives.
We also work with our supply chain partners
to find innovative solutions, such as using
recycled parts of an old roof to create asphalt
for use as aroad surface in the Netherlands.
During the significant infrastructure works at
our Northampton, UK big box logistics park a
concrete plant was located onsite to reduce
transport emissions and we used over one
million recycled milk bottles for the site’s
drainage system, achieving a 90 per cent
carbon saving.
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The introduction of our Mandatory Sustainability
policy during 2022 also supports our ambitions
inthis area. It covers all development projects
larger than 5,000 sg m (98 per cent of our
current development pipeline) and setsout a
range of mandatory measures to future-proof
our operations and ensure that our net-zero
ambitions can be met, including guidelines

for embodied carbon, solar installations,
electric vehicle charging, energy data, building
certifications as well as biodiversity and
wellbeing requirements.

All of our development completions in 2022
have been, or are expected to be, accredited
BREEAM 'Very Good’ (or local equivalent) or
higher and 68 per cent were rated ‘Excellent’ or
above. See page 35 for our mandatory
sustainability policy.

Current development pipeline

At 31 December 2022, we had development
projects approved, contracted or under
construction totalling 749,000 sgm,
representing £328 million of future capital
expenditure to complete and £67 million

of annualised gross rental income when fully
let. 73 per cent of this rent has already been
secured and these projects should yield

6.5 per cent on total development cost when
fully occupied.

- Inthe UK, we have 207,600 sq m of space
approved or under construction. Within this
are our first multi-level warehouse scheme

in West London, two new data centres on
the Slough Trading Estate and big box
warehouses at our logistics parksin
Coventry, Derby and East Midlands.

In Continental Europe, we have 484,800 sq
m of space approved or under construction.
Thisincludes pre-let big box warehouses for
a variety of different occupiers, from retailers
to manufacturers, across all our European
markets. We are also developing further
phases of our successful urban warehouse
parks in Berlin, Cologne and Paris.

In addition to the projects we are developing
ourselves, we also have 56,600 sg m of
space under construction as part of forward-
funded agreements with local developers

in South London and Paris.

We continue to focus our speculative
developments on urban warehouse projects,
particularly in cities such as London, Paris and
Berlin, where modern space isin short supply
and occupier demand is strong.

Within our Continental European current
development programme, approximately
£15 million of potential gross rental income

is associated with big box warehouses
developed outside our SELP joint venture.
Under the terms of the joint venture, SELP has
the option, but not the obligation, to acquire
these assets shortly after completion.
Assuming SELP exercises its option, we would
retain a 50 per cent share of the rent after
disposal.In 2022, SEGRO sold £218 million of
completed assets to SELP, representing a net
disposal of £109 million.

We have factored current construction and
financing costs into the development returns
for our current and future development
projects. We continue to expect to be able to
develop at a150-200 basis point margin over
standing asset yields which means that
development remains highly profitable.

Further details of our completed projects

and current development pipeline are available
inthe 2022 Property Analysis Report, at
www.SEGRO.com/investors.

Future development pipeline

Near-term development pipeline

Within the future development pipeline are
anumber of pre-let projects close to being
approved, awaiting either final conditions to
be met or planning approval to be granted.
We expect to commence these projects
within the next six to 12 months.

These projects total 166,600 sg m of space,
equating to approximately £179 million of
capital expenditure and £19 million of rent.

Overview Strategic Report Governance

Land bank

Our land bankidentified for future development
(including the near-term projects detailed
above) totalled 756 hectares as at 31 December
2022, valued at £1.8 billion, roughly 10 per cent
of our total portfolio value. This includes £656
million of land acquired for future re-
development but which is currently income
producing reducing the holding costs until
development can start (equating to £21 million
of annualised rent, excluded from passing
rent), known as ‘covered’ land.

The land bank includes £712 million of land
acquired during 2022, including land
associated with developments already
underway or expected to start in the short
term. We acquired land in most of our major
markets, with the largest acquisitionsin
supply-constrained urban markets including
London, Paris, Berlin and DUsseldorf.

We estimate our land bank can support

3.5 million sg m of development over the next
five to seven years. The estimated capital
expenditure associated with the future pipeline
is approximately £2.8 billion. It could generate
£305 million of gross rental income, representing
ayield on total development cost (including
land and notional finance costs) of around 6-7
per cent. These figures are indicative, based on
our current expectations, and are dependent
onour ability to secure pre-let agreements,
planning permissions, construction contracts
and on our outlook for occupier conditionsin
local markets.

Conditional land acquisitions and land held
under option agreements

Land acquisitions (contracted but subject to
further conditions) and land held under option
agreements are not included in the figures
above, but represent significant further
development opportunities. These include
sites for big box warehouses in the UK
Midlands as well asin Germany, Italy and
Poland. They also include urban warehouse
sitesin East and West London.

Financial Statements Further Information

The options are held on the balance sheet at

a value of £30 million (including joint ventures
and associates at share). Those we expect to
exercise over the next two to three years are for
land capable of supporting almost 1.7 million sg
m of space and generating almost £160 million
of headline rent, for a blended yield of
approximately 6 per cent.

Impact of our development pipeline on our
rentalincome

Our development pipeline added a potential
£46 million of headline rent to ourincome in
2022, which has a meaningful impact on our
earnings and dividend growth.

The chart below outlines how we can grow our
rent roll over the next four to five years through
active asset management of our existing
assets and executing our current, near-term
and future pipeline, as well as through our land
options. It does not reflect the impact of future
rental growth, acquisitions or disposals.

Annualised rent potential
as at 31 December 2021 (Em)

446
86
pall
587
Passing Rentin rent- Current and Future Total
rent at free, reversions  near-term pipeline potential
31Dec 2022 and vacancy development and options

pipeline
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Investment update

EW.Bbm

of investment for growth

Acquisitions of assets’

£100m

2021: £494m

Acquisitions of land’

E7W 2 m

2021: £829m

Development capex?

E787m

2021: £639m

Disposals of land and assets (including sales to
SELP)

£ 8 67m

2021: £515m

1 2021assetandland acquisition comparators have been
restated to reflect £503 million of assets that were
recategorised as covered land

2 2021comparator has been restated to exclude £10 million
of capitalised interest

What we said we would do

We expected demand for warehouse
assets to remain strong and intended to
follow our Disciplined approach to capital
allocation, trimming the portfolio and
selling assets where we believed we had
maximised our returns in order to release
funds for opportunities offering a better
risk-return profile.

We intended to continue the focus of our
investment activity on development, while
taking advantage of opportunities to acquire
income-producing assets offering attractive
risk-adjusted returns if they arose.

What we achieved in 2022

We continued to focus our investment on
our development programme, with asset
acquisitions focused on older assets with
redevelopment potential, as well as successful
land acquisitions in some of our most
supply-constrained urban markets.

Net investment during the year was £1.3 billion
andthis included development capital
expenditure of £787 million, £155 million of
assets and £712 million of land. This was partly
offset by £367 million of disposals.

What to expectin 2023

We will continue our disciplined approach

to capital allocation, focusing the majority

of our investment on the development
pipeline (through development capex, land
acquisitions and acquiring assets with future
redevelopment potential), and making
strategic asset acquisitions when the
opportunity arises.

When normality returnsin investment markets
we will return to recycling 1-2 per cent of the
portfolio per year.

Overview Strategic Report Governance

Acquisitions focused on adding to our
development programme

The majority of our asset acquisitions took
placein the first half of 2022 and focused on
older assets with redevelopment potential.

We acquired assets totalling £155 million,
reflecting a blended topped-up initial yield of
2.7 percent. Thisincluded:

- urban warehouse estates in Park Royal and
Slough (one of which was part of an asset
swap) that neighbour our existing assets and
unlock potential development opportunities;

- two well-located older urban warehouse
estates near to Essen and Frankfurtin
Germany, both of which we intend to
redevelop in the medium-term;

- abig box warehouse close to Paris
developed by a customer to a high
specification and sold to us off-market.

In addition, we acquired £712 million of land
to create future development opportunities;
£2671million of this was covered land (see page
53 for further information),

We continue to take a
disciplined approach to
capital allocation and
focused the majority of
our investment on the
development programme
during 2022.

Andy Gulliford
Chief Operating Officer
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Asset recycling to crystallise profits on
developments

Asset and land disposals combined totalled
£367 million. Most of these disposals completed
in the first six months of the year, taking
advantage of strong investment markets to
crystallise profits on assets where we believed
we had maximised returns, and to reinvest the
proceeds into our development programme.

We disposed of £247 million of assets,
reflecting a blended topped-up initial yield of
4.4 percent. They included:

- astand-alone warehouse on the edge of the
Slough Trading Estate as part of an asset swap;

- freehold sales of small unitsin East London;

- big box warehouses in Italy, including an
older stand-alone warehouse on the outskirts
of Milan and a state-of-the-art facility for an
online retailer;

- stand-alone older warehouses in Spain and
the Netherlands;

- abig box unit that we developed for a customer
in the UK Midlands.

In addition to the above disposals we sold

a portfolio of Continental European big box
warehouses developed by SEGRO to SELP
and some development land, for which we
received £109 million net proceeds from an
effective sale of a 50 per cent interest.

Finally, we disposed of £11 million of land,
primarily comprising plots in non-core markets
and residual land that was unsuitable for
industrial development.
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Regional updates and 2022 key highlights

Occupier demand remains
strong across all of our markets
and vacancy remains at
historical lows, supporting high
levels of market rental growth
during 2022.

1 Greater London 3 Thames Valley

- Significant capture
of reversion
- Completion of two

- Existing customers
taking more space
to expand their

Headline rent (at share)

£10m

‘ultra-green’ businesses
London urban - Continued signing
estates Occupancy of pre-letsto data

- Expansion of our
Inner London

0
portfolio 93 6 %}
2 National Logistics 4 Southern Europe

centre operators
- Running alocal
schools challenge

- Continued ‘ Headlinerent (atshare) -~ Setting record
momentum in rents and seeing
delivery of strong growth

E53WW

developments across the board

- First pre-let signed - Highlevels of
in Coventry Occupancy development

- First building - Signing of
completed at Community

98 8%

SmartParc Derby Charterin Paris

Headline rent (at share)

c102m

Occupancy

9/

Headline rent (at share)

£143m

Occupancy

9/ 2%

5 Northern Europe

- Strong ERV growth

- Acquisition of two
transformative land
sitesin Berlinand
Dusseldorf

- 6 MW of solar
capacity added
through aretrofit in
the Netherlands

6 Central Europe

- Record ERV growth

- Large pre-letsto
both new and
existing customers

- 100% customer
satisfaction with
our property
management

Headline rent (at share)

£3Tm

Occupancy

908%

Headline rent (at share)

845ﬂw

Occupancy

9/1%

SELP

SEGRO European Logistics Partnership (SELP)
SELPis our Continental European big box joint
venture with PSP Investments, one of Canada’s
largest pension investment managers. SELP
started in 2013 with €1 billion of assets. At the
end of 2022, it had a portfolio worth just under
€7 billion. SELP generates €313 million of
headline rent with an occupancy rate of 99

per cent.

Our partnership is a vital element of our
strategy to build scale in Continental European
big box warehousing in a capital-efficient
manner. By sharing the capital investment with
PSP Investments, we have been able to grow
the portfolio further and faster than we could
have done on our own. Both partners benefit
from the attractive yield on the portfolio, the
development potential from the land and from
the economies of scale we can extract from
this high-quality, modern collection of big box
warehouses.

As aresult, SEGRO now hasin excess of €1
billion assets under management in each of
Germany, France, Italy and Poland, and we are
building scale in the smaller markets of Spain,
Czech Republic and the Netherlands. The
appetite for investing in big box warehousing
in strategic locations in Continental Europe
remains strong and we look forward to
successful collaborationin the future.

Assets under management (€ bn)

g 1.Germany €1,921Tm
6 2.Poland/Czech

Republic €1,562m

3.France €1,250m

4. Italy €1,204m

5.Spain €453m

\ 6.Netherlands ~ €409m
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Championing low-carbon growth

Scanhere
toseevideo.

In2022, we decided to develop the next phase  As a result, we appointed Dura Vermeer to
of SEGRO Park Amsterdam Airport. As part of deliver this part of the infrastructure. Their
is, we needed new roads around the estate. solution was to deliver circular asphalt with 0%
oads are made of asphalt which are virgin materials, including the recycling of e
raditionally high in bitumen and other demolished roofs to make the new roads at
olluting content. We challenged thisandtold  our site.
rospective suppliers that we would only
onsider working with a company that would Because of our Responsible SEGRO net-zero
nificantly reduce carbon from the process.  carbon commitment, one procurement
decision led to 12,000 sg m of asphalt with
no primary raw materials at all.
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Scan here
to see video.

Ensuring we have what it takes to make
extraordinary things happen

The strength of our balance sheet means we
can continue to enable the extraordinary
despite wider macroeconomic uncertainty

: es the following topics:
- Outlookfor ields and valuations

- Implicati Aterest and near-term
financing

I

= IIETSF,
AREIIEMES,

To find out more
about SEGRO visit
WWW.segro.com
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Financial review

Adjusted profit before tax

E886m

2021: £356m

Progress against our strategy

IFRS loss before tax

£196Zm

2021: profit before tax £4,355m

New financing during the year

Egﬂbm

2021:£1.3bn

Loan to value ratio

3%

2021:23%

What we said we would do
We intend to keep our LTV at around 30 per
cent.

What we achieved in 2022

The impact of increased borrowings (due to
£1.3 billion net investment) during the year and
the reductionin asset values meant that LTV
has increased from 23 per cent to 32 per cent
at 31 December 2022.

What to expectin 2023

We aim to maintain our mid-cycle LTV at
around 30 per cent, although the evolution
of the property cycle will inevitably mean
that there are periods of time when our LTV
is higher or lower than this. We believe this
approach ensures significant headroom
compared against our tightest gearing
covenants should property values decline
further, as well as providing the flexibility to
take advantage of investment opportunities
which may arise. We have cash and available
facilities of £2.2 billion (including our share of
joint ventures and associates) on which we
candraw to fund our investment plans.

Overview

Strategic Report

Financing

During 2022, despite significant capital market
volatility, we were able to arrange £3.1 billion

of short-and long-term debt from existing
relationship banks and investors, new banking
partners and the capital markets to finance
SEGRO’s and SELP’s obligations. Inresponse
to the heightened market volatility, we
established European Medium Term Note
(EMTN) programmes for both SEGRO and SELP
to enhance the agility of our financing activity
and we also increased the level of fixed and
capped rate debt.

Financing during the year
- Short-term debt: SEGRO has increased

its revolving credit facilities to €71.8 billion

(31 December 2021: €1.2 billion) of which
€1.2 billion matures in 2027 and €600 million
in2025. SELP also increased its facilities to
€600 million (31 December 2021: €500
million), which mature in 2026. During the
year, SEGRO also had access to €1.75 billion
of short-term acquisition facilities which
have now been fully repaid.

Medium-term debt: SEGRO diversified its
sources of funding by arranging €408 million
and £300 million of term loans, maturing
between 2025 and 2027, from relationship
and new banking partners. While the loans
were undrawn at year end, we drew €293
million in January 2023.

Governance
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- Long-term debt: SEGRO raised €1,375
million and £350 million of new funds
through the US Private Placement, euro and
sterling bond markets at a weighted average
coupon of 2.7 per cent and a weighted
average duration of 10.4 years. In August,
SELPissued €750 million of five-year
unsecured green bonds with an annual
coupon of 3.75 per cent, using part of the
proceeds to repurchase the €500 million of
bonds maturing in 2023, extending the debt
maturity and removing the 2023 refinancing
requirement.

Financial position at 31 December 2022

As at 31 December 2022, the gross borrowings of
SEGRO Group and its share of gross borrowings
injoint ventures and associates totalled £5,887
million (31 December 2021: £4,268 million), of
which £7 million (31 December 2021: £8 million)
are secured by way of legal charges over
specific assets. The remainder of gross
borrowings are unsecured. Cash and cash
equivalent balances were £194 million

(31 December 2021: £107 million). The average
debt maturity was 8.6 years (31 December
2021: 8.6 years) and average cost of debt
(excluding non-cash interest and commitment
fees) was 2.5 per cent (31 December 2021:1.5
per cent).

SEGRO has an unsecured rating of ‘A’ for Fitch
Ratings as at 31 December 2022.

Financial position and funding

31December 2022

31December 2021*

SEGRO Group, JVs
and associates at

SEGRO Group, JVs
and associates at

SEGRO Group share SEGRO Group share

Net borrowings (£m)? 4,722 5,693 3,321 4161

Available cash and undrawn facilities (Em)? 1,920 2,208 933 1145

Balance sheet gearing (%)* M1 N/A 24 N/A

Loanto value ratio (%) 32 32 22 23

Weighted average cost of debt' (%) 2.6 2.5 15 15

. Interest cover? (times) 4.3 4.5 70 6.9

An a Ctlve yea r Of Average duration of debt (years) 9.4 8.6 96 86

financing and strong
. . 1 Basedongrossdebt, excluding commitment fees and non-cash interest.
flnanC|a| I’eSl.I'tS. % 2 Netrentalincome/Adjusted net finance costs (before capitalisation).

Our strategy 3 SEGRO Group Cash and cash equivalents have been restated as at 31 December 2021. See Note 1to the Financial Statements for
Page18 further details. Net borrowings, Available cash and undrawn facilities and Balance sheet gearing as at 31 December 2021 have been
restated in the table above to reflect this change.

Soumen Das
Chief Financial Officer
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Funds available to SEGRO Group (including

its share of joint venture and associates funds)
at 31 December 2022 totalled £2,208 million
(81 December 2021: £1,145 million), comprising
£194 million cash and short-term investments
and £2,014 million of undrawn credit facilities
of which £150 million was uncommitted. Cash
and cash equivalent balances, together with
the Group’s interest rate and foreign exchange
derivatives portfolio, are spread amongst a
strong group of banks, all of which have a
credit rating of A- or better.

The closest debt maturity is SEGRO'’s £82 million
sterling bond in February 2024.

Monitoring and mitigating financial risk

As explained in the Risks section of this Annual
Report, the Group monitors a number of
financial metrics to assess the level of financial
risk being taken and to mitigate that risk.

Treasury policies and governance

The Group Treasury function operates within
aformal policy covering all aspects of treasury
activity, including funding, counterparty
exposure and management of interest rate,
currency and liquidity risks. Group Treasury
reports on compliance with these policies on
a quarterly basis and policies are reviewed
regularly by the Board.

Gearing and financial covenants

We consider the key leverage metric for
SEGRO to be proportionally consolidated
('look-through’) loan to value ratio (LTV) which
incorporates assets and net debt on SEGRO's
balance sheet and SEGRO’s share of assets
and net debt on the balance sheets of its joint
ventures and associates. The LTV at
31December 2022 on this basis was 32 per
cent (31 December 2021: 23 per cent), the
increase primarily driven by the reduction

in asset values and a higher debt balance.

SEGRO's borrowings contain gearing
covenants based on Group net debt and net
asset value, excluding debt in joint ventures
and associates. The gearing ratio of the Group
at 31 December 2022, as defined within the
principal debt funding arrangements of the
Group, was 41 per cent (31 December 2021: 24
per cent). This is significantly lower than the
Group's tightest financial gearing covenant
within these debt facilities of 160 per cent.
Property valuations would need to fall by
around 48 per cent from their 31 December
2022 values to reach the gearing covenant
threshold of 160 per cent. A 48 per cent fallin
property values would equate to an LTV ratio
of approximately 62 per cent.

The Group's other key financial covenant within
its principal debt funding arrangementsis
interest cover, requiring that net interest before
capitalisation be covered at least 1.25 times by
net property rental income: the ratio for 2022
was four times, comfortably ahead of the
covenant minimum. Net property rental
income would need to fall by around 71 per
cent from 2022 levels, or the average rate of
interest would need to rise by 8 per cent, to
reach the interest cover covenant threshold.
On a proportionally consolidated basis,
including joint ventures and associates, the
interest cover ratio was also four times.

We mitigate the risk of over-gearing the
Company and breaching debt covenants by
carefully monitoring the impact of investment
decisions on our LTV and by stress testing

our balance sheet to potential changesin
property values.

Our intention for the foreseeable futureis to
maintain our mid-cycle LTV at around 30 per
cent, although the evolution of the property
cycle will inevitably mean that there are periods
of time when our LTV is higher or lower than
this. However, this level of LTV through the
cycle provides the flexibility to take advantage
of investment opportunities arising and
ensures significant headroom compared
against our tightest gearing covenant should
property values decline.

Overview Strategic Report Governance

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk policy is designed
to ensure that we limit our exposure to volatility
ininterest rates. The policy states that between
50 and 100 per cent of net borrowings
(including the Group’s share of borrowings

in joint ventures and associates) should be at
fixed or capped rates, including the impact
of derivative financial instruments.

At 31 December 2022, including the impact

of derivative instruments, 95 per cent

(31 December 2021: 65 per cent) of the net
borrowings of the Group (including the Group’s
share of borrowings within joint ventures and
associates) were either at fixed rates or are
protected fromrising interest rates with caps.
The pure fixed level of debt is 83 per cent

at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: 46
per cent), rising to 91 per centincluding
floating rate debt whichis now subject to an
active cap. The remaining nine per cent of debt
is at floating rates, with five per cent subject to
caps should three-month EURIBOR rise above
amaximum 2.72 per cent.

During the year, in line with our risk
management processes and due to the higher
levels of market volatility, the Group closed out
£928 million notional value of historical interest
rate swaps (which transformed fixed rate
interest payments into floating rate payments).
Had these transactions not occurred, the
proportion of fixed and capped rate debt
would have been 16 per cent lower.

As aresult of the fixed rate cover in place, if
short-term interest rates had been 200 basis
points higher throughout 2022, the adjusted
net finance cost of the Group would have
been approximately £27 million higher (2021:
£34 million higher) representing around seven
per cent (2021: ten per cent) of Adjusted profit
after tax.

The Group elects not to hedge account its
interest rate derivatives portfolio. Therefore,
movements in its fair value are taken to the
income statement but, in accordance with
EPRA Best Practices Recommendations
Guidelines, these gains and losses are
eliminated from Adjusted profit after tax.

Financial Statements Further Information

Foreign currency translationrisk

The Group has minimal transactional foreign
currency exposure, but does have a potentially
significant currency translation exposure
arising on the conversion of its foreign currency
denominated assets (mainly euro) and euro
denominated earnings into sterling in the
Group consolidated accounts.

The Group seeks to limit its exposure to volatility
in foreign exchange rates by hedging its foreign
currency gross assets using either borrowings
or derivative instruments. The Group targets
ahedging range of between the last reported
LTV ratio (32 per cent at 31 December 2022)
and 100 per cent. At 31 December 2022, the
Group was 76 per cent hedged by gross
foreign currency denominated liabilities

(31 December 2021: 62 per cent).

Including the impact of forward foreign
exchange and currency swap contracts used
to hedge foreign currency denominated net
assets, if the value of the other currenciesin
which the Group operates at 31 December
2022 weakened by 10 per cent against sterling
(to €1.24, inthe case of euros), net assets would
have decreased by approximately £137 million
and there would have been a reductionin
gearing of approximately 2.4 per cent and in
the LTV of 1.3 per cent.

The average exchange rate used to translate
euro denominated earnings generated during
2022 into sterling within the consolidated
income statement of the Group was €1.17: £1.
Based on the hedging position at 31 December
2022, and assuming that this position had
applied throughout 2022, if the euro had been
10 per cent weaker than the average exchange
rate (€1.29: £1), Adjusted profit after tax for

the year would have been approximately

£11 million (2.9 per cent) lower than reported.
Ifit had been 10 per cent stronger, Adjusted
profit after tax for the year would have been
approximately £13 million (3.5 per cent) higher
thanreported.
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Financial review
continued

Going concern

As noted in the Financial Position and
Financing sections above, the Group has
significant available liquidity to meet its capital
commitments, a long-dated debt maturity
profile and substantial headroom against
financial covenants.

During the year:

- The Group extended the term of its €1.2 billion
of bank facilities to 2027 and added a further
€1.0 billion and £0.3 billion of bank facilities
with maturity dates between 2025 and 2027.

- The Group executed its second Eurobond,

raising €1.15 billion with a six times

oversubscription rate.

The Group raised €225 million of funding

from existing US Private Placement investors.

- Cash and available committed facilities at
31December 2022 were £1.7 billion.

- The Group continuously monitors its liquidity

position compared to committed and
expected capital and operating expenses on

arolling forward 18-month basis. The quantum

of committed capital expenditure at any
pointintimeis typically low due to the short

timeframe to construct warehouse buildings.

The Group also regularly stress-tests its
financial covenants. As noted above, at
31December 2022, property values would
need to fall by around 48 per cent before
breaching the gearing covenant. In terms of
interest cover, net rental income would need
to fall by 71 per cent or the average interest
rate would need to reach eight per cent
before breaching the interest cover
covenant. All would be significantly in excess
of the Group’s experience during the
financial crisis, and the Covid pandemic.

Having made enquiries and having considered
the principal risks facing the Group, including
liquidity and solvency risks, and material
uncertainties, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the Group
have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable
future (a period of at least 12 months from the
date of approval of the financial statements).
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing these
financial statements.

Overview Strategic Report
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Income statement review

Presentation of financial information

The Group Financial Statements are prepared
under IFRS where the Group's interests in joint
ventures and associates are shown as a single
line item on the income statement and balance
sheet and subsidiaries are consolidated at
100 per cent.

The Adjusted profit measure reflects the
underlying financial performance of the
Group’s property rental business, which is our
core operating activity. It is based on EPRA
earnings as set out in the Best Practices
Recommendations Guidelines of the European
Public Real Estate Association (EPRA) which
are widely used alternate metrics to their IFRS
equivalents within the European real estate
sector (further details can be found at
www.epra.com). In calculating Adjusted profit,
the Directors may also exclude additional
items considered to be non-recurring,
unusual, or significant by virtue of size and
nature. Inthe current and prior years there
have been no such adjustments and therefore
Adjusted profit and EPRA earnings are the same.

A detailed reconciliation between Adjusted profit
after tax and IFRS loss after tax is providedin
Note 2 to the Financial Statements. This is not
on a proportionally-consolidated basis.

Reconciliations between SEGRO Adjusted
metrics and EPRA metrics are provided in

the Supplementary Notes to the Financial
Statements, which also include EPRA metrics
as wellas SEGRO’s Adjusted income statement
and balance sheet presented on a
proportionally consolidated basis.

SEGRO monitors these alternative metrics, as
well as the EPRA metrics for vacancy rate, net
asset value, capital expenditure, loan to value
and total cost ratio, as they provide a transparent
and consistent basis to enable comparison
between European property companies.

Look-through metrics provided for like-for-like
net rental income include joint ventures and
associates at share in order that our full
operations are captured, therefore providing
more meaningful analysis.

Net rental 0
Income

e /e

Adjusted profit (note 2)
2022 2021
£m £m
Gross rentalincome 488 398
Property operating expenses (76) (57)
@ Netrentalincome! 412 341
® Jointventurefeeincome 30 52
Management and development fee income 5 5
Net solar energy income 1 1
Administrative expenses (59) (59)
® Shareofjoint ventures and associates’ adjusted profit? 7 56
Adjusted operating profit before interest and tax 460 396
O Netfinancecosts (74) (40)
Adjusted profit before tax 386 356
@ Taxonadjusted profit 1) (8)
Non-controlling interests share of Adjusted profit Q]
©® Adjusted profit after tax 374 348

1 Thecomposition of gross and net rental income has changed in 2022 to provide a better measure of the underlying rental income from
the property portfolio. There is noimpact on Adjusted operating profit before interest and tax from this change and the prior year
comparativesin the table above have been re-presented to reflect this change. See Note 2 to the Financial Statements for further details.

N

Comprises net property rental income less administrative expenses, net finance costs and taxation.

Net rental income increased by £71 million to
£412 million (or by £83 million to £522 million
including joint ventures and associates at
share before joint venture fees), reflecting
the positive net impact of like-for-like rental
growth, development completions and
investment activity during the year, offset by
the impact of disposals.

On a like-for-like basis', before other items
(primarily corporate centre and other costs
not specifically allocated to a geographic
Business Unit), net rental income increased
by £28 million, or 6.7 per cent, compared
to 2021.

This is due to strong rental performance
across our portfolio. UK: 7.7 per cent increase,
in particular in Greater London and Thames
Valley; and Continental Europe: 4.9 per cent
increase, in particular in Germany and France.

1 Thelike-for-like net rental growth metric is based on
properties held throughout both 2022 and 2021on a
proportionally consolidated basis. This provides details
of underlying net rental income growth excluding the
distortive impact of acquisitions, disposals and development
completions. Where an asset has been sold into a joint
venture (sales to SELP, for example) the 50 per cent share
owned throughout the year isincluded in like-for-like
calculation, with the balance shown as disposals. Further
details are given in Table 11 of the Supplementary Notes.




61 SEGROplc Overview Strategic Report Governance Financial Statements Further Information
Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Income from joint ee | Net finance o | Taxation o | Adjusted profit/ 5
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Joint venture fee income decreased by

£22 million to £30 million in 2022. This
decrease is primarily due to the recognition
of a performance fee of £26 million in respect
of the SELP joint venture in the prior year

(as detailed further in Note 7(i)). Joint venture
management fee income increased by

£4 million to £30 millionin 2022, primarily
from the SELP joint venture.

SEGRO's share of joint ventures and
associates’ Adjusted profit after tax increased
by £15 million from £56 million in 2021to £71
millionin 2022. This includes a performance
fee expense (at share) in the prior year of £13
million. Excluding performance fee expense,
the Adjusted joint ventures and associates
profit after tax increased by £2 million
compared to 2021 as net rental income in the
SELP joint venture has continued to grow.

Net finance costs were £34 million higher
than 2021 at £74 million. Average interest rates
during the year were 2.6 per cent compared
to 1.5 per centin the prior year. This has been
partially offset by a £13 million increase in
capitalised interest compared to the prior
year. Furthermore, gross debt levels were
higherin 2022 compared to the prior year.

The tax charge on Adjusted profit of £11 million
(2021: £8 million) reflects an effective tax rate
of 2.8 per cent (2021: 2.2 per cent).

The Group's effective tax rate reflects the fact
that around three-quarters of its wholly-
owned assets are located in the UK and qualify
for REIT status. This status means thatincome
from rental profits and gains on disposals of
assets in the UK are exempt from corporation
tax, provided SEGRO meets a number of
conditions including, but not limited to,
distributing 90 per cent of UK taxable profits.

Adjusted profit after tax increased by

£26 million to £374 million (2021: £348 million)
as a result of the above movements primarily
growthinrentalincome offset by increased
finance costs and the recognition of a
performance fee in the prior year.

Adjusted profit is detailed further in Note 2
to the Financial Statements.

Adjusted earnings per share are 31.0 pence
comparedto 29.1 pence in 2021(28.0 pence
excluding the impact of the performance fee)
duetothe increase in Adjusted profit slightly
offset by the 8.9 million increase inthe
average number of shares inissue compared
to the prior year.
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Financial review
continued

Adjusted net asset value

1137p (179)p 31p 7p (25)p 7p 2p 966p

EPRA NTA Realised and Adjusted Exchange rate Dividend net Early close Other EPRA NTA

attributable unrealised profit after movement of scrip out of attributable

to ordinary property loss tax and (net of hedging) shares issued interest to ordinary
shareholders non-controlling (2021 final rates swaps shareholders

at interests
31 December
2021

IFRS loss

IFRS loss before tax in 2022 was £1,967 million
(2021: £4,355 million profit), equating to basic
post-tax IFRS loss per share of 159.7 pence
compared with profit per share of 339.0 pence
for 2021. A reconciliation between Adjusted
profit before tax and IFRS (loss)/profit before tax
is provided in Note 2 to the Financial Statements.

The principal drivers of IFRS loss is realised and
unrealised property losses and gains. Total loss
on propertiesis £2,175 million (2021: £4,173
million gain). Thisincludes a £1,970 million
deficit from valuation of wholly-owned
investment properties (2021: £3,617 million
surplus) and £236 million deficit from joint
ventures and associates at share (2021: £487

and 2022
interim)

million surplus). These valuation losses, driven
by yield expansion in most markets partially
offset by increasesin ERV, are discussed in
more detail in the Performance Review on
page 48. Other property movements include
profit on sale of wholly-owned investment
properties of £9 million and £nil for investment
properties held by joint ventures and associates
at share (2021: wholly-owned £53 million and
£10 million joint ventures and associates at
share). In respect of trading properties, there
was a reversal of provision for impairment

of £15 million (2021: increase in provision for
impairment of £1 million) and a gain on sale

of trading properties of £7 million (2021:

£7 million).

at
31 December
2022

IFRS earnings were also impacted by a net
fair value loss on interest rate swaps and
other derivatives of £199 million (2021: loss
of £82 million) primarily as a result of adverse
movements on interest rate expectations.

In addition, SEGRO recognised a tax credit

in respect of adjustments of £48 million

(2021: £280 million charge) primarily in relation
to property valuation movements. The 2021
charge includes significant balances in respect
of a £145 million withholding tax in France and
a SlIC entry charge of £38 million compared

to the equivalent 2022 charges which are

£4 millionand £nil respectively. These items
are detailed furtherin Note 10.

Financial Statements Further Information

Balance sheet

At 31 December 2022, IFRS net assets
attributable to ordinary shareholders
were £11,373 million (31 December 2021:
£13,436 million), reflecting 938 pence per
share (31 December 2021: 1,115 pence)

on adiluted basis.

Adjusted NAV per share at 31 December 2022
was 966 pence (31 December 2021:1,137 pence).
The 15 per cent decrease primarily reflects
property valuation lossesin the year as explained
above. The chart highlights the other main
factors behind the decrease. A reconciliation
between IFRS and Adjusted NAV is available

in Note 12 to the Financial Statements.

Cash flow and net debt reconciliation

Cash flows from operating activities of

£479 million are £116 million higher than the
prior year. This is primarily due to increased
rental income received during the year, the
impact of trading properties, following
disposalsinthe year, and other working capital
movements. As well as finance cost outflows
of £103 million in servicing the debt facilities,
afurther £77 million was spentin closing out
and reprofiling interest rate derivatives. Interest
rate risk management is detailed further inthe
Financial Review on page 59. In addition there
were tax payments of £95 million primarily

in Italy and France.

The Group made netinvestments of £1,246
million in investment and development
properties (including other investments and
net investments and loans to joint ventures and
associates) during the year on a cash flow basis
(2021: £1,266 million). This is principally driven
by expenditure of £1,472 million (2021: £1,706
million) to purchase and develop investment
properties (mainly to add to the Group’s land
bank) to deliver further growth in line with

our strategy.
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Cash flow bridge (Em)
(3,321 479 (103) (77) 9
Opening Cash Finance Cost of early Dividends
net flow from costs close out of received
debt operating (net) interest rate (net)
activities derivatives

and new
interest rate
derivatives
transacted

Disposals of investment properties decreased
by £181 million to £310 million compared to the
prior year (2021: £491 million). Disposal proceeds
include £218 million in respect of disposals to
the SELP joint venture.

Other significant cash flows include dividends
paid of £222 million (2021: £180 million) where
cash flows are lower than the total dividend
dueto the level of scrip uptake; an inflow from
settlement of foreign exchange derivatives of
£15 million (2021: £40 million).

Overall, net debt hasincreased in the year
from £3,321 million to £4,722 million.

(95) (222) (1472) 310 9)
Tax Dividends Purchase and Sale of Acquisitions
paid paid development  investment of interest investment
of investment  properties in property
properties and other

investments

associates

Capital expenditure

Table 10 in the Supplementary Notes sets out

analysis of the capital expenditure during the

year. Thisincludes acquisition and development

spend, onanaccruals basis, in respect of the

Group’s wholly-owned investment and trading

property portfolios, as well as the equivalent
amounts for joint ventures and associates,
atshare.

Total spend for the year was £1,898 million,

a decrease of £268 million compared to 2021.
More detail on developments and acquisitions

can be found in the Development and
Investment Updates on pages 52 to 55.

Development capital expenditure was £787
million in the year (2021: £639 million) across
all our Business Units, particularly Southern
Europe and National Logistics, reflecting our
development-led growth strategy. Capitalised
interest of £24 million (2021: £10 million) has
been recognised in the year.

Spend on existing completed properties,
totalled £62 million (2021: £45 million), of which
£13 million (2021: £5 million) was for incremental
lettable space. The balance mainly comprises
refurbishment and fit-out costs, which equates
toless than one per cent of total spend.

Financial Statements Further Information

Dividendincrease reflects the strong
operational results and confidence for

the future

Under the UK REIT rules, we are required to
pay out 90 per cent of UK-sourced, tax-
exempt rental profits as a ‘Property Income
Distribution’ (PID). Since we also receive
income from our properties in Continental
Europe, our total dividend should normally
exceed this minimum level and we target a
payout ratio of 85to 95 per cent of Adjusted
profit after tax. We aim to deliver a progressive
and sustainable dividend which grows in line
with our profitability in order to achieve our
goal of being aleading income-focused REIT.

The Board has concluded that itis appropriate
torecommend anincrease in the final dividend
per share by 1.3 pence to 18.2 pence (2021:16.9
pence) which will be paid as an ordinary
dividend. The Board's recommendation is
subject to approval by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting, in which event the
final dividend will be paid on 4 May 2023 to
shareholders on the register at the close of
business on 17 March 2023.

In considering the final dividend, the Board
took into account:

- the policy of targeting a payout ratio of
between 85 and 95 per cent of Adjusted
profit after tax;

- the desire to ensure that the dividend is
sustainable and progressive throughout the
cycle; and

- the results for 2022 and the outlook for
earnings.

The total dividend for the year will, therefore,
be 26.3 pence, arise of 8 per cent versus 2021
(24.3 pence) and represents distribution of
85 per cent of Adjusted profit after tax.

The Board has decided to retain a scrip
dividend option for the 2022 final dividend,
allowing shareholders to choose whether to
receive the dividend in cash or new shares. In
2021, 41 per cent of the 2021 final dividend and
3 per cent of the 2022 interim dividend were
paidin new shares, equating to £79 million of
cash retained on the balance sheet.



64 SEGROplc
Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Managing risk

Soumen Das
Chief Financial Officer

Dynamic risk management
is a cornerstone of our
business and enables us to
remain agile and to deliver
on our strategy.

Soumen Das
Chief Financial Officer

Effective risk management

Risk management is pivotal to how we deliver
our strategy in a disciplined and sustainable
way, over the long term. Whilst operatinginan
ever-changing geopolitical and macroeconomic
environment, our business continues to show
resilience thanks to our risk process, which is
embedded throughout to enable appropriate
and responsive decision making.

Annual risk management update

2022 saw a volatile geopolitical environment
and a significant deterioration in macroeconomic
conditions. Inflationary pressures have led to
high construction costs whilst central bank
actions to combat inflation through higher
interest rates have detrimentally impacted the
valuation of our assets. In addition, our
customers have seen sharp increases to
energy prices as well as concerns over access
to energy supply. Despite this, our business

has demonstrated resilience over the past year,
and remains well positioned to benefit from
the structural trends affecting our markets,
which remain strong.

The Group’s Board and key committees have
overseen the response to these challenges and
the wider economic implications throughout
the year. Consequentially, they have taken
actions to mitigate the impact on both our
operations and the wellbeing of our
employees. We review our investment plans
regularly and continue to manage our balance
sheet proactively in order to help mitigate the
impacts of future volatility.

The Group Risk Committee is made up of
members of senior management and has met
three times during the year. The members of
the Committee have detailed knowledge of,
and expertise in operational, financial and
corporate aspects of our business, ensuring
we are well-positioned to undertake our
responsibility of overseeing the work of the
risk management function on behalf of the
Executive Committee.

Overview Strategic Report

Details of particular areas of interest to the
Risk Committee are detailed below:

People and talent

As we continue to grow as a business and in
order to support our strategic priorities, the
Group's ability to attract, motivate, retain and
develop the right people and talent is essential.
Nurturing talent is one of our Responsible
SEGRO priorities and is a key part of our
strategy. Consequently, People and Talent is
now highlighted as a separate principal risk;
previously this risk was captured within the
Operational Delivery principal risk. This risk is
considered at the highest level with the Board
and Executive Committee review talent,
succession planning and key personrisk, at
least annually.

During the year, the shift in the property cycle
has been reflected in the competitive market
for talent. Our focus continues to be to ensure
an appropriate organisational structure to
support our strategic priorities, particularly in
light of our future growth plans. Furthermore,
our new Group HR Director has invested in the
Human Resources team which has given fresh
impetus to the function. This hasincluded
creating a new people planning process to
enable proactive resourcing and development
of teams by managers and enhanced
succession planning.

Emerging risks

We continue to identify and monitor emerging
risks through our risk processes. Emerging
risks are those which may be evolving rapidly,
the impact or probability may not yet be fully
understood, and the mitigations may need

to be adapted regularly. This process is
supplemented by formal horizon scans with
the Executive Committee.

Governance
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Environmental sustainability is anincreasingly
important risk for the business which, in the
short to medium-term, includes the transitional
changes (for example, legislation and financial)
and is detailed in Principal Risks below. The
long-term impact of climate change on our
businessis by its nature less well-known and
thisis an emerging risk which we continue to
monitor and consider. Failure to identify and
mitigate risks at this stage (for example,
physical changesincluding the increased
likelihood of heat stress) could resultina
reductionin the attractiveness of our assets

to current and prospective customers,
reputational damage, higher obsolescence
and an overall reduction in value of our
portfolioin the future.

Some other emerging risks are: disruptive
technological advances and theirimpact on
our assets; access to and the use of energy
and water in our portfolio; potential changes
in public sentiment and consequential impacts
on subsectors such as air travel and data
centres; and the impact of deurbanization
and mobility on the location of our portfolio.

Looking ahead

[tis likely that risks associated with the volatile
macroeconomic climate will continue for some
time. Property investment is inherently cyclical,
so we will continue to focus on the successful
execution of our strategy to create value
through the cycle whilst managing the
shorter-term risks which arise from time to time
due to the cycle. We remain vigilant to the
rapidly changing environment and the Group's
risk management process enables us to be
flexible and responsive in order to continue to
operate successfully.

Soumen Das
Chief Financial Officer
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Our risk appetite

The Group's ability to effectively manage risk
throughout the organisation is central to the
ongoing success of the business. Risk
management ensures a structured approach
to the decision-making process that looks to
reduce uncertainty over expected outcomes
and to bring controllable risks within our
appetite, thereby balancing uncertainty
against the objective of creating and
protecting value for our stakeholders, now
andinthe future.

The Group's risk appetite is reviewed annually
and approved by the Board in order to guide the
business. As well as qualitative descriptions, the
risk appetite defines tolerances and targets for
key metrics. Our risk appetite is dynamic, varying
over time and during the course of the property
cycle. Itis applicable throughout the organisation
including joint ventures and associates.

We have put risk appetite at the heart of our
risk management processes. Itis integral both
to our consideration of strategy and to our
medium-term planning process. Risk appetite
also defines specific tolerances and targets
for key metrics and the criteria for assessing
the potential impact of risks and our mitigation
of them.

In overview, the Group maintains a low appetite
for risk, appropriate to our strategic objectives
of delivering long-term sustainable value.

Property risk

We recognise that, in seeking outperformance
from our portfolio, the Group must accept a
balanced level of property risk - with diversity
in geographic locations and asset types and
an appropriate mixture of stabilised income-
producing and opportunity assets - in order
to enhance opportunities for superior returns.
Thisis balanced against the backdrop of the
geopolitical and macroeconomic environment
andits impact on the property cycle.

Our portfolio should deliver attractive, low risk
income returns with strong rental and capital
growth when market conditions are positive
and show relative resilience in a downturn.
We aim to enhance these returns through
development, which requires necessary levels
of land holdings to support the pipeline. We
seek to balance the risk of holding too much
land which might be a drag to earnings, by
acquiring land in appropriate locations with
the required planning or zoning. Additionally
we closely monitor the churn and duration of
our land holdings. We also seek to mitigate
the risks - including letting, construction and
contractor covenant risks - that are inherent
in development. Also mindful of our
environmental responsibilities, we seek to
develop buildings which meet and exceed
minimum regulatory requirements and
achieve high environmental certification
standards, to be attractive to occupiers both
now and in the future.

We have a low appetite for risks to income
from customers and in order to achieve this
we maintain a diverse occupier base with
strong covenants and avoid over-exposure to
individual occupiers in specialist properties.
We encourage customers to share energy
usage data, operate in a low-carbon way and
to use certified green energy in our buildings.

Overview Strategic Report

Financial risk

The Group maintains a low appetite for
financial risk in general, with a very low
appetite for risks to solvency and gearing
covenant breaches.

As anincome-focused REIT we have a low
appetite for risks which threaten a stable
progression in earnings and dividends over
the long-term.

We also seek long-term growth in net asset
value notwithstanding the impact of
fluctuations from external factors which
influence the property cycle. Our appetite for
risks to net asset value from the factors within
our control is low, albeit acknowledging that
our appetite for moderate leverage across the
cycle amplifies the impact of market-driven

asset valuation movements on net asset value.

Governance

Financial Statements Further Information

Corporate risk

We have a very low appetite for risks to our
good reputation with our customers and
wider stakeholders, including investors,
regulators, employees, business partners,
suppliers, lenders and the communities in
which we operate.

Our responsibilities to these stakeholders
include compliance with all relevant laws;
accurate and timely reporting of financial and
other regulatory information; safeguarding the
health and safety of employees, suppliers,
customers and other users of our assets; our
impact on the environment; assessing the
impact of new and evolving technologies;
compliance with codes of conduct and ethics;
ensuring business continuity; and making

a positive contribution to the communities

in which we operate.
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Managing risk
continued

Risk Management

Our integrated and robust approach to

risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring
that risk is effectively and consistently managed
across the Group. The Audit Committee
monitors the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management process on behalf of the Board.
Further information on compliance with the
risk management provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code can be found
onpage122.

The risk management process is designed to
identify, evaluate and respond to the significant
risks (including emerging risks) that the Group
faces. The process aims to understand,
document and mitigate, rather than eliminate,
the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and therefore can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance.

The identification and review of emerging risks
are integrated into our risk review process.
Emerging risks are those risks or a combination
of risks which are often rapidly evolving and for
which the impact and probability of occurrence
have not yet been fully understood and
consequently necessary mitigations have not
yet fully evolved. All risk owners and managers
within the business are challenged to consider
emerging risks and this is supplemented
through formal twice-yearly horizon scans
with the Executive Committee.

The Board has performed a robust assessment
of the principal and emerging risks facing the
Group. It formally reviewed the principal and
emerging risks twice during the year and also
completed its annual review and approval of
the Group’s risk appetite, and the Group’s risk
management policy. The Audit Committee
reviews the process over how the Group Risk
Register has been compiled, twice a year.

The Board recognises that it has limited control
over many of the external risks it faces, such as
global events as well as the macroeconomic,
geopolitical, and regulatory environment, but
it assesses the potential impact of such risks
on the business and consequential decision
making as part of its review. Internal risks are
monitored by the Board to ensure that
appropriately designed controls are in place
and operate in order to manage them.

The most significant risks and mitigating
controls are detailed in the Group Risk Register.
Risks are assessed in both inherent (assuming
that no controls are in place) and residual (with
mitigating controls operating normally) states.
As part of the assessment, riskimpact is
directly measured against risk appetite so that
itis clear whether each risk is comfortably
within appetite, tolerable, intolerable or below
appetite. We also formally assess the velocity
of the most significant risks to determine how
quickly they might become intolerable.

A Key Risk Indicator (KRI) dashboard is
produced and monitored regularly to show
actual and forecast performance against risk
appetite metrics, allowing informed decision
making. KRIs are considered regularly by the
relevant monitoring committees in their
decision making as well as being integral to
the Group’s Medium-Term Plan.

Mitigations for each risk are documented and
monitored in the Group Risk Register. The
Register is used as a key input to determine
priorities for the Group's internal audit
assurance programme. Furthermore,
management’s annual self-assessment of
control effectiveness is driven by the Register.

Overview Strategic Report Governance

Our robust risk
management process

is embedded throughout
our business.

Soumen Das
Chief Financial Officer

Financial Statements Further Information

Our framework for risk governance
The Group adopts the ‘three lines of defence’
model of risk management.

The first line of defence is provided by the
function that has primary responsibility to own
and manages the risk associated with day-to-
day operational activities which may include
operational management, the individual risk
manager and executive risk owner.

The second line of defence is provided by

the function that oversees the risk or who
specialises in compliance or risk management.
This would typically be a monitoring
committee such as the Executive Committee,
the Investment Committee or the Technology
Committee, and the risk management function
overseen by the Group Risk Committee
provides the second line of defence.

The third line of defence is provided by
functions which provide objective and
independent assurance over whether the first
and second lines of defence are operating
effectively, usually, Internal Audit.

Risks are considered within each area of the
business to ensure that risk management is
fully embedded within the Group’s operations,
culture and decision-making processes.

Accountabilities for the Group’s risk
management are outlined in the diagram.
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Our framework for risk governance

Board
« Overall responsibility for ensuring that risk is effectively managed across the Group.
« Determines the Group's risk appetite and policy.
- Conducts robust assessment of current and emerging risks.

Audit Committee
Monitors effectiveness of the Group’s risk management process and internal control systems.

Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Executive Risk Owners Executive Committee Internal Audit
- Own risks in area for which they are responsible. - Oversees execution of risk management - Agrees internal audit programme in
« Assign accountability for mitigating across the business. conjunction with the Group Risk Register.
individual risks to risk managers. - Formally considers risks, including emerging « Conducts internal audit programme and
- Ensure that risks are identified, assessed and risks, twice a year. reports to Audit Committee.
adequately controlled and mitigated. « Directly oversees strategic risks. « Continues to monitor issues as they arise and
- Review and identify existing and emerging - Delegates accountability for risk management isagileinits response tosuch |ssu_esand
risks with the risk management function at least and monitors performance of risk controls. amends the programme accordingly.
twice per year. « Assigns Executive Risk Owners to each risk.

Risk Managers
«Responsible for ensuring the risk
is within appetite.

- Drive design and implementation of controls.
+Review, identify and assess existing and
emerging risks with the risk management

function at least twice per year.

Monitoring Committees
- Regularly identify and monitor the
significant risks and corresponding controls
within their function.
« Risk management team regularly
attends these committees.

Group Risk Committee

« Coordinates the risk management process
on behalf of the Executive Committee.

« Develops risk policy and appetite.

- Oversees the work of the Risk Management
function, whichin turn:

- Manages, maintains and reports on the
Risk Register.

- Assesses and documents risks and controls.

- Provides quality assurance and challenge
torisk owners and managers.
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Principal risks

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks have the potential to affect
SEGRO’s business materially. Risks are
classified as ‘principal’ based on their potential
to intolerably exceed our appetite (considering
bothinherent and residual impact) and cause
material harm to the Group.

Some risks that may be unknown at present,

as well as other risks that are currently regarded
as immaterial and therefore not detailed here,
could turn out to be material in the future. The
current principal risks that the Group is aware
thatitis facing are summarised in the diagram
and described on the following pages.

The descriptions indicate the potential areas of
impact onthe Group’s strategy; the time-horizon
and probability of the risk; the principal activities
that are in place to mitigate and manage such
risks; the committees that provide second line
of defence oversight; changes in the level of
risk during the course of the year; and link to
further relevant information in this report.

A summary of the Group’s principal risks
including an update for changes during the
period and activity during the year, is provided
below. The principal risks remain the same as
reported in the Annual Report for 2021 except
for the new People and Talent risk (discussed
above). Furthermore the scope of the Political
and Regulatory and Operational Delivery and
Compliance risks have been rebalanced.
Complianceis now included in the former
which is now renamed Legal, Political and
Regulatory and the latter now excludes
compliance and people aspects and is
renamed Operational Delivery. Management
believes this better reflects the revised scope
of the risks. The impact and probability of each
risk has not changed significantly since they
were reported in the 2021 Annual Report and
the residual risk for each (after factoring in
mitigations) remains within appetite.

Furthermore, the macroeconomic impacts on
market cycle, portfolio strategy and execution
and legal, political and regulatory risks have
increased during the year for reasons
described in more detail below, whilst the
others have remained in line with the prior year.

I
Qverview Strategic Report Governance Financial Statements Further Information
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1. Macroeconomic impact on market cycle

The property market is cyclical in nature and
there is a continuous risk that the Group could
either misread or fail to react appropriately to
the changing property market, cost of finance
or wider macroeconomic/geopolitical
conditions. This could result in anincorrect
strategy or the ability to deliver a strategy
being inhibited and consequential impact on
property performance and shareholder value.

Mitigations

The Executive Committee, Investment
Committee and ultimately the Board monitor
the property market cycle on a continual basis
and adapt the Group’s investment/divestment
stance in anticipation of changing market
conditions.

Multiple, diverse investment and occupier
market intelligence is regularly reviewed and
considered, both from internal ‘on the ground’
sources and from independent external sources.

Upside and downside scenarios are
incorporated into Investment Committee
papers to assess the impact of differing market
conditions and inform our portfolio strategy
(see separate principal risk).

Current year activity

The heightened geopolitical risks and the
uncertain macroeconomic outlook, which
created uncertainty over interest rates and
inflation, has led to increased volatility in the
capital markets and reduced liquidity in the
property investment market.

In response, we have increased the regularity
of our economic outlook assessments and
reassessed their consequences on our
portfolio strategy (see separate principal risk).
We are therefore prepared for these pressures
if they persisted across the countries we
operate in for some time.

2. Portfolio strategy and execution

The Group’s Total Property and/or Shareholder
Returns could underperformin absolute or
relative terms as a result of an inappropriate
portfolio strategy. This could result from:

- Unexpected macroeconomic factors
(as detailed in the Annual Risk Management
Update earlier);

- Incorrect or ineffective capital allocation
decisions;

- Poor orincorrect market or asset level
assumptions including disruptions, for
example from changing occupier and
customer needs, technological
developments and innovation;

- Inaccurate modelling or forecasting;

- Increased market competition for our assets
or target customers; and/or

- Lack of appropriate procedures and
inadequate due diligence resulting in
lengthy, onerous or costly transactions and
missed opportunities.

Mitigations

The Group’s portfolio strategy is subject to
regular review by the Board in order to
consider the desired shape of the portfolio so
as to meet the Group’s overall strategy and to
determine our response to changing
opportunities and market conditions.

The Group’s approach to capital allocation is
informed by comprehensive asset plans and
independent external assessments of market
conditions and forecasts. Major capital
investment and disposal decisions are subject
to Board approval in line with portfolio strategy.
Locally based property investment and
operational teams provide market intelligence

and use their networks to source attractive
opportunities.

Regular portfolio analysis enables the portfolio
to be correctly positioned in terms of location
and asset type and to retain the right mix of
core and opportunity assets. The annual asset
planning exercise provides a bottom-up
assessment of the performance and potential
for all assets to determine where to invest
capital in existing assets and to identify assets
for disposal.

Policies are in place to govern the evaluation,
due diligence process, approval, execution
and subsequent review of investment activity.
Investment hurdle rates are regularly
reappraised taking into account estimates

of our weighted average cost of capital.

Current year activity

The Group’s approach to portfolio
management and capital allocation remains
disciplined and responsive to opportunities
that arise, as detailed in the Investment and
Development updates sections. Our portfolio
has been positioned to be resilient through
the cycle as we face the impacts of the
macroeconomic uncertainty discussed
above. Ourinvestment criteria and hurdle
rates have also been reassessed to reflect
the prevailing conditions impacting our
capital allocation and investment decisions.

LINK TO STRATEGY:
DISCIPLINED CAPITAL ALLOCATION

OVERSEEN BY:
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE, INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

LINK TO STRATEGY:
DISCIPLINED CAPITAL ALLOCATION

OVERSEEN BY:
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE; INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

CHANGE IN 2022:

Decreased No change Increased

FURTHER INFORMATION:

The market outlook is detailed in the Chief Executive’s
statement on page 13.

CHANGE IN 2022:

Decreased No change Increased

FURTHER INFORMATION:

The market outlook is detailed in the Chief Executive’s
statementon page 13.
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3. Major event/business disruption

Unexpected global, regional or national events
resultin severe adverse disruption to SEGRO,
such as sustained asset value or revenue
impairment, solvency or covenant stress,
liquidity or business continuity challenges.

A global event or business disruptor may
include, but is not limited to a global financial
crisis, health pandemic, power/water
shortages, civil unrest, act of terrorism,

cyber- attack or other IT disruption. Events may
be singular or cumulative, and lead to acute/
systemic issues in the business and/or
operating environment.

Mitigations

The Group positions itself to withstand a global
event and business disruption through its
financing strategy (see separate principal risk);
portfolio strategy (see separate principal risk)
including holding a diverse set of property
assets, staying close to customers to
understand their changing needs, property
insurance, strong customer base;
organisational resilience of the workforce;
and detailed business continuity and disaster
recovery plans. Going concern and viability

is assessed through a detailed bottom-up
medium-term planning process including a
business stress test and downside scenarios.

We use third parties to supplement internal
expertise when testing our resilienceto a
cyber-attack and other business disruption
alongside regular training for all employees.

Current year activity

Whilst the direct impacts of the pandemic
have largely abated, the heightened
geopolitical uncertainty (including the
ongoing conflict in Ukraine) and consequential
global macroeconomic volatility has
exacerbated increased inflation, financing
costs and concerns over the ability to access
energy. Thisis unlikely to return to previous
levelsin the short-term, causing a degree of
uncertainty to the Group's operations and
stakeholders. The Group maintains a robust
financing and portfolio strategy in order to be
well positioned and flexible in response to
major events/business disruption. The Board
and other committees remain vigilant and
responsive in managing the mitigation of risks
as they evolve. Working groups are set up as
required to collate and align the Group’s
response in an agile fashion asissues such as
energy availability have arisen, often at short
notice. These groups report directly to the
Executive Committee.

4. Health and safety

A health and safety incident may occur which
involves harm to an individual or loss of life.
This may be due to the failure of management
processes, failure of a building or other
physical asset, or negligence of a third-party.
Furthermore, the Group may breach relevant
legislation and fail to provide suitable
employee support. This may consequentially
resultin litigation, fines, serious reputational
damage and a negative impact on employees.
Thisrisk is heightened by the continued scale
of the Group’s development activity.

Mitigations

The Group operates an active health and
safety management system, with a particular
focus on the quality of and compliance with
good health and safety practice of all our
suppliers.

A published health and safety policy is
supported by site inspections of existing
assets (and potential new assets), as part of
proactive management, and development
project inspectionsin line with SEGRO’s Health
and Safety Construction Standard.

SEGRO has a zero-tolerance approach to
poor health and safety and continues to work
closely with our suppliers and health and
safety consultants to increase understanding

and implementation of SEGRO’s requirements.

The Health and Safety Committee develops
and manages the implementation of Health
and Safety policies, reviews the outcomes of
the Health and Safety Working Group as well
as any other health and safety matters. The
Health and Safety Working Group is responsible
for the implementation of, and compliance
with the Health and Safety Policy and Safety
Management System. It undertakes continuous
monitoring of health and safety practices,
including incidents, inspections and training
tracked across the Group. Legal guidance and
further support is provided through local
health and safety consultants and lawyers who
provide regulatory assurance support to the
Group alongside our internal expertise.

Current year activity

The health and safety of the workforce
remains a key priority in locations we operate
in, including when working away from the
office. We continue to closely monitor our
development sites with in-person inspections
in order to ensure a safe and compliant
working environment and detailed further on
page 42. Thisrisk is expected to remain a key
focus going forward.

LINK TO STRATEGY:
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE AND DISCIPLINED CAPITAL
ALLOCATION

CHANGE IN 2022:

Decreased No change Increased

OVERSEEN BY:
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE, TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE

LINK TO STRATEGY:
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

OVERSEEN BY:
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE, OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

FURTHER INFORMATION:

The market outlook is detailed in the Chief Executive’s
statement on page 13.

CHANGE IN 2022:

Decreased No change Increased

FURTHER INFORMATION:
Approach to health and safety on page 31.
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5. Environmental sustainability and climate change

Failure to anticipate and respond to the impact
of both physical and transitional risks from
climate change on our business is both a
principal and emerging risk. The likelihood of
increased severity and unpredictability of
acute weather-related events, and the rise of
chronic climate stressors may result in more
frequent and/or prolonged damage to our
buildings causing disruption and increased
costs to SEGRO and our customers. Non-
compliance with changing laws, regulations,
policies, taxation and obligations cause loss
of value to the Group. Not keeping pace with
social attitudes and customer behaviours and
preferences whereby SEGRO may need to
alter the design and build and/or energy
provision of their assets could additionally
cause reputational damage and reduce the
attractiveness and value of our assets.

Climate-related risks, their time horizon
and their management and mitigation are
detailed further on pages 80-84.

Mitigations

The Responsible SEGRO framework sets

out our corporate responsibility strategy, as
well as medium and long-term commitments.
The Responsible SEGRO Driving Group is
responsible for overseeing the delivery of the
strategy and regularly reports to the Executive
Committee and Board onimplementation of
strategy and progress against our stated
sustainability targets. Our dedicated
Sustainability teamis in place to support

the operations teams in managing our
day-to-day response to environmental risks
including the Technical Implementation
Group (who are responsible for developments).

Each significant investment appraisal
includes environmental considerations
such as measures taken to increase energy
efficiency and reduce carbon emissions.

A climate resilience study has been
undertaken to assess the medium and
long-term physical risks to our portfolio as
detailed further on page 80. Group and local
teams regularly keep up to date with new laws
and regulations as they become relevant
through regular training and use of a panel
of expert advisors.

Current year activity

Our ‘Responsible SEGRO’ framework
continues to prioritise our commitment to
net-zero carbon by 2030 underpinned by our
Mandatory Sustainability policy for reducing
our emissions. This risk is expected to continue
to have increased prominence going forward.
See pages 79-80 for details of further actions
during 2022.

LINK TO STRATEGY:
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE AND DISCIPLINED CAPITAL
ALLOCATION

OVERSEEN BY:
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE; OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

CHANGE IN 2022:

Decreased No change Increased

FURTHER INFORMATION:

Responsible SEGRO, Carbon Climate Related disclosures on
pages 78-86.
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Principalrisks
continued

6. Development plan execution

The Group has an extensive current programme
and future pipeline of developments. The Group
could suffer significant financial losses from:

- Cost over-runs on larger, more complex
projects, for example, due to contractor
default or poor performance and
management;

- Increased construction costs (for example
from labour market changes or supply chain
pressures) leading to reduced or
uneconomic development yields;

- Above-appetite exposure to non-income
producing land, infrastructure and
speculatively developed buildings arising
from a sharp deterioration in occupier
demand and/or inappropriate land
acquisition due diligence (including energy
accessibility); and

- Market competition reducing access to
suitable land bank and/or increasing
acquisition costs.

Mitigations

Our appetite for exposure to non-income
producing assets (including land, infrastructure
and speculative developments) is monitored
closely, for example, when acquisition decisions

are being made by the Investment Committee.

We retain a high level of optionality in our
future development programme including at
the point of land acquisition, commitment to
infrastructure and commitment to building.
Pricing of land acquisitions and the
consequential impact on returns are
considered by the Investment Committee
when assessing appraisals.

The development programme remains
weighted towards pre-let opportunities.

Therisk of cost overruns or supply chainissues
is, at leastin part, mitigated by using our
experienced development teams and a panel of
trusted advisors and contractors and typically
using fixed price contracts. We work
collaboratively with our contractors and remain
in constant dialogue to identify possible issues
and possible solutions ahead of time.

The risk of contractor default is mitigated by using
adiversified selection of companies which have
beenthrough a rigorous onboarding process and
closely monitoring their financial strength. Our
short development lead-times enable a quick
response to changing market conditions.

Our Partnership Development team engages
with stakeholders as part of SEGRO’s social
responsibilities and also support planning
processes.

Current year activity

During the period pressures in the construction
supply chain for certain materials and labour
were experienced and we continue to work
proactively alongside our contractors to mitigate
any undue delay and cost increases as far as is
possible. More generally, as market conditions
have evolved, as detailed in the Portfolio
Strategy Execution risk above, we have
reassessed our investment criteriain response.
Going forward, with an expected continuing
volatile economic environment, similar
pressures are likely to continue as we balance
the needs of our contractors and customers.

LINK TO STRATEGY:
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE AND DISCIPLINED CAPITAL
ALLOCATION

OVERSEEN BY:
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE; INVESTMENT COMMITTEE;
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

CHANGE IN 2022:

Decreased No change Increased

FURTHER INFORMATION:
Development update on pages 52-53.
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/. Financing strategy

The Group could suffer an acute liquidity
or solvency crisis, financial loss or financial
distress as a result of a failure in the design
or execution of its financing strategy.

Such an event may be caused by a number
of factorsincluding a failure to obtain debt or
equity funding (for example, due to market
disruption or rating downgrade); having an
inappropriate debt structure (including
leverage level, debt maturity, interest rate

or currency exposure); poor forecasting;
defaulting on loan agreements as a result

of abreach of financial or other covenants;
or counterparty default.

Mitigations

The Group's financing strategy is aligned with
our long-term business strategy, the Medium-

Term Plan and our risk appetite. Our Treasury
policy defines key policy parameters and

controls to support execution of the strategy.

The Group regularly reviews its changing

financing requirements in light of opportunities

and market conditions and maintains a good
long-term relationship with a wide range of
sources of finance.

Funding requirements and liquidity are closely
monitored and there is substantial headroom

onallour financial covenants.

Current year activity

The Group has demonstrated strong access
to financial markets as seen by our funding
activity (as detailed in the Financial Review),
despite the uncertain economic backdrop and
volatile capital markets. The Group (including
its largest joint venture SELP) now has a
meaningful presence in the Euro bond market
as well asin the sterling bond and US Private
Placement markets leaving us well positioned
financially to fund activity in line with our
strategy priorities. The Group continues to
use fixed rate debt and relevant derivatives

to mitigate against the risk of interest rates
increasing both now and going forward.

8. Legal, political and regulatory

The Group could fail to anticipate legal,
political, tax or other regulatory changes,
leading to a significant unforeseen financial
or reputational impact.

In general, legal, regulatory and tax matters
present medium- to long-term risks with a
medium likelihood of causing significant harm
to the Group.

Political risks could impact business
confidence and conditions in the short and
longer terms.

Mitigations

Legal and regulatory risks are reviewed
regularly by internal specialists as well as

the Executive Committee. Corporate heads
of function regularly consult with external
advisers, attend industry and specialist
briefings, and sit on key industry bodies such
as EPRA and the British Property Federation,
as well as maintaining relationships with
their peers.

We continue to closely monitor the taxation
regulations with our advisors to ensure
changes which may impact the Group or our
customers are identified and addressed, in a
timely fashion. The Group's tax compliance is
managed by an experienced internal tax team.
REIT and SIIC tax regime compliance is
demonstrated at least bi-annually. Compliance
with joint venture and associates shareholder
agreements is managed by experienced

property operations, finance and legal
employees. Where necessary, comprehensive
governance and compliance arrangements
are in place, including specific management
operating manuals.

Current year activity

The legal and regulatory environment remains
dynamic. In response to the conflict in Ukraine,
a series of new sanctions were introduced,
including by the UK, EU and US. Aninternal
working group was created which met regularly
to monitor both the impact of the crisis on the
Group and its employees, as well as to ensure
that the business continues to comply with
relevant sanctions laws as well as considering
the legal consequences of any energy
shortages. The working group took advice
fromits external lawyers on these matters.

In addition, we continue to monitor the
divergence of UK and EU laws, including in
respect of sanctions and potential privacy
laws. We remain vigilant for other future
changesin the legal, regulatory and political
environment.

As governments continue to assess the
economic impact of the pandemic, the
likelihood of changes to taxation regulations
increases. We have enhanced the skills and
expertise of our tax team as they work closely
with local internal teams and external advisors
across each of our jurisdictions.

LINK TO STRATEGY:
DISCIPLINED CAPITAL ALLOCATION

OVERSEEN BY:
EXECUTIVECOMMITTEE

LINK TO STRATEGY:
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

OVERSEEN BY:
EXECUTIVECOMMITTEE

CHANGE IN 2022:

Decreased No change Increased

FURTHER INFORMATION:
Financial Review on pages 58-59.

CHANGE IN 2022:

Decreased No change Increased

FURTHER INFORMATION:

Our Governance Framework
on page 105.
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9. People and talent

The performance of the business could be
impaired due to SEGRO:

- Not having the appropriate culture,
organisational structure and skilled people to
deliver its strategy and its strategic priorities;

- Failing to attract, motivate, retain and
develop diverse talent as part of our
Nurturing talent ambition; and

- Failing to prepare adequate succession
plans.

Mitigations

We review talent, succession planning and
key personrisk at least annually with the
Executive Committee and the Board. We
review compensation in our largest countries
annually with a third party to ensure that we
have appropriate salary rangesin place. We
have a variety of incentive tools that can be
applied flexibly during the year to retain at risk,
talented employees. We have created a people
planning process with senior leaders so that
we can proactively plan for resourcing and
development needs.

Our ambition is to build a more sustainable
business, a key feature of which is to become
more inclusive and diverse, as set out in our
Responsible SEGRO framework. We continue
to use a programme of work which is being
guided by the National Equality Standard
framework and are evolving and embedding
our Agile Working policy.

Current year activity

During the year, the market for talent has
changed as the property cycle has shifted. The
competition for talent, which was until recently
very intense, has eased off as economic
conditions have become more uncertain. Our
focus will continue to ensure we have the right
resources and skills in place in an appropriate
organisational structure and platforms to
support our strategic priorities, particularly

in light of our future growth plans.

Our new Group HR Director has expanded the
team which supports this function. We review
talent, succession planning and key person
risk at least annually at senior level. During

the year we have created a people planning
process with senior leaders so that we can
proactively plan for resourcing and
development needs.

SEGRO has continued to Investin local
communities and environments as part of
Responsible SEGRO Framework including
delivery of the Community Investment Plans
(CIPs) and employment projects (for example
Pathways to Property) which is managed by
the Partnership Development team. We are
continuing to promote our Agile Working as

a part of our employment offer.

10. Operational delivery

The Group's ability to protect its reputation,
revenues and shareholder value could be
damaged by operational failures such as:
major customer default, supply chain failure
or the structural failure of one of our assets.

This risk previously included details now in the
separate People and Talent risk (discussed in
the previous principal risk).

Mitigations

The Group maintains a strong focus on
Operational Excellence. The Executive,
Operations, and Technology Committees
regularly monitor the range of risks to property
management, organisational effectiveness
and customer management.

We ensure our tenant base is broad and, as
far as possible, has a strong covenant which
we closely monitor. We undertake an annual
strategic customer survey which shapes our
customer engagement plans.

We maintain adequate insurances across
the Group.

Specialist employees, under the oversight

of our Technology Committee, continue to
ensure the resilience and security of our
technology using controls, training, testing
and audits. We maintain suitable processes
and controls in respect of business continuity
and IT disaster recovery.

Current year activity

During the period we continue to have
enhanced engagement with our customers
in light of the volatile economic conditions
and have continued to consider customer
concentration risks.

We work closely with our supply chain and
have undertaken a review of key suppliers
to ensure suitable alternatives are in place
should one fail. Critical suppliers include
those contractors and, by association their
sub-contractors (detailed more fully in the
Development Plan and Execution risk) and
IT suppliers. Furthermore, we continue to
ensure our suppliers are paid promptly.

LINK TO STRATEGY:
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE AND EFFICIENT CAPITAL AND
CORPORATE STRUCTURE

OVERSEEN BY:
EXECUTIVECOMMITTEE

LINK TO STRATEGY:
OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

OVERSEEN BY:
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE; TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE;
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE

CHANGE IN 2022:
——

NEW

FURTHER INFORMATION:
Nurturing talent section on pages 39-41.

CHANGE IN 2022:

Decreased No change Increased

FURTHER INFORMATION:

Our Business Model on pages 24-30, Technology section on
page 29 and Asset Management Update on pages 50-51.
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Viability Statement

Confirmation of viability

The Directors have considered the Group's
prospects, including reference to the Group's
principal risks, to form the basis of our
assessment of short-term and longer-term
viability. The process for conducting the
assessment is the responsibility of the Chief
Financial Officer and is overseen by the Audit
Committee.

The Directors confirm that they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be
able to continue in operation and has adequate
resources to meet its liabilities as they fall due
over the next five years.

The assessment of viability is splitinto short-
term and longer-term time horizons.

Short-term assessment

The short-term assessment included
consideration of our going concern
assessment and a review of key controls
around liquidity management.

Management regularly review the Group'’s
liquidity position and operating results. In
addition, key treasury metrics including
financial covenants are reviewed by the
Executive Committee on a quarterly basis.

Longer-term assessment

The period assessed for the longer termis

the same five-year time horizon as covered by
the Group’s annual rolling five-year strategic
financial plan. This is considered to be the
optimum balance between our need to plan for
the long term and the progressively unreliable
nature of forecasting in later years, particularly
given the historically cyclical nature of the
property industry.

The strategic financial plan comprises a
five-year Medium-Term Plan (MTP) and an Asset
Plan, within the context of macroeconomic and
property market outlooks provided by external
advisers and SEGRO expertise.

The central corporate team and each of the
Business Units provide a forecast for revenue
and costs for the business for the MTP and for
total returns from each asset for the Asset Plan.
They also provide forecasts on potential
development activity from the existing land
bank and their expectations of acquisitions
and disposals.

This process generates a five-year forecast for
capital expenditure and associated funding
requirements, netincome, net asset values and
cash flows. The Directors confirm that they
have no reason to expect a step-change in the
Group's viability immediately following the
five-year period assessed.

In addition to the robust ongoing assessment
and management of the risks facing the Group,
as already set out in this section, the Group has
stress tested the MTP. The stress tests consider
the risks that could either individually, or in
aggregate, threaten the viability of the Group,
represented by the breach of key financial ratios
and covenants. Therisks are based on an
individual event or combination of events
occurring, using historic data (for example
the acute property valuation decline in 2007~
2009) and forward-looking probability analysis
where available.

The following scenarios were applied
cumulatively to the MTP in 2022:

- Zero market rental (ERV) growth
throughout the period: the mainimpacts
are lower asset values and adjusted NAV
throughout the period, with earnings growth
reduced in later years due to fewer
completions.

A scenario where, in addition to the
previous scenario, occupier demand for
new space slows, manifested in reduced
take-up of standing assets and
development levels: the mainimpacts are
reduced earnings growth throughout the
period (primarily from fewer development
completions), while gearing levels benefit
from lower capital expenditure.

Overview Strategic Report Governance

- Ascenario where, in addition to the two
previous scenarios, capital value decline,
manifested through a100bp increase in
yields: the main impacts are lower asset
values throughout the period, causing
leverage torise.

None of the scenarios caused financial
covenants to be breached during the period,
with gearing remaining comfortably below 160
per cent and interest cover well above 1.25 times.

In addition to the scenarios above, we undertook
reverse stress testing based on the MTP and
the business position at the end of 2022.

- Property valuations would need to fall by
around 48 per cent from their 31 December
2022 valuesto reach the gearing covenant
threshold of 160 per cent.

- Net property rental income would need to fall
by around 71 per cent from 2022 levels to
reach the interest cover covenant threshold
of 1.25times.

- Arise of at least five percentage pointsin the
Group’s average interest rates towards the
middle of the MTP period would have to occur
to cause an interest cover covenant breach,
assuming current levels of fixed rate interest
and protection from interest rate caps.

Outside the MTP, the following viability risks
were also considered:

- A10 per cent movementin foreign
exchange rates: due to long-term hedging
arrangements in place, foreign exchange
movements are not considered a material
risk to the Group’s viability.

An inability to refinance maturing debt: the
nearest material refinancing requirementisin
2025 (SELP) and 2026 (SEGRO), so therisk to
the Group’s viability is towards the middle
and end of the period. We tend to refinance
long-term debt around 12 monthsin advance
of maturities and, should relationship bank
lending, equity and bond markets be
unavailable, options to raise liquidity include
reductions in capital expenditure and
increased asset disposals.

Financial Statements Further Information

- A sustained interruption to the Group's
business continuity: a qualitative
assessment of SEGRO's ability to operate
with compromised workspace and IT
structure is carried out each year, with regular
live scenario tests undertaken by key
members of staff with the help of external
advisers to ensure responses are rehearsed
and mitigations are in place. No material
threat to SEGRO’s viability was identified.

- Climate-related threats to the portfolio:
working with the Savills Sustainability team,
we conducted a climate resilience study to
assess the acute and chronic physical risks to
our portfolio spanning a period from current
day to0 2100. Heat and drought stress present
as the most significant emerging chronic risks
but assets at risk represent only between 2
and 3 per cent of the portfolio rental value.
Therefore, we do not consider suchrisks to be
athreat to the viability of the Group. Further
information can be found on pages 80 and 81.

The scenarios set out are hypothetical and
severe for the purpose of creating outcomes
which have the ability to threaten the viability
of the Group. We also note that, in the event of
a severe threat to liquidity, various options are
available to the Group to maintain viability.
These options include reduction of any
non-committed capital expenditure and
acquisitions, selling assets, or reducing cash
dividends (including the use of scrip dividends).

We are optimistic about the longer-term
prospects of our business based on our prime,
sustainable portfolio, high levels of occupancy
let to a diverse range of customers onlong
average lease lengths, backed by strong
balance sheet with long debt maturity and no
near-term refinancing requirements. These are
supported by the long-term trends in the
warehouse and industrial real estate sector of
greater e-commerce penetration of retail sales,
supply chain reconfiguration and increasing
urbanisation across Europe (see Market Drivers
on pages 16 and 17 for more information).
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Section 172 statement
Companies Act 2006 (s172)

Each of the Directors is mindful of their duties
under s172 to run the Company for the benefit
of its shareholders, andin doing so, to take into
account the long-term impact of any decisions
on stakeholder relationships and the impact of
the Company’s activities on the environment
whilst maintaining its reputation for high
standards of business conduct at all times.

The Company cannot operate in a vacuum.
We can only succeed if we conduct ourselves
in aresponsible manner and have positive
relationships with all of our stakeholders.

Who are our stakeholders and how are they
relevant to our strategy?

The Board has identified the Company’s key
stakeholders as those who we have animpact
on -employees, suppliers, communities - and
those who have animpact on us - customers
and investors.

Without any of these key stakeholders, we
simply would not have a business:

- our people deliver our strategy, nothing
would happen without their hard work
and dedication;

- our suppliers provide us with everything
we need to offer buildings and services to
our customers and to keep the Company
running efficiently;

- our relationship with our local communities
means that we are good neighbours and
support each other. We need the support of
local communities to gain approvals for our
developments. We deliver long-term
economic and social benefitsin the
communities where we operate;

- ourinvestors rely on us to invest their money
wisely, to grow the business and deliver good
returns; and

- our customers are at the heart of our business
purpose. The space we provide enables
them to deliver an extraordinary range of
goods and services to their customers.

Underpinning these stakeholder relationships
is a culture which promotes high standards of
business ethics, is focused on along-term
sustainable strategy and which recognises
our responsibilities to the environment.

How does the Board engage with
stakeholders?

There are many engagement mechanisms with
these stakeholders within the business, as well
as at Board level. The Directors engage directly
with as many stakeholders as they can but given
the number of stakeholders, who are spread
across multiple geographies, engagement
often takes place at the operational level.

We explain how the business engages with our
stakeholders throughout the Annual Report,
the page references are included on this page,
while in the Governance section on pages 97
to 103 we explain the Board's involvement.

Overview
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Where else you can read about stakeholder
engagement and our approach to s172

Employees Chief Executive's statement 113
Our business model 27-31
Nurturing talent 39
Governance 98-99
Remuneration 136
Customers Who we create space for 5
Our business model 26
Governance 100
Suppliers Our business model 28
Governance 102
Investors Our business model 30
Governance 102-103
Environment Responsible SEGRO 33-38
High standards Health and safety 31
of conduct Business conduct and ethics 41
Governance 103
Community Our business model 30
Responsible SEGRO 44-46
Governance 101
Long-term Our strategy 18-19
Our business model 24-25
Risk management 64-67
Viability statement 75
Governance - Strategy Day 94
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Non-financial information and sustainability statement

‘ Overview

Strategic Report

This table signposts related non-financial information in this report and further reading on our website.

Governance

Financial Statements

Further Information

Reporting requirement Policies Website (www.SEGRO.com) Referencein 2022 Annual Report
1. Environmental matters Responsible SEGRO Championing low-carbon growth 35-38
2.Employees Code of Business Conduct and Ethics About - Policies Suppliers 28
Governance 103
Human Rights Policy About - Policies
Our Purpose & Values Our Purpose - Our Values What drives performance 6
Nurturing talent 39
Governance 95
Diversity & Inclusion Policy About - Policies
Group Health & Safety Policy About - Policies Health and Safety 31
3.Humanrights Human Rights Policy About - Policies Suppliers 28
Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking About - Slavery and Human Trafficking Directors Report 148
Statement
Anti-Slavery and Human Trafficking Policy About - Slavery and Human Trafficking
Modern Slavery and Labour Standards About - Slavery and Human Trafficking
Supplier Code
4.Social Modern Slavery and Labour Standards About - Slavery and Human Trafficking Suppliers 28
Supplier Code Directors’ Report 148
Human Rights Policy About - Policies
Group Health & Safety Policy About - Policies Health and Safety 31
Supplier Code of Conduct About - Policies Suppliers 28
5. Anti-corruption and anti-bribery Code of Business Conduct and Ethics About - Policies Nurturing talent 41
Governance 103
6.Business model About - Our Business Our business model 34
7. Principal risks and uncertainties Effective Risk Management 64-74
8.Non-financial key performance Investors - Investment Case - Non Financial Key Performance Indicators 22-23

indicators

Key Performance Indicators



https://www.segro.com/responsible-segro
https://www.segro.com/about/policies
https://www.segro.com/about/policies
https://www.segro.com/our-purpose/our-values
https://www.segro.com/about/policies
https://www.segro.com/about/policies
https://www.segro.com/about/policies
https://www.segro.com/about/modern-slavery-and-human-trafficking
https://www.segro.com/about/modern-slavery-and-human-trafficking
https://www.segro.com/about/modern-slavery-and-human-trafficking
https://www.segro.com/about/modern-slavery-and-human-trafficking
https://www.segro.com/about/policies
https://www.segro.com/about/policies
https://www.segro.com/about/policies
https://www.segro.com/about/policies
https://www.segro.com/about/our-business
https://www.segro.com/investors/investment-case/non-financial-key-performance-indicators
https://www.segro.com/investors/investment-case/non-financial-key-performance-indicators
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

We are proud of the part that our buildings

play in supporting our customers to achieve
efficiencies and carbon reductions throughout
their supply chain, and thisis reflected in
SEGRO's comprehensive approach to carbon
management. SEGRO's Scope 1and 2
emissions (our ‘corporate’ emissions) account
forlessthan1per cent of our total (Scopes 1to
3) carbon emissions. Customer energy use in
our buildings accounts for 41 per cent of total
emissions and the carbon emissions related to
the construction of new buildings (known as
‘embodied carbon’) represent a further 41 per
cent. Thisis why SEGRO'’s two key carbon
reduction metrics are our corporate and
customer emissions and our embodied carbon
intensity, and why our performance on these
two metricsis incorporated into the annual
bonus of all SEGRO employees.

We have made good progress on both
measures. We have delivered a 3 per cent
absolute reductionin our corporate and
customer emissions in 2022, despite growing
the portfolio area by almost 4 per cent, which
means we are a full year ahead of plan on our
progress towards our science-based target.
This reflects our regional teams'’ efforts to
support and work with our customers to deliver
carbon reductions. More of our customers are
sharing their energy data with us than ever
before, meaning we have actual data covering
68 per cent of our floor area (2021: 54 per cent)
improving the accuracy of our emissions figures.

We are also ahead of our target to reduce
the embodied carbon intensity of our
developments, which has improved by 10 per
cent this year to 353 kgCO,e per sq m of new
development (2021: 391kgCO,e). Our
development teams and contractors have
applied innovative approaches to materials
and design to reduce the carbon intensity of
our buildings across their full life cycle. We
estimate that this reduction in intensity has
avoided over 30,000 tonnes of embodied
carbon emissions from our 2022
developments when compared with the
carbon intensity of our 2021 projects.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting
(SECR)

The SECR legislation only covers our corporate
energy use which accounts for less than 1 per
cent of SEGRO's total emissions. For our full
Scopes1to 3 carbon footprint, and all of the
metrics we are tracking on our path to net-zero
carbon - please see our Responsible SEGRO
Report and Data Pack.

In line with best practice, we report both a
‘market-based’ and ‘location-based'’ figure for
emissions from electricity consumption. The
market-based approach accounts for SEGRO's
investment into low-carbon energy tariffs,
whereas the ‘location-based’ approach uses
national grid averages (see the notes to the
table below for more on location/market). We
are pleased that our continuing expansion of
renewable electricity tariffs across our portfolio
has resulted in a 23 per cent reduction in our
market-based carbon intensity to 2.3 kgCO,e
per sqm of SEGRO-responsible floor area, as
can be seenin the table below.

SLR Consulting provide limited independent
assurance to ASAE3000.

For more details of the independent assurance see
segro.com/responsible-segro/reports-downloads
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Global SECR-relevant GHG emissions in metric tonnes CO,e

Emissions from: 2021 2021-UK 2021-EU 2022 2022 - UK 2022 -EU
Scope Temissions -

combustion of fuels 1,278 187 1,091 2,329 402 1,927
Scope 2 emissions -

purchased energy (location-

based)* 2,859 517 2,342 4,835 986 3,849
Scope 2 emissions -

purchased energy (market-

based)** 2,942 345 2,597 1,662 862 800
Scope 3 - Business Travel 84 67 18 42 40 2
Total SECR carbon emissions

(location-based) tCO,e 4,221 77 3,450 7,206 1,428 5,778
Responsible floor area sgm 1,445,334 1,759,566

Carbonintensity (kgCO,e/sq

m) - location-based 29 41

Carbonintensity (kgCO,e/sq

m) - market-based 30 2.3

Total Energy Use (kWh) 18,316,350 22,185,460

* Thelocation-based approach to calculating Scope 2 emissions (emissions from electricity consumption) uses national grid average
emissions factors which reflect the make-up of a country’s electricity supply between fossil fuels and renewables. SECR legislation

requires that alocation-based figure be reported.

** The market-based approach to calculating Scope 2 emissions reflects the carbon intensity of the electricity tariffs SEGRO procure.

Reporting Methodology

The SECR figures above have been prepared
in accordance with the GHG Protocol to
discharge our regulatory obligation to report
greenhouse gas emissions pursuant to section
7 of the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report
and Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013 and
the Companies (Directors’ Report), and
Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and
Carbon Report) Regulations 2018; the latter
commonly referred to as Streamlined Energy
and Carbon Reporting.

We report our data using an operational
control approach to define our organisational
boundary and have reported emissions
following both the location-based and
market-based approach, using the IEA residual
emission factors for any energy tariffs that are
not low-carbon. We have chosen ‘responsible
floor area’ as our intensity metric, which is all
floor area with Scope 1and 2 emissionsin the
reporting year. The business travel figures
above cover ‘grey fleet only, which is expensed
mileage for employee-owned vehicles.

‘Total energy use’ covers electricity, fuels
(including transport fuels) and district heating
converted to kWh units. Our Responsible SEGRO
Report and Data Pack, and a detailed description
of our methodology, can be found at segro.
com/responsible-segro/reports-downloads.
The 2022 greenhouse gas emissions and
energy use data above are for the period
10October 2021to 30 September 2022

(2021:1 October 2020 to 30 September 2021).
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Climate-related financial disclosures

As a leading owner, manager and developer
of industrial and warehouse assets in Europe,
our sustainability and financial strength is
reliant upon an effective and rigorous risk
management framework. Our properties
span the UK and Continental Europe and are
therefore exposed to a variety of effects from
achanging climate. We believe that these
climate-related risks, if unmitigated, present
athreat to society as well as to our business
operations and financial strength over the
coming decades.

We have made good progress on our strategy
to reduce the carbon intensity of our business,
particularly reducing the embodied carbon
intensity of our development activities and
increasing our solar energy generation
capacity. We have made progress, albeit
slower than hoped, onincreasing the visibility
of our Scope 3 customer emissions: in most
leases, we have little or no legal right to be
informed about such emissions, so progress
in this area relies on adopting our “green” lease
on new lettings or persuading our customers
to share their energy data.

There have been no material changes to the
nature of the business over the past twelve
months which would require a review to our
baseline metrics or future targets.

We believe this disclosure is consistent with
the recommendations and recommended
disclosures of the Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), including
the “Guidance for All Sectors”. It sets out how
SEGRO incorporates climate-related risks and
opportunities into governance, strategy, risk
management, metrics and targets, and how
we are responding to stakeholder expectations,
national regulations and sector-wide best
practice. Thisis an area of constant evolution
and we intend to continue addressing the
known weaknesses in our data and improving

the disclosure of our activity and performance.

Governance

Governance plays a key contributing role

to the effective delivery of strategy and
SEGRO has a clear governance structure
with a single Board comprising an independent
Chair, six independent Non-Executive
Directors and three Executive Directors

(asat 31 December 2022).

Board oversight of climate-related risks

and opportunities

The Board is responsible for setting the
strategic direction of the Company to ensure
its long-term success which includes the
delivery and integration of Responsible SEGRO
and its targets. Specifically, the Board has
oversight of climate-related performance, risks
and opportunities and takes into consideration
all elements of Responsible SEGRO, including
climate-related risks and opportunities, when
reviewing and guiding on annual budget and
long-term planning matters as well as major
strategic and investment decisions.

The Board has access to advice relating to
climate-related risks and opportunities from
internal and external bodies including the
in-house Sustainability Team, CBRE which
values the portfolio, Longevity Partners as
environmental and energy consultants and
SLR Consulting as providers of partial
assurance of Group environmental data,
among others.

The Chief Executive has overall responsibility
for the Responsible SEGRO strategy. The Chief
Operating Officer is responsible for climate-
related risks and opportunities as they may
relate to the portfolio.

The table below outlines the ways in which
Board and Management Committees provide
oversight for SEGRQO'’s climate change-related
strategy and targets. More information on the
remit and activities of these committees can
be found on pages 104-108.
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Governance: action during 2022

- The Board received updates on Responsible

SEGRO actions from members of the

Responsible SEGRO Driving Group (RSDG),

including progress on reducing carbon

emissions, in addition to updates on specific
projects;

The Board received training from senior

representatives of CBRE's Sustainability and

Valuation teams focused on the changing

nature of environmental regulations and

disclosure requirements and the potential
impacts sustainability requirements could
have on asset values;

The Board received regular updates on plans

to retrofit solar photovoltaic panels on

existing buildings.

- The Remuneration Committee approved
the initial targets relating to the Responsible
SEGRO annual bonus metrics for Executive
Directors and all employees, of which half
are related to reducing carbon emissions
throughout the business;

- The Operations Committee considered,
and the Executive Committee approved,
the introduction of a new Mandatory
Sustainability Policy (see Responsible SEGRO
Report at www.segro.com/Responsible-
SEGRO for more detail on the Policy).

Strategy

As along-term property owner, we need to
ensure that our buildings are fit for purpose for
the future. One of the ways we do this is to build
relatively generic buildings, suited to more than
one customer. This ensures a longer lifespan
for the building as well as reducing the risk of
vacancy and future refurbishment costs.

Financial Statements Further Information

The Responsible SEGRO Framework sets out
how we integrate environmental and social
considerations into our corporate strategy
through three strategic priorities. The first
strategic priority sets out our approach to
reducing carbon emissions from our business
activities, committing SEGRO to being net-zero
carbon by 2030. This commitment includes
Scope 1and 2 emissions and the most material
elements of Scope 3 emissions including
Capital Goods (embodied carbon from
completed developments) and Downstream
Leased Assets (largely corporate emissions
and those from customers occupying our
buildings). In 2022, these accounted for 81 per
cent of our overall emissions.

Strategy: action during 2022
SEGRO completed a number of projects to
mitigate climate-related transition risks:

- Weintroduced mandatory “green” clauses
within all new leases. These require
customers to share their energy data with us
and, where possible and financially viable, to
use certified renewable electricity tariffs to
supply their unit. Buildings for which SEGRO
has responsibility for energy supply
automatically adopt such tariffs;

- We introduced a new Sustainability Policy
(see page 35 for details) applicable to
developments and refurbishments approved
from April 2022 onwards which establishes
minimum requirements including for
developments to be rated BREEAM
‘Excellent’ or better and receive an Energy
Performance Certificate (EPC) rating of
B-grade or better. This policy is an integral
element of the strategy to improve SEGRO’s
sustainability performance, focusing
particularly on the metrics presentedin the
Metrics and Targets section (pages 85 and 86);

- Weinvested in SEGRQO’s Group Sustainability
Team, hiring a new Director of Sustainability
and a new Sustainability Manager to drive the
decarbonisation strategy element of
Responsible SEGRO. The Sustainability Team
reports to the Managing Director of Group
Operations who, in turn, reports to the Chief
Operating Officer, the Board member
responsible for climate-related risks and
opportunities as they pertain to our portfolio;
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Climate-related financial disclosures
continued

- We enhanced our analysis of climate change
risk, working with the Savills Sustainability
team in conjunction with data from global
reinsurer Munich Re to improve our visibility
inthisimportant area. In 2023, we intend to
integrate this new, more detailed dataset and
analysis within our annual asset planning
exercise and the investment process.

Identification of climate-related risks and
opportunities over the short, medium and
long term and theirimpact on SEGRO'’s
business, strategy and financial planning
Materiality analysis of physical risk

During the year, working with Savills
Sustainability in conjunction with climate
change physical risk and scenario data from
global reinsurer Munich Re, we have carried out
anew climate change physical risk study to
assess the acute and chronic physical risks to
our portfolio by geography, by Representative
Concentration Policy (RCP) scenario and
across four time horizons:

- Current: provides a baseline for acute and
chronic physical risks to the portfolio;

- 2030: primarily acute risks which may
need to be addressed immediately, such
as River Flood;

- 2050: comfortably within the lifespan of a
typical building (60 years) and allows us to
assess whether an existing property requires
action to mitigate or adapt to the (primarily
chronic) risks;

- 2100: assessment of chronic risks to a
location informing long-term investment
decision making.

For this study, the physical risk from hazards
under RCP 2.6 (less than 2°C warming by 2100),
4.5 (3°C warming by 2100) and RCP 8.5 (4-5°C
warming by 2100) were modelled on 197 estates,
covering 99 per cent of our floor area (at 100
per cent) and rental value (based on SEGRO
wholly-owned properties and its share of
properties in joint ventures and associates).
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Governance of climate-related risks and opportunities

The Board
Oversight of climate-related strategy and performance

Audit Committee

Oversight of climate-related disclosure within
the Annual Report

Nomination Committee
Considers Sustainability- and climate
change-related experience of new
and existing Board members

Remuneration Committee

Sets, monitors and approves
compensation and targets related
to Sustainability performance, including
reducing Group carbon emissions

Executive Committee
Setting climate change-related strategy and targets

Operations Committee

Implementation of climate-related process and policy

Investment Committee
Ensuring capital
expenditure is consistent
with climate-related
targets

Risk Committee
Monitoring climate
change-related risks and
emerging risks

Responsible SEGRO
Driving Group
Monitoring of delivery of
Responsible SEGRO
strategy

Technical
Implementation Group
Focus on development
policy and improvement
assets

Operational
Implementation Group
Focus on policy and
improvement of existing

The level of exposure risk was judged based on
the likelihood of the specific physical hazards
as modelled under a range of scenarios and
time periods. More detailed information on the
analysis can be found on our website at
www.SEGRO.com/Responsible-SEGRO.

The SEGRO portfolio has some High and

Very High exposure risk to River Flood and
Precipitation Stress under the current baseline
and three future scenarios. However, changes
between the current baseline and future time
periods under the three scenarios are relatively
limited. The lack of incidents and insurance
claims related to such events across the
portfolio suggests a resilience to current
baseline hazards.

Heat and Drought Stress present as the most
significant emerging chronic climate-related
hazards across all three RCP scenarios,
although assets exposed represent only
between 2 and 3 per cent of rental value. In
terms of change from current baselines, both
of these hazards show potentially significant
percentage increases indicating that asset
adaptive measures likely to become more
importantin this area. The absolute exposure
risk to Drought Stress and Heat Stress is
primarily concentrated in SEGRO’s Southern
European portfolio, specifically our assetsin
Italy, Spain and southern France.
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Climate change physical exposure risk at asset level based on RCP 8.5 and RCP 2.6 by 2050

Scenario Floorspace
Hazard Metric (RCP, Year) (at100%) ERV (atshare) Markets most affected
River Flood 1in100-year 8.5,2050 5% 5% Asset-specific, including
return period>0  (Undefended) London Airports, inland
port assets (Hamburg,
Gennevilliers),
Netherlands
Precipitation ‘High"and'Very 8.5,2050 5% 2% Northern Italy assets
Stress High'Risk
26,2050 5% 2% Northern Italy assets
Drought Stress ‘High’and'Very  8.5,2050 2% 2% Primarily assetsin Spain
High' Risk with modest exposure
in Northern Italy
2.6,2050 1% 0% Primarily assets in Spain
Heat Stress ‘High"and'Very 8.5,2050 7% 3% Southern France,
High' Risk Northern Italy and Spain
2.6,2050 5% 2% Southern France,

Northern Italy and Spain

The table above shows the modelled climate
change physical exposure risk metrics and
outcomes based on percentage of floor area
and rental value at risk based on the worst-case
scenario (RCP 8.5,2050) and the best-case
scenario (RCP 2.6, 2050). Note that River Flood
as a hazard was not modelled under RCP 2.6.

Materiality analysis of transition risk

We work with our stakeholders (primarily our
customers, suppliers and investors) and advisers
(primarily our valuers and environmental
consultants) to monitor, assess and prioritise
emerging climate change transition risks. We
judge materiality with reference to two main
risks: the environmental and reputational risk of
failing to meet our carbon emission reduction
targets and the financial risk of building
redundancy or being unable legally to lease
our buildings.

The assessment report and data above do
not consider any asset specific development
or refurbishment mitigation cycles. As part

of our sustainable development objectives,
assessments are carried out prior to
development and adaptation measures,
including but not limited to those listed below,
are carried out accordingly.

Risk Adaptation Techniques

- Rainwater harvesting systems forinternal building use andTandscaping

- Water efficient fixtures in line with BREEAM

- Thermal modelling undertaken and orientation/window positioning of the building
reviewed

- Onsite renewable energy generation installed to manage additional cooling
requirements

- External planting to provide shade, brise soleil, louvres, window tinting

Drought Stress and Heat
Stress (see R1below)

-Floodrisk assessmentto be carried out on development or retrospectively
- Sustainable urban drainage systems
- Retention schemes - ponds/basins

River Flood and
Precipitation Stress
(see R2 below)
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We believe that there are three main climate
change transition risks with the potential to
impact the Group financially:

- Environmental legislation: legislation
surrounding the sustainability performance
of commercial and non-commercial real
estateis likely to tightenin future as
governments pursue their commitments
under the Paris Agreement. We expect this
to take the form of regulations but also
increasingly some form of carbon tax to
encourage the use of lower carbon materials
and processes. The primary financial risk
relates to our ability to rent out our buildings
if they fall below emerging environmental
legislation. This drives our determination to
improve the energy performance of our
portfolio bothin new development and
through refurbishment, measured primarily

by increasing the floorspace rated B or better

by Energy Performance Certificates.
Customer behaviours and preferences:
our customers, particularly our largest,
international customers, increasingly expect

their premises to display high levels of energy
efficiency. Energy efficiency not only reduces

the operating costs of the building but also
helps them with their own environmental
and carbon reduction targets. The primary
financial risk relates to the appeal of our
buildings to customers if they are below
acceptable levels of energy efficiency and
wider environmental sustainability. We are
addressing this risk through improving the
EPC ratings of our portfolio, increasing the
amount of on-site renewable energy
generation, and improving the sustainability
credentials of our developments.

- Access to capital: investors are increasingly
discriminating between investment
opportunities based on sustainability
credentials. The primary financial risk relates
to reduced availability and higher cost of
capital for companies which do not show
strong performance and/or progress in
this area. Under our Green Finance
Framework, we have issued €2.9 billion of
Green ‘Use of Proceeds’ bonds in SEGRO
and SELP since 2021.

Governance
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Applying the analysis to strategic planning
In terms of decision making, we consider
climate-related issues within the following
time horizons:

- Short term: up to 12 months, in line with
the budget setting carried out annually
in the autumn;

- Mediumterm: up to 5 years, in line with the
Medium-Term Planning carried out annually
inthe autumn;

- Long term: up to 10 years, in line with capital
investment appraisal cash flows. We assume
a 60-year life span for our newly-developed
properties.

We are working on a financial impact
assessment of the physical climate-related
risks and opportunities. Given the relatively
small element of the portfolio exposed to the
physical risks, and the fact that our Southern
European portfolio contains some of our
newest buildings, we believe the overall
financial risk to be immaterial and longer
term. However, as part of our active asset
management and based on the scenario
analysis work above, we expect to improve
our visibility of the asset-level risks and
opportunities and their associated financial
implications. We recognise that thisis an area
for improvement within our climate-related
financial disclosure.
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Climate-related financial disclosures
continued
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Climate-related risks

Risk

Risk Horizon

Corporate Strategy

Financial Planning

R1 Chronic physical risk
Rising temperatures (including extreme
heat events)

Medium-term risks:

- Higher operating costs for customers and
SEGRO fromincreased cooling demand

- Greater investmentin cooling measures
inside and outside buildings

- Reduced wellbeing and productivity of
workforce

Mitigations integrated into developments and
refurbishments in properties in high-risk
geographies, including water conservation
through recycling of rain water and measures
to reflect heat and improve shading externally.

Measures incorporated into financial appraisals
of developments and refurbishments.

R2 Acute physicalrisk
Flood and precipitation

Short-termrisks:

- Increased insurance, maintenance and
repair costs from growing flood risk

- Increased investment in drainage solutions
and flood defences

- Negative impact on asset valuations

All new investments (both acquisitions
and developments) incorporate flood risk
assessments.

Measures taken to mitigate flood risk include
rainwater recycling and landscaping to
minimise run-off, and balancing pools to cater
for run-off from hard-standing areas.

Measures incorporated into financial
appraisals of acquisitions, refurbishments
and developments.

Valuers review assets for short-term physical
risks as part of twice-yearly appraisals.

R3 Policy & legal transitionrisk
Environmental legislation

Medium-term risks:

In the UK, the MEES (Minimum Energy
Efficiency Standard) regulations require
buildings to achieve a certain standard of
energy performance for them to be leased.
At a high level, by 2030, properties will
need to achieve a minimum Energy
Performance Certificate rating of ‘B’
before they can be leased.

Similar legislation isemerging across a
number of our other markets. The aim of
our corporate strategy is to be compliant
with such legislation well in advance of
the deadlines.

Properties which are un-rated or have an EPC
below B are expected to be upgraded when
they become vacant (approximately 60 per
cent of such buildings in the UK are expected
to be vacated by 2030).

Capex associated with refurbishment,
including improving energy efficiency, is
factored into short-term budgets and the
five-year Medium-Term Plan.

The estimated cost to upgrade the UK estate
to EPC rating ‘B’ or better is approximately
£82 million by 2030, much of which will be
absorbed within normal course refurbishment
capex. The figure has increased primarily due
to higher material and labour costs of
refurbishment, partly offset by work carried
out during 2022 to improve low-grade EPC
premises to at least B-grade.

R4 Markettransitionrisk
Customer behaviours

Short- and medium-term risks:

Customers expect to operate their properties
efficiently. There is growing evidence of rental
discount associated with buildings which
display poor sustainability credentials.

New developments and refurbishments
incorporate sustainability technologies suited
to their use and location, including (but not
limited to) solar panels (for customer use),
electric vehicle charging facilities, low-carbon
heating and initiatives to promote local
biodiversity and worker wellbeing.

Capex associated with refurbishment,
including improving energy efficiency, is
factored into short-term budgets and the
five-year Medium-Term Plan.

R5 Reputation transitionrisk
Access to capital

The Sustainable Finance Disclosure
Regulation (SFDR) imposes mandatory ESG
disclosure obligations for asset managers and
other financial markets participants.

We have established a Green Finance
Framework which complies with International
Capital Market Association and the Loan
Market Association principles. The Framework
sets out the investment criteria for deploying
and allocating the proceeds of green finance
instruments, including in energy efficient and
low-carbon buildings.

When a decision is made to raise capital,
consideration is given to whether the issue
should fallunder the Green Finance
Framework (e.g. a Green Bond).
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Climate-related opportunities
Opportunity Risk Horizon Corporate Strategy Financial Planning

O1 Energy &fuel
Onsite renewable energy generation

Short- and medium-term opportunity:
revenue and zero-emission energy potential
frominstalling PV panels on building roofs.

PV panels are installed on roofs where feasible
and all new developments are constructed
with roofs to support PV panelsif a full array

is not installed during construction. Energy
saving from solar PV is an important element
in creating net-zero carbon buildings on a full
life basis.

The costs of solar panels are incorporated in
new development and refurbishment capex.
We estimate at least an average 4 per cent yield
on cost for solar across our portfolio, with
higher yields in Southern European countries.
Revenues and cost savings, which are currently
asmall proportion of overall revenues, are split
between being incorporated into rents and
separately identified.

02 Adaptation & mitigation
Landscaping

Medium- and long-term opportunity:
nature-based carbon capture and storage.

We are reviewing more strategic use of estate
landscaping to plant additional trees and
shrubs to act as long-term carbon capture
while also improving the local environment for
the benefit of our customers and communities.

The cost of landscaping is incorporated within
development and refurbishment capex and is
immaterial compared to overall spend.

O3 Market & transition
Customer behaviour

Short- and medium-term opportunity:
installation of electric vehicle (EV) charging
infrastructure.

All new developments require installation
of EV chargersin at least 20 per cent of
parking spaces.

The cost of EV chargers sufficient to
comply with the SEGRO Sustainability Policy
is factored into all development and
refurbishment appraisals.




84 SEGROplc
Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Climate-related financial disclosures
continued

Risk management

Climate-related risks are identified and
assessed using our risk management
framework set out on page 64. Principal risks
are defined as those which could intolerably
exceed our risk appetite, considering both
inherent and residual impact, and cause
material harm to the Group.

Engagement with stakeholders

We engage with our stakeholders throughout
the year on many different topics, although

the subjects of climate change and the need

to reduce corporate and customer GHG
emissions have featured more prominently
over the past year. More detail on our stakeholder
engagement, including on climate-related
matters, can be found on pages 97 to 102.

Identifying and assessing climate-related risks
Although climate change presents
opportunities as well as risks for SEGRO,
Climate Change is identified as a Principal Risk
within Environmental Sustainability and
Climate Change on the Risk Register. Climate-
related risks are also considered within other
principal risks including Political and
Regulatory, Development plan execution

and Major event/Business disruption.

For eachrisk, our Risk Register tracks:

- Description of the risk and the potential effects;

- |dentifies the Executive Director with overall
ownership and the Risk Manager responsible
for monitoring and managing the risk;

- Anannual probability and potential impact,
to enable prioritisation;

- Mitigations in place as well as the owner of
each mitigating action.

At the current time and based on asset-level
scenario analysis, no material capital
expenditure has been identified beyond
normal course development and
refurbishment costs associated with mitigating
assets in high-risk locations against climate
change-related risks. Such risks, and related
capital expenditure, are considered as part of
the annual asset planning process associated
with the five-year Medium-Term Plan.

Managing and mitigating climate-related risks
Our process for recognising, monitoring and
mitigating Principal Risks, including climate-
related risks, is set out on page 64 of the Annual
Report. The Board has overall responsibility for
ensuring that risk is effectively and consistently
managed across the Group.

The Audit Committee monitors the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
process on behalf of the Board. In every year,
the Audit Committee twice reviews the
process of how the Group Risk Register has
been compiled and the Board twice reviews
the principal and emerging risks. The Board
also reviews and approves the Group’s risk
appetite at least once every year.

In its Responsible SEGRO Framework, SEGRO
has committed itself to becoming net-zero
carbon by 2030, with minimum science-based
targets for reducing Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions
(including corporate and customer emissions)
to ensure compliance with a less than 1.5°C
increase in global temperatures by 2050. A key
risk surrounding these targets is that we cannot
be certain to achieve them given the lack of
visibility and control relating to customers’
energy use in our buildings and the embodied
carbon emissions in developments.

The Metrics and Targets section below
provides details on how we monitor these risks
and our progress over the past year.
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Risk management: action during 2022

We have established the Mandatory
Sustainability Policy and set internal targets
associated with not only reducing emissions
but also working with our customers and
supply chain to achieve greater visibility of
those emissions. These targets are integrated
within a Responsible SEGRO element of the
bonus metrics throughout the organisation.

- Materiality: we have refreshed our materiality
assessment to ensure that our strategy is
focusing on areas most relevant to our
stakeholders;

- Customer engagement: We continually

engage with our customers and have

undertaken pilot studies of motion-sensor
technology in a number of buildings to
provide data on how to improve energy
efficiency. In 2021, we worked with our
customers on a pilot project to retrofit solar
panels to a number of existing buildings to
provide them with on-site renewable energy;
in 2022, we commenced 15 projects and
completed the first, installing 5.6 MW of solar
capacity to a warehouse in the Netherlands
representing an investment of £3.9 million;

Supplier engagement: Our development

contractors are a crucial element of our

supply chain. As set out in our Supplier Code
of Conduct, we work with our contractors to
support our target to be net-zero carbon by

2030, in particular by finding and utilising

innovative, low carbon materials and

techniques to reduce the embodied carbon
within our developments, and to embed
sustainability in our developments from the
design phase, taking a full life cycle
approach;

Supplier engagement: We have provided

additional information to our valuers, CBRE,

to ensure that the energy efficiency of our
buildingsis fully taken into accountin the
biannual valuation process. In addition to the
climate change analysis, this should allow us
toidentify better areas of risk within our
portfolio and opportunities to mitigate or
eliminate the risk;
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- Investor engagement: We launched further
Green Bonds during the year in SEGRO and
SELP, as part of which we conducted
roadshows with investors. We have also
reported the allocation of the proceeds of
the Green Bonds launchedin 2027;
Employee engagement: Every employee
update is based around the three pillars of
Responsible SEGRO, including the elements
relating to environmental sustainability,
incorporating case studies and progress
reports on how we are reducing our carbon
emissions.

Metrics and targets

To enable our stakeholders to consider and
compare our reporting, we contribute to a
number of externally-recognised initiatives
including GRESB, CDP, DJSI Sustainability
Index and the FTSE4Good Index. We also
disclose metrics in line with externally-
recognised frameworks including
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board
(SASB), Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) and
the EPRA Best Practices Recommendations
on Sustainability Reporting.

In order to ensure that we also report on those
issues that we can have a direct impact upon,
we use our materiality assessment to identify
the key metrics that are material to the
business. Below are the climate-related metrics
and targets which we monitor. Those in bold
are incorporated into the Responsible SEGRO
elements of the annual bonus of all employees.

There are no metrics specifically mapped to
Risk 2 (flood) or Opportunity 2 (biodiversity),
although Risks 1and 2 are addressed in the
Scenario analysis on pages 80to 81. We are
monitoring and addressing the asset-level

risks and opportunities but thereis not yet a
meaningful, measurable metric for these areas.
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Associated risk
Financial Climate-Related Metric 2022 2021 Narrative or opportunity
Assets Policy and Legal Corporate and customer carbon intensity of 22.5kg 27.9kg Reflects higher visibility of our corporate and R3, R4, O1
the portfolio (based on the CO,e emissions of customer emissions as well as the improving
the portfolio for which we have visibility of the energy efficiency of our buildings and
data), inkgCQO, e per square metre of AUM increased on-site renewable energy capacity.
EPCsrated B or better (based on floorspace AUM)  58% 55% Increase due to completions of energy efficient  R3, R4
developments and refurbishment offset by
disposals of recently developed buildings.
EPCsrated below E (based on floorspace AUM) 2% 1% New acquisitions are often un-rated or of R3
low quality.
Portfolio with high environmental certification ~ 46% 42% Increase due to completions of high-quality R4,R5, O1
(BREEAM Very Good or better (or equivalent)) developments, offset by disposals of recently
based on floorspace AUM developed buildings.
Assets Risk Adaptation and Portfolio with high environmental certification ~ £8.2billion  £8.3 billion  Comprising wholly-owned assets of £6.2 billion R5
Mitigation (BREEAM Very Good or better (or equivalent) (55%) (50%) (2021: £6.3 billion) and assets held in joint
and/or EPC certificate of B or better (percentage ventures of £2.0 billion at share (2021: £2.0 billion).
of value at share) (‘Green portfolio’)
Liabilities Risk Adaptation and Green Finance Instruments as a percentage of ~ 24% 8% Green Finance Instruments should not exceed R5
Mitigation Green Portfolio (including joint venture assets the total value of the Green Portfolio. SEGRO
and debt at share) issued €1.15 billion and SELP issued €750
million of Green Bonds under the Green
Finance Framework during the year.
Expenditures GHG Emissions Visibility of customer emissions 68% 54% Many customers are not obliged to disclose R1,R3, R4
Percentage of portfolio space (sg m of AUM) energy use data to us. Without it, however, we
for which we have energy data cannot accurately measure our corporate and
customer emissions (approximately 40 per
2023 interim target: 73% (minimum) cent of our total Scope 1-3 emissions).
Downstream Leased Assets GHG emissions.
The increase during 2022 reflects negotiation
with customers across our portfolio.
Corporate and customer emissions (Scope 272,218 280,575 Incorporates Scope 1, 2 (market-based) and 3 R3,R4,R5, 01,03

1,2and 3 - Downstream Leased Assets)
Tonnes CO,-equivalent emissions (science-
based target)

2020 baseline: 312,115 tonnes

2030 target: 181,027 tonnes
(-42% vs baseline)

2023 interim target: 272,789 tonnes
(-13% vs baseline) (minimum)

(Downstream Leased Assets) emissions from
the portfolio.

This reduction was largely due to having greater
visibility of the energy use and of the type of
energy (renewable) sourced by our customers.
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Climate-related financial disclosures
continued
Associated risk
Financial Climate-Related Metric 2022 2021 Narrative or opportunity
Embodied carbon intensity (based on 353 391 Based on completed developments for which R3, R4
Scope 3 Capital Goods) we have Life Cycle Assessments (LCAs). To
accommodate delayed receipt of LCAs we
kgCQ,e per sg m of completed space have adopted a two-year rolling average to
(science-based target) assess embodied carbon intensity. This figure
incorporates the results from 826,000 sgm
2020 baseline: 400 kgCO,e persgm of space completed in 2021 and 2022. As we
transition more of our LCAs to more accurate
2030 target: 320 kgCO,e persgm Building Information Modelling (BIM)
(-20% vs baseline) assessments, our embodied carbon intensity
may rise as BIM provides more detailed analysis
2023 interim target: 376 kgCO,e per sgm of materials and processes used in construction.
(-6% vs baseline)
Internal carbon price (£ per tonne) £100 £100 A carbon price is applied to capex relating to R3, R4, O1
environmental improvements, particularly
when considering the returns from retrofitting
solar PV to existing assets.
Revenues Energy/Fuel Onsite solar power capacity (based on AUM) 44 MW 35 MW 9 MW capacity added during the calendar R3, R4, O1
year (2021: 9 MW) as part of new development
completions and retrofitting PV panels to
existing buildings.
Percentage of visible customer energy use 49% 53% Based on the portfolio for which we have R3, O1
from certified renewable sources visibility. Where we have not been provided
with the source of energy, we assume a
non-renewable tariff. This figure will fluctuate
as we increase the visibility of our customers’
energy use. We are working with our customers
to improve this metric through increased use
of certified renewable energy tariffs and
renewable energy generated on-site.
Revenue from sale of on-site renewable £2m £2m Revenue from SEGRO-owned PV panels. This o1

energy to customers or to national grids (£Em)

metric reflects cases where SEGRO sells the
energy to the occupier or feeds surplus energy
into the national grid and includes local or
national subsidies. In other cases, PV-generated
energy is provided to customers as part of their
rent. This revenue is not recorded here as it is not
possible to disaggregate it from underlying rent.




87 SEGROplc
Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Governance Report

In this section:

We provide an overview of our
corporate governance structure,
policies and practices as well as
the key activities undertaken by
the Board and its Committees

in ensuring effective leadership,
oversight and application of best
practice principles at SEGRO.

2018 UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code)
The Code is the key governance guidance to which we referred during the financial year
to 31 December 2022, and can be found at www.frc.org.uk.
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Board leadership and Company purpose

Our Board is responsible for leading the
business in the way which we believe is most
likely to lead to long-term sustainable success.
This includes effective engagement with our
stakeholders and particularly our colleagues.

Chair'sintroduction to governance 89
Our Board of Directors 91
Strategy Day 94
Culture, Purpose and Values 95
Stakeholder engagement 97

Division of responsibilities

Our Board ensures we have the right
combination of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors without any individual or group of
individuals dominating the decision making.

Audit, risk and internal control

Our Audit Committee monitors the integrity
of the Financial Statements and oversees the
risk management process and internal control
environment.

Letter from the Chair of the Audit Committee 116
Financial reporting process 18
Viability statement and going concern 18
Fair, balanced and understandable 18
Significantjudgements made in 2022 19
External audit 120
Internal audit 121
Valuers 122
Internal controls and risk management 122

Remuneration

Our Remuneration Committee determines the
Remuneration Policy which aims to incentivise

Effective and efficient functioning of the Board 104 ) S ;
— : - : strong performance whilst avoiding excessive

Availability of the Chair, Chief Executive and risk taking. The Committee oversees the Policy

Sl iy S ey _ 104 | implementation and is mindful of the pay

Executive Committee and Leadership team 104 | framework across the business.

Governance framework 105

Key activities of the Board during 2022 106 | Letter from the Chair of the Remuneration

Composition, succession and evaluation

Our Nomination Committee ensures that we
have a balanced Board with the appropriate
skills and experience to govern the business,
and an effective succession plan.

The Board considers that, throughout the year, it has applied the Principles and complied with Internal Board evaluation 109
the Provisions of the Code in allrespects except for Provision 38 which requires that pension Letter from the Chair of the Nomination
contribution rates for Executive Directors, or payments in lieu, are aligned with those availableto | Committee m
the workforce. As outlined in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 126 full compliance Composition, skills and experience of the Board 112
with this Provision was achieved from 31 December 2022. Dliscion Ineepentence 0
Further details on how we comply with the Code are outlined in this Governance Report. Board diversity n3
Director re-election at the 2023 AGM M4
— - - Continuing development and training 14
How our governance activities enable extraordinary things Dol & e iveness 14
How the Board lives our Purpose and Values 95 | Succession planning 15
How the Board manages and monitors our culture 96 | Andy Harrison’sinduction 15
Afocused and active Board - key milestones during 2022 106

Committee 123
Directors’ Remuneration Report 126
Directors’ Remuneration Policy - summary 143

New Chair
Read about Andy Harrison’s
induction as Chair of the Board.

Page 115
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Scan here
to seevideo.

Making governance part of performance

To ensure we are abletoCOnSi y deliver the
extraordinary, we haveastrong governance framewa
which sets us up forlong-term success.

Andy Harrison covers the following topics:

- Firstimpressions onjoining the business

- SEGRO's strong culture

- Adapting to a different macroeconomic
environment in 2022

— Priorities for.2023

%

To find out more about
SEGRO visit
WWW.Segro.com
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Chair’s introduction to governance

We have a clear strategy,
we have an outstanding
portfolio of assets, and |
have met many really good
people who are passionate
about the business.

Andy Harrison
Chair

Dear shareholder,

lam pleased to present my first Governance
Report for SEGRO, since | joined the Board last
April and became Chair in July 2022.

Throughout my induction programme | have
beenimmensely impressed with the quality of
SEGRO; the quality of our people, our culture,
our Leadership team and the unique portfolio
which has been built over so many decades.

Governance and the delivery of strategy
2022 was another busy year for the Company
with the rapidly changing macroeconomic
environment and market trends at the forefront
of our Board discussions.

We had to remain attuned to a number of
external factors, not least the volatility in the
investment markets which saw property
valuations impacted by higher inflation and
interest rates with the resulting increase in the
cost of capital. The Board has discussed the
consequent effects on our business and
stakeholders and adjusted our decision making
to protect our short- and long-term interests.

During our annual Strategy Day, which you
canread about on page 94, we took time away
from the day-to-day to hear thoughts from
external experts to add further perspectives to
our decision making.

SEGRO's well-proven strategy, which was
designed with the long-term success of the
business in mind, alongside our strong
governance framework and resilient portfolio
of high-quality, sustainable assets in prime
locations stood us in good stead as we
navigated the year and, despite external
uncertainties, delivered a strong set of
operational results.
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Our stakeholders

As always, the Board is mindful of the interests
of our stakeholders. You can find our section
172 statement on page 76 of the Strategic
Reportand, on pages 97 t0 103 of the
Governance Report, we explain how the Board
has continued to engage with our five key
stakeholder groups and how this engagement
has impacted our decision making.

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
We also recognise the importance that our
stakeholders place on ESG, and our
commitment to be a force for good in society
and for the environment is fundamental to our
Purpose and strategy. This commitment is led
by our Board and lived by our SEGRO
colleagues every day.

QOur Responsible SEGRO framework sits at the
core of our strategy and underpins everything
we do. We receive regular updates from around
the business on the tangible progress against
our Responsible SEGRO ambitions and were
pleased to note the headway made during 2022.

In December, we invited CBRE to share

their knowledge on climate change and
sustainability with the aim of ensuring that we
remain fully informed on the changing nature
of environmental regulations and disclosure
requirements, and understand the potential
impacts sustainability requirements could
have on asset values.

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The 2022 AGM was held in person for the
first time since 2019 and we were delighted
to be able to welcome shareholders back

to the meeting. This year's AGM will take
place on Thursday 20 April 2023 and further
information can be found on page 103 and
in the Notice of Meeting. We hope that we
can count on shareholders’ support for the
proposed resolutions.

Governance
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Page18

Responsible SEGRO
Page 33
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Chair’sintroduction to governance
continued

Board changes and succession planning

A number of new appointments, including my
own, were reported in last year's Annual Report.
The Nomination Committee’s forward-thinking
approach to succession planning has ensured
that we have the right mix of skills, experience
and diversity on the Board. No further Board
appointments were made in 2022.

Gerald Corbett retired from the Board in June
after six years’ service as Chair. | would like to
thank him on behalf of the Board for his valuable
contribution to the Company during his tenure
and for his help in facilitating a smooth transition
of responsibilities.

We have proposed that all Directors stand for
re-election at our Annual General Meeting in
April 2023.

Further details can be found in the Nomination
Committee Report on pages 111to 115.

Internal Board Evaluation

As you will read on pages 109 and 110, we
undertook an Internal Board Evaluation during
the year.

It was particularly valuable for me, in my first
year as Chair, to hear the reflections and
feedback from my Board colleagues. I'm
pleased to report that the review concluded
that the Board and its Committees continue
to operate effectively.

Our people

One of the things which has stood out to me
during my first few monthsin the business is
the high quality of people and the passion
they have for the business. This combined with
the strong, supportive culture at SEGRO is
essential for continuing to deliver success
inthe long term.

On behalf of my fellow Board members, | would
like to take this opportunity to recognise the
hard work and commitment of our employees
during the year and thank them for their efforts.

| would also like to congratulate Non-Executive
Director Linda Yueh who was awarded a CBE
inthe New Year's Honours List for services to
Economics, following David Sleath’s OBE in
2022 for services to Charity and Business.

Finally, please join me in thanking our Directors
for their insightful and valuable contributions
during the year.

Andy Harrison
Chair

Nomination Committee Report
Page 111

Further Information

Financial Statements
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One of the things which has
stood out to me during my
first few monthsin the
business is the high quality
of people and the passion
they have for the business.

Andy Harrison
Chair
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Board of Directors

-

1. Andy Harrison 3.SoumenDas 5. Mary Barnard 7. Carol Fairweather 9. Martin Moore
Chair Chief Financial Officer Independent Non-Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Director Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director
2.David Sleath OBE 4. Andy Gulliford 6.Sue Clayton 8.Simon Fraser
Chief Executive Chief Operating Officer Independent Non-Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Director ~ 10. Linda Yueh CBE

Independent Non-Executive Director
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Board of Directors
continued

Our Board is made up of
talented individuals, with
a depth of commercial
experience from arange
of industries.

Board leadership and Company purpose
Page 94
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Andy Harrison @ SoumenDas Mary Barnard INYR)
Chair Chief Financial Officer Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed: 1April 2022 (Chair: 30 June 2022)

Skills, experience and contribution

Andy is an experienced chair having held the position
at Dunelm Group plc for over seven years. He is also
aformer CEO who has led multiple large consumer
facing organisations with strong service offerings.
His leadership, business understanding and insights
have proven to be invaluable additions to the
boardroom.

Previous appointments

Chair, Dunelm Group plc | Chief Executive,
Whitbread plc | Chief Executive, easyJet plc | Chief
Executive, RAC plc | Non-Executive Director and
Audit Committee Chair, EMAP plc

David Sleath OBE
Chief Executive

Appointed: 1January 2006
(Chief Executive from 28 April 2011; Finance Director
from 1 January 2006 to 28 April 2011)

Skills, experience and contribution

David has considerable board level experience of
listed companies and has extensive knowledge of
the real estate, manufacturing and distribution
sectors and the Company. His financial and general
management experience has helped lead the
successful design and implementation of the
Company'’s strategy over the past 12 years.

Davidis a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

Current appointments

Senior Independent Director, RS Group plc (formerly
Electrocomponents plc) | Board member, European
Public Real Estate Association

Previous appointments

Senior Independent Director, Bunzl plc | Finance
Director, Wagon plc | Partner, Arthur Andersen |
President and board member of the British Property
Federation

Appointed: 16 January 2017

Skills, experience and contribution

Soumen combines leadership of the finance
functions with a wider contribution to the business
through strategy, investment and innovation. He
brings his extensive board-level experience and
deep knowledge of capital markets to the Group,
having been Chief Financial Officer of listed
companies for over 11 years and with a background
as a corporate financier.

Current appointments
Non-Executive Director, NEXT plc | Co-Chair of the
Parker Review (into ethnic diversity of UK boards)

Previous appointments

Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer,
Capital & Counties Properties plc (Capco) | Partner,
Mountgrange Investment Management LLP |
Executive Director, UBS

Appointed: 1March 2019

Skills, experience and contribution

Mary has extensive commercial and general
management experience and a deep understanding
of customer needs and trends through her various
international roles across Europe and North
America. She has a strong knowledge of the
operation of the retail market and supply chain.

Current appointments
Chief Commmercial Officer, Mondeléz International Inc

Previous appointments

President, European Chocolate Category, Mondeléz
International Inc | Senior Vice President and General
Manager, Pepsi-Lipton Partnership | Non-Executive
Director, Poundland Group plc | President CAOBISCO
| Chair, Cadbury Foundation | EXCO member, Food &
Drink Federation and Institute of Grocery Distribution

Andy Gulliford
Chief Operating Officer

Sue Clayton
Independent Non-Executive Director

(NIR]

Audit Committee member

Nomination Committee member

Remuneration Committee member

Chair of Committee

oee

Appointed: 1May 2013

Skills, experience and contribution

Andy has worked in a variety of real estate roles and
brings extensive knowledge of the Company and
the real estate sector in both the UK and Continental
Europe. He joined SEGRO in 2004 and has been
influential in the successful delivery of arecord
number of development completions for the
Company as well as for its strong operational
performance.

Andy is a member of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (MRICS).

Current appointments
Director, LandAid Charitable Trust Limited

Previous appointments

European Director, Jones Lang LaSalle | Director

of Corporate Acquisitions; Business Development
Director; Managing Director for Continental Europe,
SEGRO

Appointed: 1June 2018

Skills, experience and contribution

Sue brings a wealth of property market knowledge
to the Board, with over 30 years of experiencein
property investment markets, having worked in the
UK commercial property market for her whole
career. She is active in promoting diversity in the
Real Estate Industry including through her role as
the former Chair of Women's Network at CBRE and
as co-founder of Real Estate Balance.

Sueis a Fellow of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (FRICS).

Current appointments

Senior Independent Director, Helical plc | Member
of the Committee of Management, Hermes
Property Unit Trust | Chair, Barwood 2017 Property
Fund | Trustee, Reading Real Estate Foundation

Previous appointments

Head of National Investment; Managing Director of
Capital Markets, CBRE | Board member, CBRE UK
Management and Executive Boards, CBRE Group Inc




93 SEGROplc Overview Strategic Report Governance Financial Statements Further Information
Annual Report & Accounts 2022
Carol Fairweather @O®0® MartinMoore ®Q® | JuliaFoo

Independent Non-Executive Director

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Company Secretary

Appointed: 1January 2018

Skills, experience and contribution

Carol hasrecent and relevant finance experience
and brings commercial knowledge to the Board.
Her prior experience as Chief Financial Officer of
the retailer Burberry Groupis valuable to the
Company in her understanding of retail and digital
commerce trends.

Carolis a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountantsin England and Wales.

Current appointments
Non-Executive Director, Smurfit Kappa Group plc |
Trustee, Somerset House Trust

Previous appointments

Chief Financial Officer, Burberry Group | Director
of Finance, News International Ltd | UK Regional
Controller, Shandwick plc

Appointed: 1July 2014

Skills, experience and contribution

With over 40 years’ experience of real estate and the
property sector, Martin brings industry knowledge
and breadth of practice to the Board.

Heis a member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (MRICS).

Previous appointments

Chairman, BMO Commercial Property Trust | Senior
Adviser, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co LLP | Chief
Executive and Chair, M&G Real Estate | Adviser and
Commissioner, The Crown Estate | Board member
and President, British Property Federation | Board
member and Chair, Investment Property Forum |
Commissioner, Historic England | Non-Executive
Director, M&G Asia Property Fund | Chairman,
Secure Income REIT plc

Simon Fraser
Independent Non-Executive Director

00®

Linda Yueh CBE
Independent Non-Executive Director

(NIR)

Appointed: 1May 2021

Skills, experience and contribution

Simon has extensive knowledge of working on
remuneration committees, having previously
chaired the remuneration committees at Derwent
London and Lancashire Holdings. He is a former
investment banker with a wealth of financial
experience, having spent the majority of his career
with Bank of America Merrill Lynch where he was
appointed Managing Director and Co-Head of the
Corporate Broking divisionin 2004.

Current appointments

Non-Executive Director, Legal & General Investment
Management (Holdings) Ltd | Non-Executive
Director, Lancashire Holdings Ltd | Non-Executive
Director, Lancashire Syndicates Limited

Previous appointments

Senior Independent Director, Lancashire Holdings
Ltd | Senior Independent Director, Derwent London
plc | Managing Director/Division Co-Head,
Corporate Broking, Merrill Lynch/Bank of America

Appointed: 1May 2021

Skills, experience and contribution

Linda brings a broad range of skills to the Board,
including robust commercial experience and a
strong backgroundin economics, as a Fellow in
Economics at St Edmund Hall, Oxford University
and Adjunct Professor of Economics at London
Business School.

Current appointments

Non-Executive Director, Standard Chartered plc |
Non-Executive Director, Rentokil Initial plc | Chair,
Baillie Gifford’s The Schiehallion Fund Ltd | Adviser,
UK Board of Trade

Previous appointments

Senior Independent Director, Fidelity China Special
Situations plc | Non-Executive Director, Baillie
Gifford’s Scottish Mortgage plc | Non-Executive
Director, JP Morgan Asian Growth and Income plc |
Chief Business Correspondent, BBC News |
Economics Editor, Bloomberg News | Corporate
Lawyer, Paul Weiss Rifkind Wharton & Garrison LLP |
Visitng Professor, London School of Economics and
Political Science | Member, Independent Review
Panel on Ring-fencing and Proprietary Trading of
the UK Government

Appointed: 7 June 2021

Skills, experience and contribution

Julia provides advice and support on corporate governance best practice, listing and compliance
requirements to the Board and its Committees. She has over 20 years of wide-ranging experience
inthe industry, and leads the Company Secretariat team responsible for SEGRO’s listed and subsidiary
compliance and governance across the Group.

Juliais a Fellow of the Chartered Governance Institute (FCG).
Previous appointments

Deputy Company Secretary, J Sainsbury plc | Deputy Company Secretary, Currys plc (previously Dixons
Carphone plc) | Deputy Company Secretary, Halma plc

Attendance at scheduled Board and Committee meetings

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee AGM
Mary Barnard 77 3/3 1 3/3 1
Sue Clayton 7/7 3/3 il 3/3 il
Gerald Corbett’ 4/4 - - - il
Soumen Das 77 - - - il
Carol Fairweather 77 3/3 11 3/3 11
Simon Fraser® 77 2/3 il 3/3 il
Andy Gulliford 7/7 - - - il
Andy Harrison? 5/5 - il - il
Martin Moore 77 3/3 il 3/3 il
David Sleath 77 - - - il
Linda Yueh 7/7 3/3 hN 3/3 hn
Total number of scheduled meetingsin 2022 7 3 1 3 1

Allthe Board and Committee members attended each scheduled meeting they were eligible to attend,
with one exception as set out below.

1 Gerald Corbett retired from the Board on 30 June 2022.

2 Andy Harrison joined the Board on1April 2022 and succeeded Gerald Corbett as Chair of the Board and Nomination Committee
onhis retirement.

3 Simon Fraser was unable to attend one meeting of the Audit Committee due to a prior commitment.
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Board leadership and Company Purpose

An effective and entrepreneurial Board

The Board is responsible for creating and
delivering shareholder value by setting the
strategic direction of the Group. The Executive
team has day-to-day responsibility for
implementing this strategy and it is the Board’s
role to hold management to account for
ensuring that it is delivered. The work of the
Board should and does complement, enhance
and support the work of the Executive team.

Information about our strategy is on pages 18
and 19. You can read more about the annual
Strategy Day in the case study on the right.

Our Board is made up of talented individuals,
with a depth of commercial experience from
arange of industries. This diversity of thought
helps create an effective and entrepreneurial
Board as each member has a fresh perspective
to bring to discussions. See pages 92 and 93
for more information about the Directors and
the contribution they each bring to the Board.

During the year, Gerald Corbett retired after six
years as Chair. Andy Harrison joined the Board
as an Independent Non-Executive Director
on1April 2022 and took on the role of Chair

on 30 June 2022 when Gerald stepped down.

Further information on the recruitment process
for Andy can be found on page 129 of the 2021
Annual Report and Accounts and details of his
induction to the Company and the Board isin
this year's Nomination Committee report on
page 115.

Andy is a valuable addition to the Board,
bringing with him considerable experience of
leading large, consumer-facing organisations,
strong plc experience and proven business
understanding, as well as a balanced and
experienced view to the decision-making
process. His areas of expertise complement
the skill set of the existing Directors.

Overview Strategic Report

Governance

Case study:
Strategy Day

The Board values the opportunity each year
to dedicate time to reflect on our strategy,
and the wider business and macroeconomic
environment. In November 2022, we spent
aday and a half offsite doing just this.

Whilst a full pack of papers was provided
covering a wide range of topics to ensure
Directors were fully briefed, the focus of the
Strategy Day was on a small number of key
items. As well as hearing from guest speakers
from around the business, external guests
were invited to share their areas of expertise.
This enabled the Board to step back from the
usual agenda items and ensured that each
strategic topic received a more detailed focus.

During 2022 the macroeconomic
environment changed quickly which meant
that we as a Board had to remain alert and
regularly consider the Company’s approach
to adapt to the more uncertain environment
and more volatile capital markets, whilst also
ensuring that we spent sufficient time to
consider how to position the Company for
continued longer-term success.

The first part of the offsite was dedicated to
our data centre strategy: with a presentation
on strategy and the future priorities from the
Managing Director, Thames Valley and
Director, Data Centres; and an overview of the
data centre market from an industry expert.
Following the presentations, we took the time
to visit a data centre run by one of our largest
customers to see first-hand how their business
works. See page 107.

The afternoon was spent considering the
macroeconomic outlook within the
jurisdictions in which we operate. The Board
welcomed a number of external speakers who
provided views on the outlook for the UK and
European economies as well as the occupier
market. Their insights contributed to the
Board's discussions on the assumptions,
strategic choices and outputs underlying

the Group’s Medium Term Plan. We also
considered the annual portfolio review, views
of the property cycle and the markets we
operate in, as well as the investment strategy
inthe near term and in future years.

Onthe second day, upon reflection of the
discussions from day one, we further considered
the key strategic priorities for the business. We
concluded that there was continued strong
momentum from an operational perspective
and that our strategy remains appropriate.
Whilst being mindful of the pace of changein
the wider macroeconomic environment and
the need to remain vigilant and nimble in the
execution of that strategy, there was wide
consensus amongst Directors on our planned
approach for 2023.

Financial Statements Further Information

Promoting long-term sustainable success
SEGRO's principal duty is to deliver lasting,
sustainable success and generate value for
shareholders and other investors, whilst being
mindful of our impact on stakeholders and
wider society.

Despite the volatility in investment markets
during the year, occupier markets remained
strong with demand being driven by long-term
structural trends and vacancy remaining at
record lows. This resulted in further market
rental growth, which, when combined with

our customer focus and the active asset
management of our portfolio of high-quality,
sustainable assets, allowed us to deliver another
strong year of operational performance.

We contracted arecord level of new headline
rent during the year through a combination of
growing rents on the existing portfolio through
the capture of reversion and as a result of a
strong leasing performance. This combined
with the completion of an additional 639,200
sg m of space, capable of delivering £46
million of new headline rent, enabled us to
drive growth in earnings and resulted in us
recommending anincrease in dividend returns
for our shareholders.

The Board was also pleased to hear about the
progress that has been made against our
Responsible SEGRO targets during the year,
as detailed further on pages 33 to 46.

Looking ahead, the combination of new rental
income from the development programme,
and the benefits of active asset management
of our existing portfolio, should enable us to
drive sustainable growth in both earnings and
dividends. The Chief Executive’s Statement on
pages 11t0 13, along with the Financial Review
on pages 58 to 63, sets out in much more
detail our strategy and the reasons for why
we are confident in the long-term prospects
for our business.
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Investing for the long term

Much of the Board’s decision making is
focused around ensuring that the Company
is sustainable in the long term.

- Eachyear, the Board considers our Medium
Term Plan, which assesses the opportunities
and risks for the Company over the following
five years, and forms the basis of our viability
statement.

- Once ayear, the Board takes time to consider
the long-term strategy of the business,
incorporating presentations and discussions
onlonger-term opportunities and threats to
the business.

- Throughout the year, the Board has overall
responsibility for the Company’s approach
torisks and ensures they are effectively and
consistently managed. It reviews the
measures in place to mitigate the near- and
longer-term risks (including emerging risks)
to the business.

Real estate isinherently along-term industry,
and the Board therefore takes this into
considerationin all its decision making. The
Board approved the current strategy in 2011,
which included the repositioning of the portfolio
and strengthening of the balance sheet. Inthe
Chief Executive’s statement on page 12 you
canread more about how we have adapted our
strategy to respond to the changing market
environment.

Every business has clearly
articulated values. What's
different about SEGRO is
that they are very personal
to the business and I've
seen them lived by every
person | have met.

Andy Harrison
Chair

Overview Strategic Report
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Enabling extraordinary things:
How the Board lives our Purpose and Values

Culture is the character and personality of a
business. It is what makes us unique and is the
sum of our Purpose and Values, behaviours
and traditions. It guides our relationships not
just with our employees but with our other
stakeholders as well. Our culture is unique and
permeates throughout the whole business.

It sets the tone for good governance.

Our Purpose is our compelling, memorable
and differentiating statement that energises
us as ateam, beyond money or profit.

Our Values are our core beliefs about how we
do business, which guide our decision making,
large and small.

We are proud of our Purpose - to create the
space that enables extraordinary things to
happen - and our five Values. Seven years
on from their launch, they are wellembedded
in the business and form the basis of our
workforce policies. They help to unify
employees and describe the core beliefs
about how SEGRO does business, acting as
a universal language across our business and
the countries in which we operate.

Itis essential that the Directors lead by
example and live the Values. The Executive
Directors are obviously more visible leaders
around the business and help to set the tone.

Our Purpose
Page1

Our Values
Page 39

When the Directors are together, they live the
Values in the boardroom as follows:

Say itlikeitis

The Directors are honest and transparentin
dealings with each other and those who
interact with them both in and out of the
boardroom. The Chair encourages constructive
debate and challenge during meetings.

Stand side by side

The Non-Executive Directors bring to the
Board their knowledge and experience from
other businesses. The Directors are supportive
and take collective responsibility for decisions.

Keep one eye on the horizon

The Directors look to the long term in their
decision making. They want to understand
future trends and how the Company can use
them for the benefit of all of our stakeholders.

If the door is closed...

The Non-Executive Directors support the
Executive Directors to find solutions to more
complexissues and provide assistance where
more difficult judgement calls and decisions
need to be made.

Does it make the boat go faster?

The Directors look at different ways of working
to create effective relationships and discuss
regularly where they can best add value.

Within the boardroom, the consistent feedback
from the recent evaluations is that all the
Directors feel they can contribute, speak freely
and do not feel constrained. The Chair
encourages open debate and no one individual
dominates. The seasoned relationships of
most of the Board members mean they can
say it like it is and have their thoughts heard in
achallenging yet supportive environment.

How our Values direct our Board’s behaviours

Say it
likeitis

Does it
make the
boat go
faster

Stand
side by
side

We have a
unifying set of
Values that drive
our culture

Keep one
door is eye on the
closed... horizon

Examine When the /
processes Directors are ity
together, they

live the Values in
the boardroom
as follows:

Find
solutions

Long-term
decisions
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Board leadership and company purpose
continued
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Enabling extraordinary things:
How the Board manages and monitors our culture

The Board believes that our culture can be defined by:

- astrong desire to create a successful business we can be proud of;
- trust and strong professional integrity — we deliver on promises;

- pragmatism - a ‘sleeves up’ approach regardless of status;

- thoughtful, detailed and measured decision making;

- respect and transparency; and

- caring about people and taking an interest in their wellbeing.

The Board continues to monitor the culture
of the Company through indicators which
serve as atemperature check.

They consider:

- Results of the biennial employee
engagement survey Your Say
Your Say response rate

9o

Your Say engagement score

J17%6

- Data on employee turnover

S /76

2021:7.0%

- Feedback from office and site visits by
Executive Directors and the Board as a whole

- Whistleblowing incidents
No matters of concern raised during the
year. See page 103.

- Health and safety incidents
See page 31.

- Feedback from workforce engagement
sessions
See pages 99 and 136.

- Breaches of the Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics
No matters of concern raised during the
year. See page 103.

- Internal audit reports
See page 121.

- Results of the Customer Satisfaction survey

0076

2021:90%
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Stakeholder engagement from the Board’s perspective

We have identified our key stakeholders -
those important groups that are an integral
part of our business model.

Our s172 statement is on page 76 together
with additional information about our key
stakeholders and why they are important to us.

When making decisions that impact our key
stakeholders the Board considers the factors
set outin s172 including:

- thelikely consequences of any decisionin
thelongterm;

- theimpact of our operations on the
community and the environment;

- the desirability of maintaining a reputation for
high standards of business conduct; and

- the need to act fairly as between members
of the Company.

Onthe following pages we set out how the
Board has considered the s172 requirements,
applied theminits decision making and its
engagement with stakeholders during the year.

Stakeholder engagement is anintegral part of
the Board's decision-making process and all
proposals to the Board relating to major
decisions must demonstrate that the impact
on stakeholders has been considered.

‘ Overview

Strategic Report
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Quick links

Section 172 statement 76
Our business model - Employees 27
Our business model - Customers 26
Our business model - Communities 30
Our business model - Suppliers 28

Our business model - Investors 30

Our key stakeholders

The Directors engage directly with as many
stakeholders as they can but given the number
of stakeholders, who are spread across
multiple geographies, engagement often
takes place at the operational level.

In this section we explain how the Board has
specifically engaged with our stakeholders
and how the engagement has influenced their
decision making.

A A&

Investors

Julk
=7

Suppliers

A

—t+—

AAA

Employees

Stakeholder
engagement
from the Board’s
perspective

Customers

7
&

Communities

a
Employees...

...deliver SEGRO’s strategy in line with our Purpose,
Values and culture.

See pages 98 and 99

Customers...
=,

...areour occupiers and SEGRO wants to hear about
what they want from our assets so the Company
can continue to create the space that enables
extraordinary things to happen.

See page 100

Communities.... @
...arethe people who live and work in the areas
where the Company’s assets are located and include
local residents, local government and community
groups. They can also be members of any of our
other stakeholder groups.

See page 101

Suppliers...

...include all the advisers, construction firms and
everyoneinvolved in SEGRO's supply chain. Our
suppliers are key to the creation of the space for

occupation by our customers.

See page 102

Investors...

&8
... provide the capital through equity or debt which
finances SEGRO's business and its future growth.
Shareholders, both institutional and retail, are the
owners of our business. They are also the financial
institutions who provide debt and our joint venture
and associate partners.

See pages102and 103
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Stakeholder engagement from the Board'’s perspective
continued

Employees

How the Board engaged with employeesin 2022

Direct engagement Indirect engagement

- Held workforce engagement sessions with -
Non-Executive Directors and a cross-section
of employees:

- During the Board's visits to Dusseldorf and
Paris, some of our Non-Executive Directors
held engagement sessions with
employees from the local offices; and

- We continued our programme of thematic
workforce engagement sessions with a
cross-section of employees across the
business. This year’s sessions focused on
Responsible SEGRO and Executive
Remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee reviewed

salaries across the Group, approved grants

of 2022 employee share plans and 2021

Bonus and LTIP outturns (paid in 2022). See

pages 129to 131.

- The Executive Committee also approved
a one-off payment of £1,250 (or equivalent
inlocal currency) to all lower paid employees
to provide support during the early stages of
the cost of living crisis, followed by a further
salary review across the Group.

- Encouraged members of the Leadership
team and their direct reports to present at
Board meetings, so the Board hears first
hand from our experts around the business.

2000

Wellbeing Fund

Received updates from the Group HR
Director on progress against the Nurturing
talent strategic priority of Responsible
SEGRO, focusing on four areas:

- Developing manager capabilities -
through the launch of the Group-wide
Management Academy;

- Diversity and inclusion (D&l) - where we
carried out a D&l survey (in UK and
Northern Europe) to help us understand
our current employee make up and
support our ambitions to become more
diverse;

- Early careers - with a change to our

approach towards graduate recruitment

and participation in #10,000 Black Interns
programme; and

Employee wellbeing - through the launch

of the SEGRO Mental Health and Wellbeing

Policy and Wellbeing Fund, where all

employees were gifted £500 (or

equivalent) to spend on a personalised
wellbeing purchases, recognising that
thereis not a one size fits all approach

to wellbeing.

Supported the ‘interventionalist” approach

totalent and succession planning, focusing on

future-proofing the development pipeline.

Extensive employee communication

channels, including regular employee

webinars and briefings with Executive

Directors with Q&A opportunities.

1250

Payment during the cost of living crisis

How did they influence the Board’é decision'making iﬁ 2022?

- Feedback from the 2021 workforce
engagement session on Executive
Remuneration'was implemented during the
year. ESG targets were incorporatedinto the
Bonusstructure forthe wider workforce and
employees’ personal performanceelement
was increased, giving them more control
over their own variable remuneration.
Feedback from the 2022 workforce
engagement sessions was discussed at the
December 2022 Board meeting and you can
read about the commitments we have made
to address the topics employees said were
important to them (opposite page).

Martin Moore .
Senior Independent Director on the Souther!
European workforce engagement session

- Continued to encourage employee
share ownership in the Company through
awards of all-employee share schemes
and increasing visibility of the total value
of employees’ share schemes-through
migration of the discretionary-share
schemes to the same portal as their
all-employee share schemes.
Succession planning below Board level
creates a diverse pipeline of suitably
qualified individuals ready.to serve as
the next generation of leaders.
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Employee engagement

The Board has a tailored approach toits
adoption of Provision 5 of the Code on
workforce engagement mechanisms. The
Group has a non-unionised business with a
headcount of 425 people spread across
offices in multiple countries. The Board felt
that it was important that its approach should
mirror the Company’s Value to ‘say it like it is’
for the engagement to be authentic,
meaningful and received positively. Against
this backdrop, we agreed that alternative
arrangements (as permitted by the Code)
were more appropriate to our business. This
involves a three-stage approach which
continues to evolve as we implement it,
recognising that it should be appropriate and
add value to our business as well as
encompass the spirit of the provision, which
isto enable the voice of the employee to be
heard in the boardroom.

1. Individual meetings with the Directors
There are many formal and informal occasions
when the Non-Executive Directors meet with
employees, including through the induction
of aNon-Executive Director, or where a
Non-Executive Director makes an ad hoc asset
visit or otherwise meets individuals to discuss
a particular topic.

The Committee Chairs have individual
meetings with employees in relation to the
business of their Committee meetings.

Following the success of our workforce
engagement sessions over the past few years,
the Board agreed a similar approach for 2022.
Our Non-Executive Directors held a total of
four workforce engagement sessionsin 2022,
which you can read about on the right.

2. Presentations at Board and Committee
meetings

The Executive Directors encourage their teams
to present at Board meetings and join asset tours.
This year, the Board received presentations from:

- theNorthern European, Southern European and
Thames Valley teams, who delivered updates
onrecent activities in their Business Units;

- the Commercial Finance Director, who
provided updates on funding;

- the Managing Director, Group Investment, who
discussed the market outlook, the Company’s
growth strategy and investment stance;

- the SELP Finance Director and Joint Venture
Director, SELP, who presented an update on
the SELP joint venture; and

- the Group Health and Safety Manager, the
Head of Risk and the Head of Tax who all
provided regular updates on their areas.

Representatives from the Responsible SEGRO
Driving Group also attended several Board
meetings during the year to keep the Board
well apprised of progress against our
Responsible SEGRO ambitions.

3. Informal meetings with the whole Board
During the year, we were also able to resume
the informal lunches with employees during
the Board’s office visits, which had been
temporarily put on hold due to the pandemic.

In 2022 the Board travelled to our Dusseldorf
and Paris offices for the June and September
Board meetings respectively. Whilst there, they
met with the local teams who gave a presentation
and guided tour of some of our assets, showed
the Board our progress on some of our current
developments and discussed future plans. The
Board enjoyed the opportunity to spend time
with many members of the Northern and
Southern European teams.

Case Study:
Workforce Engagement

Since 2020, our Non-Executive Directors have
held a series of informal meetings with
employees from across the business to gain
feedback into how they felt about working

at SEGRO.

This continues to be a much appreciated
exercise for both the Board and our employees.
Non-Executive Directors gain valuable insight
into life at SEGRO and a first-hand look at the
culture within the organisation, and employees
value the opportunity to speak candidly and
share their views with Board members.

Pairs of Non-Executive Directors host sessions
with groups of employees across the business.
The Board felt it was important to hear from
arange of employees in different roles and
grades so that we heard a broad cross-section
of views. Leadership team members were not
invited to these meetings, so that the Non-
Executive Directors hear from the teams directly
and encourage a relaxed, two-way dialogue
and open and transparent discussions.

This year, in addition to two thematic sessions
on Responsible SEGRO, specifically our
Nurturing talent programme and Community
Investment Plans, and Executive Remuneration
(detailed further on page 136), two in-person
sessions were held with employees in
Northern and Southern Europe during the
Board's visits to Germany and France. We felt
that this was a good balance between focused
conversation on topics that the Board wanted
to hear more from employees on and flexibility
for employees to raise any other views or
concerns they wanted to share.

At the beginning of each session, the Non-
Executive Directors spent some time
explaining their roles to give a flavour of the
sorts of things being discussed in the
boardroom. In return, they heard about our
people’s experiences about working day-to-
day inthe business.

As well as discussing Responsible SEGRO
and Executive Remuneration, the employees
shared their views on a wide variety of topics
including our culture, Purpose and Values,
diversity and inclusion, resourcing and
support, and employee benefits.

Non-attributable feedback from the sessions
was relayed to the Board for discussion at the
December meeting. A summary of takeaways,
actions and outcomes from the discussion
will be communicated back to employeesin
due course.

We take meaningful action to address areas
of importance raised by our people in these
sessions. After hearing what was most
important to our employees during the 2022
sessions, we have committed to: reviewing
and refreshing our policies that support
diversity and inclusion (D&l); improving
employee communications around workforce
remuneration to aid them in better
understanding the total value of their
remuneration package and philosophy of
how we pay; and enhancing the conversation
surrounding D&, in part by establishing an
Inclusion Steering Committee and ensuring
we hear employees’ feedback and
suggestions through the year. You can read
more on how the Executive Remuneration
session shaped changes to our workforce
bonus arrangements on page 136.

As Non-Executive Directors,
we value the opportunity to
hear first-hand feedback from
our colleagues on the topics
that matter to them.

Linda Yueh
Independent Non-Executive Director on workforce
engagement sessions
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Customers

How the Board engaged with customersin 2022

Direct engagement

- Met an existing customer, Deliveroo’s
Global Property Director, to hear about
its business model and future plans.

- Toured a number of assets under
development and customer sites in
Dusseldorf, Cologne and Paris during
their overseas visits, as detailed further
on page 110.

- Considered and discussed the monthly
Health and Safety Report at each meeting
and received an annual presentation on
trends that emerged during the year from
the Managing Director, Group Operations
and the Group Health and Safety Manager.

The session brought home
to me just how important
and mutually beneficial
these close customer
relationships are.

Martin Moore
Senior Independent Director on the Deliveroo
customer engagement session

Indirect engagement

- The Company held a Customer Futures
Forum where eight key customers from
across the portfolio came together to
discuss future energy needs and shared
ideas with each other. They also heard from
the Managing Director, Group Operations
on SEGRO’s net-zero ambitions.

- Approved the new mid-term Health and
Safety Strategy (Target 2025).

- The Executive Committee received an
externally-facilitated briefing on emerging
key topics related to health and safety.

- Funded health and safety courses, provided
by accredited third-party providers, for some
of our UK small business customers to help
them to better understand their obligations.

- Continued to support the growth of small
local businesses by offering flexible space
with all-inclusive leases through our
Enterprise Quarters programme.

- Regularly considered KPIs on vacancy
and customer retention.

- Discussed the results of the Annual
Customer Satisfaction Survey and
related actions.

How did they influence the Board’s decision making in 2022?

- Opportunity to meet Deliveroo was valued
by the Board, enabling it to hear first hand
about what our customers need from SEGRO.

- Customer site visits were greatly appreciated
by the Board in furthering its understanding
of what our customers value in SEGRO’s
developments.

- Inapproving investment decisions, including
redevelopment, the Board is mindful of the
value customers place on lower-carbon
growth and sustainability investments, and
regeneration within the wider portfolio.

- The Board maintains oversight of key health
and safety developments.

deliveroo
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Communities

How the Board engaged with communities in 2022

Direct engagement

- Implemented the Remuneration Policy for
Executive Directors, which included strong
links between Executive Directors’ variable
remuneration and ESG targets.

- Noted achievement against these targetsin
respect of the 2022 bonus outturn (payable
in 2023) for both Executive Directors and the
wider workforce.

- Executive Directors, along with employees
from all areas of the business, participated
in the Group-wide Day of Giving.

- Requests for Capital Approval, approved by
the Board or Investment Committee in line
with the delegations of authority, must
include details on how the project willimpact
local communities and how they will
contribute to Community Investment Plans.

- Donated £2.5 million to charity during

Indirect engagement

- Heard from the Partnership Development
Director and Managing Director, Group
Operations on progress against the
community strategic priority of our
Responsible SEGRO framework and the
ambition to have a Community Investment
Plan in each of our key markets by 2025.

- Heard that 52 employees from across the
business had volunteered as Community
Champions.

the year.

How did they influence the Board’s decision making in 2022?

- The Remuneration Committee considered
the metrics and weighting of the ESG
metrics of the annual bonus, including
those related to the Community pillar of
Responsible SEGRO.

- The Board is mindful of the impact that our
investment decisions could have on the local
community, and actively considers how

Employee volunteering days

these can benefit the local area when
considering capital allocation requests.
Forexample, in approving the acquisition
and redevelopment of a brownfield site
in Marseille, the Board recognised that

it would support local job creation and
contribute to the long-term growth of
the local community.

Community Champions

N\

7
\[gj
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continued
Suppliers Investors

How the Board engaged with suppliersin 2022

Direct engagement

- Met with Goldbeck, one of our key
construction suppliers in Europe, during
the Board visit to Dusseldorf.

- Received presentations from the
Company'’s brokers (UBS and BAML)
and the valuers (CBRE).

- Approved the Modern Slavery and Human
Trafficking Statement.

Indirect engagement

- The Executive Committee approved the
Human Rights Policy.

- Introduced a Supplier Engagement Survey.
- Remained accredited as a Real Living Wage
employer and continued to work towards
implementation throughout our UK

supply chain.

- Launched the Mandatory Sustainability
Policy, which sets out a range of mandatory
measures to future-proof our operations and
assist in achieving our net-zero ambitions.

- Received updates from the Managing
Director, Group Operations and Director,
Sustainability on progress against the
Championing low-carbon growth strategic
priority of Responsible SEGRO.

- Received regular updates from the Head of
Legal on anti-bribery and corruption policies.

How the Board engaged with investors in 2022

Direct engagement
- Wrote to the Company’s ten largest
shareholders to invite them to meet with the

Chair following his appointment. Four of the

invitees accepted the invitation and met with

the Chair where they discussed a number of
topics including Board composition, ESG,
current market trends and the wider
macroeconomic environment.
- Returned to an ‘in-person” AGM where the
Board also allocated time for an informal
meet and greet with shareholders before
and after the meeting.
Heard from the Joint Venture Director, SELP and
Finance Director, SELP on the SELP joint venture.
- Raised capital in both SEGRO and SELP:

- Approved the launch of the Euro Medium
Term Note (EMTN) Programme, the issue
of €1.15 billion senior unsecured Green
Bonds, over two tranches, and the issue
of a £350 million 19-year senior unsecured
bond;

- Approved US private placement of €225
million debtissue; and

- Supported theissue of €750 million
unsecured Green Bond in SELP.

Indirect engagement

- Received weekly updates from the Head
of Investor Relations.

- Heard from the Head of Investor Relations
and our brokers, UBS and BAML, on investor
feedback following the results.

- Extensive Investor Relations programme,
including results presentations,
conferences, meetings with investors and
asset tours held both in-person and
electronically.

- Organised asset tours for banks and bond
holders.

- Continued to build on the Green Finance
Framework launched in 2021.

How did they influence the Board’s decision making in 2022?

- The supplier engagement session with
Goldbeck provided the Board with a good
understanding of current challenges faced
by some of our suppliers, including inflation,
supply of materials and labour. The Board
is mindful of the impact of these challenges
inits decision making.

- The Board encourages regular engagement
with principal suppliers and considers high
ethical standards as integral to SEGRO’s
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and
Modern Slavery policies.

How did they influence the Board’s decision making in 2022?

- The Board is cognisant of the views expressed - We understand the importance that

by our shareholders when making decisions.

- The Board recognised that our shareholders
value the opportunity to attend the AGM in
person and appreciate the time for informal
discussions with them before and after the
meeting, and therefore returned to an
‘in-person’ AGM for 2022.

investors place on sustainable investments.

- We continue to build on the Green Finance

Framework, implemented in 2021, using the
proceeds to fund Eligible Green Projects.

£ 3 ]on

New financingin 2022
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Our shareholders

Shareholder split

0,030

shareholders

% of issued
share capital

1. Institutional shareholders: 1,547 99%
2.Individual shareholders: 4,488 1%

/3

(2021:190) meetings

Consultations with shareholders

We write to our larger shareholders and offer
them the opportunity to meet privately with
the Chair, Senior Independent Director or
Committee Chairs.

Following his appointment as Chair in June,
Andy Harrison invited our ten largest
shareholders to meet with him and share their
views. Four invitees accepted the invitation
and met with Andy to discuss their thoughts
on the Company and the wider market.

The Board will continue to engage with
shareholders as well as representative bodies
to make sure that there is an ongoing dialogue
about our approach to governance, including
remuneration, and to ensure all views are fully
understood and considered. Any feedback
from our shareholders is shared with the Board.

Scrip

SEGRO offers a Scrip Dividend Reinvestment
Scheme which enables our shareholders to
opt to receive dividends in shares rather than
cash with no dealing costs or stamp duty. The
scheme was approved by shareholders for a
further three years at the 2021 AGM. Full details
are available on our website.

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The Board was delighted to welcome
shareholders to the 2022 AGM where, for the
first time since 2019, we were able to hold the
meeting in person. The Directors would like to
extend their thanks to those shareholders who
attended the meeting, and asked interesting
and informative questions. We understood
that some shareholders may still have been
hesitant to attend such an event in person,

so arecording of the AGM was available on
our website for 30 days, to allow those who
could not attend the opportunity to view

the proceedings.

Atthe AGM, the Chief Executive gave a
presentation on SEGRO’s 2021 results and the
highlights of the recently announced Q12022
Trading Update. It was Gerald Corbett’s last
AGM as Chair of the Company and he thanked
our shareholders and the Board for their
support during his tenure.

Shareholders received all commmunications for
the AGM at least 20 working days before the
meeting and were invited to ask questions,
either in the room or by email ahead of the
meeting. The Company proposes separate
resolutions on each substantially separate
issue, with voting conducted by poll. All the
resolutions proposed at the 2022 AGM were
passed with 82 per cent of the issued share
capital voted (2021: 80 per cent).

Following the meeting, the results of votes
lodged for and against each resolution were
announced to the London Stock Exchange
and added to our website.

The Directors look forward to meeting with
shareholders again at the 2023 AGM, details
of which are on page 212.
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Identifying and managing conflicts of interest
The Board operates a policy to identify and,
when appropriate, manage actual or potential
conflicts of interest affecting Directors. Prior to
taking on any additional external commitments,
Directors are required to submit any actual or
potential conflicts of interest they may have
with the Company to the Chair or Senior
Independent Director for approval. Any
conflicts of interest are recorded and approved
by the Board at each meeting. Directors have

a duty to keep the Board updated about any
changes to these conflicts.

Effective controls and necessary resources
The Board has a responsibility to ensure that
appropriate controls and resources are in place
to enable the Company to achieve its long-
term goals. We have a Schedule of Matters
Reserved for Decision by the Board, which was
reviewed and updated during 2022. This
includes financial decisions, such as the annual
budget and reviewing the Medium Term Plan,
major capital expenditure, the approval of the
financial statements, the dividend policy and
compliance with the Code.

You can read about the Company’s approach
to risk and risk management on pages 64 to 74,
whilst page 122 contains further details about
the Audit Committee’s role in ensuring that
robust processes have been putin place to
ensure risks are identified, evaluated and
managed. The Board regularly discusses the
Company'’s principal risks, along with new and
emerging risks, and considers how they may
impact on our long-term goals.

The Board is ever mindful of the need to balance
the pursuit of opportunities without taking
unacceptable or excessive risk and ensures that
the Company has the appropriate resources,

in terms of time, people and funding to do so.

Governance
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Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

The Board takes an active interest in ensuring
that appropriate policies and practices are in
place, consistent with the Company’s Purpose
and Values. One such policy is our Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics (Code of Ethics)
which is core to the way in which our business
is run, the work we do, and to our reputation.

The Code of Ethics sets out the high ethical
standards expected of all our people in their
daily work to enable us to act with honesty and
integrity. The Code of Ethics covers various
policies on a wide range of activities and any
breaches would be thoroughly investigated
with appropriate action taken. The Board
receives regular reports on compliance with
the Code of Ethics and the Company’s policy
on whistleblowing, which sets out the
procedure by which employees and any third
parties can use a confidential external service
toraise concerns. No matters of concern were
raised during 2022.

The Code of Ethics also sets out our approach
to human rights of all our stakeholders. Our
due diligence to combat slavery and human
trafficking is set out in our Modern Slavery
Statement which is approved by the Board
andis onour website. See page 148.

The Audit Committee receives an anti-bribery
and corruption report at each meeting since
itis responsible for ensuring that appropriate
safeguards are in place for the detection of
fraud and prevention of bribery, including
overseeing and monitoring the Group’s
anti-bribery and corruption policies and
procedures. Details of how matters of concern
can be reported and will be investigated are
on page 41. No matters of concern were raised
during 2022.
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Division of responsibilities

The Chair is responsible for the leadership

of the Board and its overall effectivenessin
directing the Company and promoting an
open environment for challenge and debate.

Heis also responsible for encouraging
participation by all the Directors, facilitating
constructive relations and creating the right
atmosphere to promote a culture of open
discussion. Along with the other Non-
Executives, heis responsible for holding

the Executives to account against agreed
objectives. Further information about the
Directorsis on pages 92 and 93, while pages
112 and 113 explains how the Nomination
Committee considers the skills and diversity
onthe Board and Non-Executive Director
independence.

The division of responsibilities of the Chair,
Chief Executive and Senior Independent
Director are clearly established in writing and
approved by the Board. Martin Moore, as the
Senior Independent Director, provides a
sounding board for the Chair and serves as an
intermediary for Directors and shareholders
should communication through the normal
channels fail. Martin also leads the appraisal of
the Chair's performance each year (see page
114) and, as disclosed on page 129 of the 2021
Annual Report, chaired the Nomination
Committee inits search for a new Chair. For
further information on the responsibilities of
each Board member, see the governance
framework opposite.

The day-to-day running of the Group is
delegated by the Board to the Chief Executive

whois supported by the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee supports the Chief
Executive in the delivery of strategy and

reviews operational and financial performance.

The Committee carries out a pre-approval
review of items requiring Board authorisation.

Italso acts as a primary approval channel
for matters delegated by the Board at each
of its meetings.

Effective and efficient functioning of the Board
During 2022, there were seven scheduled
meetings and two ad hoc Board meetings.

The Board has the flexibility to meet in person,
by telephone or by video conference as the
need arises or on an ad hoc basis.

Each Director has committed to attending all
scheduled Board and Committee meetings,
and would not do so only in exceptional
circumstances. Similarly, every effort is made
by Directors to attend ad hoc meetings. On the
rare occasion that a Director cannot attend a
meeting they are still provided with the papers
in advance of the meeting and are given an
opportunity to discuss them with the Chair or
Chief Executive.

Further details on Director attendance at
scheduled Board and Committee meetings
during the year can be found on page 93. This
is kept under review to ensure that Directors are
fulfilling their commitments to the Company.

Directors receive accurate, timely and clear
information on the matters to be considered.
Electronic Board packs are available to the
Directors a week before a meeting. During the
Board evaluation process, the Non-Executive
Directors commented positively on the quality
of the papers received from the Company and
in particular, the Chief Executive’s review paper
which sets the scene for the Board meetings
and signposts the important aspects for
consideration. Everyone agreed that the Board
meetings were well managed and facilitated
open discussion of the appropriate topics and
focus areas.

Regular meetings between the Chair, the Chief
Executive and the Company Secretary help
further ensure that Board meetings contain the
appropriate mix of strategy, culture, people,
regulatory and financial matters.

The Directors value meeting and hearing from
different people in the business who are close
to the Company’s markets and who can tell the
Board what they are seeing and hearing on the
ground, as well as from external sources who
give a wider perspective on market trends.

Overview Strategic Report Governance

During the year, presentations were given by
anumber of Business Units, as well as updates
on funding, investor feedback, portfolio
strategy, customer exposure and Responsible
SEGRO, see pages 106 t0 108. This allows the
Directors to gain further insight on market
trends and provides the context for them to
make strategic decisions about acquisitions,
disposals and the development pipeline.

Availability of the Chair, Chief Executive
and the Company Secretary

The Chair, the Chief Executive and the
Company Secretary are always available for the
Directors to discuss any issues concerning
Board meetings or other matters. All Directors
have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, who is responsible for
ensuring compliance with Board procedures.
Directors also have the right to seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s
reasonable expense should they so wish.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises the
Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Operating Officer and Group HR Director. It
meets formally each month and during the
year there are dedicated sessions to discuss
strategy as well as ad hoc meetings to keep
the Committee up to date with day-to-day
operational issues.

The Committee has its own Terms of Reference
which sets out its wide range of responsibilities,
including:

- oversight of the Group’s risk management
process; business continuity plans; anti-
bribery and corruption, modern slavery
and data privacy policies and processes; and
the Group’s talent programme and overall
training and development plan;

- biannual review of the litigation register,

overseeing any actual or potential material

litigation; and

approval of the Group’s Health and Safety

policies; delegation of authorities; Group’s

sustainability strategy; insurance strategy;
material contracts; and charity policies and
community engagement work.

Financial Statements Further Information

The Executive Committee delegates some of
its responsibilities to a number of management
Committees, as shown on the opposite page.
Each of these Committees has its own Terms of
Reference and membership includes at least
one member of the Executive Committee and
members of the Leadership team.

Leadership team

SEGRO’s Leadership team comprises the
members of the Executive Committee and
their senior direct reports, each of whom has
responsibility for the Group’s operations in

a particular geography, or for one or more of
the Group’s main functional areas.

The Leadership team serves as a discussion
forum and sounding board with which the
Executive Directors can share knowledge and
ideas, gain a better understanding of the local
market outlook as well as share cross-functional
and cross-border information. The Leadership
team normally meets electronically twice per
month, in addition to several longer face-to-
face sessions throughout the year, to review
areassuch as:

- market conditions and competitor activity;

- future trends affecting our customers’
businesses and which may impact SEGRO;

- interests of the Group’s stakeholders;

- horizon scanning for emerging topics which
mightimpact on our business in the medium
tolong term;

- the Group’s asset plans and Medium Term
Plan; and

- development and implementation of the
Group’s culture and Values including our
approach to D&l in the broadest sense.

The Leadership team is consulted and kept
informed about Company-wide activities
and performance through dedicated
conference calls.

Further details on the gender balance of
the Leadership teamis on page 41.
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Our governance framework
Board

The Board retains responsibility for the approval of certain matters which include: Group strategy; the annual budget; the dividend policy; major investments and disposals; and the financial structure. There is an
approved Schedule of Matters Reserved for Decision by the Board, which is reviewed periodically. The Board has delegated a number of its responsibilities to the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.
The Terms of Reference of these Committees can be found at www.SEGRO.com.

Chair

Sets agenda, style and tone of
Board discussions to promote
constructive debate and
effective decision making.
Ensuresthe Group’s corporate
governanceisinline with best
practice. Ensures effective
stakeholder communication
and that Directors understand
views of major investors.
Ensures Directors receive the
required information to fulfil
their duty to promote
SEGRO’s success.

Chief Executive

Recommends the Group’s
strategy to the Board and is
responsible forits
implementation and for the
Group's overall performance.

Manages the business of
the Group.

Ensures that the interests of the
Group's stakeholders are taken
into account with regards to
the long-termimpact of the
Board's decisions.

Executive Directors

Manage the business
operations within each
Director’s area of responsibility
inaccordance with the
Group's strategy.

Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director

Acts as a sounding board to the
Chair and anintermediary for
other Directors.
Available to shareholders to
convey concerns to the Board,
other than through the Chair or
the Chief Executive.
Leads the Chair's annual
appraisal by the Non-Executive
Directors, and
chairs the Nomination
Committee when it considers
his succession.

Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Bring independent judgement
and scrutiny to the decisions
taken by the Board.

Monitor the success of
management in delivering the
agreed strategy within the risk

appetite and control framework
set by the Board.

Company Secretary

Advises the Board and guides
the Company on all matters of
good governance.

Ensures timely and appropriate
information flows within the
Board, its Committees and
between the Directors and
senior management, as well as
compliance with relevant
statutory and regulatory
requirements.

T1

N

N

Audit Committee
Monitors the integrity of the Group’s Financial Statements, reviews
the relationship with the auditor and the role and effectiveness of
the internal audit function. Oversees the risk management
process and internal control environment.

Committee report Page 116

Nomination Committee
Ensures that the Board, its Committees and the Leadership team
have the appropriate skills, knowledge, diversity and experience to
operate effectively and to oversee the delivery of the strategy.

Committee report Page 111

Remuneration Committee
Determines the reward strategy for the Executive Directors to
align their interests with those of shareholders and employees.

Committee report Page 123

L1

Executive Committee

Assists the Chief Executive with the development and implementation of Group strategy, the management of the business and the discharge of responsibilities delegated by the Board.

A

A

A

A

Health and Safety Committee
Develops and manages the
implementation of Health and Safety
policies, reviews the outcomes of the
Health and Safety Working Group as
well as any other Health and
Safety matters.

{

Operations Committee
Assists the Chief Operating Officer to
manage the operations of the Group
andto discharge the responsibilities
delegated to him by the
Chief Executive.

Risk Committee
Establishes, monitors and reports to
the Executive Committee and
ultimately the Board and Audit
Committee onthe Group’s approach
torisk management.

Investment Committee
Manages the allocation of capital
across the Group and oversees all
major investment and divestment

decisions on behalf of the Executive
Committee.

Technology Committee
Manages the Group’s Digital and
Technology strategy, and ensures that
activity within this domainis aligned
with this strategy.
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Key activities of the Board during 2022

The following pages show how the Board spent its time during 2022:

Enabling extraordinary things: Governance

A focused and active Board - key milestones during 2022

30 June 2022
Board changes

18 February 2022
2021 Full-Year results

The Board approved the 2021 Full-Year Results.

21April 2022

AGM

SEGRO welcomed shareholders back to our
firstin-person AGM since 2019 and provided
arecorded webcast on the website for those
unable to attend.

1April 2022

Board changes

Andy Harrison was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director.

4 May 2022
2021 Final dividend

169,

A Final Dividend of 16.9 pence per share
was paid to shareholders.

15 June 2022

Disseldorf, Germany

The Board travelled to Dusseldorf for the June
Board meeting, where they toured assets, met
with the local management team and a key
supplier, and held an employee engagement
session with local employees.

Gerald Corbett retired from the Board and
Andy Harrison succeeded him as Chair.

28 July 2022

2022 Half-Year results

The Board approved the 2022 Half-Year
Results.

23 September 2022
2022 Interim dividend

S o

An Interim Dividend of 8.1 pence per share
was paid to shareholders.

26 September 2022

Paris, France

The Board travelled to Paris for the September
Board meeting, where they met with the local
management team, toured assets and held an
employee engagement session with local
employees.

15 November 2022

Strategy Day

The Board spent a day and a half offsite at the
annual Strategy Day. See page 94.

Matters considered

- Compliance with the requirements of the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code) and
updates on corporate and regulatory
changes and reporting requirements.

- Internal Board Evaluation process for 2022,
including progress against actions from the
2021 External Evaluation.

- Chairand Non-Executive Directors’ fee
review.

- Chair'sinduction.

- Succession planning for Board and
Leadership team.

- 2022 Annual General Meeting (AGM).

- Principal risks and risk appetite, risk control
and framework.

- Update to Schedule of Matters reserved for
the Board and Board Committees’ Terms of
Reference.

- Update on SEGRO plc Group-wide Dealing
Policy and Board refresher training on Market
Abuse Regulation.

Outcome

- Ensured compliance with the Code
through robust governance procedures.

- Concluded that the Board and its
Committees continued to operate
effectively.

- Ensured that fees for the Chair and Non-
Executive Directors remained appropriate
and aligned with the Remuneration Policy.

- Onboarded the new Chair through a
comprehensive induction programme
allowing him to become effective in his
position as quickly as possible.

- Ensured that an effective succession plan
was in place for the progressive refreshing
of the Board and Leadership team.

- Returned to in-person AGM for the first time
since 2019.

- Broadcasted a recording of the AGM via the
SEGRO website to allow shareholders who
did not wish to attend in person to view the
proceedings.

- Approved the Principal Risks and risk
appetite of the Company.

- Ensured ongoing compliance with market
best practice.

- Ensured thatinternal policies remained fit for
purpose and that PDMRs were well informed
of their obligations.
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Strategy Operational

Matters considered

- Annual presentation from the Company’s
brokers (UBS and BAML) on the markets
and sector in which the Company operates,
and the wider macroeconomic environment
and outlook.

- Heathrow strategy update.

- Data centre strategy update.

- Review of key customer exposure.

- Review of investment stance.

- Post investment review of acquisitions
and disposals.

Outcome

- Received regular updates from advisers,
industry experts and employees to ensure
the Board is kept up to date with market
trends and implement this knowledge in
its decision making.

- Considered the key strategic priorities of
the business and ensured they remained
appropriate.

- Ensured that the Group’s exposure to key
customers remained within the agreed
tolerance.

- Reviewed regularly the Company’s
investment stance to ensure it remained
appropriate given the changing market
circumstances.

- Considered annually the outturns of
acquisitions and developments, taking
onboard any learnings as appropriate.

Data centre visit

As part of the Strategy Day, the Board spent
time reviewing our data centre strategy and
visited one of our data centre customers on
the Slough Trading Estate.

Matters considered

- SEGRO Ukraine Response.

- Presentations by the Northern European
and Central European teams.

- Tours of assets in Dusseldorf, Cologne,
Paris and Slough.

- SELP annual update.

- Asset disposal plan for 2022.

- Review of the Annual Health and Safety
report and monthly incident reports.

- Approval of acquisitions, disposals and
developments over £/€100 millionand
regular summaries of decisions taken by the
Investment Committee.

Outcome

- Considered the underlying macroeconomic
issues resulting from the Ukrainian conflict
and potential impacts on the business,
the communities in which we operate and
our employees.

- Kept up to date on the operational aspects
of the business by the local teams.

- Had visibility of key customers and
engagement through the Business Unit
presentations.

- Ensured that the Group’s assets remained
appropriate.

- Monitored performance against the
Company'’s Zero Tolerance approach to
health and safety breaches, and reviewed
key findings and learnings fromincidents.

- Approved significant transactions over
£/€100 millionin line with Delegation of
Authority, including assets in France and
Germany, and reviewed at each Board
meeting the approvals granted by the
Investment Committee to maintain a
comprehensive view of upcoming projects.

Financial

Matters considered

- Results and dividends.

- Funding and liquidity review.

- EMTN programme and new debt issue.

- US Private Placement.

- Presentations from the Company’s
independent valuers, CBRE.

- 2023 budget and ESG targets.

- Tax strategy.

- Treasury update.

Outcome

- Approved the Half- and Full-Year
Financial Statements and Annual Report
and Accounts.

- Approved dividend payments
throughout 2022.

Closely monitored liquidity through regular
reviews of cash flow position, committed
capex and development pipeline.

- Approved the launch of the Euro Medium
Term Note (EMTN) Programme and
subsequentissue of €1.15 billion senior
unsecured Green Bonds and £350 million
senior unsecured bond.

- Supported the issue of €750 million
unsecured Green Bondsin SELP.

- Approved US Private Placement of €225

million debt issue.

Reviewed and challenged the valuation

process and results of the valuation.

Kept up to date with future trends and

market cycles and implemented this

knowledge in its decision making.

- Approved the 2023 budget and ESG targets.

- Approved the Tax Strategy and Treasury Policy.
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Key activities of the Board during 2022
continued
Stakeholder engagement People and culture
Matters considered Outcome Matters considered Outcome

- Responsible SEGRO updates on the three

strategic priorities:

- Championing low-carbon growth;

- Investing in our local communities and
environments; and

- Nurturing talent.

- Presentation from Partnership Development
Director and Managing Director, Group
Operations on Community Investment
Plans (CIPs).

- Broker presentations on shareholders’/
analysts’ attitudes to the Company and
feedback from Investor Relations following
the Full- and Half-Year Results.

- Report on s172 activities.

- Andy Harrison met with four shareholders
following his appointment as Chair.

- Meeting with supplier, Goldbeck.

- Meeting with customer, Deliveroo.

- Visit to data centre customer, Virtus.

- Workforce engagement sessions.

- Results of the annual Customer Satisfaction
Survey.

- Updated Modern Slavery and Human
Trafficking Statement.

- Update on Anti-Bribery and Corruption
policies.

- Ensured that the Responsible SEGRO
priorities were at the forefront of the Board's

mind when making decisions during the year.

- Heard about the ways in which the business
had delivered positive social impacts across
employment, economy and environment
in the communities in which we operate.

- Valued the opportunity to meet directly with
anumber of key stakeholders and gained a
greater understanding of their perspective
onissues thatimpacted them.

- Considered the impact of Board decision
making on our key stakeholders.

- Gave the Non-Executive Directors the
opportunity to engage directly with the

workforce and hear their views on key topics.

- Reviewed Customer Satisfaction Survey
results to ensure excellent service is
provided to maximise customer retention.

- Ensured compliance with the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics and Anti-
Bribery and Corruption policies and noted
no reports from the externally-managed
whistleblowing line.

Sustainability

Matters considered

- Responsible SEGRO updates on
Championing low-carbon growth.

- Board training on climate change and
sustainability delivered by CBRE.

Outcome

- Monitored progress against the
Responsible SEGRO ambitions and target
of net-zero carbon emissions by 2030.

- Enhanced Board's knowledge and
awareness on ESG and Sustainability
matters which better informs Board debate
and decision making.

- Considered potential impact of
sustainabilitTuirements on asset values.

- Responsible SEGRO updates on
Nurturing talent.

- Talent, diversity and inclusion.

- Succession planning.

- Board Diversity Policy.

- Workforce engagement sessions.

- New Bonus targets including ESG targets
and personal performance elements.

Board visit to asset in Germany.

- Oversight of, and input into, the people
aspects of the business.

- Continued with the Non-Executive Directors’
workforce engagement sessions which
proved to be valuable and insightful.

- Listened to employee feedback from the
2021 session on Remuneration and revised
Bonustargets to include ESG targets and
more emphasis on personal performance.
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Frequency and review type

Year 1: External Year 2: Internal Year 3: Internal

In line with the provisions of the Code, we
undertake an externally facilitated evaluation

every three years. In the two intervening years,

internal reviews of the Board, its Committees
and the individual Directors are carried out.

The last externally facilitated evaluation was
carried out by Independent Audit in 2021.

This year, we undertook an internal review led
by myself as Chair, with the support of our
Senior Independent Director, Martin Moore,
and Company Secretary, Julia Foo.

There were a number of stages to the
evaluation process as set out here:

Overview of 2022 Internal Board evaluation process

Stage 1

I met with Martin and Julia to discuss our
initial thoughts about the internal review
process. We sought input from David
Sleath, as Chief Executive, and agreed
that Martin should again lead the review
with support from Julia.

The Board felt that the last internal review,
which was led by Martinin 2020 and
comprised one-to-one interviews with the
Board and other key employees, had
worked well and a similar approach was
followed. Ahead of the interviews, each
participant was asked to complete a short
questionnaire to help focus the
conversation.

Stage 2
We agreed the themes that the review
would focus on, some of which included:

- Board dynamics and working together
effectively;

- the composition and balance of the
Board and its Committees;

- Committee performance;

- theindividual participation and
contribution of Board members;

- the induction and experience of new
Board members, including myself as
Chair;

- stakeholder interests;

- people strategy; and

- the balance of time spent between
‘value creation”and ‘'value maintenance’
topics.

We felt that this was an appropriate
combination of topics which would allow
us to seek views on both strategic items as
well as day-to-day tasks.

—

Stage 3

In order to inform and guide the
discussions during the interview stage
of the evaluation process, all Board
members, as well as Julia and our former
Group HR Director, were asked to
complete a short online questionnaire
where they rated and provided feedback
on a selection of statements. They were
also given the opportunity to raise any
other issues that they wished to discuss.

Stage 4

The responses to the online questionnaire
were collated and analysed. Martin and
Julia met with each of the participants on
aone-to-one basis to discuss and gain a
deeper understanding of their feedback.

Stage 5

Martin and Julia prepared a draft report,
which summarised the outcome of the
guestionnaires and interviews, on an
anonymous basis, which was discussed
with me.

Separately, Martin and I met to discuss the
Board's feedback on my performance as
Chair over the first few months of my
appointment, and | met with David to
share feedback on his performance as
Chief Executive.

Y

Stage 6

The final report was prepared and
presented at the December Board
meeting where time was allocated for an
open discussion on the conclusions of the
review and recommendations for the
coming year, which are set out overleaf.

hd .

— Conclusions of the 2022 review

The overall picture from the review was

positive with the key outcomes summarised

below:

- The Board'’s culture was overwhelmingly
described as positive and collaborative,
and participants felt that there was a good
balance of skills on the Board and its
Committees.

- There were constructive relationships
between Board members which
permitted the appropriate level of
challenge and debate in discussions and
decision making, with Directors able to
contribute effectively based on their
diversity of skill sets and experiences.

- Board meetings were effectively run with
asensible balance between strategic and
business as usual items. The quality of
papers supported effective discussions,
decision making and future planning.

- The enhanced stakeholder engagement
programme was valued by the Board
which appreciated the benefit of meeting
first hand with customers. Feedback on
the workforce engagement programme
was positive, with the Non-Executive
Directors valuing their sessions with
employees from across the business
and expressing a desire to continue this
engagement in the coming year.

- Support frominternal and external
experts on topical issues was
appreciated and further contributed to
effective Board debate.

- The Committees operated effectively,
discharged their respective duties in the
right way and were well-chaired. There
was also scope to consider streamlining
the membership of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee to make
more efficient use of Board resources.
Following further Board discussions and
given the changes which are anticipated
to take effect later this year, the Board is
satisfied that this action has been
addressed, though it will continue to
keep committee membership under

review as appropriate.



110 SEGROplc
Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Internal Board evaluation
continued

Actions fromthe 2022 review

As ever, the evaluation process provided a
helpful opportunity for the Directors to stand
back and reflect, consider how they work,
how to maximise the Board's strengths, and
highlight areas for future development.

The following areas will be considered or
continued during 2023:

- Succession planning - dedicate additional
time on the Board agenda to succession
planning discussions, inclusive of reviewing
the skills and experience for any longer-term
Non-Executive Director appointments as
well as wider Leadership team
considerations.

- Stakeholder engagement - maintain the
programme of regular stakeholder
engagement to enable the Board to hear
from our key stakeholders and industry
experts on areas of interest, allowing deep
dive sessionsinto areas of relevance to
enhance Board discussion and thinking.

- Strategy - maintain focus on key strategic
agendaitems and succinct summaries in
Board and Committee papers.

Actions against these objectives will be
considered by the Board throughout the year
and reported in the 2023 Annual Report.

Andy Harrison
Chair

Review of the conclusions of the 2021 review

Overview Strategic Report Governance Financial Statements Further Information

In December 2022, the Board also revisited the conclusions of the 2021 external review to ensure that during the year it had satisfied its goal to
spend more time considering the topics identified:

What the Board said they would like to do
in2022:

What the Board did in 2022:

Inviting external speakers to share their views
on key strategic matters to stimulate out of the
box thinking and enhance Board discussion.

A number of employees and key advisers were invited to present on their specialist areas at
Board and Committee meetings. This allows the Board to keep up to date with developments and
provides the background necessary to enable effective Board discussions and decision making.

As detailed on page pages 106 to 108, the Board heard from our valuers, CBRE, brokers, Bank
of America and UBS, external auditor, PwC, and internal auditor, KPMG, in 2022.

A number of internal and external speakers were also invited to join the Board at the 2022
Strategy Day to provide insight into their areas of expertise and provide additional context for
the Board discussions that followed. You can read more about the Strategy Day on page 94.

Maintaining the programme of regular
stakeholder engagement.

Whilst visiting the Dusseldorf office in June, the Board made time to meet with key supplier,
Goldbeck, to hear about innovation opportunities, including their sustainability approach,
initiatives and alignment with our own Responsible SEGRO ambitions. They discussed
challengesin the market, such as heightened inflation and increased construction costs,
as well as health and safety approaches.

At a breakfast deep-dive session, some of the Board also met with the Global Property Director
at Deliveroo to hear about their business model and future plans for the business. This provided
valuable insight into our customers’ needs and concerns.

Afull report of the Board's engagement with our stakeholders is on pages 97 to 103 of this report
and case studies on the Board’s engagement with the workforce are on pages 99 and 136.

Rigorously maintaining focus on key strategic
agenda items and succinct summariesin
Board and Committee papers.

The Chief Executive’s report is well received as it provides a summary of business activity and
sets out the key topics for each meeting.

Presenters are regularly reminded to maintain focus on succinct summaries in their papers to
enable even more effective decision making by the Board and its Committees.

Creating more opportunities to visit first-
hand the Company’s assets and operations
in Continental Europe and meet with
colleagues, where appropriate, given the
pandemic recovery.

The Board is delighted to have been able to resume overseas visits and, during the year, travelled
to our offices in both Dusseldorf and Paris to hold Board meetings.

As part of the tours the local teams organised visits to a number of sites across our portfolio.

In Germany they visited properties in DUsseldorf, a light industrial park in Cologne and SEGRO
Logistics Park in Krefeld, and took the opportunity to visit customer facilities, which included
afood services supplier, a television production sound stage and an audio equipment supplier.
In France, they visited SEGRO Parc des Petits Carreaux, where they were shown examples of the
team reinventing the park through refurbishment and landscaping, as well as SEGRO Park Paris
les Gobelins, SEGRO Logistics Park Aulnay and SEGRO Logistics Park Garonor, where they also
visited one of our manufacturing customer’s facilities.

There were also many opportunities to meet with local colleagues, either through presentations
atthe Board meetings themselves, during the asset tours, informally around the office or during
the workforce engagement sessions.
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Nomination Committee Report

Andy Harrison
Chair of the Nomination Committee

Committee membership

Key responsibilities

Andy Harrison (Chair from 30 June 2022)'

Composition of the Board and its Committees

Mary Barnard

Appointment of new Directors

Sue Clayton

Carol Fairweather

Simon Fraser

Induction of new Directors and ongoing training
requirements for individual Directors and the Board
asawhole

Martin Moore

Oversight of the Board Diversity Policy

Linda Yueh

1 Gerald Corbett (Chair until 30 June 2022)

Succession planning for the Board, Group HR Director
and Company Secretary

Oversight of the development pipeline for the Leadership
team and talent development programme for the wider
workforce

Composition, skills and experience 112
Directors’ Independence 12
Diversity 13
Director re-election at the 2023 AGM n4
Continued development and training 14
Succession planning 15
Andy Harrison'’s Induction 15

e

Attendance at scheduled Board meetings
Seepage 93

Overview Strategic Report Governance

Dear shareholder,

I am delighted to present my first Nomination
Committee (the Committee) Report to
shareholders, in which we set out how the
Committee has discharged its responsibilities
throughout 2022.

During the year, the Committee has fulfilled
its role of overseeing the composition of the
Board and its Committees, and monitoring the
balance of skills, experience, independence
and knowledge as well as the diversity of its
members in its broadest sense.

It has acted in accordance with its Terms of
Reference, which were updated during the
year to ensure ongoing alignment to best
practice, and can be found at www.SEGRO.com.

As you will have read, I joined the Board in April
2022 and was appointed as Chair of the Board
and the Committee when Gerald Corbett
stepped down at the end of June. Shareholders
can find the full process which was followed
for my appointment on page 129 of the 2021
Annual Report and Accounts.

Since joining the Board, | have enjoyed
acomprehensive induction process which
is detailed on page 115.

Re-appointment of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Typically, a key area of focus for the Committee
each year would be the re-appointment of
Independent Non-Executive Directors who
have reached the end of their three-year
term. As reported last year, Mary Barnard
reached three years’ service in March 2022
and the Committee agreed that her term
should be extended.

Financial Statements Further Information

No further Directors reached the end of their
term during the year. Instead, the Committee
focused on succession planning, as detailed

on page 115, and prepared for the upcoming

retirement of the Chief Operating Officer and
Senior Independent Director.

Chief Operating Officer

In September 2022 we announced the
decision of our Chief Operating Officer, Andy
Gulliford, to retire from the business in 2023.

Andy joined SEGRO in 2004 and held a variety
of positions before being appointed to the
Board in 2013. During his tenure he has played
avitalrole in SEGRO's success. His extensive
knowledge of the Company and the real estate
sectorsin both the UK and Continental Europe
has beeninvaluable to the Board.

Please join me in thanking Andy for his
contribution and hard work over the years
and wish him all the best for the future.

Senior Independent Director

Martin Moore joined the Board in July 2014
and took on the role of Senior Independent
Director in April 2018. He has brought extensive
experience of the property industry to the
Board and made insightful contributions to
Board discussions.

We are aware of best practice and the Code
provision, which states that Non-Executive
Directors should not be considered independent
after completing nine years’ service and,
accordingly, with effect from1July 2023, Martin
will step down as Senior Independent Director
and Carol Fairweather, Independent Non-
Executive Director and Chair of the Audit
Committee will take on the role.

Martin remains a valued member of the Board
and its three Committees and his retirement
will be announced later in the year.
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Nomination Committee Report
continued

Committee effectiveness

As part of the internal Board evaluation
undertaken during the year, detailed on pages
109 and 110, the operation of the Board
Committees was considered. The review
concluded that the Committee continues to
operate effectively and provides updates on its
activities at each subsequent Board meeting.

Looking ahead

In 2023, the Committee will continue to focus
on both succession planning and Board
diversity for the longer term.

Andy Harrison
Chair of the Nomination Committee

Overview Strategic Report

Governance

Financial Statements Further Information

What the Committee
did in 2022

Throughout the year, the Committee has:

- reviewed succession planning for the
Directors, the Group HR Director and the
Company Secretary;

- overseen succession planning for the
Leadership team;

- overseen the talent development plan for

the wider workforce;

reviewed the size and composition of the

Board and its Committees, including the

independence of the Directors;

- reviewed the effectiveness of the
Committee;

- reviewed the skill sets and diversity of the

Board members; and

recommended that all the Directors stand

for re-election at the 2023 AGM.

Composition, skills and experience

The Committee comprises the Independent
Non-Executive Directors and is chaired by the
Chair of the Board.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board is made
up of a Non-Executive Chair, three Executive
Directors and six Independent Non-Executive
Directors, all of whom are equally responsible
for the effective stewardship and leadership
of the Group.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the
skills and experience of the Board members,

as well as the size of the Board as a whole and
determined that it remained appropriate. The
Committee reflected on the diversity and skill
sets of Board members as part of the Board's

medium- and longer-term succession planning.

Skills and experience of Directors

Independence

e

1. Independent Chair (1) 10%
3. 2. Independent Non-Executive Directors (6)  60%
3. Executive Directors (3) 30%

Number of Directors

1. FTSE Listed Executive

2. Real Estate

3. Banking/City

4. Finance/Accounting/Audit
5. Customer experience

6. International

7. Remuneration

oo lwlolug

Age

45-50 (1) - 10%
51-55 (1) - 10%
oo I
66-70 (1) - 10%

40%

Directors’ Independence

The Board is made up of a majority of
Independent Non-Executive Directors, which
promotes the good governance of the
Company by ensuring that the Executives are
held to account and are not able to dominate
Board decision making.

The Committee considers each of the
Non-Executive Directors to be independent in
character and judgement in accordance with
the criteria set out in the Code. The Chair was
considered independent on appointment and
the Committee still considers him to be so.

Prior to their appointment, the Directors must
disclose any actual or potential conflicts of
interests and any future business interests
that could result in a conflict must not be
undertaken without the prior notification to
and authorisation of the Board. The Board
considers and approves the conflicts of
interest as notified by any Director at each
Board meeting.

Tenure

Executive Directors

1 months
Andy Gulliford _ 9 years,
7 months
Soumen Das 5 years,
- 1 months
Non-Executive Directors
Martin Moore _ 8 years,
5 months
Carol Fairweather 4 years,
- 1 months
Sue Clayton 4 years,
- 6 months
Mary Barnard 3 years,
- 9 months
Simon Fraser . 1years,
7 months
Linda Yueh 1years,
. 7 months
Andy Harrison I O years,
8 months
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Diversity

The Directors are committed to having a
balanced Board which recognises the benefits
of diversity in its broadest sense and the value
that this brings to the organisation in terms of
skills, knowledge and experience.

The composition of the Board exceeds the
criteria of both the Hampton-Alexander Review
on gender balance and the Parker Review on
ethnic diversity. As at 31 December 2022, 40
per cent of the Board were female and 20 per
cent were from an ethnic minority background.

When searching for an additional Director,

the Committee is mindful of the advantages
adiverse Board brings, and ensures that in
selecting and briefing executive search firms,
the importance of diversity and inclusion are
highlighted at the outset. The Committee
particularly considers how it describes the
skills and experience needed for the roles as
this helps attract as wide a pool of candidates
as possible. Only executive search firms who
have signed up to the Voluntary Code of
Conduct for Executive Search Firms will be
used in the recruitment of Directors. In the final
selection decision, all Board appointments are
made on merit and relevant experience,
against the criteria identified by the Committee
with regard to the benefits of diversity in the
widest sense, including gender and ethnicity.

The Board aspires to promote greater diversity
across the business which, as you will have
read on page 39, forms part of the Nurturing
talent strategic priority of our Responsible
SEGRO framework. During the year, the Board
received an update from the Group HR Director
on our progress against these objectives. They
also discussed the results of the employee
survey ondiversity and inclusion.

For further information about the Company’s
approach to diversity and inclusion, see pages
40and 41.

Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rules

The Committee is mindful of the new Listing
Rules and amendments to the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules, which
came into effect for accounting periods
starting on or after 1 April 2022 and will apply
to the Company from the 2023 financial year.

The Committee has demonstrated its support
of the FCA’'s aim to encourage increased
transparency around diversity reporting at a Board
and senior management level by proactively

reporting onthe requirements in this year’s Report.

As at 31 December 2022, the Board had already
met two out of the three criteria set outin the
Listing Rules, as 40 per cent of the Board
members are women and two members are
from an ethnic minority background. From 1July
2023, the Company will be fully compliant as
Carol Fairweather has been appointed Senior
Independent Director with effect from this date.

The Company collects the data used for
the purposes of making this disclosure from
Directors and executive management on
avoluntary basis.

Board Diversity Policy

The Committee is responsible for monitoring
the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy
(the Policy), available to view on the Company’s
website, www.SEGRO.com, which sets out the
Company'’s approach to diversity in respect

of the Board of Directors.

The Policy incorporates a broad range of
diversity factors as set out in the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules, specifies
targets with which the Board aims to comply,
and considers how the Policy is applied to
the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration
Committees as well as the Board as a whole.
It was last updated during 2022. The Committee
considers that the Policy is appropriate and
aligned with best practice and will keep it
under periodic review.

Allinformationin charts 1to 4 below is as at 31 December 2022:
Chart 1: Reporting table on sex/gender representation

Number of

Number senior Numberin % of

of Board positions executive executive
Gender Members %ofBoard ontheBoard" management? management
Men
(including those self-identifying as men) 6 60 4 3 60
Women
(including those self-identifying as women) 4 40 0 2 40
Non-binary 0 0 0 0 0
Not specified/prefer notto say 0 0 0 0 0
Chart 2: Reporting table on ethnicity representation

Number of

Number senior Numberin % of

of Board positions executive executive
Ethnicity Members %ofBoard ontheBoard' management? management
White British or other White
(including minority-white groups) 8 80 3 3 60
Mixed/Multiple Ethnic Groups 0 0 0 0 0
Asian/Asian British 2 20 1 2 40
Black/African/Caribbean/Black/British 0 0 0 0 0
Other ethnic group, including Arab 0 0 0 0 0
Not specified/prefer notto say 0 0 0 0 0

Chart 3: Gender balance of senior management
directreports®

; A

68%

1. Male(13)

Chart 4: Gender balance of total workforce

1_ .

1. Male (207)

49%

2. Female (6) 32%

2. Female(218) 51%

1 Senior positions on the Board include the Chair, Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer or Senior Independent Director. The
Company has announced that Carol Fairweather will be appointed Senior Independent Director with effect from 1 July 2023, at
which point we will comply with the requirement to have one female in a senior Board position.

2 The Executive Committee, comprising the three Executive Directors and the Group HR Director, and the Company Secretary are
considered to be the Company’s executive management as defined by the Listing Rules and senior management as defined by the

Code.

3 Thesenior management’s direct reports (who include members of the Leadership team) are the next layer of management below

senior management.
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Time commitment

As part of the recruitment process, the significant
time commitments of potential Board members
should be disclosed to the Committee. On
appointment, the Chair and Non-Executive
Directors receive a formal letter of appointment
clearly setting out their expected time
commitment to the Company and any additional
future commitments should not be undertaken
without prior notification to the Board.

Executive Directors are permitted to hold one
external directorship as approved by the Board.

The Committee has considered the additional
commitments of all Directors and has
concluded that each of them has sufficient
time to commit to the Company and are not
overboarded. Their individual contributions
are, and continue to be, important to the
Company’s long-term sustainable success.

For transparency we disclose all external
appointments held by our Directors in their
biographies on pages 92 and 93; however
many of these appointments do not require
the same time commitment as appointments
to publicly listed companies.

Appointments during the year

Andy Harrison was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 April
2022 and succeeded Gerald Corbett as Chair
on his retirement on 30 June 2022. In appointing
Andy, the Committee followed a thorough and
robust search process led by Senior Independent
Director, Martin Moore. Full details of the
process, which took place in 2021, is on page
129 of the 2021 Annual Report and Accounts.

Director re-election at the AGM

Each year, the Committee considers the skills
and performance of each Director and, having
concluded that they continue to be effective
and demonstrate commitment to their roles,
makes a formal recommendation to the Board
that they be re-elected. The Committee has
concluded that all Directors continue to be
effective in their roles and accordingly will
submit themselves for re-election by
shareholders at the 2023 AGM.

Non-Executive Directors are appointed by the
Board for three-year terms. At the conclusion
of each term, the Committee undertakes a
review of their performance and contribution
before making any recommendation to the
Board for their reappointment.

Induction programme

Onjoining the Board new Directors participate
ina comprehensive induction programme
designed to familiarise them with the
Company, its assets, policies and procedures,
and to introduce them to employees and key
advisers, in order to assist them in becoming
effective in their role as quickly as possible.

As part of the induction process, they are
provided with detailed information on the
Group, its policies and its governance structure
by the Company Secretary.

They will also meet with the Executive Directors,
the Heads of Function covering all aspects of
the business and the Company’s valuers,
brokers, and the internal and external auditors.

The induction of Andy Harrison as Chair was

a key area of focus for the Committee during
the year and full details of his tailored induction
programme can be found opposite.

Overview Strategic Report Governance

Continuing development and training

To ensure the Board continually updates and
refreshes its skills and knowledge, ongoing
training and development supportis provided
to the Board during the year. The Board is
regularly briefed on business-related matters,
governance, investor expectations, legal and
regulatory impacts. Both the Audit and
Remuneration Committees received updates
on relevant accounting and remuneration
developments, evolving market trends and
changing disclosure requirements from
external advisers and management.

Directors may request training on specific
issues with some attending external courses
(often provided by our professional advisers).
From time to time, meetings with specialists
inthe business are arranged for Directors

who may wish to gain a deeper insight into

a particular topic. The Directors may raise any
training needs with the Chair which helps to
ensure that the training programme meets the
needs of the Board, Directors and the business.
The Directors have access to the advice of

the Company Secretary and independent
professional advice is available at the
Company's expense, if necessary, in fulfilling
their duties and responsibilities.

In order to further enhance their knowledge
and stay abreast of the enhanced regulation
and disclosure requirements on ESG, a subject
of importance for many of our stakeholders,
the Board participated in a training session on
sustainability and climate change delivered
by CBRE. The session also focused on how
sustainability factors could have an impact

on asset values.

Additionally, Board members received an
annual refresher training on Market Abuse
Regulation from the Company Secretary.

Financial Statements Further Information

Director effectiveness
The performance and individual contribution
of each of the Directors is reviewed annually.

The Senior Independent Director led the
appraisal of the Chair, incorporating feedback
from the other Board members, and
concluded that he was effective in his role.

The Non-Executive Directors agreed that the
Chief Executive continued to perform his role
with energy and commitment and leads an
effective Executive team.

The performance of the other Non-Executive
Directorsis appraised by the Chair and Senior
Independent Director, whilst the Chief
Executive gives feedback about the other
Executive Directors.
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Succession planning

The Committee is responsible for the effective
and orderly succession planning for Directors,
both Non-Executive and Executive, the Group
HR Director and the Company Secretary.

It monitors the tenure of Directors to ensure
that it plans sufficiently in advance of retirements
from the Board to ensure orderly succession
of Non-Executive Directors. All the Directors
stand for election or re-election at each AGM.

Along with considering Board succession,

the Committee oversees the development

of a strong pipeline of diverse and talented
individuals below Board level. It reviews regularly
the quality of the Leadership team and senior
managers as it recognises the importance of
creating and developing a suitably talented,
diverse pipeline of leaders ready to serve as
the next generation of Directors.

The Chief Executive, supported by the Group
HR Director, presents to the Committee on
Leadership team succession planning and the
talent development programme for the wider
workforce. For Executive Directors and for roles
inthe Leadership team, plans are in place for
both sudden, unforeseen absences, and for
longer-term succession. These form the basis
of development plans for our most talented
people and will ensure that, looking forward,
we have the right people to deliver our strategy.

We encourage regular contact between
management and the Board. This may be by
way of a Board presentation, a tour of assets
or aone-to-one session with Non-Executive
Directors to discuss a specificissue.

Andy Harrison’s Induction

Onjoining the Board, all new Directors participate in a comprehensive induction programme which is essential in order to assist them in
becoming effective in their role as quickly as possible. SEGRO’s induction programme for each incoming Director is built around a series
of meetings with the other Executive and Non-Executive Directors, the Executive Committee, the Company Secretary and other members
of senior management, as well as site visits to get to know our assets and meetings with relevant external advisors.

Chair
Prior to Gerald's retirement, he worked closely with Andy in order to
facilitate a smooth handover and transition of responsibilities.
Gerald gave an overview of how the Board operates, its style and
culture, as well as key issues facing the Board for the coming year and
the work of the Nomination Committee.

Chief Executive
Andy and David met regularly to discuss strategy and key areas of focus for
the Company in the coming year. David briefed Andy on the business and
provided an overview of our Responsible SEGRO strategy.
In addition to these one-to-one sessions, Andy and David travelled together to
our Milan and Paris offices, where Andy was introduced to the local teams and
visited some of the assets in our portfolio.

Senior Independent Director
As Senior Independent Director, Martinactsas a
sounding board for the Chair. As well as meeting to

Non-Executive Directors
Andy met individually with each of the Non-Executive
Directors who provided background on their individual

discuss the current priorities of the Board, Martin
and Andy worked closely on the Internal Board
Evaluation process during Andy’s first year.

Chief Financial Officer
Chief Financial Officer, Soumen Das, gave an
introduction to the finance teams, investor and analyst
feedback, investment market analysis, financial
performance and budget, the SELP joint venture and
our Digital and Technology function.

Executive Committee
Andy received an overview of our legal structure, Code
of Ethics and whistleblowing policies from the former
General Counsel as well as anintroductionto our HR

Responsible SEGRO from the Group HR Director.

Shareholders
Following his appointment as Chair, Andy wrote to ten
of our largest shareholders to invite them to meet with

Andy Harrison,
Chair

In2022, we welcomed
Andy Harrison as our new
Chair. He joined the Board

asan Independent

Non-Executive Director
on1Apriland succeeded

Gerald Corbett on his

retirement on 30 June.

Andy participatedin
abespokeinduction
programme designed
to provide him with the

areas of expertise and discussed their views on key issues.
Committee Chairs Carol Fairweather and Simon Fraser
brought Andy up to speed on the Audit and Remuneration
Committees respectively.

Chief Operating Officer
Anoverview of the operational structure, operational
performance, strategy and key areas of focus as well as an
overview of the Company’s approach to our customers
and Health and Safety was provided by Chief Operating
Officer, Andy Gulliford.

Company Secretary
As Company Secretary, Julia outlined the Company’s
governance framework, the work of the Board and its
Committees and their engagement with stakeholders, as

policies, workforce engagement, approach to tne%ess?rylbatctgroutnhd well as the outcomes from the previous year's External
remuneration and the Nurturing talent element of (r)olee g?cl\{wi\%;o?SeEoGnROe Board Evaluation, investor feedback from the 2022 AGM

and training on our Market Abuse Regulation policies.

External Advisers
Many of the Company’s external advisers including the
Internal and External Auditors, Valuers, Brokers and

him and discuss their views on the Company. Four
shareholders accepted the invitation and Andy met
with themin the second half of the year.

Remuneration Committee Advisers spent time with
Andy to share their market expertise relevant to the
Company.

Senior Management
Andy also met with the Managing Directors of each Business Unit, Group
Investment and Group Operations, the Commercial Financial Director, Head
of Investor Relations, Operations Finance Director, Head of Tax, Group
Financial Controller, Director of Digital and Technology, and Director of
Marketing and Communications to hear about the key factors in their
individual areas.

Site visits
Throughout his first year, Andy spent considerable time visiting our offices and
assets to hear from local employees on the ground and meet with some of our
customers. As well as visiting our offices in Prague, Milan, Barcelona and
Madrid with David, he toured assets in Paris, DUsseldorf and Cologne with the
Board and visited a data centre in Slough as part of the Board Strategy Day.
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Audit Committee Report

Carol Fairweather
Chair of the Audit Committee

Committee membership

Key responsibilities

Carol Fairweather (Chair)
Mary Barnard

Sue Clayton

Simon Fraser

Martin Moore
Linda Yueh

Financial reporting process 18
Viability statement and going concern 18
Fair, balanced and understandable 18
Significantjudgements made in 2022 119
External audit 120
Internal audit 121
Valuers 122
Internal controls and risk management 122

Oversight of internal and external audit processes and
independence of the external auditor

Monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the
Group including reviewing significant judgements

Reviewing internal controls and risk management systems

Advising the Board on the statements made in the Annual
Report and Half-Year Report on viability, going concern,
risk and controls and whether the statements are, when
taken as awhole, fair, balanced and understandable

e

Attendance at scheduled Board meetings
Seepage 93
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Dear shareholder,

As Chair of the Audit Committee (the
Committee), | am pleased to present the
Committee’s report for 2022.

During the year, the Committee has acted

in accordance with its Terms of Reference,
which were updated during the year, and can
be found at www.SEGRO.com.

Qver the following pages you will see how the
Committee has discharged its responsibilities,
as well as other areas which it has focused on.

Composition

The Committee is made up entirely of
Independent Non-Executive Directors and
each Committee member has considerable
commercial knowledge and broad industry
expertise.

| satisfy the Code requirement to bring recent
and relevant financial experience to the
Committee, with different financial expertise
and experience provided by both Simon Fraser
and Linda Yueh. Martin Moore and Sue Clayton
each bring a wealth of property experience
and Mary Barnard has extensive commercial
and general management experience.

The Board is satisfied that the Committee as a
whole has the relevant competence to properly
discharge its duties.

Meetings

The Committee met formally three times during
the year and provided updates to the Board on
its activities at each subsequent meeting.

Outside of the scheduled meetings, we can
also use time set aside for Board meetings to
discuss any matters that arise in real time.

Financial Statements Further Information

As usual, our external and internal auditors
joined the meetings throughout the year,
together with a number of employees from
across the business. We continue to find this
incredibly valuable as it allows us to see the
pool of talent within the Company, and
facilitates a greater depth of discussion and
debate on some specialist topics.

In 2022, we were joined by the Group Financial
Controller and Head of Financial Reporting to
consider the accounting judgements and
treatments that have been adopted for
particular transactions. The Head of Tax
provided an update on developmentsin the
current tax landscape, the Group's tax strategy
and an overview of significant tax issues or
changes that could potentially impact the
Group's tax charge. The Head of Technology
delivered his annual update to the Committee
ondevelopmentsin cyber security threats,
the continued investments by the Company
in response, including enhancing team
resourcing with the appointment of a
dedicated Senior Engineer for Cyber Security,
and the current status of cyber security
defences. The Head of Legal presented on the
Group Legal function and material litigation
matters. Further regular updates were also
provided to the Committee on the risk
management process, internal controls and
anti-bribery and corruption.

In addition to scheduled meetings, | speak
regularly with the Chief Financial Officer and
Group Financial Controller to discuss any
topicalissues that should be brought to the
attention of the Committee.

We are aware of the recommendation from
proxy voting agency ISS that audit committees
meet at least four times annually. We feel that
we currently have the appropriate balance of
scheduled Committee meetings and time
available for ad hoc discussions to properly
meet the needs of the business. However,
should the need arise (as demonstrated in
2020 due to the global pandemic) additional,
formal meetings will be convened.
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Andy Harrison was appointed as Chair of the
Board in June 2022 and as part of hisinduction
process, which you can read about on page
115, I met with him to brief him on the activities
of the Committee and current topical matters.

What the Committee did in 2022

A comprehensive list of the Committee’s
activities during the year can be found on the
right, some highlights include:

- Tender of the internal auditor

One area of focus was the tender of the internal
auditor. KPMG was re-appointed as internal
auditor for a minimum three-year term
following a robust tender process led by myself
and supported by Sue Clayton, Non-Executive
Director and member of the Committee, the
Chief Financial Officer and Group Financial
Controller. You can read about this process

in further detail on page 121.

- Climate-related disclosures

We described in last year’s report how the
Committee had considered the newly
introduced Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD) requirements.
We continued to focus on developmentsin
this area and the Commercial Finance Director
and Director of Sustainability attended a
Committee meeting to provide an update on
sustainability and TCFD disclosures in the 2022
Annual Report and Accounts to confirm
ongoing compliance and assurance.

Committee effectiveness

As part of the internal Board evaluation
process, the operation of the Committee was
considered (see pages 109 and 110) and was
deemed to be operating effectively.

Discharge of responsibilities

The quality of debate and challenge amongst
the Committee, management and the internal
and external audit teams, together with the
comprehensive information provided to the
Committee has assisted us in appropriately
discharging our responsibility.

I would like to thank all those who have
contributed to the Committee this year for
their efforts.

Looking ahead
In 2023, the Committee will:

- continue to follow the ongoing discussions
on audit reform and respond appropriately
to any recommendations; and

- welcome Richard Porter as the lead audit
partner for the external auditor and work
closely with PwC to ensure a smooth
transition of responsibilities.

If you have any questions on the Audit
Committee or the contents of this Report,
docontact me on
companysecretariat.mailbox@SEGRO.com.

Carol Fairweather
Chair of the Audit Committee

Overview Strategic Report Governance
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What the Committee did in 2022

Throughout the year, the Committee has:

- reviewed and monitored the integrity of the

Financial Statements including reviewing

significant financial reporting judgements

and estimates made by management, to
ensure that the quality of the Company'’s
financial reporting is maintained, in the

Company'’s Half- and Full-Year Financial

Statements;

assessed the objectivity, independence and

competence of the external valuer of the

Group's property portfolio and gaining

assurance around the valuation process;

- ensured compliance with applicable
accounting standards, monitoring
developmentsin accounting regulations as
they affect the Group and reviewing the
appropriateness of accounting polices and
practicesin place;

- ensured ongoing compliance with legislative
requirements such as TCFD reporting;

- monitored matters relating to tax including

REIT status and other significant open

matters;

reviewed the recognition of the

performance fees due from SELP, which are

highly sensitive to valuation movements
creating estimation uncertainty;

monitored the effectiveness of the Group’s

risk management systems and considered

the adequacy of the process being
undertaken to identify risks and mitigate the
exposure of the Group to them;

- reviewed cyber security processes and the
continued investment in this area to respond
toincreasing trends in cyber threats;

- engaged with PwC in relation to the
selection and transition of lead audit partner
in2023;

- undertook the tender of internal audit
services and re-appointed KPMG as internal
auditor;

ensured the process followed to support the

making of the going concern and viability

statements remained robust and was
correctly followed;

- ensured appropriate safeguards are in place
for the detection of fraud and prevention of
bribery. This extends to responsibility for
overseeing and monitoring the Group’s
Anti-Bribery and Corruption policies and
procedures contained in the Company’s
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics;

- reviewed the adequacy of internal financial

controls and broader internal control

systems;

examined the performance of the external

and internal auditors, their objectivity,

effectiveness and independence, as well

as the terms of their engagement and scope

of the external and internal audit plans;

reviewed the Policy for Approval of Non-

Audit fees;

- monitored the ratio and level of audit to
non-audit fees paid to the external auditor
and agreed their remuneration for the year;

- analysed and challenged the results of

internal audit reviews and management’s

plansto resolve any actions arising from them;
advised the Board on whether the process
supporting the preparation of the Annual

Report taken as a whole, is appropriate to

allow the Board to conclude that the Annual

Reportis fair, balanced and understandable

and provides the information necessary to

shareholders to assess the Group's position,
performance, business model and strategy;
and

- reviewed and updated the Committee’s
Terms of Reference to ensure that we
remained aligned with market best practice.
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Financial reporting process

A key area of responsibility for the Committee
is the monitoring of the integrity of the
Company’s Financial Statements and any
formal announcements relating to the
Company'’s financial performance, as well as
reviewing any significant financial reporting
issues and judgements contained therein.

The Group has long-established internal
controls and risk management systems in
relation to the process for preparing the
Financial Statements. Various checks on
internal financial controls take place
throughout the year, including internal audits
which are detailed further on page 121.

Developments in accounting regulations
and best practice in financial reporting are
monitored by the Company and, where
appropriate, reflected in the Financial
Statements. Training is also provided to the
finance teams and the Committee is kept
appropriately informed.

The financial reporting from each Business
Unit is reviewed by alocal Finance Director
prior to being submitted to the Group Finance
function.

The results of each Business Unit are subject to
further review by the Group Finance function.

The results are then consolidated by Group
Finance and are subject to various levels of
review including by senior members of the
Finance team.

The draft consolidated statements are
reviewed by various individuals including
those independent of the preparer. The
review includes checking consistency
internally, with other statements and with
internal accounting records.

The Committee and the Board review the
draft consolidated Financial Statements.
The Committee receives reports from
management and the auditor on significant
judgements, changes in accounting policies,
and other relevant matters relating to the
consolidated Financial Statements. The
Financial Statements are also subject to
external audit.

Viability statement
and going concern

The Committee is responsible for ensuring
that the process put in place to allow the
Board to make the viability statement on page
75 remains robust, in line with market practice
and is correctly and properly followed.

The Committee reviewed the process which
included extended scenario analysis and is
comfortable with the process followed to
make the viability statement and has
confirmed this to the Board.

The Committee reviewed the
recommendation setting out the support
for adopting the going concern basisin
preparing the financial statements. The
Committee confirmed to the Board that the
recommendation was appropriate. The
Board's statement is set out on page 60.

Viability statement
Page 75

Going concern
Page 60

Fair, balanced and
understandable

The Code requires the Board to confirm that
they consider, taken as a whole, that the
Annual Report is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company’s position, performance, business
model and strategy.

In order to enable the Board to make this
confirmation, the Audit Committee has
oversight of the process which has been
followed, whereby the section owners and
independent reviewers confirm that in their
opinion and against an agreed list of criteria
the Annual Report s fair, balanced and
understandable. These criteria include:

- isthe whole story presented, with key
messages appropriately reflected?;

- does the Report properly provide the
necessary information, with a good level
of consistency, for stakeholders to assess
SEGRO as a business?; and

- isthe Report presented in straightforward
language, easy to understand and within
aclear framework?

The Committee reviewed the process that
management had undertaken to make the
statement, which included regular meetings
of the Annual Report and Accounts Working
Group during the drafting process to ensure
aconsistent approach, and confirmed to the
Board that the processes and controls around
the preparation of the Annual Report are
appropriate, robust and consistent.

The fair, balanced and understandable
statement is made on page 150.

e

Fair, balanced and understandable statement
Page 150
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Significant judgements made by the Committee in 2022

Significant matter

The action taken

Valuation of the property portfolio

Valuation is central to the business performance and is a significant estimate for the
Committee as it is inherently subjective, because the valuer must make assumptions
and judgements in reaching its conclusions.

Thisis a recurring risk for the Group as it is key to its IFRS profitability, balance sheet
portfolio value, net asset value, total property return, and employee incentives. It also
affects investment decisions and the implementation of the Company’s Disciplined
Capital Allocation policy. It is included on the Risk Register and the process risk map
as a potential key business risk.

The Committee ensured that there was a robust process in place to satisfy itself that the valuation of the
property portfolio by CBRE, aleading firmin the UK and Continental European property markets, was
carried out appropriately and independently.

The Chair of the Audit Committee met separately with CBRE in advance of the Committee meetings to review
the valuation process in detail and ensure the valuer remained independent, objective and effective.

Given the significance of this judgement, as in previous years, the full Board also met twice with CBRE to
review, challenge, debate and consider the valuation process; understand any particular issues
encountered in the valuation; understand the impact of climate change and sustainability requirements
on valuations; and discuss the processes and methodologies used.

The auditors also meet with the valuers, and they use the services of their own in-house property valuation
expert to test the assumptions made by CBRE. They report to the Audit Committee on their findings.

The Committee confirmed that it was satisfied that the valuation was not subject to undue influence and
had been carried out fairly and appropriately, and in accordance with the industry valuation standards, and
therefore suitable for inclusionin the Financial Statements.

For details of the Group’s properties and related accounting policies see Note 13 and Note 1 of the Financial
Statements. For details of the results of the valuation see Note 13 of the Financial Statements.

Accounting for significant and/or complex acquisitions, disposals and other
transactions

During the year, the Company made a number of property acquisitions and disposals
and carried out other transactions, which were large and/or complex. Certain
transactions were considered to be significant because of the level of materiality
involved and/or any unusual terms or conditions or judgements, and because of the
risks inherent in the accounting process, including when a transaction or revenue
should be recognised, and what the appropriate accounting treatment should be.

The accounting treatment of acquisitions, disposals and transactions themselves, is a
recurring risk for the Group and is considered to be significant, since an inappropriate
approach could cause a misstatement of the Group's financial position and/or results.
The application of the accounting treatment for each particular transaction is judged
onits own particular facts and circumstances.

The Committee considered the accounting treatment of key, complex transactions during 2022 including
the accounting treatment applied to acquisitions and disposals of various properties and the issue of debt.

Following a review of the accounting treatment for these significant transactions, in particular the point at
which each transaction should be recognised, the Committee was satisfied that all relevant matters had
been fully and adequately addressed and that the approach adopted by the Company was appropriate in
each case, and in accordance with IFRS.

For further details of the accounting treatment applied to such significant transactions, see Note 1and
Note 16 of the Financial Statements.

Recognition of performance fee income

A performance fee is payable from the SELP joint venture to SEGRO, subject to
meeting certain criteria, at the end of the ten-year performance period to October
2023. The calculation to determine the fee is an estimate dependent on a number of
factors including the probability and magnitude of future changes in property values
over the remaining performance period. Determining whether, and the extent to
which, a performance fee should be recognised gives rise to significant estimation
uncertainty.

The Committee considered the recognition of the performance fee in to date, by reviewing and challenging
management’s papers and judgements.

The Committee was satisfied that the accounting treatment and related disclosures met the revenue
recognition criteria in accordance with IFRS 15. For further details of the accounting treatment, see Note 1
and Note 7 of the Financial Statements.
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External auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) has
served as the Company’s external auditor
since the 2016, following a tender in 2015,
and the Committee continues to enjoy a
constructive working relationship with them.

The Committee Chair has regular discussions
with lead partner, John Waters, and his PwC
colleagues to discuss matters as they arise
throughout the year.

The Committee also regularly meets privately
with John to discuss PwC’s work and
observations on the Company.

No areas of concern were raised during
the year.

Oversight

PwC presented their audit plan for the year
which the Committee considered and
approved. The key areas of risk, which were
primarily identified as areas of judgement
and complexity, were highlighted by PwC and
were consistent with those areas identified
by the Committee.

The level of audit materiality was also discussed
and agreed.

PwC presented a detailed report of their audit
findings at the year end, which were reviewed
and discussed. A review of the external
auditor’s report was also undertaken by the
Committee at the half year. As part of this
review the Committee probed and challenged
the work undertaken and the findings and the
key assumptions made, with particular
attention to the areas of audit risk identified.

Effectiveness

The Committee assesses the effectiveness of
the external audit process on an annual basis,
by taking account of the views of management
involved in the audit and by reviewing a
number of factors including:

- performance in discharging the audit and
half-year review;

- independence and objectivity;

- robustness of the audit process, including
how the auditor demonstrated professional
scepticism and challenged management'’s
assumptions particularly in relation to the
valuation of the Group's portfolio, and the
recognition of performance fees from the
SELP joint venture;

- the quality of service and delivery, including
appropriate resources and skills for the
complexity of SEGRO’s audit; and

- reappointment and remuneration.

The Committee also noted the results of the
PwC Audit Quality Review inspection results
2021/22.

Independence

The Company complies with the Competition
and Market Authority Order 2014 relating to
audit tendering and the provision of non-audit
services. There are no contractual obligations
which restrict the Committee’s choice of
external auditor or which putin place a
minimum period for their tenure. The external
audit was last tendered in 2015 following which
the auditor changed in 2016 from Deloitte LLP
to PwC.

The Committee has no current plans to
re-tender the services of the external auditor
beforeitis required in 2025, as stipulated by
current regulation that requires a tender every
10 years. John Waters is in his fourth year as
lead audit partner and would be required to
rotate after five years. He has notified the
Committee of his intention to retire from PwC
in 2023 and will be succeeded in his role by
Richard Porter.

The Committee believes that the audit quality
and process benefits from the continuity,
stability and understanding of the business by
the PwC team, with an appropriate level of
challenge.

Remuneration

The Committee considers the remuneration of
the external auditor at least on a semi-annual
basis and approves its remuneration. It also
keeps under close review the ratio of audit to
non-audit fees to ensure that the
independence and objectivity of the external
auditor are safeguarded.

In 2022, fees for audit services amounted to
£1.31million and the non-audit fees amounted
to £0.32 million.

The increase in non-audit fees from 2021to
2022 is due to the two debt offering consent
procedures performed by PwCin 2022 (by
comparison, there was one debt offering in
2021) as well as an inflationary increase for
the half-year review. It is standard practice for
a Company’s external auditor to undertake
these tasks.

The non-audit fee for 2022 equates to nine
per cent of the average audit fees of the last
three years.

The chart below sets out the ratio of audit to
non-audit fees for each of the past three years.

2022 2021 2020
Audit fees (Em) 1.31 114 0.99
Non-audit fees (Em) 0.32 0.20 010

Ratio of non-audit fees
to audit fees (%) 24 18 10

The Committee has concluded that PwC
remains independent and objective, and that
the level of non-audit to audit fees is acceptable
for2022. PwC has provided written confirmation
of itsindependence to the Committee.

We have voluntarily provided details on the
fees relating to the audit of the Group’s SELP
joint venture with PSP Investments, for which
PwC is the auditor, in Note 6(ii) to the Financial
Statements. The Committee has no oversight
or control over these fees as the SELP joint
venture operates totally independently and is
not controlled by the SEGRO Group or the
Committee. The fees are provided solely for
information purposes and do not form part of
the audit fees nor are they included in the
calculation to determine the ratio of audit to
non-audit fees on an annual or three-year
basis for the SEGRO Group.
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Policy for approval of non-audit fees

The Committee considers the Policy for Approval
of Non-Audit Fees on an annual basis to ensure
that it remains fit for purpose.

The Policy, which is available on our website
at www.SEGRO.com, was last updated in
February 2023 to reflect the latest updates

to the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accounts (including International
Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standard Board for
Accounts (IESBA). The Committee is satisfied
that the Policy is appropriate.

The Policy sets out the very limited
circumstances where PwC may be appointed
to carry out non-audit services but only with
the prior consent of the Committee or the
Committee Chair, through delegation of
authority from the Committee.

There must be an obvious and compelling
reason why they should be appointed and there
should be no threat to the independence of PwC.

The impact on non-audit to audit fees must
also be considered, and fees incurred for
non-audit work must not exceed 70 per cent of
the average of the audit fees paid for the last
three consecutive years. All non-audit fees are
reported to the Committee.

Re-appointment

The Committee was satisfied with the
performance of PwC on the basis of the above
and recommended to the Board that it propose
to shareholders at the 2023 Annual General
Meeting that PwC should be reappointed for
the 2023 financial year.

Overview Strategic Report
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Internal auditor

The Committee believes that given the
Company'’s size and structure using a third
party to perform the internal audit function
continues to be the most appropriate model.
This provides independent challenge of
management and gives access to a wide
range of expertise.

KPMG has performed the role since its
appointment in 2007 and reappointments in
2014 and 2022 following a tender (see below).

During their tenure, there have been a number
of rotations of lead partners and audit managers
to ensure that a fresh perspective is given, and
theirindependence and scrutiny are
maintained.

Topicsincluded in the internal audit plan for
2022 were selected based on a review of the
Group’s principal risks, the timing of the
previous audit and advice on market insights
from KPMG. Significant areas are subject to
internal audit on a cyclical basis.

The proposed internal audit plan for 2022 was
considered and approved by the Committee
in December 2021.

Internal audits during 2022 included:

- Business continuity and disaster recovery;
- HR processes;

- VAT;

- Leasing;

- Payroll;

- Insurance captive;

- Procurement and suppliers;

- Service charge and recovery;

- Small country audit; and

- Cyber security.

Eachinternal audit during 2022 confirmed that
no significant control issues were identified.
However, a number of process and minor
control improvement points were identified
with follow up actions and timelines which
were regularly monitored by the Committee.

Feedback on the performance of KPMG for
eachinternal audit is given by the Company
and was largely positive and no areas of
particular concern have been brought to the
Committee’s attention. The lead KPMG partner
attends Committee meetings to present its
report and the Committee also meets privately
with him during the year. No matters of
concern were raised in the private meetings.

Internal audit tender

As referenced in last year’s Report, the provider
of internal audit services was last considered in
2014 and the Committee felt that 2022 was an
appropriate time to undertake a tender process
with a change in provider, if required,
commencing in 2023.

The tender was led by the Committee Chair,
assisted by a panel comprised of Non-
Executive Director and Committee member
Sue Clayton, the Chief Financial Officer and
Group Financial Controller.

Alist of potential tenderers was assessed
against criteria including geographical spread
and quality of specialisms. The panel was
cognisant that appointment as Internal Auditor
would preclude the firm from being appointed
as External Auditor, the tender for whichis due
in2025.

Following due consideration, the incumbent
KPMG and another large accounting firm were
invited to present to the selection panel. Their
presentations included a proposed internal
audit plan for 2023 and they were assessed
against the following criteria:

- team experience and capabilities;

- pan-European capabilities;

- specialist expertise in specific areas, such
as Treasury and Technology;

- industry knowledge and expertise;

- efficiency of processes; and

- nature and content of reporting.

Following the review of the proposal
documents and the presentations, the panel
decided to recommend that KPMG be
re-appointed as internal auditor for a minimum
term of three years, and the Committee
supported this recommmendation at the
December 2022 Audit Committee meeting.

Effectiveness of internal audit

The Committee believes that both the process
for determining the internal audit programme,
and the programme itself, are appropriate

and effective, and as in previous years the
programme will be amended during the year

if required to react to any new events or
information.

The Committee is satisfied that the internal
audit function continues to perform effectively.
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Valuers

The single mostimportant judgement that the
Committee and the Board has to make is the
value of the Group’s portfolio. The Committee
is assisted in reaching this judgement by its
external valuer CBRE, which has held this
position since 2012. CBRE was reappointed

in 2021 for a further four-year term, and the
Committee believes that they continue to be
effective in their role.

The effectiveness of the Group’s valuers is
assessed through regular meetings during the
year with the Chair of the Audit Committee and
supplemented by additional sessions with
management, and focused on the following:

- independence and objectivity;

- experience and qualification of the valuation
team;

- consistency of approach across each of the
countries in which the Group operates; and

- quality of data and materials, including the
two presentations to the Board.

As a result, the Committee concluded that the
external valuers performed to a high standard,
were independent, and that the well-run
process delivered a robust set of valuations.

The RICS is currently considering the updated
Valuation Standards following further
consultation on the Independent Review of
Real Estate Investment Valuations report
published in December 2021. SEGRO has
actively participated in this discussion and
awaits the outcome from the RICS.

Internal controls and risk management

Internal controls

The Committee is responsible for reviewing
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal
control systems, (covering all material controls
including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management
systems) on behalf of the Board.

At each meeting, the Committee receives an
update oninternal controls and regularly
reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control systems through
various activities including:

- reviewing the effectiveness of the risk
management process;

- reviewing and challenging management'’s
self-assessment of the internal controls
framework;

- reviewing the work undertaken by the
internal and external auditor, in relation to
internal controls; and

- the regular reporting on any control or
fraud-related whistleblowing issues.

Outcome

The framework for monitoring and maintaining
internal controls is considered appropriate for
a Group of SEGRO's size and complexity and is
designed to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

On the basis of the Committee’s work, it
confirms that it has not been advised of, or
identified, any failings or weaknesses which
it regards to be significant in relation to the
Group's internal control systems during the
year. It also confirms that the Group's internal
control systems have been in place for the
year under review and up to the date of
approval of this Annual Report and arein
accordance with the Guidance on Risk
Management, Internal Control and Related
Financial and Business Reporting issued by
the Financial Reporting Council.

Risk

The Board recognises that effective risk
management is key to the long-term
sustainable success and future growth of the
business and the achievement of the Group’s
strategic objectives (see pages 64 to 74). Itis
ever aware of the need to ensure that new and
emerging risks, as well as the more established
principal risks, are adequately managed and
mitigated. Risk management is therefore
embedded in the Company’s decision making
and culture, and robust systems have been put
in place to ensure this remains the case.

Thereis an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the principal risks
faced by the Group, which has beenin place
during the year, together with the means for
identifying those emerging risks which may
impact the Group in the future. These
emerging risks are discussed throughout the
business by the appropriate working groups,
conducting both horizon scanning and
discussions at a more granular level. The Group
Risk Management Committee monitors and
reports on the Company’s approach to risk
management as detailed further on page 64.

The Board assumes responsibility for the
effective management of risk across the
Group, determined by its risk appetite, as
well as ensuring that each business area
implements appropriate internal controls.

The Committee reviews regularly the
effectiveness of the risk management process
on behalf of the Board and is satisfied that it
remains robust for the financial year in question
and up to the date of this Report.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Letter from the Chair of the Remuneration Committee
- ~

Simon Fraser
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

-

-
B -

Committee membership

Key responsibilities

Simon Fraser (Chair)

Mary Barnard

Determine the remuneration for Executive Directors, the
Chair, the Company Secretary and the Group HR Director

Sue Clayton

Review the remuneration of the Leadership Team

Carol Fairweather

Martin Moore

Linda Yueh

Ensure Executive remunerationis aligned to the
Company’s Purpose and Values, and the delivery of its
long-term strategy

How we intend to apply the Policy in 2023

Oversee workforce remuneration and policies

Consider individual remuneration outcomes for the
Executive Directors

Remuneration ata glance 127
How we applied the Policy in 2022 128
Remuneration and strategy 134
Stakeholder Engagement 136
Directors’ Remuneration Policy - summary 143

e

Attendance at scheduled Board meetings
Seepage 93
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Dear shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present
our Remuneration Report for 2022.

linherited the Remuneration Committee in
2021 which was in good shape. It is well
constituted and has members with the
necessary and relevant experience. As such, |
was able to fully focus on shaping and finalising
the 2022 Directors’ Remuneration Policy (the
Policy).

The role of the Remuneration Committee is to
determine the remuneration policies and
practices which promote the long-term
sustainable success of the Company, which
are aligned with the Company’s Purpose and
Values and its strategy.

In the following pages you will see how the
Committee has discharged its responsibilities
as well as other key areas of focus in 2022.

Composition

The Committee is made up entirely of
Independent Non-Executive Directors. There
have been no changes to the composition of
the Committee during the year, providing
stable oversight of the Company’s
remuneration.

Area of focusin 2022

The Committee approved Executive Directors’
variable remuneration and annual salary
increases, approved all-employee awards
under the Company’s SIP, GSIP and Sharesave
schemes and reviewed the remuneration of
the wider workforce to ensure it remained
aligned with the structure of remuneration for
the Executive Directors.

The Committee also decided to amend the
individual limitin the Company’s Long Term
Incentive Plan to align it to the maximum level
of award permitted under the Policy submitted
to shareholders at the 2022 AGM. This change
was supported by nearly 99 per cent of
shareholders.

Financial Statements Further Information

Share price performance

As covered elsewhere within this Annual
Report, 2022 was characterised by a high level
of volatility in the capital markets, as central
banks responded to high inflation with
significant rises in interest rates alongside
heightened geopolitical uncertainty. This
affected the prices of all listed securities,
particularly in the real estate sector which is
perceived to be sensitive to the cost of funding.
As aresult, SEGRO's shareholder returnin 2022
(including dividends paid) was a disappointing
-46 per cent.

However, this should be viewed in the context
of our long-term strategy to deliver
outperformance through the cycle. SEGRO
shares have delivered a compound average
total shareholder return of +8 per cent per year
over the past five years and +16 per cent per
year over the past ten years, outperforming the
FTSE 350 REIT index equivalents of -4 per cent
and +4 per cent respectively.

Company performance

The capital market volatility also led to an
unprecedented disconnect between the
performance of the property investment
markets and the strength of occupier markets.
Theincrease in the cost of capital led to higher
yields on commercial properties causing a fall
in property valuations. Our portfolio was not
immune, falling by 11 per cent during the year,
although the impact of the increased yields
was tempered by strong market rental growth
reflecting the supply-demand tension in our
chosen markets and the prime nature of our
portfolio.

Notwithstanding the challenging external
factors SEGRO delivered strong operational
results during 2022, with occupier markets
continuing to be supported by long-term
structural drivers. High demand from a diverse
range of customers, combined with limited
supply, and the active asset management of
our portfolio and development programme,
resulted in a record level of rent roll growth and
contributed to strong growth in earnings.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
continued

This year hasbeena
difficult one with macro-
economic challenges,
uncertain markets and the
cost of living challenges
which are being
experienced by most. This
is likely to persist through
the next year and the
Committee remains open
to hearing from our key
stakeholders, in order to
understand and support
their needs along with
those of the Group, where
possible to ensure that the
remuneration framework
continues to be fit for
purpose and workforce pay
continues to align with
executive remuneration.

Simon Fraser
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Our focus on modern, sustainable assets in
markets with the highest rental growth
prospects, along with the expertise and
knowledge of our local teams across Europe,
allowed us to respond quickly to the changing
market environment and enabled us to deliver
progress on our financial and non-financial
priorities throughout the year.

Adjusted profit before tax increased by 8.4 per
cent to £386 million and adjusted earnings per
shareincreased by 6.5 per cent to 31.0 pence.
Adjusted NAV per share has fallen by 15 per
centto 966 pence, reflecting the decline in the
value of our portfolio. The balance sheet
remains in good shape with loan-to-value ratio
of 32 per cent. The Board is recommending a
final dividend of 18.2 pence per share, making
the full year dividend 26.3 pence per share, an
increase of 8.2 per cent.

Further information on these activities can be
foundin the Chief Executive’s statement on
pages 11to 13 and the Strategic Report.

Shareholders can find a summary of the
Group's key financial metrics which relate to
remuneration in the Remuneration at a glance
onpage 127.

Remunerationin 2022

Directors’ remuneration in 2022 was paid in line
with the Company’s existing Policy, which was
approved by shareholders at the 2022 AGM.

The remuneration framework for both our
Executive Directors and the wider workforce
is aligned with the strategic direction and
performance of SEGRO as well asin the
interests of our shareholders, and this is set
outinthe charts on pages 134 and 135.

As detailed on page 150 of the 2021 Annual
Report, the 2022 annual bonus for the majority
of the wider workforce includes personal
elements which make up a larger percentage
of their performance measures, allowing for
sufficient opportunity to recognise individual
performance.

Overview Strategic Report Governance

The profit element of the performance
measures was also changed from Business
Unit specific to Group wide measures in order
to encourage a‘One SEGRO’ collaborative
approach to working to deliver a great business
performance for all stakeholders. This was part
of the feedback received from and welcomed
by employees.

The Board and Executive team were mindful of
the cost of living challenges faced by
employees during the year and as such aone
off cost of living assistance payment of £1,250
(orthe equivalentinlocal currency) was made
to our lower paid employees.

Variable remuneration

Taking into account our strong operational
results and our performance versus the
financial and non-financial KPIs that were
within our control during a year of high
macroeconomic uncertainty, the Committee
has confirmed the following performance-
related payments to the Executive Directors:

- 2022 annual bonus
The annual bonus payment will be 95.3 per
cent of their maximum award (see page 129).

- 2020 LTIP performance
Vesting is calculated by reference to three
equally-weighted performance conditions.
The awards will pay out 100 per cent (subject
tothe final TPR and TAR data being available)
(see page 130). These awards are subject to a
two-year post vesting holding period. The
net amount of shares will be released at the
end of the holding periodin 2025.

Financial Statements Further Information

Recognising that the 2020 LTIP targets were
setin apandemic year, the formulaic
outcome of the results and the share price at
grant have been discussed and assessed by
the Committee with a view to any windfall
gains that might have occurred. The share
price increased approximately 1 per cent
from grant until the end of 2022 and reflected
the relative TSR as well as TAR and TPR
benchmarks. The Committee is satisfied that
a windfall gain has not occurred and so no
adjustment to the outcomes is considered
necessary. The Committee considers thisa
fair reflection of business performance
throughout the three-year performance
period.

Discretion

Shareholders have benefited from strong
returns with £100 invested in our shares on 31
December 2012 having returned £351
(including dividends, which have increased
every year for the last nine years) by the end
of 2022.

Giventhe returns for shareholders and the
Company'’s performance during the year, the
Committee considered that it was entirely
appropriate that the variable components of
pay for the Executive Directors pay out in
accordance with their respective
performance conditions having been met.

When approving these payments and
awards, the Committee considered whether
or not they represented a fair reflection of the
underlying performance of the business. It
was satisfied that the performance
conditions were reflective of the business
performance and no overriding adjustment
would have been appropriate.

- 2022 LTIP award
Each of the Executive Directors received an
LTIP award in March 2022 with three equally-
weighted performance conditionsin line
with the Policy.
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Remunerationin 2023
We will continue to operate Executive
Remuneration in line with the Policy.

Salary reviews

The Committee reviews the salaries of
Executive Directors and takes into
consideration the increases for all other
employees as part of the process. This year,
we have a tiered approach for employee
increases to recognise where our people are
remunerated relative to the market and also to
support our lower paid colleagues in dealing
with the cost of living challenges. Our salary
budget is approximately seven per cent higher
for 2023 than 2022, excluding the impact of
changesin employee numbers. The highest
increases are being awarded where salary
levels are below mid-market ranges.

Reflecting their performance and that of the
business, we have approved salary increases
of approximately five per cent to all three
Executive Directors to take effect from 1 April
2023 (see page 126).

2023 bonus targets

Targets for the annual bonus are set at the
beginning of the year. The measures of the
bonus for 2023 will remain as set outin the
Policy. The weighting of the annual bonus
performance measures Adjusted PBT and
rent roll growth comprising 37.5 per cent each
and ESG measures are responsible for the
remaining 25 per cent. This gives us the
opportunity to use the bonus scheme to focus
on our new Responsible SEGRO strategy and
the activities we need to drive in relation to
carbon reduction, community investment,
customer service and nurturing talent.

2023 LTIP awards

The Committee anticipates that it will make
awards in March 2023 in line with the Policy.
The level of award will be determined at the
time of grant and the Committee will assess
then whether a scale back in the normal LTIP
grantlevel is appropriate based on the share
price at the time of grant, compared to
recent years' prices, or whether a windfall
gain assessment should be considered after
the grant.

If the normal level remains appropriate then
thisis expected to be 300 per cent of salary for
the Chief Executive and 250 per cent for the
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer respectively.

Stakeholder engagement

As detailed last year our stakeholder views are
taken seriously by the Committee and the final
consultation for the 2022 Remuneration Policy
continued in early 2022. In total, holders of
approximately 65 per cent of our share capital
were consulted.

We sought the views of our own workforce on
Executive Remuneration during a dedicated
workforce engagement session carried out by
our Audit Committee Chair, Carol Fairweather,
and myself, details of which can be foundin the
case study on page 136.

Our biennial allemployee "Your Say’ survey
results were encouraging with aresponse rate
of 95 per cent and engagement score of 91 per
cent. This aligned with and was reflective of
what we experienced in the workforce
engagement session. For further information
on the engagement session see page 136.

Committee effectiveness

As part of the external Board evaluation
process, the operation of the Board Committee
was considered (see pages 109 and 110).

The Committee continues to operate
effectively and provides updates on its
activities at each subsequent Board meeting.
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Looking ahead
The key areas of focus for the Committee in
2023 will be:

- consideration of the increased inflation and
cost of living crisis and its impact on the
wider workforce;

- ensuring that the vesting of long-term
incentives in 2023 accurately reflect the
performance of the Executive Directors and
the experience of stakeholders;

- monitoring the progress against and
continued appropriateness of the ESG
targets; and

- monitoring emerging trends in
remuneration and corporate governance as
awhole.

Conclusion

If you have any questions about remuneration
generally, or the contents of this Report, do
contact me at

companysecretariat. mailbox@SEGRO.com.

I will be attending the AGM and will be pleased
to answer any questions that you may have
about the work of the Committee.

Simon Fraser
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Governance
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What the Committee
didin 2022

Key areas of focus for the Committee were:

- the approval of the Executive Directors’
annual salary increases, the approval of the
2021 bonus payments and the outturn of
the 2019 LTIP awards, along with the
approval of the 2022 bonus and 2022 LTIP
targets;

- the approval of the 2022 SIP, GSIP and
Sharesave awards and approval of the new
targets for the SIP and GSIP schemes in
2022;

- considering the remuneration
arrangements on the appointment of the
Group HR Director;

- the approval of the updated Terms of
Reference for the Committee;

- areview of the Non-Executive Directors
shareholding requirements;

- areview of the Chair’s fee;

- areview of workforce pay to ensure that it
continues to be aligned with the structure
of remuneration for the Executive Directors;

- noting the Group-wide all-employee 2022
salary review and the salary increases,
bonus and LTIP awards for the Leadership
team;

- receiving aremuneration trends update
from Korn Ferry on emerging themes and
best practice; and

- consultation on the 2022 Policy.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
continued

How we intend to apply the Policy in 2023

From 1 April 2023, all Executive Directors will receive an increase in The maximum bonus opportunity in 2023 is 150 per cent of salary as From 31 December 2022 all Executive Directors received cash in lieu
salary of approximately 5 per cent. at 31 December 2023 and is subject to the following three of pension to the value of 12 per cent of their base salaries. Thisisin
Base salarywith effect from1 April 2023 performance conditions: line with the UK workforce.
- - Profit - Adjusted PBT against target (37.5%)
David Sleath £782,500 - Rent Roll Growth (RRG) against target (37.5%)
Soumen Das £581,900 - ESG (25%)

Andy Gulliford £512,00

Any payments to be made under this bonus will be payable in 2024.
As targets are commercially sensitive, they are not disclosed at this
time but will be in next year's Report.

50 per cent of the 2023 bonus will be deferred into shares under the
DSBP. The 2023 DSBP will vest in April 2027, on the third anniversary of
the payment of the 2023 bonus.

LTIP award

The 2023 LTIP award for Executive Directors will be subject to the following equally-weighted performance conditions:
'

Total Shareholder Return (TSR) Total Property Return (TPR) Total Accounting Return (TAR)
This benchmark is based on the weighted market capitalisation TSR of ~ This benchmark is based on the MSCI All Industrial Country This benchmark is based on the market capitalisation weighted TAR of
the FTSE 350 REIT index, excluding SEGRO. benchmarks weighted to reflect the approximate geographical mixof ~ other FTSE 350 REITs.

the Group's portfolio.
20 per cent of this element vests if the Company’s TSR over the 20 per cent of this element vests if the Company’s TPR over the 20 per cent of this element vests if the Company’s TAR over the
performance period is in line with benchmark TSR, rising on a straight ~ performance period isin line with the MSCI Benchmark, rising on a performance period isin line with benchmark TAR, rising on a straight-
line basis to 100 per cent vesting if the benchmark is exceeded by 6 per straight-line basis to 100 per cent if the MSCI Benchmark is exceeded  line basis to 100 per cent vesting if the benchmark is exceeded by 2.5
cent perannum. by 1.5 per cent per annum. per cent per annum.

These awards will be calculated as a percentage of Executive Directors’ salaries as at 31 December 2022 and will be granted during 2023. In line with the Policy,
the Chief Executive will receive a maximum LTIP award of 300 per cent of salary and the other Executive Directors will receive a maximum award of 250 per cent of salary.

Dividends willaccrue on the gross number of LTIP shares which are released. The Committee will decide whether the payment will be made in cash or shares.

Non-Executive Directors

Fees Total fees with effect from 1 January 2023
Fees for the Chair and Non-Executive Directors are reviewed on an annual basis. The review of the fees paid Andy Harrison £367500
to the Chair is within the remit of the Committee, whilst the review of Non-Executive Directors’ feesis a Mary Barnard £69700
matter for the Board in the absence of the Non-Executive Directors. As detailed on page 139 of the 2021 -
Annual Report, the Chair's annual fee on appointment was £350,000. Sue Clayton £69,700
Carol Fairweather' £89,700
With effect from 1 January 2023, the Non-Executive Directors’ fees were increased by five per cent Simon Fraser £89,700
throughout, and were aligned to the Executive Directors’ pay increment. The Chair received a base fee Martin Moore' £87100
of £367,500 and the Non-Executive Directors received a base fee of £69,700, with an additional £17,400 - .
per annum for the role of the Senior Independent Director. In addition, we have approved a fee increase Linda Yueh £69,700
for the roles of the Chair of the Audit and Remuneration Committees of £20,000 to align with external , ) , A ) _ _ ,
benchmarking and to reflect the increase, over the last few years, in their responsibilities as well as their 1 Asdetailedon pageﬂ1,‘W|theﬁectfrom1July2023, M‘amn Moore will step down as Senior Independent D|reotorbutwﬂ|rema|n
time spent. as aBoard member until later in the year, and Carol Fairweather will take on the role of the Senior Independent Director as well

as continue to serve as the Chair of the Audit Committee. Their respective fees will be pro-rated and adjusted accordingly, and
reported in next year's Annual Report and Accounts.
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Remuneration at a glance

Group performance metrics

Adjusted profit before tax Rentroll growth

c330m 4% ¢/ /m

Total accounting return

13)% 10)«

Total property return

Total shareholder return

A0)

2021: £356m 2021: £72m 2021: 42.5% 2021:33.7% 2021:55%
Breakdown of Executive Directors’ 2022 bonus payment @® 1.Adjusted PBT 911%
total remuneration in 2022 2 RRG 100%
3.ESG 94.6%
David Sleath 1. 2 1 911%
Soumen Das 1. 2. 3.
2020 LTIP award payout ® 1.TAR 100%
2.TPR 100%
Andy Gulliford 1 2. 3 3.TSR 100%
1. 100%
Shortterm _—
Salary, Taxable Benefits and Pension Bonus 2020 LTIP

Fixed

Chief Executive

Workforce remuneration

£ 3,500k

2022 Single Figure

96o%

of salary held in SEGRO plc shares by Chief
Executive (Policy: 400%)

C. 3%

The average UK employee salary increase in
2022

£ 3,000

worth of free shares received by all eligible

employeesin 2022

C. 3% SAH

CEO Pay Ratio
(Median Pay Ratio)

Salary increase received by the
Chief Executive in 2022

100+

of eligible employees received a
bonusin2022

3%

of employees participate in one or more
all-employee share scheme
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
continued

How we applied the Policy in 2022

Executive Directors’ single total figure of remuneration (Audited)

Chart 1: Executive Directors’ single total figure of remuneration for 2022
In April 2022, the Executive Directors received a salary increase of approximately three per centin line with the average UK employee increase.

David Sleath Soumen Das Andy Gulliford Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
(£000) (£000) (£000) (£000) (£000) (£000) (£000) (£000)
EN  Salary 740 721 550 536 484 472 1,774 1,729
I Taxable benefits 21 21 18 20 21 21 60 62
EEN Pension benefits 148 144 110 107 97 94 355 345
Total fixed 909 886 678 663 602 587 2,189 2,136
I Single year variable' - Bonus, including DSBP 1,069 1,085 795 807 699 710 2,563 2,602
Multiple year variable? - LTIP 1,882 2,674 1,334 1,987 1,231 1,751 4,447 6,412
B Other - SIPand Sharesave 5 5 5 5 5 5 15 15
Total variable 2,956 3,764 2134 2,799 1,935 2,466 7,025 9,029
Total 3,865 4,650 2,812 3,462 2,537 3,053 9,214 1,165

1 TheSingle year variable and Multiple year variable figures for 2021 have been updated since the 2021 Annual Report as some values were estimated. For further information, see pages 129 and 130 respectively.
2 For furtherinformation on the 2022 Multiple year variable figure and share price appreciation on the 2020 LTIP Award, see Chart 6 on page 130.

Pension benefits (Audited)

Chart 2: Salary Each of the Executive Directors received cash in lieu of pension as detailed in Chart 1.

Base salary as at1April 2022

During the year, each of the Executive Directors received a cash allowance of 20 per cent of

David Sleath £745205  pasesalary. As previously reported, this was reduced to 12 per cent from 31 December 2022 to
Soumen Das £554740 align with the UK workforce.
Andy Gulliford £487705

There are no contractual arrangements that would guarantee a pension with limited or no
abatement on severance or early retirement.

Taxable benefits (Audited)

Taxable benefits include private medical healthcare, plus a cash allowance in lieu of a company
car. Executive Directors are entitled to life assurance which is not a taxable benefit.
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The bonusis paid 50 per cent in cash with the remainder awarded as shares under the DSBP. Shares will vest in three years subject to continued employment or good leaver status.

2022 Bonus

The 2022 bonus comprised of three components: Adjusted Profit Before Tax (PBT) 37.5 per cent; rent roll growth (RRG) 37.5 per cent; and ESG 25 per cent. The 2022 bonus payment will be

95.3 per cent of the maximum award.

The performance period for Adjusted PBT, RRG and ESG start from 1 January. The Adjusted PBT and RRG
outturns were calculated using a consistent exchange rate and also include adjustments for specific items
(including acquisitions and disposals made during the year) in accordance with the bonus scheme rules as
approved by the Committee and will be paid in April 2023, less a 50 per cent deferral for the DSBP.

The ESG element comprises six equally weighted, Responsible SEGRO measures.

Chart 3: 2022 Bonus

Bonus payments are calculated as a percentage of Executive Directors’ salaries as at 31 December of the
previous year. As explained on page 124, the Committee assessed the underlying performance of the
business and concluded that no discretion should be exercised in respect of the 2022 bonus.

The 2022 DSBP will be awarded in April 2023 and will vest on the third anniversary of the award date. Details
of the DSBP awards granted to Executive Directors are set out in Chart 13 on page 138.

Maximum Outcome

Bonus element Threshold 100% payout Actual Weighting achieved
Financial Element

Adjusted PBT Against Target £8372.9m 25% payout £395.3m £388.6m 375% 911%
Rent Roll Growth (RRG) Against Target £47.3m 25% payout £73.9m £75.0m 375% 100%
Non-Financial Element

ESG 25% 94.6%
- Improving visibility of Scope 3 operating carbon emissions in our buildings. 59% 69% 68% 100%
- Reducing corporate and customer carbon emissions. 285,897 tonnes (2022 pathway target) 272,788 tonnes (double the 2022 272,218 tonnes 100%

pathway reduction)
- Reducing embodied carbon emissions. 384kg (2022 pathway target) 376kg (double the 2022 pathway 353kg 100%
reduction)
- Creating and actioning Community Investment Plans. 6 completed CIPs (one per Business Unit) 10 completed CIPs (minimum one per 10 completed CIPs 100%
Business Unit)
- Providing excellent customer service. 75% customer satisfactionachieved =~ 90% customer satisfaction achieved on 85% satisfaction 75%
from surveys during the year average from surveys during the year
- Achieving high levels of employee engagement. 75% payout for achieving top quartile  100% payout for achieving top quartile Top quartile engagement 100%
position vs peers in overall employee position vs peers in overall employee andinclusivity
engagement engagement and oninclusivity

Total 100% 95.3%
Chart 4: Bonus Payment 2021

Updated 2021 Bonus (Estimated in 2021 Annual Report) Bonus element ©® 1 AdjustedPBT  100% 2.RRG 100% 3.TPR 100%
As previously reported on page 142 of the 2021 Annual Report, 100 per cent of the Adjusted PBT and 100

per cent of the RRG elements were achieved for the 2021 bonus and it was estimated that 100 per cent of Estimated
the TPR element would be achieved.
The MSCI TPR Benchmark has since been confirmed at 31.2 per cent, whilst the Company’s TPR was 36.8 Actual

per cent. The Company’s outperformance of the Benchmark by 560 basis points per cent resulted in 100 5% 50% 100%
per cent of the TPR element being achieved and therefore there has been no change in respect of the Thresk?old ° Maximam

estimates made in the 2021 Annual Report.

The Adjusted PBT and RRG elements of the 2021 bonus were paid in April 2022. The TPR element was paid
in June 2022 and shares were awarded under the DSBP on 27 June 2022.
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LTIP awards are subject to a three-year performance period and a compulsory two-year post-vesting holding period for Executive Directors.

LTIP vestingin 2023

The 2020 LTIP Award will vest on 26 March 2023, subject to relative TSR, TPR and TAR over the three-year performance period to 31 December 2022.

The 2020 LTIP Award will pay out 100 per cent (subject to the final TPR and TAR data being available).

Chart5:2020 LTIP Award

Threshold Stretch
Performance Conditions (25% vesting) (100% vesting) Weighting Outcome
TSR Benchmark Benchmark 33.3% 100%
-257% +6%pa
TPR? IPDBenchmark  IPD Benchmark 33.3% 100%
+1.5%pa
TAR® Benchmark Benchmark 33.3% 100%
+2.5%pa
Estimated vesting (% of award) 100%

1 The Company’s TSR over the performance period was -1.0 per cent and the benchmark TSR was -25.7 per cent. The Company’s
TSR targetis 6 per cent per annum above the benchmark, which equates to TSR of -11.5 per cent for this element to fully vest.

2 Theestimated TPR calculation is based on the Company’s actual annualised TPR between 2020 and 2022 of 25.6 per centand an
estimated MSCI Benchmark over the same period of 20.2 per cent. On this basis, the Company’s three-year TPR to 31 December
2022 has exceeded the estimated MSCI Benchmark by more than 1.5 per cent which would lead to 100 per cent of the TPR
element vesting. The benchmark will be available in quarter two 2023 and based on the information available at the time of
this Report the Committee has estimated that 100 per cent of this element will vest. Any differences will be disclosed in next
year's Report.

3 100 per cent of the TAR element will vest if the benchmark is exceeded by 2.5 per cent per annum. The benchmark will be
available in quarter two 2023 and based on the information available at the time of this Report the Committee has estimated that
100 per cent of this element will vest. Any differences will be disclosed in next year’s Report.

The Committee has the discretion to adjust awards downwards at vesting if it is not satisfied that the
outcomeis a fair reflection of underlying performance, or in the event of excessive risk taking or
misstatement. As explained on page 124, the Committee assessed the underlying performance of the
business and concluded that no such discretion should be exercised in respect of the vesting of the
2020 LTIP.

Once vested, the underlying number of shares under the award will be subject to a further two-year
post-performance holding period. The Executive Directors will continue to hold their award over the shares,
and will be entitled to the value of any dividend payments during the holding period; during this time they
will not be able to sell or transfer the shares under award. The award after vesting is not subject to any
further conditionality and the normal leaver provisions would not apply, meaning that if the individual
resigned during the holding period they would retain their award and be entitled to receive the underlying
shares at the end of the holding period. Only if the individual was summarily dismissed (for gross
misconduct) would the award lapse on termination of employment during the holding period.

Chart 6: Valuein Chart1 Totaldividend on
2020 LTIP award Share price Percentage of Percentage of Estimated share Estimated share Estimated share attributable to Dividend vesting shares
onaward salary awarded Number of award vesting price onvesting price appreciation price appreciation share price (pence (Gross)®

(pence) (%) shares vesting (%) (pence)’ (pence) (%) appreciation (£) per share)? (£)

David Sleath 786.8 250 219,877 100 7834 -34 -043 0] 727 159,851
Soumen Das 786.8 250 155,815 100 7834 -34 -043 0] 727 13,278
Andy Gulliford 786.8 250 143,788 100 7834 -34 -043 0] 727 104,534

1 Thevesting share price has been estimated as the three-month average share price ending on 31 December 2022.

2 Thefigurein Chart1includes a cash value of 72.7 pence per share, equivalent to the dividends that the Executive Directors would have received on the 2020 LTIP shares from the award date.

3 Thisamount is subject to Income Tax and National Insurance deductions.
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Updated LTIP vesting in 2022 (estimated in 2021 Annual Report) (Audited)

The 2021 Directors’ Remuneration Report estimated that the TPR element for the 2019 LTIP would vest at 100 per cent.

The Company’s actual TPR over the performance period was 21.2 per cent and the MSCI Benchmark was 16.5 per cent. The Company’s TPR outperformance of 4 per cent compared with the MSCI
Benchmark led to 100 per cent of the TPR element vesting.

Overall, this resulted in a total payout of 100 per cent for the 2019 LTIP as estimated. In the 2021 Annual Report the estimated vesting share price for the 2019 LTIP was 1,337.6 pence, and the figure
in Chart1has been re-presented to reflect the actual vesting share price of 1,091.94 pence.

2022 LTIP award (Audited)

The 2022 LTIP Award was granted on 5 May 2022 and is subject to the following equally-weighted performance conditions:

Total Shareholder Return (TSR) Total Property Return (TPR) Total Accounting Return (TAR)

This benchmark is based on the weighted market capitalisation TSR of ~ This benchmark is based on the MSCI All Industrial Country This benchmark is based on the market capitalisation weighted TAR
the FTSE 350 REIT index, excluding SEGRO. benchmarks weighted to reflect the approximate geographical mix of of the other FTSE 350 REITs.

the Group’s portfolio.
20 per cent of this element vests if the Company’s TSR over the

performance periodisin line with benchmark TSR, risingon a 20 per cent of this element vests if the Company’s TPR over the 20 per cent of this element vests if the Company’s TAR over the

straight-line basis to 100 per cent vesting if the benchmark is performance period isin line with the MSCI Benchmark, risingon a performance period isin line with benchmark TAR, risingon a

exceeded by 6 per cent perannum. straight-line basis to 100 per cent if the MSCI Benchmark is exceeded straight-line basis to 100 per cent vesting if the benchmark is
by 1.5 per cent per annum. exceeded by 2.5 per cent perannum.

The Chief Executive was awarded 300 percent of salary in respect of the 2022 LTIP and all other Executive Directors were awarded 250 per cent. Further details can be found in Chart 14 on page 139.

Malus and Clawback

Malus and clawback provisions apply to the bonus and awards made under the DSBP and LTIP MALUS CLAWBACK
over the time periods detailed below and may apply in the following circumstances: Bonus N Up to three years from the payment date
fraud . . duct th tof th tici t DSBP Until the award(s) vest -
raudor serious misconduct on the part of the participant; LTIP Until the award(s) vest Up totwo years from the vesting date

- aserious misstatement in the Company’s financial results;

- anerror in assessing performance conditions, resulting in an overpayment;

- when Company performance was achieved as a result of excessive risk taking;
- serious reputational damage; or

- corporate failure.
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Other - SIP and Sharesave (Audited)

The ‘other’ figure in Chart 1comprises SIP and Sharesave:

Share Incentive Plan (SIP) Sharesave (SAYE)

Thisis calculated as the number of shares awarded multiplied by the award price. Thisis the discount used to calculate the Option Price, multiplied by the Executive Directors’ annual savings.
During the year, SIP free share awards of £3,600 were made to eligible UK employees and Global Share All eligible UK employees are invited to join the SAYE annually, and can save up to a maximum of £500
Incentive Plan (GSIP) awards of £3,600 were made to eligible employees based outside of the UK. amonth across all open schemes.

The number of shares awarded was calculated using a share price of 1,115.1 pence, based on the five-day At the end of the three-year savings period they can purchase shares at the Option Price, based on a 20 per
average share price prior to the date of award. cent discount to the share price on award.

Alleligible employees, including the Executive Directors, received 322 shares in respect of the 2022 SIP The Option Price for the 2022 SAYE was 1,039.2 pence.

and GSIP.

Chief Executive

Chart 7 below shows the TSR for the Company over the last 10 financial years compared with the FTSE 350 REIT Index and the FTSE 100 Index. The Committee has determined that these indices
provide useful comparators as the Company and its peers are constituents of them.

Chart7:
Composite 10-year TSR chart and 10-year Chief Executive single total figure of remuneration
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2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Chief Executive single figure of remuneration (£000) David Sleath 1,370 2,043 2,388 3,788 4125 3,947 6,61 3,752 4,650' 3,865
Short-term incentive payout against maximum opportunity (%) David Sleath 754 66.7 100.0 99.2 100.0 943 100.0 912 100 95.3
Long-termincentive payout against maximum opportunity (%) David Sleath 0.0 429 423 1000 1000 100.0 100.0 100.0 100 100

1 Thisfigure has been updated since the 2021 Annual Report as some values were previously estimated. For further information see Chart 1.
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CEO pay ratio

The table below shows how CEO pay compares to employees at the lower, median and upper quartiles. The ratios have been calculated in accordance with Option A of the The Companies
(Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018, though the disclosure is made here on a voluntary basis as SEGRO falls below the qualifying threshold of 250 UK employees as determined by the
Regulations. We have again opted for Option A as the preferred method of calculation, as it is the most statistically accurate as recommended by the legislation.

Chart8:

CEO pay ratio 25th percentile Median 75th percentile
Method pay ratio pay ratio pay ratio

Year:

31December 2022 A 58:1 34:1 23:1

31December 2021 A 80:1 Al 271

31December 2020 A 641 371 231

31December 2019 A maA 70:1 40:1

31December 2018 A 65:1 411 24:1

The Chief Executive’s single total figure of remuneration for 2022, detailed further in Chart 1, has been used for the purposes of this calculation.
The CEO Pay Ratio has decreased when compared against last year. The reduction can partially be attributed to the lower estimated share price for the 2020 LTIP vesting in 2023.
The salary increase received by the Chief Executive in April 2022 was approximately three per cent, which was in line with the average UK employee increase in the same period.

SEGRO’s median CEO Pay Ratio is 34:1, which remains below the 2021 FTSE 100 median of 67:1 (source: High Pay Centre).

Chart9:

Relative importance of spend on pay 2022 2021 Increase
£m £m %

Total dividend 301.0 269.9 1.5

Totalemployee expenditure 56.0 505 109
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Aligning strategy, performance and remuneration outcomes

Remuneration and strategy
Our goalisto be the ‘best’ property company and the partner ‘of choice’ for our customers and other stakeholders. Fundamental to our strategy are four key pillars of activity which should

combine to deliver the value that we seek to create. Variable remuneration is aligned with KPIs on pages 20 to 23 that measure performance against our strategy, as set out below:

Our strategy

<

1 \-‘“ed capital allog,,..
. cC\P! At/
O n

Our strategy
Pages18and19

OurKPlIs
Pages20to 23

RESPONSIBLE

Our Strategic Pillars

Performance KPIs
measures

Operational
excellence

(>

Efficient capital &
corporate structure

(

EN
7

Disciplined
capital allocation

(>

Responsible
SEGRO

('\

\

Adjusted PBT (37.5%) Adjusted EPS

|

Rent Roll Growth (37.5%) Rent Roll Growth ||

ESG (25%) - Customer satisfaction | | ]
- Employee engagement | |
- Embodied carbon intensity ] ]
- Corporate and customer carbon emissions | |
- Visibility of customer energy use ] ]
- Number of Community Investment Plans ] | ]

Relative TSR over 3years Total shareholder return

(33.3%)

Relative TAR over 3years Total accounting return | |

(33.3%)

Relative TPR over 3years Total property return |

(33.3%)

PBT v Budget Adjusted EPS ]

All of the above performance measures are integrated directly into both Executive Directors’ and employees’ remuneration. See page 135 for a comparison of Executive Director and employee

remuneration components.
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Chart10: Salary/Fees Taxable benefits Annual variable pay
Percentage change in Directors’ remuneration compared to average employee (% change) (% change) (% change)

2022 20212 2020 2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020
Average per employee’ 77 4.2 6.0 24 124 20 01 94 20
Executive Directors
David Sleath 2.6 87 2.2 0.0 4.8 00 -1.5 1.3 -61
Soumen Das 2.6 141 -34 -11.3 -0.2 00 -1.5 16.8 -6.1
Andy Gulliford 27 8.8 2.3 0.0 1.8 00 -1.5 14 -6
Non-Executive Directors®
Andy Harrison? - - - - - - - - _
Mary Barnard 3.0 80 -06 - - - - - -
Sue Clayton 3.0 8.0 -06 - - - - - -
Carol Fairweather 3.0 8.0 -06 - - - - _ _
Simon Fraser* 3.0 - - - - _ - _ _
Martin Moore 3.0 8.0 -06 - - - - . -
Linda Yueh* 3.0 - - - - _ - _ _

The average per employee figure is based on UK employees who have been continually employed for the entirety of 2021and 2022 and entitled to receive annual variable payment. UK employees represent approximately 55 per cent of the workforce.

2 Between May 2020 and July 2020, all Directors waived 25 per cent of their salaries and fees and the Company matched a donation equivalent to this amount to the SEGRO Centenary Fund. This waiver is reflected in the 2020 numbers and accounts for the

appearance of the above average increase in 2021.

b w

Andy Harrison joined the Board as Director on 1 April 2022 and was appointed as Chair on 30 June 2022, accordingly there is no comparator for the previous years.
Simon Fraser and Linda Yueh were appointed as Independent Non-Executive Directors on 1May 2021, accordingly there is no comparator for the previous years.
Fees for Non-Executive Directors have been annualised. Non-Executive Directors do not receive any taxable benefits and do not participate in the bonus scheme.

Allemployees Element of remuneration

Increases approved by the Remuneration Committee Salary

Allemployees are eligible for Bonus Targets:
ESG, RRG, Profit, Personal Performance

Leadership team 25% Deferred for 3 years Deferred Share Bonus Plan

Leadership team and senior managers Long Term Incentive Plan

3-year performance period.
No holding period Targets: TSR, TPR, TAR

(UK)12% matched contribution Pension benefit

Maximum £3,600 Minimum 3-year hold Share Incentive Plan

(UK) £500/month 3-year savings period Sharesave

Executive Directors

Below overall budgeted employee increases

Maximum 150% Targets: ESG, RRG, Profit

50% Deferred for 3 years

Maximum 300% for the Chief Executive and 250% for others
3-year performance period,
2-year holding period Targets: TSR, TPR, TAR

12% cash

Maximum £3,600 Minimum 3-year hold

£500/month 3-year savings period
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Case study:
Employee share ownership

- SEGROis proud to operate two types of
all-employees share schemes. This encourages
employees to own sharesin the Company,
aligning their interests with our shareholders.
SIP/GSIP: all eligible employees can receive an
award of up to £3,600 worth of SEGRO shares
each year. These are held in Trust on their behalf
for a minimum of three years, following which
they can be released subject to continued
employment.

- Sharesave: all UK employees are invited to join
Sharesave on an annual basis, where they can
save up to £500 a month across all open schemes.
After three years, they can use their savings to
buy SEGRO shares at a 20 per cent discount to
the share price when they started saving.

37

of SEGRO employees participated in one or more
all-employee share scheme, as at 31 December
2022.

£3,000)

In May 2022, all eligible employees received the
maximum award of £3,600 worth of SEGRO shares
through the SIP or GSIP.

/ /%

of UK employees participate in Sharesave, saving
onaverage £345 each month.

5 : 9 m

As at 31 December 2022, there were 5.9 million
SEGRO shares under award in employee share
schemes, representing 0.5% of our issued
share capital.

@]

Stakeholder Engagement

The Committee has three primary
stakeholders:

Our shareholders

The Chairis committed to ensuring that
there is always an open dialogue with our
shareholders. The Committee values
shareholder engagement and the Chair is
available should shareholders wish to discuss
the Company’s approach to remuneration
or share their views on current practice or
emerging issues. In 2022, the Committee
continued the consultation with the
Company’s shareholders on the new
Remuneration Policy as detailed further
onpage 125.

Our directors
After each Committee meeting, the Chair
reports to the Board on any significant

Overview Strategic Report

decisions which willimpact on the Company
generally or on the principles of remuneration
for the Executive Directors.

Our people

The Committee’s remit includes considering
the remuneration framework for the workforce
and monitoring the remuneration arrangements
for the Executive Committee and the Company
Secretary. It ensures that workforce
remuneration is structured to reward everyone
fairly and, in a year of strong Company
performance, ensure that everyone shares
inits success. The reward framework for the
workforce is based on the Policy and mirrors
the structure which applies to the Executive
Directors, as shown on page 135.

The Company offers all-employee share
schemes to encourage employee share
ownership as described in the case study
ontheleft.

Governance
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Each year, when considering pay increases,
bonus awards and targets for the Executives,
the Committee receives a report from the
Group HR Director on remuneration for every
member of the Leadership team and a more
general report on pay across the Group.

To ensure that all employees are kept up to date
with Company performance and informed
about the impact this has on their variable
remuneration, the Executive Directors hold
quarterly briefings where they deliver updates
and communicate outturns for bonus, SIP/
GSIP awards and LTIP vestings to all
employees. At these briefings, employees have
the opportunity to ask questions on any topic.

Further details on how we engaged with the
workforce on Executive Remuneration during
the year can be found in the case study below.

Case study:

Workforce engagement on Executive Remuneration

As detailed on page 99, during the year the
Non-Executive Directors held a series of workforce
engagement sessions with a cross-section of
employees from across the business. In November,
Remuneration Committee Chair, Simon Fraser, and
Audit Committee Chair, Carol Fairweather, hosted
avirtual session to discuss Executive Remuneration.

Simon detailed the work of the Committee including
that undertaken as part of the consultation process
forthe 2022 Remuneration Policy before it went for

shareholders’ vote on 21 April 2022. The one-off cost
of living assistance payment was discussed and the
Directors acknowledged the uncertain time ahead
and the importance of taking into consideration the
rising cost of living and its impact on the wider
workforce. Employees agreed that the payment was
targeted at the right levels. They heard that visibility
of the complete remuneration package for
employees would be useful to provide a clearer
understanding of their total remuneration value. The
business has been making step changes towards
making remuneration, including share awards, more
visible and transparent for the wider workforce which
aligns well with the feedback received.

Directors heard that the addition of ESG as a
performance metric to the annual bonus was well
embedded within the business. The ESG
performance metrics were well aligned to our
Responsible SEGRO strategic priorities which was
part of the DNA and culture of the business. The
employees attending the engagement session
understood the criteria that made up the ESG

performance metrics however it was acknowledged
that consistency of communication across the
Group could be improved.

Employees highlighted that Responsible SEGRO
had enhanced the focus on Diversity and Inclusion
(D&I) and that the business was moving in the right
direction. The importance of diversity through the
recruitment process was also highlighted.

The Directors felt that these sessions remained
invaluable in understanding employees’ views on
Executive Remuneration, and appreciated the
insightful, open and honest feedback from the
group. The employees valued the opportunity to
share their views. Feedback from the session was
relayed to the Board and discussed at the December
Board meeting. Further details can be found on
page 99.
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Value of shares

Chart11:

Executive Directors’ overall interest in shares Beneficial Beneficial Subject to Shareswhich  which contribute
interests’ interests’ achievement of Options Total contribute to to shareholding

(including SIP (including SIP Subject performance Subject totwo outstanding overallinterest shareholding guidelines as at
shares) as at shares) as at to deferral conditions year holding under insharesasat guidelines as at 3112.2022°

01.01.2022 3112.2022 under DSBP under LTIP  period under LTIP Sharesave 3112.2022 3112.2022? (£)

David Sleath 702,155 734,939 159,920 597572 230,680 2,919 1,726,030 941,956 7192,776
Soumen Das 377122 401,567 ns5174 406,854 171,418 2,919 1,097,932 553,460 4,226,222
Andy Gulliford 694,627 716,203 104,605 370,509 151,036 2,670 1,345,023 851,693 6,503,525

1 Beneficial interests represent shares beneficially held by each Executive Director, including any shares beneficially held by spouses as well as shares held on their behalf by the Trustees of the SIP. Between 31 December 2022 and 16 February 2023, there were no
changesin respect of the Executive Directors’ shareholdings. The Trustees of the SIP held a non-beneficial interest in 455,342 shares as at 1 January 2022, 476,671 shares as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 455,342) and 465,530 shares as at 16 February 2023. The Trustees
of the SEGRO plc Employees’ Benefit Trust held 12,120 shares as at 1 January 2022 and 54,640 shares as at 31 December 2022 (2021:12,120). There was no change in their holding between 31 December 2022 and 16 February 2023. As with other employees, Executive
Directors are deemed to have a potential interest in these shares, being beneficiaries under these two Trusts. The Trustees of the SEGRO plc Employees’ Benefit Trust have waived the right to receive dividends on these shares.

2 Thenumber of shares which contribute towards the shareholding requirement comprise beneficial interests (including SIP shares), shares subject to deferral under DSBP and shares held under LTIP subject to the holding period, net of income tax and National

Insurance, but excludes shares subject to achievement of performance conditions under LTIP and options outstanding under Sharesave.
3 Value of shares calculated using a share price of 763.6 pence, as at 30 December 2022.

Policy on shareholding guidelines

The Chief Executive is expected to build a shareholding in the Company equivalent to 400 per cent of the value of his base salary, and the other Executive Directors are expected to hold shares
equivalent to 250 per cent of their base salaries, which is calculated each year by reference to the share price as at 31 December.

Shares which qualify towards the shareholding guidelines comprise: beneficial holdings; LTIP awards which have vested and are subject to a two-year post-vesting holding period, net of income

tax and National Insurance; and unvested shares in the DSBP, net of income tax and National Insurance.

Executive Directors are required to retain half of their LTIP and DSBP shares post vesting until the above guidelines have been met and are then maintained.

Chart12: ® Policy

Executive Directors’ shareholding and shareholding requirements Percentage of salary

David Sleath Policy: 400%

Soumen Das Policy: 250%

Andy Gulliford Policy: 250%

0% 200% 400% 600% 800%

1000% 1,200% 1,400% 1600%

Value of shares calculated using a share price of 763.6 pence, as at 31 December 2022.

The shareholding guidelines include a post-cessation requirement for Executive Directors to retain their shareholding, up to the amount required by the shareholding guidelines, for two years

after leaving the Company.
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Chart13: No. of shares over ) Face value of )
DSBP Awardsoutstanding B v e s S Rt G
Date of Grant 01.01.22 the year' (pence)? (£) the year (pence) 31.12.22 period
David Sleath 2018 DSBP 28.06.19 62,730 - 718.6 - 62,730 1,204.0 - 28.04.22
2019 DSBP 28.04.20 63,200 - 821.2 - - - 63,200 28.04.23
2020 DSBP 28.06.21 43,885 - 110.5 - - - 43,885 28.04.24
2021DSBP? 2706.22 - 52,835 10270 542,615 - - 52,835 28.04.25
Total 169,815 159,920
Soumen Das 2018 DSBP 28.06.19 46,615 - 718.6 - 46,615 1,204.0 - 28.04.22
2019 DSBP 28.04.20 44,786 - 821.2 - - - 44,786 28.04.23
2020 DSBP 28.06.21 31,099 - 110.5 - - - 31,099 28.04.24
2021DSBP? 2706.22 - 39,289 10270 403,498 - - 39,289 28.04.25
Total 122,500 115,174
Andy Gulliford 2018 DSBP 28.06.19 41,072 - 7186 - 41,072 1,204.0 - 28.04.22
2019 DSBP 28.04.20 41,329 - 821.2 - - - 41,329 28.04.23
2020 DSBP 28.06.21 28,698 1105 - - - 28,698 28.04.24
2021DSBP? 2706.22 - 34,578 10270 355116 - - 34,578 28.04.25
Total 111,099 104,605

1 Awards are granted in the form of a provisional allocation of shares.
2 Theshare price on grantis based on the share price for the day before the award.

3 Executive Directors were awarded 150 per cent of salary in respect of the 2021 bonus, 50 per cent of which was deferred into shares under the 2021 DSBP.
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Chart14: End of
LTIP Awards outstanding No. of shares performance
No. of shares over Facevalueof vestedduringthe period over which
No. of shares which awards were Share price award made yearand subjectto Share price on No. of shares performance
under award granted during ongrant in2022  two-year holding date of vest under award conditions have
Date of Grant 01.01.22 the year' (pence)? (£) period (pence) 3112.22 to be met®
David Sleath 2019 LTIP 29.05.19 230,680 - 6910 - 230,680 1,091.94 - 3112.21
2020 LTIP 26.03.20 219,877 - 786.8 - - - 219,877 3112.22
2021LTIP 29.03.21 190,986 - 933.0 - - - 190,986 3112.23
2022 LTIP* 05.05.22 - 186,709 1162.5 270,492 - - 186,709 3112.24
Total 641,543 597,572
Soumen Das 2019 LTIP 290519 171,418 - 691.0 - 171,418 1,091.94 - 3112.21
2020 LTIP 26.03.20 155,815 - 786.8 - - - 155,815 3112.22
2021LTIP 29.03.21 135,341 - 933.0 - - - 135,341 3112.23
2022 LTIP* 05.05.22 - 115,698 1162.5 1,344,989 - - 115,698 3112.24
Total 462,574 406,854
Andy Gulliford 2019 LTIP 29.05.19 151,036 - 691.0 - 151,036 1,091.94 - 3112.21
2020 LTIP 26.03.20 143,788 - 786.8 - - - 143,788 3112.22
2021LTIP 29.03.21 124,894 - 933.0 - - - 124,894 3112.23
2022 LTIP* 05.05.22 - 101,827 1162.5 1183,739 - - 101,827 3112.24
Total 419,718 370,509
1 Awards are structured as conditional awards over ordinary shares.
2 Theshare price on grantis based on the share price for the day before the award.
3 Subjecttoathree-year performance period and a two-year post-vesting holding period.
4 David Sleath was awarded shares to the value of 300 per cent of salary and the other Executive Directors were awarded shares to the value of 250 per cent of salary in respect of the 2022 LTIP. These awards are subject to three equally-weighted performance conditions,

TSR, TPRand TAR.

Chart15: - Optwons . -
i H No. of shares grante Option Options Share price on No. of shares
Sharesave Options outstanding under option during price  exercised during date of exercise under option Period in which options
Date of Grant 01.01.22 the year (pence) theyear (pence) 3112.22 can be exercised
David Sleath 2020 Sharesave 22.04.20 2,919 - 616.48 - - 2,919 01.06.23 -3011.23
Total 2,919 2,919
Soumen Das 2020 Sharesave 22.04.20 2,919 - 616.48 - - 2,919 01.06.23 -3011.23
Total 2,919 2,919
Andy Gulliford 2020 Sharesave 22.04.20 1,459 - 616.48 - - 1,459 01.06.23 -3011.23
2021 Sharesave 23.04.21 121 - 74272 - - 121 01.06.24 -30.11.24
Total 2,670 2,670

1 Thereare noshares under option which have matured but have not been exercised
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Chart16:
SIP Shares held in trust e Ofwsnht?[ii Shares awarded e Oflsnhtar[lesi
01.01.22 during the year 3112.22
David Sleath 9,053 322 9,375
Soumen Das 1634 322 1,956
9,870 322 10,192

Andy Gulliford

Further information about the share schemes can be found in Note 18 to the Financial Statements on page 190.

Dilution headroom

Asthe LTIP, SIP and Sharesave schemes are approved by shareholders, they may be satisfied by the issue of new shares in the Company, up to the dilution limits set by the Investment Association

(IA). The chart below shows the total number of shares under award or option for both Executive and all-employee schemes in comparison to the IA limits.

Chart17: ® Actual

Dilution headroom Policy

Executive schemes [T 10 years

All schemes 157% 10 years
9% 10%

0% 1% 2% 3% 4% 5% 6% 7% 8%
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Chair and Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors’ single total figure of remuneration (Audited)
In 2022, the Chair's annual fee was £350,000 (2021: £279,125), Non-Executive Directors’ annual fee was £66,400 (2021: £64,500), with an additional £16,600 per annum (2021: £16,100 per annum)
for chairing the Audit or Remuneration Committees or for filling the role of Senior Independent Director.

The Chair and Non-Executive Directors do not participate in any of the Company’s share-based incentive schemes nor do they receive any other benefits or rights under the pension scheme.

Chart18: Total fees
Non-Executive Directors’ single total figure of remuneration for 2022 (Audited) 2022 2021
(£000) (£000)
Gerald Corbett’ Chair (until 30 June 2022) 144 279
Andy Harrison? Chair (from 30 June 2022) 191 -
Mary Barnard 66 65
Sue Clayton 66 65
Carol Fairweather Chair of the Audit Committee 83 81
Simon Fraser Chair of the Remuneration Committee 83 51
Martin Moore Senior Independent Director 83 81
Linda Yueh 66 43

1 Gerald Corbett retired from the Board on 30 June 2022 and received no further remuneration from the Company after this date.
2 Andy Harrison was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on1April 2022 and was paid £66,400 pro rata. Following his appointment as Chair on 30 June 2022 he was paid £350,000 prorata.

Non-Executive Directors’ shareholding guidelines

The Committee periodically considers the Non-Executive Directors’ shareholdings to ensure they remain appropriate and aligned to the interests of shareholders, and where a Non-Executive
Director has met the 100 per cent of their annual fees guidance previously, they would be considered to have adhered to the guidelines and are not expected to adjust their holdings with
subsequent share price movements.

Chart19: Beneficial
Non-Executive Directors’ beneficial interests in shares and shareholding requirements __ interests
01.01.2022 31.12.2022
Ordinary Ordinary Shareholding
10p shares 10pshares requirements met
Gerald Corbett! 63,960 63,960 Yes
Andy Harrison? - 116,315 Yes
Mary Barnard 8,543 11,288 Yes
Sue Clayton 7000 7000 Yes
Carol Fairweather 12,000 12,000 Yes
Simon Fraser 31,440 31,440 Yes
Martin Moore 17442 17442 Yes
Linda Yueh 4,716 4,716 Yes

1 Gerald Corbettretired from the Board with effect from 30 June 2022 and his holdings are reflected as at that date.
2 Andy Harrison was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on1April 2022 and appointed Chair on 30 June 2022. For the purpose of this calculation, his fees have been annualised.

There was no change in Directors’ holdings between 31 December 2022 and 16 February 2023.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
continued

External appointments
Executive Directors are permitted to hold one external directorship, approved by the Board. Fees payable may be retained.

David Sleathis a Non-Executive Director of RS Group plc (previously Electrocomponents plc) and he received a fee of £78,922 for this role in 2022 (2021: £75,858).
Soumen Das was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of NEXT plc and he received a fee of £69,112in 2022 (2021: £19,780 as he was appointed on 1 September 2021) for this role during the year.

Exit payments and arrangements (Audited)
No exit payments were made to Directors during the year.

Former Directors (Audited)
No payments were made to former Directors during the year.

Remuneration Committee advisers
The Committee has access to sufficient resources to discharge its duties, which include access to independent remuneration advisers, the Company Secretary, the Group HR Director and other

advisers as required.

The Committee is responsible for appointing its external advisers and in 2018, following a competitive tender process, Korn Ferry was appointed. During 2022, Korn Ferry provided advice on the
Policy, Executive Directors’ remuneration, and market and best practice guidance, including the provisions of the Code. Its total fees for advice to the Committee in 2022 were £42,083 (2021:
£95,793), calculated on a time-cost basis.

The Committee determined that Korn Ferry provided independent remuneration advice and does not have any connections with the Company or its Directors or provide any other services which
may impair its independence. Korn Ferry are a signatory to the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consultants in the UK.

Shareholder voting

Chart 20: Votes for Total

. (including For Votes Against votes Votes
Shareholder voting at the 2022 AGM discretionary) (%) against (%) cast withheld!
To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 959,224,061 9761 23,518,865 2.39 982,742,926 1,421,984
To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy contained in the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the financial year ended
31December 2021 971,942,873 98.90 10,798,899 110 982,741,772 1,423138

1 Awithheld vote is not a vote in law and is not counted in the calculation of the proportion of votes cast for and against a resolution.

This report was approved by the Board on 16 February 2023 and signed on its behalf by

Simon Fraser
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy - summary

The Remuneration Policy (the Policy) was approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 21 April 2022 and became effective from this date. It applies to incentive awards with
performance periods beginning on1January 2022.

The following is a summary of the Policy. The full Policy, as approved by shareholders, was included in the 2021 Annual Report and Accounts and is available at www.SEGRO.com.

In determining the Policy, the Committee considered the following as set out in Provision 40 of the Code:

Clarity and simplicity The Committee is of the opinion that the Policy and the remuneration framework for the wider workforce is transparent, simple and easy to
understand. We believe that the framework is clearly communicated to and understood by our key stakeholders and our employees. Remuneration
for our Executive Directors consists of the following elements as set outin Chart 1:

- salary;

- pension benefits;
- Bonus;

- DSBP;

- LTIP;

- Sharesave;

- SIP; and

- other benefits.

The Committee engaged extensively with key stakeholders, such as shareholders and representatives from the workforce, who confirmed this view.

Risk The Company’s remuneration arrangements discourage both the Executive Directors and the wider workforce from excessive risk taking in the
pursuit of achieving objectives. The bonus, DSBP and LTIP include malus and/or clawback provisions that apply when the Committee considers
that performance is achieved as a result of excessive risk taking, as well as in other circumstances as set out on page 131 of the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

Executive Directors are required to hold a percentage of their base salary in shares in the Company (as described further on page 137). Additionally,
they are subject to post-cessation requirement to continue holdings shares in the event that they leave the Company.

Part of their annual bonus is subject to deferral under the DSBP and a compulsory post-vesting holding period applies for LTIP shares.

The Committee has the discretion to override formulaic outturns to ensure incentive payouts reflect underlying business performance, and is
aligned to shareholder experience.

Predictability Potential values of rewards to the Executive Directors under the Policy are clearly stated in Chart 5 on page 161 of the 2021 Annual Report and
Accounts, which sets out the minimum, maximum and on target scenarios. This chart also demonstrates the impact of share price appreciation
onthe 2022 LTIP award. Potential outcomes are regularly reviewed by the Committee.

Proportionality In order to ensure outcomes do not reward poor performance, a significant portion of our remuneration framework is performance based and
requires challenging performance targets and metrics to be achieved.

Alignment to culture There is strong linkage between the structure of the Company’s incentive schemes, its Purpose and Values, and strategy. The Company’s
Responsible SEGRO ambitions have identified net-zero carbon by 2030 as a key strategic objective, and the inclusion of ESG measures in the new
annual bonus structure reinforces its importance. The chart on page 134 illustrates how variable remuneration is aligned with KPIs that measure
performance against the Company’s strategy.
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Chart1: Remuneration policy table: Executive Directors

Element Strategic purpose

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance metrics

To attract and motivate high-
calibre leaders in a competitive
market and to recognise their
skills, experience and
contribution to Group
performance.

The Committee reviews
Executive Directors’ base salaries
each year in the context of total
remuneration, taking into
account the Directors’
responsibilities, experience and
performance, pay across the
Group and market
competitiveness.

The maximum annual salary increase will not
normally exceed the average increase which
applies across the wider workforce. However,
larger increases may be awarded in certain

circumstances including, but not limited to: an

increase in scope or responsibilities of the
role; salary progression for a newly appointed
Director; and where the Director’s salary has
fallen significantly below the market
positioning.

Not applicable.

Pension benefits

To provide a market competitive
remuneration package.

Retirement benefits are available
to all UK employees and
employees in certain Continental
European jurisdictions
dependent on local market
practice and geographical
differences.

Currently, the Executive Directors receive 20
per cent of salary in lieu of pension, this will
reduce to the same level as the UK workforce
by 31 December 2022.

Future Executive Directors will receive the
level received by the majority of the UK
workforce (currently a contribution to their
pension plan of 12 per cent of salary). The cash
allowance for Directors is offered in lieu of
membership of the defined contribution
Group Personal Pension Plan.

None.

To focus on the delivery of
annual goals, to strive for
superior performance and to
achieve specific targets which
support strategy, in particular for
income generation, ESG
ambitions and recurring profit.

Bonuses are awarded annually
and paid for performance over
the financial year.

The bonus s reviewed each
financial year to ensure
performance measures and
targets are appropriate and
support the business strategy.

Payment is based on the
achievement of performance
targets.

The Committee retains discretion
to reduce the amount of the
bonus award in the light of
underlying performance during
the year.

The rules of the bonus contain
clawback provisions.

The maximum bonus opportunity for
Executive Directorsis 150 per cent of salary.

The bonus scheme is based on three elements
which the Committee may review from
time-to-time, to ensure that they continue to
reflect the Company’s strategic priorities:
Adjusted PBT against budget, which supports
the objective of delivering a sustainable,
progressive dividend; rent roll growth which
focuses on driving the future rental income of
the business; and ESG metrics comprising
target ranges related to (i) reducing our
operating carbon emissions, (i) reducing our
embodied carbonin developments and (jii)
customer, community and employee
objectives.

The performance measures will initially be
weighted as follows: Adjusted PBT 37.5 per
cent; RRG 37.5 per cent; and ESG 25 per cent.

Threshold performance will result in vesting

of no more than 25 per cent of the relevant
portion of the bonus (where the nature of the
performance metric allows such an approach).
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Chart1: Remuneration policy table: Executive Directors continued

Element

Strategic purpose

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance metrics

Deferred Share

To encourage retention of senior
managers and provide a
long-term link between the
bonus and share price growth so
as toencourage long-term
decision making.

Bonus Plan (‘DSBP’)

50 per cent of any bonus
awarded in the year is deferred
into shares in the DSBP for three
years before vesting. The award
does not carry any entitlement to
dividends, however the
Committee may, at the time of
the release of the shares, deliver
shares or a cash sum equivalent
to the value of the dividends that
would have been paid over the
three-year holding period.

The rules of the DSBP contain
malus provisions.

For Executive Directors, 50 per cent of the
bonus earned in respect of the previous year’s
performance.

Vesting of shares is dependent on continued
employment or good leaver status.

To reward the execution of
strategy and drive long-term
returns for shareholders. The
performance measures are
selected to align with business
strategy. The awards are
designed to align the most
senior managers’ goals with the
creation of sustainable growth in
shareholder value. The awards
will also increase retention of
these senior managers.

Long Term Incentive
Plan (‘LTIP’)

For LTIP awards, dividends will
accrue on the LTIP shares which
are released on vesting and will
be paidin shares or cash. The
Committee has discretion to
adjust awards downwards at
vesting if it is not satisfied that the
outcome is a fair reflection of
underlying performance, orin
the event of excessive risk taking
or misstatement.

The rules of the LTIP contain
malus and clawback provisions.

Maximum 300 per cent of salary in
performance shares for the Chief Executive
only, other Executive Directors will continue to
receive 250 per cent of salary and the
Committee would not increase this without
prior consultation with shareholders.

LTIP awards are subject to stretching
performance conditions, which are measured
over a three-year performance period. A
two-year compulsory holding period applies
to these LTIP shares after vesting and subject
to payment of tax and statutory deductions.

Awards to be granted in 2022 will be subject to
equally weighted Total Shareholder Return,
Total Property Return and Total Accounting
Return performance conditions.

Subsequent grants may be subject to different
performance conditions following
consultation with shareholders.

Threshold performance will result in vesting of
no more than 20 per cent of the relevant
portion of the LTIP (where the nature of the
performance metric allows such an approach).

To provide a market competitive
remuneration package and to
encourage employee share
ownership across the Group.

Sharesave

Sharesave isa HMRC approved
scheme opento all UK employees.
Savings can be made over a
three-year period to purchase
sharesin the Company at a price
which is set at the beginning of
the savings period. This price is
usually set at a 20 per cent
discount to the market price.

Employees may save up to the HMRC limit
across all Sharesave grants.

None.
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy - summary
continued

Chart1: Remuneration policy table: Executive Directors continued

Element Strategic purpose Operation Maximum potential value Performance metrics

Share Incentive Plan To provide a market competitive ~ SIPisa HMRC approved scheme  The maximum award is subject to the Award may be based on achievement
(‘SIP’) and Global remuneration package and to opentoall UK employees, HMRC limit. of atarget and is subject to a three-year
Share Incentive Plan encourage employee share subject to service. Eligible holding period.

(‘GSIP’) ownership across the Group. employees are awarded shares

annually up to the HMRC limits.

GSIPis designed on a similar

basis to SIP, but is not HMRC

approved and is operated for

non-UK employees.

Other benefits To provide a market competitive ~ Other benefits currently include: - None.
remuneration package. car allowance; life assurance;

disability insurance; private

medical insurance; and health

screening. The Committee

retains the discretion to offer

additional benefits as

appropriate, for example,

assistance with relocation.

Additional notes

Remuneration Policy: the policy for the Executive Directors is designed with regard to the pay and benefits for employees across the Group. Allemployees are eligible for an annual bonus on the
same performance measures which are consistent with those of the Executive Directors, save that those below Board level have a fourth target based on their personal performance. The maximum
bonus opportunity is fixed according to seniority banding across the Company. The LTIP performance conditions are the same for all participants and the size of awards are determined by seniority.

The Committee retains certain discretions in respect of the operation and administration of the incentive plans under their rules, in addition to the discretions described elsewhere in the Policy.

Subject to consultation with major shareholders, the Committee retains the ability to adjust and/or to set different LTIP and bonus performance measures if events occur (such as achangein
strategy, a material acquisition and/or divestment of a Group business, or change in prevailing market conditions) which cause the Committee to determine that the measures are no longer
appropriate and that amendment is required so that they achieve their original purpose.

Payments from existing awards: Executive Directors are eligible to receive payment from any award made prior to the approval and implementation of the 2022 Policy. Any outstanding share awards
made in accordance with a previous Remuneration Policy will remain in effect and will vest in accordance with the terms under which they were granted.
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Chart 2: Remuneration policy table: Chair and Non-Executive Directors

Element Strategic purpose Operation Maximum potential value Performance metrics
To attract high-calibre Non- Feesarereviewed annually taking ~ Any increases in the fees of the Chair or the -
Executive Directors and provide into account relevant market Non-Executive Directors will be based upon
market appropriate fees. data. Additional fees are payable ~ changesinroles and responsibilities, and

to reflect the time commitments market data.
and additional responsibilities.

The fee paid to the Chair is set by
the Committee while the fees
paid to the Non-Executive
Directors are set by the Board.

No Director is involved in setting
their own remuneration.

Non-Executive Directors do not
participate in any performance
related remuneration and they do
not receive any benefits other
than reimbursement of business
related expenses and any tax that
might be charged thereon.

Policy on service contracts
Executive Directors
The Company may terminate the Executive Directors’ service contract on up to 12 months’ notice, with no liquidating damages provisions.

Non-Executive Directors

The Chair and the Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment which set out their duties and anticipated time commitment to the Company. They are required to disclose to the Board any
changes to their other significant commitments. The Non-Executive Directors are appointed for an initial term of three years. The appointments may be extended for further three-year periods on
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee and subject to the Board's agreement. The Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment contain a three-month notice period and the Chair’s
contains a six-month notice period. Further details are set out in Chart 3 below.

Chart 3: Dates of appointment and contractual notice period

Name Date of appointment Notice period Name Date of appointment Notice period
Andy Harrison’ 1April 2022 6months  Sue Clayton 1June 2018 3 months
David Sleath? 1January 2006 12 months by Company, 6 months by Director ~ Carol Fairweather 1January 2018 3 months
Soumen Das 16 January 2017 12 months by Company, 6 months by Director ~ Simon Fraser 1TMay 2021 3 months
Andy Gulliford 1May 2013 12 months by Company, 6 months by Director Martin Moore 1July 2014 3 months
Mary Barnard 1May 2019 3 months Linda Yueh 1TMay 2021 3 months

1 Appointed as Non-Executive Director on1April 2022 and succeeded Gerald Corbett as Chair on 30 June 2022.
2 Appointed as Chief Executive on 28 April 2011.
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Directors’ Report disclosures

Certain Directors’ Report disclosures, which have been incorporated into the Directors’ Report
by reference, can be found on the following pages:

Disclosure Section Reference
Culture, Purpose and Values Strategic Report Pages1and 6
Employee engagement Strategic Report Page 27
Diversity and inclusion Strategic Report Pages 41
Employment, training and advancement of disabled persons Strategic Report Page 41
Approach toinvesting in and rewarding the workforce Strategic Report Page 43
Charitable donations Strategic Report Page 44
Review of the Group's business during the year and any future developments Strategic Report Pages 48 - 55
Principal risks Strategic Report Pages 68 - 74
Section 172 statement Strategic Report Page 76
Greenhouse gas emissions Strategic Report Page 78
Corporate Governance Governance Report Pages 87-150
Corporate Governance Statement Governance Report Page 87
Details of the Directors who served during the year Governance Report Pages 91-93
Stakeholder engagement Governance Report Pages 97-103
Board diversity Governance Report Page 113
Financial instruments and certain financial risks Financial Statements ~ Pages 183 -189
Post balance sheet events Financial Statements Page 196

Share capital

The Company is listed on the London Stock
Exchange and, as of 24 November 2020, has
asecondary listing on Euronext, Paris.

Theissued share capital for the year is set out
on page 190.

Thereis one class of sharesinissue and there
are no restrictions on the voting rights attached
to these shares or the transfer of securities in
the Company, and all shares are fully paid.

The Company made no purchases of its own
shares during the year. The Company was
granted authority to make market purchases of
its own shares at the 2022 AGM. This authority
will expire at the conclusion of the 2023 AGM
and a resolution will be proposed to seek
further authority.

Dividends

Subject to approval by shareholders at the
2023 AGM, a final dividend of 18.2 pence per
share will be paid (2021:16.9 pence) bringing

the total dividend for 2022 to 26.3 pence (2021:

24.3 pence). The final dividend will be paid as
anordinary dividend. The Board proposes to
offer a scrip dividend option for the 2022
final dividend.

The ex-dividend date for the final dividend will be
16 March 2023, the record date will be 17 March
2023 and the payment date will be 4 May 2023.

Overview Strategic Report Governance

Change of control

- Contracts and joint venture and associates
agreements

There are a number of contracts and joint
venture and associates agreements that
could allow the counterparties to terminate
or alter those arrangements in the event of
a change of control of the Company. These
arrangements are commercially confidential
and their disclosure could be seriously
prejudicial to the Company.
- Borrowings and other financial
instruments
The Group has a number of borrowing
facilities provided by various lenders. These
facilities generally include provisions that
may require any outstanding borrowings to
be repaid or the amendment or termination
of the facilities upon the occurrence of a
change of control of the Company.
Employee share plans
The Company’s share plans contain
provisions as a result of which options and
awards may vest or become exercisable on
change of control of the Company, in
accordance with the rules of the plans.

Modern Slavery and Human Rights

SEGRO operates a Human Rights Policy which
brings together a number of our existing
policies that relate to human rights such as
our Modern Slavery and Labour Standards
Supplier Code, and Anti-Slavery and Human
Trafficking Policy. Copies of our policies that
relate to human rights can be found on our
website www.SEGRO.com.

During 2022, allemployees were asked to
complete mandatory online training on
modern slavery and human trafficking. Modern
slavery awareness posters, which contain
information on key signs of modern slavery,
how and where to access help, and details of
our whistleblowing reporting service are
displayed on SEGRO construction sites and

in all our offices.

Financial Statements Further Information

The Company publishes an annual Modern
Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement in
compliance with the UK Modern Slavery Act
2015. The Board approved the latest statement
in June 2022 and it can be found on our
website www.SEGRO.com/modern-slavery.

Any employee who breaches our Anti-Slavery
and Human Trafficking Policy or Human Rights
Policy will face disciplinary action, which could
result in dismissal for misconduct or gross
misconduct. We reserve the right to terminate
our relationship with other individuals and
organisations working on our behalf if they do
not comply with our Modern Slavery and
Labour Standards Supplier Code.

Employees and Directors

There are no agreements between the
Company and its Directors or employees
providing for compensation for loss of office or
employment that occurs specifically because
of atakeover bid, with the exception of
provisions of the Company’s share schemes

as detailed above.

- Directors’ authorities in relation to shares
The Directors’ authorities in relation to
issuing, allotting or buying back shares are
governed by the Company’s Articles of
Association and the resolutions passed by
shareholders at a general meeting. These
documents do not form part of this Report.

Process for appointment/removal

of Directors

The Company is governed by its Articles of
Association, the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the Companies Act 2006 and related
legislation with regards to the appointment
and removal of Directors. Directors are
appointed by the Board and elected by
shareholders. Directors may be removed by
the Board or shareholders as applicable.
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Substantial interests in the share capital of
the Company

Information provided to the Company under
the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules (DTR5)is published on a Regulatory
Information Service and onthe Company’s
website. As at 31 December 2022, the
Company had been notified of the following
holdings.

Percentage of

Number of Issued Share

Shareholder shares Capital

BlackRock, Inc. 130,152,859 10.76
APG Asset

Management N.V. 65,185,877 5.39

Norges Bank 60,284,703 498

No further announcements were made to the
Company between 31 December 2022 and 16
February 2023.

Articles of association
Shareholders may amend the Company’s
Articles of Association by special resolution.

Political donations
No political donations were made by the
Company or its subsidiaries during the year.

Directors’ indemnities and insurance

The Company maintains directors’ and officers’
liability insurance which is reviewed annually
and is permitted under the Company’s Articles
of Association and the Companies Act 2006.
The Company indemnifies each Director,
under a Deed of Indemnity, against any liability
incurred in relation to acts or omissions arising
inthe ordinary course of their duties. The
indemnity applies only to the extent permitted
by law.

No Company Directors were indemnified
during the year.

Overseas branches
The Company has a branch in Paris, France.

Auditor of the Company

A resolution to reappoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the 2023 AGM.

Disclosure of information to the Auditor
Each of the persons who is a Director at the
date of approval of this Report confirms that:

- sofar as the Director is aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which the
Company'’s auditor is unaware; and

- each Director has taken all the steps that
they ought to have taken as a Director in
order to make themself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the
Company'’s auditor is aware of that
information.

This confirmation is given and should be
interpreted in accordance with the provisions
of section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Directors’ Report has been approved by
the Board and signed on its behalf by

JuliaFoo
Company Secretary
16 February 2023

Overview
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Further Information
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report and the Financial Statementsin
accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
Financial Statements for each financial year.
Under that law the Directors have prepared the
Group and the Company Financial Statements
in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards.

The Directors have also prepared the Group
and the Company Financial Statements in
accordance with international financial
reporting standards adopted pursuant to
Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it appliesin
the European Union.

Under company law, Directors must not
approve the Financial Statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group
for that period. In preparing the Financial
Statements, the Directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

- state whether applicable UK-adopted
international accounting standards and
international financial reporting standards
adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No
1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained
in the Financial Statements;

- make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and

- prepare the Financial Statements on the
going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Group and Company will
continue in business.

The Directors are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and
Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and otherirregularities.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Group’s and
Company'’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and Company and
enable them to ensure that the Financial
Statements and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report comply with the Companies Act 2006.
The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the Company’s
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination
of Financial Statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations

The Directors consider that the Annual Report
and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group's and Company’s position and
performance, business model and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and
functions are listed in the Governance section
of the Annual Report confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge:

- the Group and Company Financial
Statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards and international
financial reporting standards adopted
pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002
aw applies in the European Union, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities and
financial position of the Group and Company,
and of the loss of the Group; and

- the Strategic Reportincludes a fair review of
the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group and
Company, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.

By order of the Board

David Sleath
Chief Executive
16 February 2023

Soumen Das
Chief Financial Officer
16 February 2023
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of SEGRO plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, SEGRO plc’s Group financial statements and Company financial statements
(the “financial statements”):

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company’s affairs as at
31December 2022 and of the Group's loss and the Group’s and Company’s cash flows for the
year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report & Accounts 2022
(the “Annual Report”), which comprise: the Group and Company Balance Sheets as at 31
December 2022; the Group Income Statement and the Group Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Group and Company Cash Flow Statements, and the Group and Company
Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial
statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Separate opinion in relation to international financial reporting standards adopted pursuant
to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union

As explained in note 1to the financial statements, the Group and Company, in addition to applying
UK-adopted international accounting standards, have also applied international financial reporting
standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.

In our opinion, the Group and Company financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with international financial reporting standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC)
No1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs
(UK)"), International Standards on Auditing issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board (“ISAs”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) and ISAs are
further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by either
the FRC's Ethical Standard or Article 5(1) of Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 were not provided.

Other than those disclosed in Note 6 to the Financial Statements, we have provided no non-audit
services to the Company or its controlled undertakings in the period under audit.

Our auditapproach

Overview

Audit scope

- Audit procedures on Rental Income and Valuation of Investment Properties are performed
centrally by the Group audit team in the UK.

- Full scope audit of SEGRO European Logistics Partnership (SELP) Joint Venture by component
auditors and full scope audit of SEGRO plc by the Group audit team in the UK.

- In addition, component auditors performed the audit of specific balances and transactions in
certain territories.

- Over 90% coverage of Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenditure of the Group

Key audit matters

- Valuation of investment properties (Group)

- Large and/or complex transactions (Group and Company)
- Estimation of variable performance fee income (Group)

Materiality

- Overall Group materiality: £174 million (2021: £179 million) based on 1% of total assets.

- Overall Company materiality: £108 million (2021: £95 million) based on 1% of total assets.

- Performance materiality: £130 million (2021: £134 million) (Group) and £81 million (2021: £71
million) (Company).

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most
significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by
the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the
allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These
matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed
in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Thisis not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

The key audit matters below are consistent with last year.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties (Group)

Refer to the Audit Committee Report and the Financial
Statements (including notes to the Financial Statements; Note 1,
Significant Accounting Policies; Note 13, Properties; and Note 26.
Property Valuation Techniques, Sustainability and Climate
Change Considerations and Related Quantitative Information).
The Group's investment properties were carried at £14,939 million
as at 31 December 2022 and a total (realised and unrealised)
property loss of £1,946 million was recognised in the Group
Income Statement.

We focused on this area due to the existence of significant
judgement, coupled with the fact that only small differencesin
individual property valuations when aggregated could resultin
a material misstatement. The portfolio is held by the Group, and
through joint ventures and associates and includes warehouses
and light industrial buildings, including data centres and for
logistics operations. These are concentrated in the UK, France,
Germany and Italy. The remainder of the portfolio is located
across other European countries including Poland, Spain, the
Netherlands and the Czech Republic.

The portfolio includes completed investment properties,
properties under construction and land. The valuation of the
Group’s portfoliois inherently subjective due to, among other
factors, the individual nature of each property, its location and the
expected future rentals for that particular property. The wider
challenges currently facing the real estate sector as a result of
rising inflation and interest rates and the impact of climate change
further contributed to the subjectivity at 31 December 2022. For
development sites, factors include projected costs to complete,
time until practical completion and the ability to let if no pre-let
agreementisin place. Valuations are carried out by third party
valuers CBRE (the 'Valuers’), apart from two assets valued by
Knight Frank. The Valuers were engaged by the Directors, and
performed their work in accordance with the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (‘RICS’) Valuation - Professional Standards.
The valuations take into account the property-specific
information including the current tenancy agreements and rental
income, condition and location of the property, and future rental
prospects, as well as prevailing market yields and market
transactions. The valuation of investment properties may also
impact the carrying value of investment in the subsidiaries within
the Financial Statements of the Company.

Given the inherent subjectivity involved in the valuation of investment properties, the need for deep market knowledge
when determining the most appropriate assumptions, and the technicalities of the valuation methodology, we engaged
our internal valuation experts (qualified chartered surveyors) to assist us in our audit of this matter.

Assessing the Valuers’ expertise and objectivity

We assessed the Valuers’ qualifications and expertise and read their terms of engagement with the Group to determine
whether there were any matters that might have affected their objectivity or may have imposed scope limitations upon
their work. We also considered fees and other contractual arrangements that might exist between the Group and the
Valuers. We found no evidence to suggest that the objectivity of the Valuers was compromised.

Testing the valuations

Assumptions and capital movement:

Our work covered the valuation of every material property in the Group. We obtained and read the CBRE valuation reports
covering every property. We held meetings with management and the Valuers, at which the valuations and the key
assumptions therein were discussed. We focused on the largest properties and any outliers (where the assumptions used
and/or year on year capital value movement were out of line with externally published market data for the relevant sector).
To verify that the valuation approach was suitable for use in determining the carrying value for investment properties in the
Financial Statements, we:

- Confirmed that the valuation approach was in accordance with RICS standards;

- Obtained valuation details of every property held by the Group and set an expected range for yield and capital value
movement, determined by reference to published benchmarks and using our experience and knowledge of the market.
Compared the investment yields used by the Valuers with the expected range of yields and the year on year capital
movement to our expected range;

- Assessed the reasonableness of other assumptions that are not readily comparable with published benchmarks, such as
Estimated Rental Value;

- With the support of our internal valuation experts, we also questioned the external valuers as to the extent to which recent
market transactions and expected rental values used in deriving their valuations took into account the impact of climate
change and related ESG considerations; and

- Verified where there could be alternative use opportunities, that this had been appropriately taken into account.

Where assumptions were outside the expected range or otherwise appeared unusual, and/or valuations showed
unexpected movements, we undertook further investigations and, when necessary, held further discussions with the
Valuers and obtained evidence to support explanations received. The supporting evidence and valuation commentaries
provided by the Valuers, enabled us to consider the property specific factors that had or may have had an impact on value,
including recent comparable transactions where appropriate.

Information and standing data

We tested the standing data which the Group provided to the Valuers for use in the performance of the valuation. This
involved re-performing controls on a sample basis over the input of lease data for leases and testing the accuracy of lease
and other property information. For development properties, we also confirmed that the supporting information for
construction contracts and budgets was consistent with the Group’s records, for example by inspecting construction
contracts. For development properties, capitalised expenditure was tested on a sample basis to invoices, and budgeted
costs to complete were compared with supporting evidence (for example construction contracts) to support the inputs
included within their valuation at the year end. We agreed the amounts per the valuation reports to the accounting records
and from there we agreed the related balances through to the Financial Statements.

Overall outcome
We concluded that the assumptions used in the valuations by the Valuers were supportable in light of the evidence
obtained and the disclosures within the Financial Statements are sufficient and appropriate.




153 SEGROplc
Annual Report & Accounts 2022

Key audit matter

|
Overview Strategic Report Governance Financial Statements Further Information

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Large and/or complex transactions (Group and Company)
Refer to the Audit Committee Report and the Financial
Statements (including notes to the Financial Statements; Note 1,
Significant Accounting Policies; and Note 16, Net Borrowings).

Group and Company

During the year, the Group established a European Medium-Term
Note (EMTN) programme. Through this programme, in March
2022, the Group issued €650 million of four year and €500 million
of eight year green bonds. The Company was the guarantor for
the issue and received the proceeds as part of the flow of funds
into the Group. Also, in December 2022, the Company raised
£350 million of 19-year unsecured notes.

These transactions warranted additional audit focus due to the
magnitude of the transactions and proceeds generated.

For each large and/or complex transaction identified, we made inquiries with management in order to understand their
nature and obtained supporting documentation as necessary to verify the transactions. We assessed the proposed
accounting treatment in relation to the Group’s accounting policies and relevant accounting standards.

Bondissues
We tested the bond issue by examining:

- The subscription agreement and prospectus, including assessing whether there were any conditions which would result
in further accounting entries and disclosures being required;

- Third party data to confirm the security details such as nominal value, coupon rates and maturity dates; and

- Bank statements to agree funds received in the Company.

Overall outcome
No material issues were identified as a result of our testing.

Estimation of variable performance fee income (Group)

Refer to the Audit Committee Report and the Financial
Statements (including notes to the Financial Statements; Note 1,
Significant Accounting Policies; and Note 7, Investments in Joint
Ventures, Associates and Subsidiaries). Performance fees are
payable from the SELP joint venture to SEGRO. The fee is based
onthejoint venture's performance over the 10 year performance
period and payable subject to meeting certain criteria and hurdle
rates at the end of the period. The variable nature of the
consideration gives rise to significant estimation uncertainty
which is sensitive to movements and assumptions in property
valuations over the remaining performance period to October
2023. No performance fee income has been recognisedin the
year based on management’s assessment of the estimated
amount thatis highly probable will not result in a significant
future reversal. In the year ended 31 December 2021, SEGRO
recognised a performance fee of £26 million (€29 million) in its
Income Statement.

We understood and assessed the key controls in place over the estimation and recognition of performance fee income.

We reviewed the audit of the SELP performance fee performed by the SELP component auditors. We engaged with our
component auditor team during the audit process to direct the nature, timing and extent of procedures.

This covered testing of the key data input into the calculation, testing of the mathematical accuracy of the calculation, an
assessment of key assumptions used and performing sensitivity analysis. Our involvement in the component auditors work
incorporated a review of their workpapers including those related to planning and the audit procedures on the performance
fee calculation.

We assessed the accounting treatment in relation to the Group’s accounting policies and IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts
with customers.

We challenged management on the estimation of the performance fee income recorded and the basis of their conclusion
of the threshold at which they consider the highly probable criteria to have been met. We debated possible alternative views
that the threshold could reasonably be at a higher or lower level resulting in performance fee income being recognised or
reversed for the year to 31 December 2022.

We have assessed the appropriateness of financial reporting disclosures related to the performance fee, including that no
additional amount has been recorded and no amounts reversed based on management’s judgement of the not highly
probable of significant reversal threshold, the range of the potential fee and the sensitivity of the fee to the potential
property value fluctuations, highlighting it as an area of significant estimation uncertainty.

Overall outcome
No material issues were identified as a result of our testing. We consider the disclosures within the Financial Statements,
including the range of potential income receivable and sensitivities to property value fluctuations to be appropriate.
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How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and
the Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which they operate.

The Group's reportable segments are the geographical Business Units: Greater London, Thames
Valley, National Logistics, Northern Europe, Southern Europe and Central Europe. In establishing
the overall approach to the Group audit, we determined the type of work that needed to be
performed at reporting components by us, as the Group engagement team, or component
auditors operating under our instruction.

The Group operates acommon IT environment, processes and controls for rental income and
payroll across all its reported segments. The Group’s valuation and treasury functions are also
based at the corporate centre in the UK. The related balances were therefore largely audited by
the Group audit team in the UK. Additional specified procedures were performed by component
audit teams for each business unit, such that the total testing programme provided sufficient
audit evidence over all financial statement line items.

The SELP Joint Venture was again included as being in scope for a full scope audit. As above,
the work on rental income and valuation of investment properties for the Joint Venture was
performed by the Group audit team. We determined the level of involvement we needed to have
in the component auditor’s work to be able to conclude whether sufficient appropriate audit
evidence had been obtained as a basis for our opinion on the Group financial statements as a
whole. We issued formal, written instructions to the component auditors setting out the work to
be performed by each of them. Although we have not visited our component teams this year
throughout the audit process, the Group audit team has had various interactions through the
use of video call technology with the audit teams on location in each business unit to oversee
the audit process. Senior team members also attended via video conference the clearance
meetings for each component. During the clearance meetings, the results of the work
performed by all component teams were discussed. The Group engagement team also
evaluated the sufficiency of the audit evidence obtained by component teams. Taking into
account the components and Joint Ventures subject to a full scope audit, the centralised and
other testing performed, coverage over the Group Balance Sheet and Group Income Statement
was as follows:

Assets 92% coverage
Liabilities 94% coverage
Income 91% coverage

Expenditure 90% coverage

|
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The audit of the Company Financial Statements was performed entirely by the Group audit
teamin the UK, leveraging on the work performed on the Group audit where appropriate with
additional audit procedures performed on other Company specific balances.

The impact of climate risk on our audit

As part of our audit we enquired with management to understand the process they have adopted
to assess the potential impact of climate change risk on the financial statements for the Group
and Company and support the disclosures made within Note 26 Property Valuation Techniques,
Sustainability and Climate Change Considerations and Related Quantitative Information.

In addition to enquiries with management, we also read additional reporting made by the Group
on climate including its Sustainability Policy and Carbon Disclosure Project public submission.

Assisted by our climate experts, we challenged the completeness of management’s climate risk
assessment by:

- Reading external reporting made by management including the Carbon Disclosure Project
Public submission and making management aware of any internal inconsistencies in their
climate reporting;

- Challenging the consistency of management’s climate impact assessment with board
minutes, including whether the time horizons management have used take account of all
relevant aspects of climate change such as transition risks;

- Searching and reading the entity’s website for details of climate related impacts.

Management has made a commitment to being carbon net-zero by 2030. Using our knowledge
of the business and with assistance from our internal climate experts, we evaluated management’s
risk assessment and resulting disclosures where significant. We considered the valuation of
investment properties to have the potential to be materially impacted by climate risk and
consequently we focused our audit work in this area. To respond to the audit risks identified in
this area, we tailored our audit approach which is detailed in the Valuation of investment
properties (Group) key audit matter above.

We also considered the consistency of the disclosures in relation to climate change (including
the disclosures in the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) section) within
the Annual Report with the financial statements and the knowledge we obtained from our audit

Our procedures did not identify any material impact in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, or our key audit matters for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain
quantitative thresholds for materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped
us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures
on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements

as awhole as follows:

Financial statements - Group Financial statements - Company

£174 million (2021: £179 million).
1% of total assets

The primary measurement attribute
of the Group is the carrying value of
property investments. On this basis,
we set an overall Group materiality
levelbased on total assets.

£108 million (2021: £95 million).
1% of total assets

The primary measurement attribute of
the Company is the carrying value of
investments in subsidiaries. On this
basis, we set an overall Company
materiality level based on total assets.

Overall materiality
How we determined it

Rationale for benchmark applied

In addition to overall Group materiality, a specific materiality was also applied to Income
Statement line items that impact EPRA Earnings, which is based on profit before tax, adjusted
to exclude fair value gain/(losses) on investment property and derivatives. We set a specific
materiality level of £19 million (2021: £17 million), equating to 5% of EPRA Earnings. In arriving

at thisjudgement, we considered the fact that EPRA Earnings is a secondary financial indicator
of the Group (refer to the Strategic Report where the term is defined in full).

For each component in the scope of our Group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less
than our overall Group materiality. The range of materiality allocated across components was
between £80 million and £155 million. Certain components were audited to a local statutory
audit materiality that was also less than our overall Group materiality.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that

the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality.
Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the scope of our audit and the nature
and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, for
example in determining sample sizes. Our performance materiality was 75% (2021: 75%) of overall
materiality, amounting to £130 million (2021: £134 million) for the group financial statements and
£81million (2021: £71 million) for the company financial statements.
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In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history
of misstatements, risk assessment and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and
concluded that an amount at the upper end of our normal range was appropriate.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified
during our audit above £8.7 million (Group audit) (2021: £8.9 million) and £5.4 million (Company
audit) (2021: £4.7 million) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view,
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern
QOur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group’s and the Company'’s ability to continue
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

- Procedures to identify events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability to
continue as a going concern and whether or not a material uncertainty related to going
concern exists;

- Obtaining the directors’ assessment of going concern and assessing the current impact of
severe, but plausible, downside scenarios and the basis for the downside stress scenarios that
have been applied;

- Evaluation of management’s significant assumptions used to assess going concern, including
whether or not they are appropriate in the context of changes from prior periods, maintain
adequate support, and align with our understanding of the entity and other relevant areas of
the entity’s business activities;

- Review of potential financial or non-financial debt covenant defaults leading to acceleration of
repayment; and

- Assessing the Group and Company’s liquidity and whether the entity has adequately disclosed
allrequired going concern events and conditions.
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Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's
and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months
from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

As not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In relation to the directors’ reporting on how they have applied the UK Corporate Governance
Code, we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statement
in the financial statements about whether the directors considered it appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other
information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement,
we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of
the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these
responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the
disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have beenincluded.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us
also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.
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Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information givenin
the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2022 is consistent with
the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment
obtainedin the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the
Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Directors’ Remuneration
In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the directors’ statements in relation to going concern,
longer-term viability and that part of the corporate governance statement relating to the
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified for
our review. Our additional responsibilities with respect to the corporate governance statement as
otherinformation are described in the Reporting on other information section of this report.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following
elements of the corporate governance statement is materially consistent with the financial
statements and our knowledge obtained during the audit, and we have nothing material to add
or draw attention to in relation to:

- The directors’ confirmation that they have carried out a robust assessment of the emerging
and principal risks;

- The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those principal risks, what procedures are in
place toidentify emerging risks and an explanation of how these are being managed or
mitigated;

- The directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether they considered it
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing them, and their
identification of any material uncertainties to the Group's and Company’s ability to continue
to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements;

- Thedirectors’ explanation as to their assessment of the Group’s and Company’s prospects,
the period this assessment covers and why the period is appropriate; and

- The directors’ statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Company
will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of its
assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or assumptions.
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Our review of the directors’ statement regarding the longer-term viability of the Group and
Company was substantially less in scope than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries
and considering the directors’ process supporting their statement; checking that the statement
is inalignment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code; and
considering whether the statement is consistent with the financial statements and our
knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit.

In addition, based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of
the following elements of the corporate governance statement is materially consistent with the
financial statements and our knowledge obtained during the audit:

- The directors’ statement that they consider the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable, and provides the information necessary for the members to
assess the Group’s and Company’s position, performance, business model and strategy;

- The section of the Annual Report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems; and

- The section of the Annual Report describing the work of the Audit Committee.

We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to report when the directors’ statement
relating to the Company’s compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a departure
froma relevant provision of the Code specified under the Listing Rules for review by the auditors.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Financial
Statements, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statementsin
accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) and ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.

We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures
are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

|
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Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of
non-compliance with laws and regulations related to compliance with the Real Estate Investment
Trust (REIT) status and SIIC regime, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance
might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and
regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act
2006. We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation
of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the
principal risks were related to journal entries to increase revenue or reduce expenditure, and
management bias in accounting estimates and judgemental areas of the Financial Statements
such as valuation of investment properties. The Group engagement team shared this risk
assessment with the component auditors so that they could include appropriate audit
procedures in response to such risks in their work. Audit procedures performed by the Group
engagement team and/or component auditors included:

- Discussions with management and internal audit, including consideration of known or
suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud, and review of the
reports made by internal audit;

- Understanding management’s internal controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities;

- Assessment of matters, if any, reported on the Group’s whistleblowing helpline and the results
of management’s investigation of such matters;

- Reviewing the Group’s litigation register in so far as it related to non-compliance with laws and
regulations and fraud;

- Reviewing relevant meeting minutes, including those of the Board of Directors and the Audit
Committee;

- Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature, timing and
extent of our testing;

- Review of tax compliance with the involvement of our tax specialists in the audit;

- Procedures relating to the valuation of investment properties described in the related key audit
matter above; and

- Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual
account combinations or posted by users posting a low number of journals in the period.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to
become aware of instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely
related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. Also, the risk of not
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or
intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and
balances, possibly using data auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a
limited number of items for tes